
Vale of White Horse District Council 
Cabinet agenda - Friday, 1 October 2021 

 Page 1 

Agenda 

 
Contact: Steve Culliford, Democratic Services 
Telephone: 07895 213735 
Email: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk 
Date: 23 September 2021 
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

 

 

A meeting of the  

Cabinet 

will be held on Friday 1 October 2021 at 10.30 am  
First Floor Meeting Space, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB 
 
To watch this virtual meeting, follow this link to the council’s YouTube channel.   
 

Cabinet Members: 
Councillors  
Emily Smith (Chair)  Helen Pighills 
Debby Hallett (Vice-Chair)  Judy Roberts 
Andy Crawford Bethia Thomas 
Neil Fawcett Catherine Webber 
 
 

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the 
officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 
 
Patrick Arran 
Head of Legal and Democratic 
 

Agenda 

 

Open to the Public including the Press 
 

1. Apologies for absence  
  
To record apologies for absence.   
 

2. Minutes  
(Pages 4 - 10)  
  
To adopt and sign as correct records the minutes of the Cabinet meetings held on 21 July 
and 6 August 2021.   

mailto:carole.nicholl@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


Vale of White Horse District Council 
Cabinet agenda - Friday, 1 October 2021 

 Page 2 

 

3. Declarations of interest  
  
To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on the 
agenda for this meeting.    
 

4. Urgent business and chair's announcements  
  
To receive notification of any matters which the chair determines should be considered as 
urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the matters urgent, and 
to receive any announcements from the chair. 
 

5. Public participation  
  
To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have registered 
to speak.   
 

6. Recommendations and updates from other committees  
  
To consider any recommendations to Cabinet from other committees.   
 

7. Community infrastructure levy charging schedule adoption  
(Pages 11 - 52)  
  
To consider the head of planning’s report.   
 

8. Developer contributions supplementary planning document adoption  
(Pages 53 - 156)  
  
To consider the head of planning’s report.   
 

9. Strategic property review  
(Pages 157 - 216)  
  
To consider the interim head of development and regeneration’s report.   
 

10. Tree planting policy  
  
To consider the interim head of policy and programmes’ report (to follow).   
 

11. Partnership grant scheme - future options for the scheme  
(Pages 217 - 222)  
  
To consider the interim head of corporate services’ report.   
 

12. Revision of Science Vale Enterprise Zone accountable body 
memorandum of understanding  

(Wards Affected: Blewbury and Harwell; Sutton Courtenay)  
(Pages 223 - 239)  
  



Vale of White Horse District Council 
Cabinet agenda - Friday, 1 October 2021 

 Page 3 

To consider the report of the acting deputy chief executive – partnerships.   
 

13. Procurement strategy  
(Pages 240 - 255)  
  
To consider the interim head of finance’s report.   
 

14. Quarter 1 Performance Report 2021  
(Pages 256 - 318)  
  
To consider the interim head of policy and programmes’ report.   
 

15. Treasury management outturn 2020/21  
(Pages 319 - 339)  
  
To consider the head of finance’s report.   
 

16. Exclusion of the public, including the press  
  
To consider whether to exclude members of the press and public from the meeting for the 
following item of business under Part 1 of Schedule 12A Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006 on the grounds that:  
(i) it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1-7 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and  
(ii) the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 

disclosing the information.   
 
 

Exempt information under section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972  

  

17. Office accommodation inter-authority agreement  
(Pages 340 - 361)  
  
To consider the report of the acting deputy chief executive –transformation and 
operations.   
 



 

 
Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes  

Wednesday, 21 July 2021  Ca.1 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the 

Cabinet 

 

 
held on Wednesday 21 July 2021 at 5.00 pm 
at 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, Milton, OX14 4SB  
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room:  
Cabinet members: Councillors Emily Smith (Chair), Debby Hallett (Vice-Chair), 
Neil Fawcett and Helen Pighills 
Officers: Steve Culliford and Mark Stone 
 
Remote attendance:   

Cabinet members: Andy Crawford, Bethia Thomas and Catherine Webber 
Officers: Harry Barrington-Mountford, Pat Connell, Adrian Duffield, Lucy Murfett, Susie 
Royse and Chris Traill  
Number of members of the public: 4 
 

 

Ca.12 Apologies for absence  
 
Councillor Judy Roberts had sent her apologies for absence.   
 

Ca.13 Minutes  
 
RESOLVED: to adopt as a correct record both the public and exempt Cabinet minutes of 
28 May 2021 and agree that the Chair signs them as such.   
 

Ca.14 Declarations of interest  
 
None 
 

Ca.15 Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
Four Cabinet members were present in the meeting room; therefore, the meeting was 
quorate and could proceed.  Two officers were also present in the meeting room.  Three 
Cabinet members joined the meeting remotely and were allowed to participate but not 
vote.   
 

Ca.16 Public participation  
 
Cabinet received statements from two members of the public.   
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes  

Wednesday, 21 July 2021  Ca.2 

(1) Heneage Legge-Bourke, the Chair of the Vale of White Horse Campaign to Protect 
Rural England, made a statement in support of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050, in 
principle.  He believed that the plan was a good start but could be improved.  For 
example, the plan was silent on how meeting climate change, the preservation of 
nature, and economic growth were compatible.  The Oxfordshire Plan should not be 
dominated by the Oxford to Cambridge Arc project.  The plan might also undermine 
the roles of local councillors.  There were tough choices to be made; it was a 
balance.  The council should set out its own views on how the plan would affect the 
Vale.  Environmental constraints must be the key consideration, not just in 
designated areas such as the Green Belt and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
but in all areas across the district, including towns and villages.  He urged the council 
to protect the beauty of the Vale of White Horse.   

 
(2) Mr Euan Hall, Chief Executive of The Land Trust made a statement about the future 

management of the public open space at Great Western Park in Harwell and Didcot.  
He proposed that, by using the section 106 commuted sum from the developer of the 
site, the Trust could manage the open spaces on the council’s behalf.  It would do 
this by investing the commuted sum and using the return on that investment to fund 
the maintenance of open spaces in perpetuity.  It would work with the local 
community to achieve this.  He believed that the Trust could achieve more through 
this method.   

 
The Chair thanked the two speakers for their statements and informed them that their 
views would be considered before decisions were made on these two subjects.   
 

Ca.17 Recommendations and updates from other committees  
 
Cabinet noted that on 13 July 2021, members of the Joint Scrutiny Committee had met 
informally to discuss the Oxfordshire Plan 2050.  They had made a series of suggestions, 
which had been circulated to Cabinet members in advance of the Cabinet meeting.   
 

Ca.18 Oxfordshire Plan 2050  
 
Cabinet considered the head of planning’s report on the Oxfordshire Plan 2050.  The 
report sought Cabinet’s approval for the Regulation 18 Part 2 version of the plan to be 
subject to public consultation for ten weeks from 30 July 2021 until early October.   
 
All principal councils in Oxfordshire were meeting during this week to consider the same 
report and recommendations.  Two councils had already approved the plan for 
consultation, three more were meeting today, including this meeting, and a further council 
would meet tomorrow.   
 
Appended to the report was the Statement of Community Involvement, which Cabinet was 
also asked to approve.  This set out how the consultation would be conducted.  This 
included two Vale community webinars for local residents on 19 August and 22 
September.   
 
A briefing had been held on 17 June for all councillors.  Also, members of the Joint 
Scrutiny Committee had met informally on 13 July to consider the plan and had made 
suggestions, which had been circulated to Cabinet members in advance of this meeting.  
The suggestions were to improve clarity in the plan and to improve the consultation 
process.  These had been fed back to the Oxfordshire Plan team.   

Page 5



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes  

Wednesday, 21 July 2021  Ca.3 

 
The Cabinet member reported that Regulation 18 Part 2 was the stage at which different 
options could be tested through public consultation.  Following the Regulation 18 
consultation, the Regulation 19 stage would be held where the plan would take shape with 
policy detail.  Following the adoption of a motion at the Council meeting on 14 July, this 
council would be submitting its own consultation response about the sustainability 
challenges facing Oxfordshire.  The Cabinet member encouraged other councillors to 
promote this consultation to their communities and to respond to the consultation if they 
wished.   
 
Cabinet supported the recommendations to commence the consultation.  The major 
challenge for the Oxfordshire Plan would be to set out how ongoing growth could be 
compatible with climate change objectives.  The plan had defined what green growth could 
look like but the policies in the plan were unlikely to meet it in their current form.  For 
Oxfordshire the climate change threats were from increased incidences and severity of 
flooding, and extreme heat.  Every new house added to the carbon footprint.  Generally, 
development in Oxfordshire had resulted in patterns of large numbers of people 
commuting from their towns and villages into and out of Oxford for work, which also added 
to the carbon footprint.  Any growth should avoid this scenario in future and should be 
decided on the basis of what Oxfordshire could afford in terms of its natural resources.   
 
Cabinet also noted that there was a separate consultation being undertaken on the 
government’s Oxford to Cambridge Arc project.  Councillors believed that it was important 
that the Oxfordshire Plan was a strong document, which would give Oxfordshire more 
control over the decisions affecting its future, rather than being driven by the Arc’s policies.  
Hopefully some of the Oxfordshire Plan policies would be replicated across the Arc.   
 
It was noted that the Office of National Statistics had recently downgraded its predictions 
for population growth.  It was suggested that this point should be made as part of the 
consultation response so that the latest population prediction figures were used as the 
basis for defining future levels of growth in the Oxfordshire Plan 2050.  The growth figures 
in the plan should be based on actual, natural need, not on the method of employment 
growth estimates that had been used in the past.   
 
Cabinet was optimistic that the council, councillors and the public could influence the 
Oxfordshire Plan policies.  It was hoped that the plan would be an exemplar for the 
country.  Cabinet therefore urged the public to respond to the consultation.   
 
Cabinet thanked the Cabinet member, the Oxfordshire Plan officer team, and Vale officers 
for their work on this plan.   
 
RESOLVED: to 
 
(a) approve the Regulation 18 (Part 2) Oxfordshire Plan 2050 document for public 

consultation, as attached at Appendix A to the head of planning’s report to Cabinet 
on 21 July 2021;   

 
(b)   authorise the head of planning to make any necessary editorial corrections and minor 

amendments to the documents, and to agree the final publication style, in liaison with 
the Cabinet member for corporate services and transformation, and subject to 
agreement with their counterparts in the other four partner local planning authorities; 
and  

Page 6



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes  

Wednesday, 21 July 2021  Ca.4 

 
(c) adopt the updated Statement of Community Involvement, which will become the 

formal basis for the forthcoming Regulation Part 2 consultation.   
 
 
 
Chair:  
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 5.50 pm 
 
 

Page 7



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes  

Friday, 6 August 2021  Ca.1 

Minutes 

of a meeting of the 

Cabinet 

 

 
held on Friday 6 August 2021 at 10.30 am 
in the First Floor Meeting Space, 135 Eastern Avenue, Milton Park, OX14 4SB  
 

Open to the public, including the press 
 

Present in the meeting room:  
Cabinet members: Councillors Debby Hallett (Vice-Chair - in the chair), Helen Pighills, 
Judy Roberts and Catherine Webber 
Officers: Steve Culliford and Mark Stone 
 
Remote attendance:   
Cabinet members: Councillors Andy Crawford and Bethia Thomas 
Officers: Harry Barrington-Mountford, Karen Brown, Pat Connell, Diane Foster, Liz 
Hayden, Simon Hewings, Jeremy Lloyd, and Suzanne Malcolm  
Non-Cabinet members: Councillors David Grant and Jenny Hannaby  

 
Number of members of the public: Nil 
 

 

Ca.19 Apologies for absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Neil Fawcett and Emily Smith 
(Chair).   
 
The Vice-Chair, Councillor Debby Hallett, took the chair for this meeting.   
 

Ca.20 Declarations of interest  
 
None 
 

Ca.21 Urgent business and chair's announcements  
 
None 
 

Ca.22 Public participation  
 
Councillor Jenny Hannaby made a statement in support of the proposals to upgrade the 
CCTV services in Abingdon and Wantage.     
 

Ca.23 Recommendations and updates from other committees  
 
Cabinet noted a summary update from meetings of other committees held since Cabinet’s 
meeting on 29 May 2021.   
 

Page 8



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes  

Friday, 6 August 2021  Ca.2 

Councillor David Grant updated Cabinet on the work being undertaken by the Climate 
Emergency Advisory Committee.  Officers updated Cabinet on the recent meetings of the 
Joint Staff Committee, the Scrutiny Committee, the General Licensing Committee, and the 
Joint Audit and Governance Committee.  Cabinet noted that on this occasion, there were 
no recommendations for it to consider.   
 

Ca.24 CCTV in Abingdon and Wantage  
 
Cabinet considered the head of housing and environment’s report.  This sought approval 
to replace old analogue CCTV cameras in Abingdon and Wantage with new digital 
cameras and to replace cabling to enable digital data transmission.   
 
The report set out the options open to Cabinet: 
 
1. To replace the analogue CCTV cameras with digital cameras in Abingdon and 

Wantage, together with cabling upgrades to allow digital data transmission.   
 
2. To not replace the cameras and cease to provide a CCTV public space town centre 

scheme in both Abingdon and Wantage when the current equipment failed.   
 
3. To not upgrade to digital cabling.   
 
Cabinet rejected option 2, as not replacing the CCTV cameras would present a significant 
operational and reputational risk to the council.  In addition, this would hinder long term 
discussions with Thames Valley Police regarding its county hub project.   
 
Cabinet also rejected option 3, as to not upgrade the cabling to digital would lead to on-
going faults with camera telemetry.  This would impact on the operators’ ability to respond 
to and monitor incidents as effectively as possible, and would also not realise the benefits 
of having digital cameras and enhanced picture quality.   
 
Cabinet concluded that there was a need to replace the analogue CCTV cameras in 
Abingdon and Wantage as the current equipment was reaching its end of life and there 
was a risk that if it was not replaced, the CCTV service might not be provided.  Approval to 
spend the capital budget on the purchase and installation of modern digital cameras and 
the upgrading of the cabling would help the council to continue providing a professional, 
reliable and effective CCTV service to help prevent and detect crime and keep local 
communities safe.   
 
Cabinet noted that work was progressing with Thames Valley Police on an Oxfordshire-
wide CCTV hub.  Cabinet hoped that this would provide opportunities for other parts of the 
Vale to be supplied with CCTV coverage, rather than concentrating the service solely on 
the major towns.   
 
RESOLVED: to 
 
(a) approve the spending of the capital budget allocated to maintain Vale CCTV 

equipment, so that all analogue cameras in Abingdon and Wantage can be replaced 
with digital ones and the cabling can be upgraded to enable digital data transmission; 
and  

 

Page 9



 

Vale of White Horse District Council – Cabinet minutes  

Friday, 6 August 2021  Ca.3 

(b) authorise the head of housing and environment, in consultation with the Cabinet 
member for healthy communities, to sign off the procurement of the replacement 
CCTV cameras to help maintain service continuity.   

 
 
 
The meeting closed at 10.55 am 
 
 
 
Chair:       Date:  

Page 10



Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Planning 

Author: Alison Williams 

Telephone: 01245 422600 

E-mail: Alison.Williams@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Debby Hallett 

Tel: 07545 241013 

E-mail: Debby.Hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: Cabinet 

Date: 1 October 2021 

 

 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

Charging Schedule – Adoption 

Recommendations 

To recommend Council to: 
 
(a) Adopt the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule (at Appendix 2) 
and the CIL Instalments Policy (at Appendix 3), with an implementation date of 01 
November 2021. 

(b) Delegate to the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services and Transformation, any necessary further minor changes to the 
documents or a change to the implementation date for the new CIL rates. 

 
Purpose of Report 

 
1. To consider the Examiner’s report and recommendations, following the independent 

Examination of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule, including 
the Examiner’s required modification to the Schedule. 
 

2. To consider the CIL Charging Schedule (as amended) and the accompanying 
Instalment Policy for adoption by Council on 6 October 2021. 

 

Corporate Objectives 
 
3. Under Theme 1 (Providing the Homes People Need) of the Vale Corporate Plan 2020 

to 2024, developing a Section 106 obligations strategy and updating the council’s CIL 
procedures are listed as actions to achieve the corporate objectives of adopting a 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Alison.Williams@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Debby.Hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


policy framework that ensures the homes people need can be delivered in a way that 
supports the environment and people living healthy lives. 

 

Background 
 

4. Funding for the infrastructure necessary to support new development across the 
District can be sought in a variety of ways. The council currently utilises the following 
main mechanisms for securing infrastructure contributions from developers: 
 

 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)  

 Section 106 planning obligations (S106) 
 

5. Following the adoption of Part 1 of the Local Plan 2031 in December 2016, the council 
adopted its current CIL Charging Schedule and Developer Contributions SPD in 
September 2017, with the commencement of CIL in November 2017. The council 
subsequently adopted Part 2 of the Local Plan 2031 in October 2019, which included 
new site allocations and additional infrastructure requirements. There have also been 
changes to the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations1, including: 
 

 the removal of pooling restrictions for S106 obligations (i.e. the now cancelled 
requirement that no more than five S106 obligations can fund a single infrastructure 
project); 

 removing the need for a Regulation 123 list (i.e. a list of infrastructure projects to be 
funded by CIL as opposed to S106); and 

 introducing a new requirement to produce an annual Infrastructure Funding 
Statement. 

 
6. Furthermore, it is evident that the 2017 CIL rates are not generating sufficient funds to 

help deliver the necessary infrastructure to support planned development. In particular, 
funding for education is falling short and it is now proposed, in the main, to secure 
education through S106. 
 

7. In light of all the above, the council considered it was necessary to conduct a review of 
both the CIL Charging Schedule and Developer Contributions SPD. The CIL review 
has been carried out in accordance with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) and a 
draft version of the Charging Schedule together with associated viability evidence, was 
approved by Cabinet for public consultation on 18 Dec 2020. The review of the 
Developer Contributions SPD has been completed and is the subject of a separate 
report which Cabinet will consider for adoption on 1 October.  
 
Consultation and Independent Examination of the Draft Charging Schedule 

 
8. Public consultation was carried out between 12 January and 8 February 2021. The 

council subsequently considered all the representations received and produced a 
Statement of Representations document, which provided a summary of the main 
issues raised by the 31 respondents and detailed the council’s response on each of 
these issues. It also set out modifications to the Draft Charging Schedule. On 19 March 
2021, the council formally submitted the Draft CIL Charging Schedule March 2021 
(Submission Version, as modified) and associated evidence documents for 

                                            
1 The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010, as amended by the Community Infrastructure Levy 
(Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019. 

Page 12



independent Examination. Anyone wishing to comment on the modifications was, in 
accordance with the Regulations, given from 19 March to 16 April 2021 to do so. Only 
one response was received, which just acknowledged notification, with no comments 
made.  
 

9. Mr Keith Holland BA (Hons) DipTP MRTPI ARICS conducted a virtual hearing session 
on Thursday 27 May 2021, which followed an agenda circulated prior to the meeting. 
The virtual hearing was live streamed via the council’s YouTube channel, to enable 
anyone interested to follow proceedings online.  

 
10. The Examiner issued his report with recommendations to the council on 2 July 2021. 

His report has now been published on the council’s website and can be found at 
Appendix 1 to this Cabinet report.  

 
11. In his report, the Examiner seeks answers to four key questions: 

 

 Q1 – Has the charging authority complied with the legislative requirements set out 
in the Planning Act and the CIL Regulations, including undertaking an appropriate 
level of consultation? 
 

 Q2 - Is the draft charging schedule supported by background documents containing 
appropriate available evidence? 

 

 Q3 - Are the proposed rates informed by and consistent with the evidence on 
viability across the charging authority’s area? 
 

 Q4 - Has evidence been provided that shows the proposed rate or rates would not 
undermine the deliverability of the plan? 
 

12. Mr Holland considered that the draft charging schedule complied with the CIL 
Regulations and national planning policy/guidance and that it was supported by 
detailed evidence of community infrastructure needs, underpinned by a comprehensive 
viability assessment. He also considered that the evidence used to inform the Charging 
Schedule was robust, proportionate and appropriate. 
 

13. Overall, Mr Holland concluded that the council had provided sufficient evidence that 
showed the proposed rates would not threaten delivery of the Local Plan and that the 
draft Charging Schedule would provide an appropriate basis for the collection of CIL in 
the District. He therefore recommended that the draft Charging Schedule be approved. 

 
14. The Examiner specified one modification (EM1) to the draft Charging Schedule. This 

reflects a request from the council to correct paragraph 5.4 and the legend to Figure 1, 
removing reference to ‘Shippon’. In addition, ‘Woolton’ should read ‘Wootton’ in 
paragraph 5.4.  

 
15. The council also asked the Examiner to consider one further modification to Table 1, to 

clarify that schemes of between 6 and 9 dwellings in the Area of Outstanding Natural 
Beauty will be charged as major development, ‘where affordable housing contributions 
are provided’. The Examiner included this modification as EM2 in his final report. The 
CIL Charging Schedule (Appendix 2) has been updated to incorporate these required 
modifications, which are simply minor corrections. 

 

Page 13



16. In light of the above, Officers recommend that the CIL Charging Schedule, as modified, 
is considered for adoption by Council on 6 October 2021.  

 
CIL Instalments Policy 

 
17. National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) recognises that few, if any, developments 

generate value until they are complete (either in whole or in phases). Regulation 69B of 
the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) consequently allows charging authorities to 
introduce a CIL Instalments Policy and gives each authority the freedom to decide the 
number of payments, the amount and when instalments are due. The council 
introduced a CIL Instalments Policy in September 2017 alongside the adopted CIL 
Charging Schedule (2017). Officers consider that administration of this policy has 
worked well to date and no changes are proposed, except the date of implementation, 
so that it is clear that the Instalments Policy will be applicable to the revised Charging 
Schedule, when adopted (see Appendix 3). 
 
Implementation of the new CIL Rates 
 

18. Officers consider that an implementation date of 01 November 2021 will be achievable. 
However, it is recommended that the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Corporate Services and Transformation, is given the power to alter this 
implementation date if necessary. 
 

Options 
 
19. Not updating the CIL Charging Schedule is an option, but this would mean relying on 

the current 2017 version and the council not being able to increase its CIL rates in 
order to contribute towards plugging the significant infrastructure funding gap that has 
been identified in the Vale district. 
 

Climate and ecological impact implications 
 

20. The district council and town or parish councils will be able to use CIL receipts to 
contribute towards: (i) carbon reduction measures which will help to mitigate the impact 
that new development and associated infrastructure has on local and global climate 
change; (ii) improving biodiversity, green spaces and green infrastructure; and (iii) 
mitigating any air quality, flood prevention and water management impacts arising from 
new development. 
 

Financial Implications 
 

21. Once adopted and implemented, the CIL Charging Schedule will help the council to 
secure significant funding towards necessary infrastructure in the district.  

 
Legal Implications 
 

22. The CIL Charging Schedule has been prepared, consulted upon and independently 
examined under the provisions of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended). There are 
no wider legal implications.  
 

 

Page 14



 
Risks 
 

23. As due process has been followed (as set out in the CIL Regulations 2010, as 
amended) and the Draft Charging Schedule has been assessed by an independent 
Examiner, any risk of a legal challenge following the council’s adoption and 
implementation of the Charging Schedule is limited.  

 
Other implications 
 

24. There are no other implications arising from this report. 
 

Conclusion 
 

25. Once the council has adopted the CIL Charging Schedule and the new CIL rates have 
come into force, it will sit alongside the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 
(Parts 1 and 2) and the Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document 
and will help us deliver our development objectives and secure funding towards 
necessary infrastructure to support planned growth in the District. 

 

 
Appendices 
 

 Appendix 1 – Examiner’s report with recommendations 

 Appendix 2 – Vale CIL Charging Schedule 

 Appendix 3 – Vale CIL Instalments Policy 

 Appendix 4 – Consideration of the Cabinet report and appendices by Scrutiny 
Committee on 26 July 2021 

 

Page 15



Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

AN EXAMINATION UNDER SECTION 212 

OF THE PLANNING ACT 2008 (AS AMENDED)  

 

REPORT ON THE DRAFT VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL   

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY CHARGING SCHEDULE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Independent Examiner (appointed by the Council): Keith Holland BA (Hons) 
DipTP MRTPI ARICS 

 

Charging Schedule Submitted for Examination: 19 March 2021 

 
Date of Report: 2 July 2021 

 

 

Page 16



Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

2 
 

Main Findings - Executive Summary 
 

In this report I have concluded that the draft Vale of White Horse Community 

Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule provides an appropriate basis for the 

collection of the levy in the area.  
 

The Council has provided sufficient evidence that shows the proposed rates 

would not threaten delivery of the Local Plan. 
 

The specified modifications EM1 and EM2 requested by the Council and 

recommended in this report do not alter the basis of the Council’s overall 

approach or the appropriate balance achieved. 

 

 
Introduction 

 
1. I have been appointed by the Vale of White Horse District Council, the 

charging authority, to examine the draft Vale of White Horse Community 

Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule.  I am a chartered town 
planner with more than 50 years’ experience, including 25 years’ experience 

inspecting and examining development plans and CIL Charging Schedules 

as a Government Planning Inspector.   
 

2. This report contains my assessment of the Charging Schedule in terms of 

compliance with the requirements in Part 11 of the Planning Act 2008 as 

amended (‘the Act’) and the Community Infrastructure Regulations 2010 as 
amended (‘the Regulations’).1 Section 212(4) of the Act terms these 

collectively as the “drafting requirements”. I have also had regard to the 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the CIL section of the 
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG).2 

 

3. To comply with the relevant legislation, the submitted Charging Schedule 
must strike what appears to the charging authority to be an appropriate 

balance between helping to fund necessary new infrastructure and the 

potential effects on the economic viability of development across the 

District. The PPG states3 that the examiner should establish that: 
 

- the charging authority has complied with the legislative requirements 

set out in the Act and the Regulations; 
 

- the draft charging schedule is supported by background documents 

containing appropriate available evidence; 

 

 
1 The Regulations have been updated through numerous statutory instruments since 
2010, including notably the Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 
2) Regulations 2019, which came into force on 1 September 2019 (subject to a 
transitional arrangement in relation to Part 3 of the 2010 Regulations). 
2 The CIL section of the PPG was substantially updated on 1 September 2019. 
3 See PPG Reference ID: 25-040-20190901. 

Page 17

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2008/29/part/11


Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

3 
 

- the charging authority has undertaken an appropriate level of 
consultation; 

 

- the proposed rate or rates are informed by, and consistent with, the 

evidence on viability across the charging authority’s area; and 
 

- evidence has been provided that shows the proposed rate or rates 

would not undermine the deliverability of the plan (see NPPF 
paragraph 34). 

 

4. The basis for the examination, which took place through a virtual hearing 
on 27 May 2021, is the version of the draft Charging Schedule consulted on 

under Regulation 16 (11 January 2021 to 8 February 2021) combined with 

the Statement of Modifications submitted with the draft Schedule on 19 
March 2021. Public consultation on the Statement of Modifications took 

place from 19 March 2021 until 16 April 2021. 

 

5. The Council’s CIL Charging Schedule was approved in July 2017 and came 

into effect in September 2017. That schedule identified three charging 
zones for residential development, with rates ranging from £0 to £120 per 

sq. m for residential development (excluding extra care, nursing and care 

homes) and £100 for supermarkets and retail warehousing.  The Council 
decided to revise the existing Charging Schedule to reflect the adoption of 

its Part 2 Local Plan (LPP2).4  In summary, the Council now propose a 

matrix approach as follows:  
 

Development Type 

 

Proposed CIL Rate (£ per sq. m) 

Residential development 

(including student 
accommodation, HMOs5, 

age restricted and 

sheltered housing) 

Zone 1: 

Eastern 
Parishes 

Zone 2: 

Built up areas of 
Wantage, Grove 

and Faringdon 

including Grove 
Technology Park 

Zone 3: 

Rest of 
the 

District 

Major Schemes (10 

dwellings and more net).  

Schemes of between 6 and 
9 dwellings in the Area of 

Outstanding Beauty are 

charged as major 
development 

£280 £100 £200 

Minor Schemes (9 

dwellings and fewer net). 

Other chargeable 
residential development 

(e.g. residential extensions 

over 100 sq. m and 

£340 £160 £260 

 
4 Adopted 9 October 2019. 
5 Houses in Multiple Occupation. 

Page 18



Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

4 
 

annexes) will be charged 
at the relevant zone rate 

  
Strategic sites  £0 

Institutional accommodation: 

Extra-care, nursing and care homes 

£0 

Supermarkets and Retail 
Warehousing  

£117 

Residential rural exception site  £0 

All other development £0 

 
The Eastern Parishes are Cumnor, Wytham, North Hinksey, South Hinksey, 

Kennington, Wootton, Sunningwell, Radley, Abingdon, Drayton, Sutton 

Courtenay, Appleford-on-Thames, Milton, Harwell, Chilton, Upton and 
Blewbury.  It should be noted that the Council has drawn attention to the 

mistake in paragraph 5.4 and in the legend to Figure 1 of the draft 

Charging Schedule.  In both instances the reference to Shippon is incorrect 
as Shippon is not a Parish itself - it lies within St Helen Without Parish.  The 

references to Shippon should be removed and the Council has requested 

that these corrections be included in any recommendation. I further note 

the reference to Woolton in paragraph 5.4 should be to Wootton (see 
EM1).  The strategic sites are Crab Hill, Didcot Power Station, East of 

Coxwell Road, Faringdon, Grove Airfield, Land South of Park Road 

Faringdon, Monks Farm, North of Shrivenham, South of Faringdon, Valley 
Park, North West Valley Park, Dalton Barracks, East of Kingston Bagpuize 

and North West Grove – (see Vale of White Horse Local Plan Part 1 (LPP1) 

and LPP2).  The Council proposes that the infrastructure requirements for 

these strategic sites should be delivered through S106 and S278 
agreements. For clarification, the Council has requested that the words 

"where affordable housing contributions are provided" be added to the end 

of the sentence denoted by a single asterisk in Table 1 of the draft 
Charging Schedule (EM2).     

       

Has the charging authority complied with the legislative requirements 
set out in the Act and the Regulations, including undertaking an 

appropriate level of consultation? 

 

6. The consultation process undertaken by the Council involved publishing the 
full range of supporting documents and the draft Charging Schedule on its 

website, informing the Regulation 16 “consultation bodies” and notifying all 

those registered on the Council’s notification base (around 2,200 
consultees).  The documentation was not put on public deposit because of 

the Covid-19 pandemic but any interested party could make arrangements 

with Council officials to inspect the documents on an appointment basis.  No 
requests to inspect the documents were received.  In total there were 31 

written responses to the Regulation 16 consultations and a further response 

was received as a result of the consultation on the Statement of 

Modifications.    

Page 19



Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

5 
 

7. The Charging Schedule complies with the Act and the Regulations, including 
in respect of the statutory processes and public consultation, consistency 

with the adopted Local Plan and the Infrastructure Delivery Plan, and is 

supported by an adequate financial appraisal. I also consider it compliant 

with the national policy and guidance contained in the NPPF and PPG 
respectively. 

 

Is the draft charging schedule supported by background documents 
containing appropriate available evidence? 

 

Infrastructure planning evidence 

8. LPP1 for the Vale of White Horse District was adopted in 2016.  LPP1 sets 

out the spatial strategy and the strategic policies for the District.  LPP1 sets 

a housing requirement of 20,560 new homes between 2011 and 2031.  

LPP2 complements LPP1 by setting out detailed policies and additional 
allocations, including locations for housing to accommodate some of Oxford 

City’s unmet housing need.  LPP2 was adopted in October 2019, with a 

revised housing requirement of 22,760 homes to take into account the need 
to assist with Oxford’s unmet housing need.  Both LPP1 and LPP2 were 

supported by Infrastructure Delivery Plans (IDPs).  The IDP for LPP1 related 

to the growth levels set in LPP1 while the IDP for LPP2 focused on 

development identified in LPP2 without updating the IDP produced for LPP1.     

9. The IDPs for the Vale detail a number of infrastructure projects set against 

potential and known funding sources.  Sub-regional and national funding 

sources have been taken into account including the Oxfordshire Housing 
and Growth Deal, the City Deal and the Housing Infrastructure Fund.  The 

total cost of the identified infrastructure is around £1.3 billion.  After taking 

into account identified sources of finance, a funding gap of at least £285 
million remains.  The most significant gap relates to strategic highways 

infrastructure.  None of the representations made seriously challenge the 

existence of a significant funding gap.       

10. In the light of the information provided, the proposed charge would make 

only a modest contribution towards filling the likely funding gap.  The 

figures clearly demonstrate the need to levy CIL. 

Economic viability evidence     

11. Aspinall Verdi (AV) has produced viability evidence to support the Council’s 

proposed changes to the existing CIL charging schedule.  An initial report 

was produced in April 2019 which was then supplemented by an Addendum 
Report in August 2020.  The 2020 work provided an update to the initial 

assessment.  AV have also referred to the viability work undertaken by HDH 

in 2015 to inform LPP1 and the Council’s first CIL.  

12. AVs work has demonstrated that based on both new build and second hand 
prices, residential values are higher in the eastern part of the District than in 

the west.  The higher value zone lies to the east of the A34 road.  Within the 

lower value western zone there are three built up areas (Faringdon, Grove 

Page 20



Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

6 
 

and Wantage) that are likely to be the location of the majority of brownfield 
development in the western zone.  Given that the development of brownfield 

land is likely to be more costly than green field land, a lower CIL charge is 

proposed for these towns.  Hence the 3 zone approach proposed. 

13. In assessing viability, it is necessary to have regard to the type of 
development anticipated in the area.  The use of typical anticipated 

development site types (typologies) rather than specific site examples is 

frequently used in CIL viability assessments.  For residential development 
AV used typologies informed by the Oxfordshire Strategic Housing and 

Economic Land Availability Assessment.  The typologies matrix is 

comprehensive and convincing and was informed by data derived from the 
Council’s Strategic Housing Market Assessment.  It includes greenfield sites, 

brownfield sites and strategic sites.  Sites in both the lower and higher 

value zones are tested on the basis of net developable area.  A variety of 

types of development are assessed, including houses with up to 5 
bedrooms, 1-2 bed flats, student housing, age restricted housing, care 

homes and sheltered housing.  Assumed densities are generally 30 

dwellings per hectare (dpha) but there is variation for specialist forms of 
housing such as student housing and extra care homes.  Site specific S106 

and S278 mitigation costs ranging from £2,500 to £7,500 are included 

where appropriate, as are CIL payments based on the current (indexed) 
charges.  Where required by policy, affordable housing at a rate of 35% is 

included.  For each of the typologies a series of sensitivity scenarios is 

tested to include key variables such as the CIL rate, construction costs, 

density and profit levels.   

14. The 2019 study by AV includes a review of both the direct and the indirect 

costs that are likely to flow from the Council’s adopted policies, including 

the affordable housing policy. The viability assessment work carried out has 
taken into account these costs.  Hence the imposition of the CIL charge by 

the Council should not compromise the policies in the LP. 

15. For the purposes of assessing how the CIL impacts on the viability of 
development using a residual valuation approach, it is necessary to have 

data for three broad areas.  First, the anticipated costs of development 

including profit and costs associated with planning policies, but excluding 

land costs.  Second, end sales values in the locality.  The difference 
between the cost and the value is the residual land value (RLV) i.e. the 

amount of money available to purchase the development site.  Third, a 

judgement then has to be made about how much of any RLV can be used to 
pay a CIL charge.  Clearly the CIL charge cannot be set at a level that 

would discourage a reasonable landowner from selling their land for 

development.              

16. In relation to the cost of development, the 2019 work by AV sets out the 
assumptions used in the viability assessments.  The 2020 Addendum adds 

costs that have been introduced by expected Government policy/legislative 

requirements.  These include costs relating to biodiversity net gain and the 
Future Homes Standard.  Build costs based on Building Cost Information 

Service (BCIS) figures are updated in the 2020 work.  Based on information 

Page 21



Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

7 
 

from the Council, the S106 assumptions have changed and been updated to 
include education, with the consequence that the upper figure is now set at 

nearly £23,000 per unit, in contrast to the £7,000 amount in the 2019 

assessment.  A number of the cost assumptions have been challenged by 

some of those making representations.   

17. The April 2019 work sought to establish residential market values on the 

basis of national and regional data, evidence from previous viability work, 

Land Registry data for both new build and second hand properties and new 
build asking prices from national agency websites.  Floor space data was 

derived from Land Registry data and information from the Energy 

Performance Certificate register.  AV concluded that values ranged from 
£200,000 for a 1 bedroom flat in the western part of the District to 

£600,000 for a 5 bedroom house in the eastern parishes.  The AV work 

sought to exclude exceptional properties that could distort the general 

picture. 

18. AV’s August 2020 Addendum updates the residential market values.  Using 

Land Registry House Price Indices for the Vale of White Horse, South East 

England and the United Kingdom, AV conclude that there was a minor 
increase in house prices from February 2019 to December 2019.  This work 

was supplemented by achieved values in March 2020 from a number of 

developments in Wantage, Abingdon, Swindon, Faringdon, and on the edge 
of Oxford and by current asking prices on sites under construction in the 

Vale.  As a result of the research, AV conclude that the values in its April 

2019 assessment should be increased by 2%.  AV note that Covid-19 and 

Brexit do not appear to have had a significant dampening impact on the 
Vale property market.  Their 2020 residential values range from £204,000 

for a 1 bed flat in the western part of the Vale to £612,000 for a 5 bedroom 

house in the eastern parishes.  

19. For student housing AV have not been able to identify any recent student 

housing schemes in the Vale.  The lower end of the Oxford market has been 

used as a proxy.  This is a reasonable approach given the proximity of the 
Vale to Oxford and the likelihood that the Vale market will not be as strong 

as the Oxford market.  In general terms AV have based their views on 

market reports by JLL, Knight Frank and Savills.  Clearly the student 

housing market is an attractive investment option, particularly in places 
such as Oxford with a large student population.  Student housing enjoys 

strong demand, high occupancy rates and tightening yields. 

20. As regards other specialist housing, AV have analysed the types of 
development most likely to be developed by the private sector.  For new 

build, age restricted housing and extra care developments, recent schemes 

have been assessed.  These show a range of dwellings, from one bed flats 

to four bedroomed detached properties.  The analysis shows prices from 
£270,000 to £775,000.  For these types of housing the second hand market 

is assessed using Right Move.  Just under 30 properties were reviewed with 

asking prices per square metre (per sq. m), ranging from £2,500 to £3,200.  
For sheltered housing AV rely on data from the Retirement Housing Group 

which acknowledges that this type of housing enjoys a premium over typical 

Page 22



Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

8 
 

apartments.  Using the research data AV assumes prices per sq. m of 
£4,800 for one bed units and £4,000 for two bed retirement/sheltered 

accommodation.  For extra care housing the assumptions are £5,000 for 

one bed units and £4,688 for two bed properties. 

21. For affordable housing transfer values AV relies largely on the pre CIL 
viability work done by HDH in 2016.  This work assumed affordable rents at 

80% of market rents capped at the Local Housing Cap allowance.  HDH put 

affordable housing values at 55% of market value, with intermediate tenure 
values at 65%, assuming 50% initial purchase and a rent of 2.5% pa on the 

retained equity.  Rental income was capitalised at 5.5% after allowing 10% 

for management charges.  AV uses data from the Council to update the 
value assumptions to 76% for intermediate tenure and 60% for affordable 

rent.       

22. As regards commercial development, AV refer to a number of sources for 

their research.  These include the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors 
(RICS) UK Property Market Chart Book Q4 2018 and the Q3 2018 

Commercial Market Survey by the same organisation, the 2019 Real Estate 

Market Outlook by CBRE, the June 2018 UK Retail Warehouse Market work 
by Savills, the Carter Jonas Prime Property Outlook 2019 and the Knight 

Frank yield guide of January 2019 and Retail Property Outlook 2019.  In 

relation to the more local market, 2018 research by Carter Jonas into the 
Oxfordshire office and industrial market is quoted.  Studies for the Council 

in relation to Retail and Town Centres 2017, viability work for the existing 

CIL and the Local Plan are referenced, as is the Employment Land Review 

Update 2012.  AV researched current asking prices and achieved rents for 
offices and industrial premises in three sub-regions: Abingdon-on-

Thames/Oxford; the South Eastern area (including Milton Park and the 

Harwell Science Campus); and the more rural Western sub-area.  Asking 

rents for a small number of second hand retail units are also quoted. 

23. The third broad area to be considered in a CIL viability assessment is to test 

the RLV against a benchmark land value (BLV) to establish the level, if any, 
of viability headroom. The PPG is clear that BLV should be based on the 

principle of existing use value plus a premium (EUV+) to incentivise the 

owner of the site to release it for development.  While there is no specified 

premium for brownfield land, a figure of 20% above EUV is commonly used.  
This is the premium adopted by AV for brownfield sites.  AV note the 2010 

Homes and Communities consultation paper on benchmark values  

concluded that the premium should be between 10-30% for urban areas 
and 10-20 times agricultural value in rural areas.  For greenfield land AV 

note that Oxfordshire is a high value area and the uplift multiplier applied in 

the appraisals is between 20 and 28 times the agricultural/paddock value.  

Based on advertised prices and stakeholder evidence AV quoted £33,700 

per ha as an average for agricultural land in the area.          

24. AV have checked their conclusions about benchmark values with the 

viability work done for the Council by HDH for the first CIL and LPP1.  The 
work by HDH used an approach based on alternative use plus 20% 

premium with an additional £350,000 per ha for greenfield sites.    

Page 23



Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

9 
 

25. The draft Charging Schedule is supported by detailed evidence of 
community infrastructure needs and underpinned by a comprehensive 

viability assessment.  On this basis, the evidence which has been used to 

inform the Charging Schedule is robust, proportionate and appropriate.  

 
Are the proposed rates informed by and consistent with the evidence on 

viability across the charging authority’s area? 

 

Residential development  

26. For strategic sites the Council has decided that infrastructure can best be 

delivered through S106/S278 agreements.  This is an acceptable approach 
supported by the PPG.  Accordingly, the testing that AV have done for three 

strategic sites includes substantial S106 payments per unit and a nil rate for 

CIL.  Given the decision by the Council about how infrastructure is to be 

funded on the strategic sites there is no need for any further consideration of 
this matter in this report, especially as the proposal is to leave the rate 

unchanged at nil.    

27. For greenfield sites in the lower value zone, the testing done by AV shows a 
RLV of at least £1,561,000 to £2,647,000 per ha depending on the size of 

the scheme.  The BLV per ha for these sites in this lower value area is 

between £1,112,000 and £1,235,000.  AV conclude that there is scope in 
this area to increase the CIL charge per sq. m to £430 for smaller schemes, 

£330 for medium size schemes and £570 for larger schemes without 

prejudicing viability. 

28. For brownfield sites in the lower value zone, AV conclude that there is a RLV 
ranging from at least £1,488,000 per ha to £2,645,000.  The BLV is put at 

£1,334,000.  AV conclude that without prejudicing viability there is scope for 

increasing CIL per sq. m to £370 for smaller sites, £170 for medium size 

sites and £490 for larger schemes.      

29. In the higher value zone on greenfield land, AV calculate a RLV of between 

£2,572,000 per ha and £4,632,000.  The BLV per ha is between £1,161,000 
and £1,359,000.  AV conclude that the CIL charge could be raised to over 

£570 per sq. m without prejudicing viability. 

30. For brownfield land in the higher value zone, the RLV is put at between 

£2,504,000 per ha and £4,630,000, with a BLV of £2,076,000.  AV consider 
that these figures provide scope to increase CIL per sq. m to over £570 on 

smaller and larger sites and £350 on medium size sites. 

31. Small apartment schemes (below the affordable housing threshold) have 
been assessed in both lower and higher value areas.  In the lower value zone 

these schemes generate a RLV of between £2,284,000 and £4,235,000 per 

ha in the higher value zone.  The BLV ranges from £1,334,000 to 

£2,076,000 per ha.  AV say that the sensitivity tests show that there is 
scope to increase the CIL charge to £230 per sq. m in the lower value zone 

and £430 in the higher value zone. 

Page 24



Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

10 
 

32. For small sites in the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), affordable 
housing may be required and hence there is an AONB typology involving a 6 

unit scheme on greenfield land.  The assessment of the scheme shows a RLV 

well in excess of the BLV, leading AV to conclude that there is scope for a 

CIL charge of £450 per sq. m.          

33. Turning to sheltered and retirement housing, average new build asking 

prices in Wantage and Faringdon have been used on the assumption that if a 

scheme is viable in a lower value area it will be viable in the higher value 
areas.  Extra care housing has been allocated a 25% premium and median 

BCIS construction costs have been applied.  For age restricted and sheltered 

housing on brownfield land, the assessment produces a RLV of £2,099,000 
per ha, with a BLV of £1,334,000.  The conclusion is that a CIL of £210 per 

sq. m could be supported without prejudicing viability.  For greenfield land 

the assessment shows a greater difference between RLV and BLV and hence 

a CIL charge of £290 per sq. m could be supported.  For both brownfield and 
greenfield sites there is an assumption that that there will be a 35% 

affordable housing off-site commuted sum. 

34. Extra care and assisted living housing on brownfield land is currently exempt 
from CIL in the Vale and AV conclude that there is no scope for introducing 

CIL for this typology.  On greenfield land the sensitivity work by AV shows 

that a relatively modest charge of £70 per sq. m could be supported. 

35. For purpose built student accommodation AV assume a BLV of £1,161,000.  

There is a strong market for student housing and AV consider that on 

greenfield land the difference between BLV and RLV is around £14,000,000 

per ha.  On brownfield land the difference is assessed at £13,000,000.  AV 
consider that for both greenfield sites and brownfield sites this type of 

development could accommodate a CIL of over £600 per sq. m.        

Commercial rates 

36. AV have been unable to identify any recent supermarkets/food stores/retail 

warehouse transactions.  Based on their research and a comparison with the 

previous CIL viability work, AV note that supermarket chains are 
consolidating existing stores in response to the discount food stores.  

Overall, the view is that viability in the sector is not strong and hence no 

change is recommended to the existing CIL rate.  High Street retail does not 

currently have a CIL charge in the Vale.  Given negative sentiment, falling 

rents and high yields, no change is recommended by AV.     

37. Yields for offices have improved but there has been little rental growth and 

any growth in capital value is expected to be offset by increased BCIS costs 
since 2014.  AV conclude that office development remains at the margins of 

viability and recommend no change in the existing nil charge.  HDH 

concluded in 2014 that industrial development was unviable.  AV note that 

although market sentiment for industrial development is now more positive, 
viability has only moved from negative to marginal and hence no CIL charge 

is recommended.               

Page 25



Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

11 
 

Has evidence been provided that shows the proposed rate or rates 
would not undermine the deliverability of the plan (see National 

Planning Policy Framework paragraph 34)? 

 

38. The substance of some of the representations made is that the viability 

assessment by AV has not adequately taken into account sales values, has 

underestimated development costs and has not taken into account the 
uncertainties flowing from the pandemic and Brexit.  Also, there is a 

challenge to the viability buffer provided on the grounds that it is not clear 

what buffer/s have been applied and why. 

39. The indexing approach used to establish sales values by AV was checked 

against recent sold data and advertised prices in the August 2020 Addendum 

report.  The research for this checking was based on values from March 
2020.  The March 2020 evidence does not indicate that the indexing 

approach is flawed to any material extent. 

40. The evidence challenging the AV approach is based on a limited number of 

new build transactions for the period January 2019 to July 2020 in the 
Eastern Parishes zone.  For 3 and 4 bed houses, the evidence is based on 22 

transactions which show that the indexing approach overvalues these types 

of dwellings by about 6-7%.  For 1 bed houses the transactional evidence, 
based on 14 units, indicates an undervaluation of some 10%.  For 4 and 5 

bedroomed units there is no material differentiation.  The limited evidence 

against the indexing approach is not convincing given the checking done by 
AV, which was based on 148 transactions in both the lower and higher value 

areas.  In addition, the differences referred to in the challenging evidence 

are not all in the same direction, are relatively modest and in some cases are 

no different.   

41. In relation to affordable housing values the challenge is essentially to the 

transparency of the evidence and the failure to involve Registered Providers.  

While it may have been better for the Council to detail the evidence there is 
no reason to believe that the information provided by the Council to AV is 

materially incorrect.  Furthermore, at the virtual hearing the Council 

confirmed that it has recently checked its evidence with Registered Providers 

and that the evidence it provided is consistent with the view of the 

Registered Providers.       

42. Turning to the costs of development, the argument against AV is that there 

are a number of elements that have been underestimated and that taken 
cumulatively these undermine the viability assessment.  Those challenging 

the assessment do not specify which are the most critical elements or 

attempt to provide alternative assessments. 

43. In relation to BCIS construction costs, the use of lower quartile rates is 

justified by AV on the grounds that volume housebuilders build at or below 

lower quartile rates.  Furthermore, AV point out that the use of lower 

quartile rates has been standard practice in many areas including the 
adjoining authority area, South Oxfordshire, where the use of these rates 

Page 26



Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

12 
 

has recently been accepted for the Local Plan viability work.  AV accept that 
RICS have adjusted the BCIS costs upwards for Oxfordshire but point out 

that the revision is reflected in the sensitivity tables that form part of the 

viability assessment.  Based on the sensitivity work, the revised costs can be 

accommodated without undermining viability.  The challenge to the AV work 
refers in general terms to building costs in Southern Regions without 

providing any convincing specific evidence. 

44. The allegation that site servicing/infrastructure costs are not adequately 
catered for is refuted by the reasonable argument from AV that these costs 

are included within the external works costs for the generic typologies.  It is 

also considered reasonable for AV to say that any specific abnormal costs 

should be reflected in the price paid for the land.  

45. The challenge in relation to the failure of AV to take into account the cost of 

garages has merit.  AV’s argument that it is impossible in an area wide study 

to take what it describes as a “fine grained approach” is not convincing.  Nor 
is their argument that where garages are provided, one would expect 

corresponding increases in value.  There is no reason why, in assessing 

development costs, reasonable assumptions cannot be made about what sort 
of properties would usually have garages and to include these costs in the 

calculations.  As far as a corresponding increase in values is concerned, it is 

illogical to exclude a cost element for garages on the one hand when the 
sales values on the other hand will obviously include the value of any 

garaging provided. 

46. In relation to indexing of Building Regulation costs, AV reasonably point out 

that these costs effectively become embedded in general building costs. 

47. AV allow 7% for professional fees.  This is at the lower end of the range that 

might be expected but it is not exceptionally low – for example, the viability 

assessment for the South Oxfordshire CIL and Local Plan used a figure of 
6.5%.  In addition, as AV point out they consulted on professional fees on 

two occasions and did not receive any challenges to their figure. 

48. The S106/S278 costs are reasonably based on recent examples from 

development sites in the District.  

49. AV confirmed that the finance rate used in their 2019 viability appraisals was 

6.25% and not 6.5% as incorrectly cited in Table 5.9 on page 53 of their 

2019 report. Several respondents to the public consultation argued that the 
finance rate should have been 6.5%, but AV pointed out that the 0.25% 

difference makes little difference to the overall conclusions. 

50. The contingency rate of 3% is relatively low but it is the rate that was 
consulted upon in 2019 and 2020 without challenge and is the rate that has 

been applied and accepted in other local plan and CIL viability studies. 

51. Drawing the above points together the conclusion is that AV have, to some 

extent, underestimated development costs for residential schemes by 
omitting the cost of providing garaging.  However, not all properties will 

Page 27



Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

13 
 

have garaging and the extra cost involved would be relatively modest in 
comparison with the overall costs.  The various assumptions used tend to 

favour reduced development costs but not to an extent that is exceptional or 

unacceptable.  The claim that the cumulative impact of underestimated costs 

invalidates the viability conclusions reached by AV is not substantiated by 

convincing evidence.   

52. In addition, it is necessary to bear in mind the significance of any 

underestimation of development costs in relation to whatever viability buffer 
is provided.  There is no standard buffer endorsed by Government policy.  

Perhaps unfortunately the viability report does not make the buffer/s applied 

explicit – one needs to interpret the sensitivity tables for the various 
typologies.  The buffer applied varies within a range of 40% to almost 60%.  

A lowest level of 40% still proves a sizable buffer which is adequate to 

ensure that the proposed CIL charge does not threaten the viability of 

development in the area, even if the cost of development has been slightly 
underestimated.  Contrastingly, the CIL rate suggested by Wantage Town 

Council would result in a buffer of under 20%.  This is too small to provide 

an adequate level of protection against unforeseen changes in circumstances 

or underestimation of development costs.      

53. The benchmark land values used have been criticised on the grounds that 

they are not based on policy compliant greenfield land transactions.  
However, the approach taken by AV is a conventional one that is seen in 

many successful viability appraisals.  In addition, no hard evidence has been 

produced showing that the transactions referred to would result in a 

materially different benchmark value. 

54. Some argue that the CIL review should be delayed until the consequences of 

the Covid-19 pandemic and/or Brexit are better understood.  The Council 

and AV contend that a “business as normal” approach is sensible in these 
uncertain times.  It is considered that the Council’s view is the logical one.  

At this point in time the housing market in areas such as the Vale remains 

strong and, if anything, seems to be strengthening.  On the other hand, the 
cost of development is being adversely affected by labour and material 

shortages.  It is not possible to predict with any degree of certainty when 

and how the housing market will change.  Delaying the CIL review would 

damage the Council’s ability to help to fund the essential infrastructure that 
needs to go hand in hand with development.  The same applies to the point 

that the CIL review should be done in step with the emerging Local Plan.  

Whist this may be theoretically ideal, the Local Plan is at a very early stage 
and linking the CIL review to it would be likely to result in several years 

delay.   

55. In relation to strategic sites there are representations that express concern 

that these sites will not make a fair contribution to the provision of 
necessary infrastructure.  The Council’s approach, which is acceptable in 

terms of Government policy, is to require developments on these sites to 

provide infrastructure through the S106 mechanism.  The viability appraisals 
show that these sites cannot be viably developed if both a CIL charge and a 

S106 charge are levied.   

Page 28



Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

14 
 

56. There are some challenges to the proposed rates on the grounds that they 
are not high enough on the one hand or that they are too high for small 

builders on the other.  A concern is raised that the rates fail to take into 

account the considerable variations in geography, development costs and 

sales returns across the District.  However, the Council’s approach is already 
relatively complicated, with three zones and differential rates for major and 

minor housing schemes.  Overall, it is considered that the Council is correct 

to resist further complicating the Charging Schedule which, as it stands, 

reasonably relates to varying property values in the area. 

57. No convincing evidence has been presented to challenge the proposals for 

commercial and retail development in the District.                                                

58. A number of the representations relate to how the funds raised by the CIL 

should be spent, including a challenge to the proposal to contribute to 

funding for the Didcot Garden Town infrastructure.  As the Council points 

out, the Didcot Garden Town Master Plan will have direct impacts on the 
Vale.  In any event, the way CIL funds are spent is a matter for the Council 

and is not relevant to this examination of the Charging Schedule. 

59. I consider the viability assessment to be robust and conclude that the 
residential and commercial rates proposed would not threaten delivery of the 

Local Plan. The proposed rates are justified therefore. 

Overall Conclusion 
 

60. I conclude that the draft Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule, 

subject to the making of the modifications requested by the Council set out 

in EM1 and EM2, satisfies the drafting requirements.  I recommend that the 
draft Charging Schedule be approved. 

 

Keith Holland 
Examiner 

 

Appendix A – Modifications that the examiner specifies so that the Charging 

Schedule may be approved. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



Intelligent Plans and Examinations (IPE) Ltd, 3 Princes Street, Bath BA1 1HL 

Registered in England and Wales. Company Reg. No. 10100118. VAT Reg. No. 237 7641 84 

15 
 

Appendix A 
 

Examiner Modifications (EM) recommended in order that the charging schedule 

may be approved. 

 

Examiner 

Modification 

(EM) 

Page no./other 

reference 

Modification 

EM1 Paragraph 5.4 and the 

legend to Figure 1 of 

the draft Charging 

Schedule 

Paragraph 5.4  

Remove reference to Shippon 

 

 

 

Replace Woolton with Wootton 

EM2  Table 1 of the draft 

Charging Schedule 

Add ", where affordable 

housing contributions are 

provided." to the asterisk 

relating to Major Schemes 

 

Page 30



Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
CHARGING SCHEDULE

November 2021

Page 31



1

VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICYNovember 2021

1.  BACKGROUND 2

2 INTRODUCTION 2

3 INFRASTRUCTURE 3

4 CIL AND S106 AGREEMENTS 4

5 VIABILITY AND RATE SETTING 4

 Residential Development 4

 Non-Residential Rates 6

 Rate Setting 6

6 CIL RATES 6

7 NEIGHBOURHOOD FUNDS 9

8 CALCULATING THE CHARGEABLE AMOUNT 9

9 EXEMPTIONS 10

10 SPENDING CIL AND REPORTING 11

 APPENDICES 12

 Appendix A - Zone 2 Inset Maps 13

Page 32



VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICY

2

November 2021

1.  BACKGROUND

1.1 In 2010, Government introduced the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) as the 
preferred mechanism for securing developer contributions towards infrastructure 
to support growth in an area.

1.2	 The	Council’s	first	CIL	Charging	Schedule	came	into	effect	in	November	2017	
and	was	subsequently	reviewed	to	reflect	the	adoption	of	Part	2	of	the	Vale	
of	White	Horse	Local	Plan	2031	in	October	2019	and	changes	to	the	CIL	
Regulations	in	September	2019.	

1.3 This revised Charging Schedule will be implemented from 1 November 2021 and 
includes a brief explanation of CIL and the rationale behind rate setting. New CIL 
rates for three separate zones across the District are set out in Table 1 on page 
6.

1.4	 Preparation	of	the	Charging	Schedule	was	supported	by	the	following	evidence	
documents, which can be found on the Council’s website. 

• Two	Infrastructure	Delivery	Plans	(IDPs),	which	set	out	infrastructure	
requirements to support the delivery of planned development within the 
VOWH	Local	Plan	2031	at	the	time	they	were	compiled;		

• A	CIL	Viability	Assessment,	undertaken	by	consultants	on	behalf	of	the	
Council,	which	comprised:	Viability	Assessment	(April	2019);	Viability	
Addendum	(August	2020);	and	Viability	Assessment	Executive	Summary	
(October	2020);	and

• An	Infrastructure	Funding	Gap	Statement,	which	compared	the	likely	
CIL income from anticipated new developments with the cost of 
infrastructure	identified	in	the	Infrastructure	Delivery	Plans.

1.5 Alongside the adoption of this CIL Charging Schedule, the Council has also 
adopted	a	revised	Developer	Contributions	Supplementary	Planning	Document	
(SPD),	with	the	same	implementation	date	of	1	November	2021.

2 INTRODUCTION

2.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) came into force in April 2010 and is 
a levy that local authorities can choose to charge on new development in their 
area.  The money raised can be used to fund a wide range of infrastructure 
such as transport schemes, schools, community facilities, health and social care 

Page 33



3

VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICYNovember 2021

facilities,	parks,	green	spaces	and	leisure	facilities.

2.2 Amendments to the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 were 
introduced	in	September	2019.	Significant	changes	included:	removal	of	
pooling restrictions for S106 obligations (i.e. the requirement that no more than 
five	S106	obligations	can	fund	a	single	infrastructure	project);	removal	of	the	
requirement	for	a	Regulation	123	list	(i.e.	a	list	of	infrastructure	projects	that	CIL	
might	be	spent	on);	and	introduction	of	a	new	requirement	to	produce	an	annual	
Infrastructure Funding Statement.

2.3	 Vale	of	White	Horse	District	Council,	as	the	local	planning	authority,	is	classed	
as a charging authority and may therefore charge CIL in respect of development 
that	takes	place	in	the	District1.  The Council has been charging CIL since 
November	2017	and	reviewed	its	CIL	rates	in	2021	to	take	account	of	new	
policies	and	allocations	set	out	within	the	VOWH	Local	Plan	2031	Part	2,	as	well	
as amendments to the Government’s CIL Regulations.  

2.4	 CIL	is	not	charged	on	affordable	housing,	buildings	used	for	charitable	purposes	
or self-build housing.  CIL applies to all ‘chargeable development’ which is 
defined	as:

• All new buildings, but excluding those into which people do not usually, 
or only occasionally, go (e.g. only to inspect machinery or structures 
such as electricity pylons or substations)

• Developments	of	100m2	or	more	of	additional	gross	internal	floorspace

• The creation of one additional dwelling, even if the gross internal 
floorspace	is	less	than	100m2

• Some developments not requiring planning permission (permitted 
development) will also be liable for CIL if they do not meet the exemption 
criteria.

3 INFRASTRUCTURE

3.1 The infrastructure requirements to support the growth set out in the adopted 
Vale	of	White	Horse	Local	Plan	2031	are	set	out	in	in	the	Infrastructure	Delivery	
Plans,	which	provide	the	details	of	the	infrastructure	required	to	support	growth	
in	the	District.	The	funding	of	this	infrastructure	comes	from	different	sources	
(including Section 106 agreements, CIL, Government’s Housing Infrastructure 
Fund and business rate retention). The CIL regulations require that, in order to 

 1		 Under	the	terms	of	Part	11	of	the	Planning	Act	2008.	

Page 34



VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICY

4

November 2021

justify	charging	CIL,	the	Council	must	demonstrate	that	there	is	a	‘gap’	between	
the infrastructure needs of the District and the funding that is available, including 
anticipated CIL income. An Infrastructure Funding Gap Report was prepared to 
demonstrate this need.

4 CIL	AND	S106	AGREEMENTS

4.1	 Section	106	agreements	and	Section	278	Highways	Agreements	will	continue	
to	be	used	to	secure	mitigation	and	affordable	housing	following	the	CIL	review.	
The amended CIL regulations no longer contain a restriction on the pooling 
of	monies	from	more	than	five	S106	obligations	to	fund	a	single	infrastructure	
project	and	both	CIL	and	S106	funding	can	be	secured	towards	the	same	piece	
of infrastructure without the limitation of pooling.

4.2 The Council has adopted a revised Developer Contributions Supplementary 
Planning	Document	(SPD),	which	identifies	how	the	Council	will	ensure	new	
development contributes towards the provision of infrastructure such as roads, 
schools, community facilities, leisure facilities, green and open spaces.

5 VIABILITY	AND	RATE	SETTING

5.1 In order to establish levy rates for development, a charging authority should 
carry	out	a	broad	test	of	viability	across	its	district,	together	with	specific	viability	
testing for strategic sites. 

5.2	 The	Council	commissioned	consultants	Aspinall	Verdi	to	carry	out	a	review	of	
viability across the District, examining the cumulative impact of the policies in the 
Local	Plan	2031	and	CIL.	This	review	was	undertaken	to	assess	the	effect	that	
any revised CIL rates would have on development viability.

 Residential Development

5.3 The viability assessment has shown that development across the District is 
viable	and	that	maximum	CIL	rates	in	the	region	of	£570psm	have	been	found	to	
be achievable without compromising development viability.

5.4	 The	viability	assessment	provides	evidence	to	support	different	residential	CIL	
rates	based	on	differing	land	values	across	the	District.	The	eastern	parishes	
(i.e. Abingdon, Appleford, Blewbury, Chilton, Cumnor, Drayton, Harwell, 

Page 35



5

VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICYNovember 2021

Kennington,	Milton,	North	Hinksey,	Radley,	South	Hinksey,	Sunningwell,	Sutton	
Courtenay, Upton, Wootton and Wytham) have higher land values and can 
therefore	sustain	a	higher	CIL	rate,	which	is	reflected	in	the	charging	schedule.	
As	the	majority	of	brownfield	development	is	likely	to	come	forward	in	the	built-
up areas of Wantage, Grove and Faringdon, new development in these locations 
would	not	be	able	to	sustain	a	higher	CIL	rate	without	prejudicing	viability.	
Consequently, the Charging Schedule includes a separate charging zone 
covering these areas, which allows a higher CIL rate to be set for the rest of the 
District.

5.5	 The	strategic	allocations	within	Part	2	of	the	Local	Plan	2031	have	also	been	
tested	against	CIL.	The	sites	which	have	been	included	within	the	Viability	
Assessment are:

• East	of	Kingston	Bagpuize;

• Dalton	Barracks;	and

• North West Grove.

5.6 The infrastructure requirements to bring forward these sites are considerable 
and although some sites could bear a small CIL charge, our viability consultants 
have recommended that these sites do not pay CIL, but instead deliver their 
infrastructure	requirements	fully	through	S106/S278	agreements.

5.7	 In	addition,	there	are	several	strategic	allocations	which	were	exempt	from	
paying CIL in the previous Charging Schedule. The exemption on these sites 
has been carried forward into this Charging Schedule. These sites are:

• Crab	Hill;

• Didcot	Power	Station;

• East	of	Coxwell	Road;

• Grove	Airfield;

• Land	South	of	Park	Road;

• Monks	Farm;

• North	of	Shrivenham;

• South	of	Faringdon;

• Valley	Park;	and

• North-West	Valley	Park.

Page 36



VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICY

6

November 2021

5.8	 The	viability	assessment	found	that	minor	development	(fewer	than	10	
dwellings)	could	support	a	higher	CIL	rate	than	major	development,	as	it	does	
not	have	to	provide	affordable	housing.

 Non-Residential Rates

5.9	 The	viability	of	non-residential	development	in	the	District	has	also	been	
assessed.	Business	uses	(including	offices,	industrial	and	distribution	and	retail)	
have been found unable to support a CIL charge. Although the assessment has 
shown	that	town	centre	retail	uses	cannot	support	a	CIL	charge,	supermarkets	
and	retail	warehousing	can	continue	to	support	the	CIL	rate	of	£1172 (rounded). 

 Rate Setting

5.10	 In	arriving	at	our	CIL	rates,	we	must	strike	an	appropriate	balance	between	
the need to fund the infrastructure required to support development and the 
potential	effects	that	imposing	CIL	rates	may	have	on	the	economic	viability	
of development across our area. It is therefore important not to set rates at 
the	margin	of	viability	and	we	have	made	a	reasoned	judgment,	providing	a	
significant	buffer	to	protect	against	unforeseen	circumstances,	such	as	an	
increase	in	build	costs.	Overall,	we	have	taken	account	of	the	viability	evidence	
in setting the charging zones as set out below.

6	 CIL	RATES

6.1	 The	CIL	regulations	allow	us	to	set	differential	rates	(including	zero	rates)	for	
different	geographical	areas	or	for	different	land	uses	across	our	charging	area.	
The	CIL	regulations	also	provide	us	with	the	ability	to	set	differential	rates	in	
relation to scales of development.

6.2 The CIL rates, shown below in Table 1, are based on the recommendations from 
the	CIL	Viability	Assessment.	Some	of	the	strategic	sites	are	zero	rated	and	
not	subject	to	CIL	charges,	as	they	will	contribute	towards	infrastructure	solely	
through S106 agreements. Figure 1 is a map of the CIL charging zones for the 
District.	It	identifies	the	strategic	allocations	which	are	CIL	exempt.

 2		 The	charge	is	£116.78	based	on	current	indexation.		When	CIL	was	first	introduced	the	rate	was	£100.

Page 37



7

VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICYNovember 2021

Strategic Sites6

Institutional 
accommodation:         
Extra-care,	nursing	and	care	
homes

Supermarkets and Retail 
Warehousing 

Residential rural exception 
site 

All other development

Residential Development 
(including student 
accommodation3, HMOs, 
age restricted and sheltered 
housing)

Major Schemes                
(10 dwellings and more net)*

Minor Schemes                  
(9	dwellings	and	fewer	net)**

Zone 1: 

Eastern	
Parishes4 

£280

£340

Zone 3:

Rest of District

£200

£260

Zone 2: 

Built up areas: 
Wantage, Grove 
and Faringdon5 

£100

£160

CIL RATE (£ per square metre)Development Type

£0

£0

£117

£0

£0

CIL RATE (£ per sqare metre)Development Type

3		 Student	accommodation	which	is	self-contained	(e.g.	studio	flats)	will	be	charged	CIL	at	the	relevant	
residential	rate.	Student	accommodation	of	a	communal	nature	(e.g.	shared	living	areas	and/or	kitchens)	will	
be nil rated.

4   The	Eastern	Parishes	are:	Cumnor,	Wytham,	North	Hinksey,	South	Hinksey,	Kennington,	Wootton,	
Sunningwell, Radley, Abingdon, Drayton, Sutton Courtenay, Appleford On Thames, Milton, Harwell, Chilton, 
Upton, and Blewbury

5			This	includes	Grove	Technology	Park	in	East	Challow
6			Strategic	allocated	sites:	LPP1:	Crab	Hill,	Didcot	Power	Station,	East	of	Coxwell	Road,	Faringdon,	Grove	

Airfield,	Land	South	of	Park	Road	Faringdon,	Monks	Farm,	North	of	Shrivenham,	South	of	Faringdon,	Valley	
Park,	North	West	Valley	Park,	LPP2:	Dalton	Barracks,	East	of	Kingston	Bagpuize,	North	West	Grove.

*		 Schemes	of	between	6	and	9	dwellings	in	the	Area	of	Outstanding	Natural	Beauty	are	
charged	as	major	development,	where	affordable	housing	contributions	are	provided.

* * Other chargeable residential development (e.g. residential extensions over 100 sq m and 
annexes) will be charged at the relevant zone rate 

Table 1: CIL Charges

Page 38



VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICY

8

November 2021

Figure 1 – CIL Charging Map

Page 39



9

VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICYNovember 2021

7	 NEIGHBOURHOOD	FUNDS

7.1	 The	Regulations	require	the	Council	to	pass	on	a	proportion	of	the	revenues	
from CIL receipts to the towns and parishes within which the chargeable 
development	took	place.	Parishes	with	a	Neighbourhood	Plan	will	receive	25	per	
cent of the CIL revenue from new development within their neighbourhood plan 
area.	Parishes	without	a	Neighbourhood	Plan	will	receive	15	per	cent	of	the	levy	
revenue,	subject	to	a	cap	of	£100	per	existing	council	tax	dwelling	per	year.	

7.2	 CIL	must	be	spent	on	infrastructure.	To	ensure	transparency,	both	the	Council	
and the town or parish council must report annually on how CIL receipts 
have been spent. By 31 December each year, the Council must produce an 
Infrastructure Funding Statement and the town or parish council must submit a 
financial	report	to	the	Council.	Both	are	then	published	on	the	Council’s	website.

8	 CALCULATING	THE	CHARGEABLE	AMOUNT

8.1	 The	amount	of	CIL	charge	a	development	is	liable	to	pay	is	calculated	according	
to	Schedule	1	of	the	CIL	(Amendment)	(England)	(No.	2)	Regulations	2019.	
The method involves multiplying the relevant CIL rate for the type/location of 
the	development	by	the	net	additional	floorspace	–	and	factoring	in	an	inflation	
measure to allow for changes in building costs over time. A summary of the 
method is set out below:

 CIL rate x Net additional new build floorspace x Inflation measure

8.2	 The	inflation	measure	used	will	be	the	national	‘All-in	Tender	Price	Index’	
published by the Building Cost Information Service (BCIS) or the Royal 
Institution	of	Chartered	Surveyors	(RICS).	The	inflation	measure	involves	
dividing the Index costs from the year planning permission is granted, by the 
Index costs from the year the Charging Schedule is adopted. Full details of the 
method are set out in the Regulations.

8.3	 The	CIL	Regulations	specify	that	where	the	overall	chargeable	amount	on	a	
scheme is less than £50, it is deemed to be zero.

8.4	 In	certain	circumstances,	where	a	development	includes	the	demolition	of	an	
existing building, the existing Gross Internal Area (GIA) can be deducted from 
the	proposed	floorspace.	These	deductions	in	respect	of	demolition	or	change	of	
use will only apply where the existing building has been in continuous lawful use 
for at least six months in the 3 years prior to the development being permitted 
and is still in situ on the day planning permission is granted.Page 40



VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICY

10

November 2021

9	 EXEMPTIONS

9.1	 Most	development	that	involves	the	creation	of	buildings	that	people	normally	
use will be liable to pay CIL7. However, the Regulations provide for several 
exemptions to CIL8  against which the levy will not be charged, including:

• New	buildings	or	extensions	under	100	sqm	of	gross	internal	floor	
space,	which	do	not	involve	the	creation	of	a	new	dwelling;

• Dwellings built by ‘self-builders’

• The change of use, conversion or subdivision of a building that does not 
involve	an	increase	in	floorspace;

• The	creation	of	a	mezzanine	floor	within	a	building;

• Temporary	development	permitted	for	a	limited	period;

• Buildings into which people go only intermittently for the purpose of 
inspecting	or	maintaining	fixed	plant	or	machinery

• Vacant	buildings	brought	back	into	the	same	use;

• Structures	which	are	not	buildings,	such	as	pylons	or	wind	turbines;

• Affordable	housing	(defined	as	social	rented	and	intermediate	housing)	
provided through a local housing authority, registered provider or 
charitable	body;	and

• Development by charities for charitable purposes.

9.2	 CIL	is	charged	on	the	gross	internal	floorspace9 of new development. Where 
planning permission is granted for a development that involves the extension or 
demolition and then rebuild of a building in lawful use10, the level of CIL payable 
will	be	calculated	based	on	the	net	increase	in	floorspace.	This	means	that	the	
existing	floorspace	contained	in	the	building	to	be	extended	or	demolished	will	
be	deducted	from	the	total	floorspace	of	the	new	development	when	calculating	
the CIL liability.

7  This includes development permitted by a general consent (including permitted development)
8			Under	Part	6	of	the	CIL	Regulations	2010	(as	amended)
9	 The	gross	internal	floorspace	is	the	internal	area	of	the	building,	and	should	include	rooms,	circulation	and	

service	space	such	as	lifts	and	floorspace	devoted	to	corridors,	toilets,	storage,	ancillary	floorspace	(e.g.	
underground	parking)	etc.

10	The	definition	of	lawful	use	is	contained	in	Schedule	1	Part	1	of	the	CIL	(Amendment)	(England)	(No.	2)	
2019	states	that	“….contains	a	part	that	has	been	in	lawful	use	for	a	continuous	period	of	at	least	six	
months	within	the	period	of	three	years	ending	on	the	day	planning	permission	first	permits	the	chargeable	
development.”

Page 41



11

VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICYNovember 2021

9.3	 The	Council	can	claw	back	any	CIL	relief	where	a	development	no	longer	
qualifies	for	that	relief	within	a	period	of	seven	years	from	the	commencement	
of the development.  For example, should a charity develop a building for 
charitable	purposes	and	subsequently	sell	the	building	to	the	open	market	within	
seven	years,	then	the	Council	will	be	able	to	claw	back	the	CIL	that	would	have	
been charged on the building had it been originally used for private use. Should 
a	self-builder	find	that	they	must	sell	or	rent	the	new	dwelling	within	3	years	
of	the	commencement	of	the	development	then	the	Council	will	then	seek	to	
clawback	any	CIL	relief	provided.

9.4	 Under	CIL	Regulation	55,	a	council	can	choose	to	offer	exceptional	
circumstances relief, if charging CIL would have an unacceptable impact on 
the	economic	viability	of	a	particular	development.	Exemptions	can	also	be	
made for charitable institutions, where this would constitute State Aid (under 
CIL	Regulation	45).	However,	in	the	Vale	of	White	Horse	District,	neither	
discretionary charity relief nor exceptional circumstances relief are currently 
available and the Council does not propose to revise its exemptions policy.

10	 SPENDING	CIL	AND	REPORTING

10.1 CIL revenue will be spent on the infrastructure needed to support development 
in	the	Vale.	How	CIL	is	spent	is	currently	set	out	within	our	CIL	Spending	
Strategy. In addition, the Council will produce an Infrastructure Funding 
Statement which will be published annually by 31 December. The Infrastructure 
Funding Statement reports on all funds secured, received and spent in the 
previous	financial	year	for	CIL	and	S106.	Oxfordshire	County	Council	will	also	
produce its own Infrastructure Funding Statement annually in the same way.

10.2	 Vale	of	White	Horse	District	Council	will	use	5%	of	the	CIL	revenue	to	fund	the	
administration costs of the Levy.

Page 42



VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICY

12

November 2021

APPENDICES

Page 43



13

VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICYNovember 2021

Appendix A - Zone 2 Inset Maps

Page 44



VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICY

14

November 2021

Page 45



15

VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING POLICYNovember 2021

Page 46



Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
INSTALMENTS POLICY

November 2021

Page 47



2

VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL INSTALMENTS POLICYNovember 2021

VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL CHARGING SCHEDULE 
INSTALMENTS POLICY

The National Planning Guidance1 recognises that few if any developments generate 
value until they are complete either in whole or in phases. Regulation 69B of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), allows Charging 
Authorities to introduce an Instalment Policy. The authority has freedom to decide the 
number of payments, the amount and the time due. The authority may also revise or 
withdraw the policy when appropriate.

Instalments Policy

 1  Planning Practice Guidance Paragraph: 056 Reference ID: 25-056-20140612

Total CIL      

Liability

Up to £30,000

£30,000 - 
£150,000

Over £150,000

Number of instalments/
tranche

1

3

3

Payment Tranche                
Period

Payable within 60 days*

20% Payable within 60 days*

40% Payable within 180 days*

40% Payable within 1 year*

20% Payable within 60 days*

40% Payable within 1 year*

40% Payable within 2 years*

This policy will not apply if:

a. a commencement notice is not submitted by the developer to the Charging 
Authority prior to commencement of the chargeable development

b. a valid liability notice has not been received by the Charging Authority prior to 
commencement of the chargeable development

c. an instalment payment has not been made in full by the liable party to the 
Charging Authority after the end of a period of 30 days beginning with the day 
on which the instalment payment was due to be paid to the Charging Authority

Page 48



VALE OF WHITE HORSE CIL INSTALMENTS POLICY

3

November 2021

When sites come forward through phased development, as expressly provided for in a 
planning permission, each separate phase of development will be treated as a separate 
chargeable development as set out in Regulation 8 of the CIL regulations 2010 (as 
amended).

For more information on what development is CIL liable, when development is deemed 
to have commenced, or our general CIL processes and procedures, please see the 
FAQs on our website.

Page 49



Page 50



Appendix 4: 
 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule – 
Adoption 

Consideration of Cabinet Report and Appendices  
by Scrutiny Committee on 26 July 2021 

 
Cabinet Member Councillor Debby Hallett introduced this Cabinet report and 
appendices for consideration by Scrutiny Committee. During discussion, the 
Committee asked a number of questions, as follows: 
 
Q1 How is CIL spent? 

 
Officer Response: CIL spending is a separate matter and is identified in the 
Council’s Infrastructure Funding Statement and CIL Spending Strategy, which 
are both reviewed annually. 

 
Q2 What funding would CIL generate with the revised rates? 

 
Officer Response: The new rates/charging zones should raise around £6 
million over the life of the Charging schedule. 

 
Q3 Do the lower charging rates affect the proportion of CIL monies distributed to 

those low CIL rate areas? Concern that incentivising building in lower rate 
areas would be unwise if the spend on infrastructure was also proportionately 
low.  
 
Officer Response: The need for infrastructure is identified in the Infrastructure 
Funding Gap Statement and the distribution of CIL monies is not tied to 
particular sites or locations. It is a general pooling mechanism to spend funds 
wherever the infrastructure is needed. Although the town/parish councils 
within the lower CIL charging zones receive less funding, they will still benefit 
from wider infrastructure provision. CIL is based on viability in terms of what 
can be levied. 
 

Q4 Can the revised CIL rates come into force earlier than 1 November? 
 

Officer Response: The implementation date of 1 November takes into account 
the necessary lead-in time for the Ocella software system to be updated with 
the new CIL zones and rates, subject to approval of the revised CIL Charging 
Schedule for adoption by Cabinet and Council on 1 and 6 October 
respectively. The new CIL rates will apply to any planning decisions after this 
date. 
 

Q5 The Instalments Policy states that CIL contributions are collected in arrears 
but, for large developments, is it possible borrow against that money to 
forward fund infrastructure?  

 

Page 51



Officer Response: Yes, that is possible. For county-led infrastructure, forward 
funding has been secured historically, against expected CIL funds. 

 
Q6 Why are strategic sites not subject to CIL? 
 

Officer Response: Strategic sites are exempt from paying CIL because they 
will mitigate their development impacts through site-specific S106 
contributions and, in doing so, will generally not be viable to pay CIL as well. 

 
Scrutiny Committee Resolution 

 
There were no resolutions made by Scrutiny Committee in relation to this Cabinet 
report or appendices. 

Page 52



Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Planning 

Author: Alison Williams 

Telephone: 01245 422600 

E-mail: Alison.Williams@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Debby Hallett 

Tel: 07545 241013 

E-mail: Debby.Hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date: 1 October 2021 

 

 

Developer Contributions Supplementary 

Planning Document (SPD) – Adoption 

Recommendations 
 
That Cabinet: 
 
(a) Adopts the Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 

(b) Delegates to the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services and Transformation, any necessary further minor changes to the 
document.  

(c) Agrees the proposed approach to preparing a separate Section 106 internal protocol 
document, for use by councillors and officers. 

 
Purpose of Report 

 
1. To consider the representations received during public consultation on the Developer 

Contributions SPD, together with the council’s suggested responses and to consider 
adoption of the revised version of the SPD. 

 

Corporate Objectives 
 
2. Under Theme 1 (Providing the Homes People Need) of the Vale Corporate Plan 2020 

to 2024, developing a Section 106 obligations strategy and updating the council’s CIL 
procedures are listed as actions to achieve the corporate objective of adopting a policy 
framework that ensures the homes people need can be delivered in a way that 
supports the environment and people living healthy lives. 

 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Alison.Williams@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Debby.Hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

Background 
 

3. Funding for the infrastructure necessary to support new development across the 
District can be sought in a variety of ways. The council currently utilises the following 
main mechanisms for securing infrastructure contributions from developers: 
 

 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)  

 Section 106 planning obligations (S106) 
 

4. Following the adoption of Part 1 of the Local Plan 2031 in December 2016, the council 
adopted its current CIL Charging Schedule and Developer Contributions SPD in 
September 2017, with the commencement of CIL in November 2017. The council 
subsequently adopted Part 2 of the Local Plan 2031 in October 2019, which included 
new site allocations and additional infrastructure requirements. There have also been 
changes to the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations1, including: 
 

 the removal of pooling restrictions for S106 obligations (i.e. the now cancelled 
requirement that no more than five S106 obligations can fund a single infrastructure 
project); 

 removing the need for a Regulation 123 list (i.e. a list of infrastructure projects to be 
funded by CIL as opposed to S106); and 

 introducing a new requirement to produce an annual Infrastructure Funding 
Statement. 

 
5. Furthermore, it is evident that the current CIL rates are not generating sufficient funds 

to help deliver the necessary infrastructure to support planned development. In 
particular, funding for education is falling short and it is now proposed, in the main, to 
secure education through S106. 
 

6. In light of all the above, the council considered it was necessary to conduct a review of 
both the CIL Charging Schedule and Developer Contributions SPD. These reviews 
have been carried out in accordance with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) and 
the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 
respectively. Draft versions of each revised document, together with associated viability 
evidence, were approved by Cabinet for public consultation on 18 Dec 2020. 
 
Summary of the Consultation Process 
 

7. Public consultation on the draft Developer Contributions SPD was conducted from 11 
January to 8 February 2021, simultaneously with consultation on a revised draft CIL 
Charging Schedule and associated evidence documents.  
 

8. The council made all consultation documentation available on its website and in hard 
copy at its offices2. A notification email or letter was sent to around 2,200 consultees on 
the council’s planning consultation database, which provided background to the SPD 
consultation and explained where people could view the documents and the various 
ways in which they could provide comments. The council also used its social media 

                                            
1 The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010, as amended by the Community Infrastructure Levy 
(Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019. 
2 Due to Covid restrictions the Council offices were closed to the public. Respondents were asked to contact the Council 
if they wished to view hard copies, so appropriate options could be discussed. 

Page 54



platforms to advertise the consultation and circulated a poster via email for each of the 
town and parish councils to display, where appropriate. 

 
9. Regulation 12 of the Local Planning Regulations states that, before a local planning 

authority can adopt an SPD, it must first prepare a statement setting out the persons 
consulted during the preparation of the document, with a summary of the main issues 
raised and how they have been addressed in the SPD. This report addresses these 
requirements. 

 
10. Overall, there were 27 respondents to the consultation, making a total of 84 separate 

comments on the draft document. Of these respondents, 5 were local community 
groups/organisations, 5 were town or parish councils, 10 were statutory consultees, 4 
were district councillors and 3 were individuals. A full list of respondents can be found 
in Appendix 1 to this report. 
 
Main Issues Raised During Public Consultation 
 

11. A detailed schedule of all comments received during the public consultation period, 
including summaries, the council’s responses and any proposed amendments to the 
SPD in light of comments raised is attached as Appendix 2. 
 

12. Below is a summary of the main issues raised by respondents, together with the 
council’s response. Appendix 3 is a revised version of the SPD, which includes all the 
proposed amendments to address the relevant comments raised, together with some 
additional amendments made post-consultation (see paragraph 37 of this report for 
further details). 

 
Role of councillors and town/parish councils in negotiating S106 agreements 

 
13. A number of respondents raised concerns about lack of clarity in the SPD over the role 

of town/parish councils and district councillors in negotiating Section 106 agreements, 
both under the separate development typologies discussed in Section 4 and also in 
Appendix 2 to the SPD (Approach to Negotiating Planning Obligations). 
 
Council’s response: 
 

14. We have amended the draft SPD to include a new paragraph at the beginning of 
Section 4, which explains that it is good practice to involve town and parish councils, 
local community and access groups and District ward councillors at an early stage in 
discussions over infrastructure provision, prior to drawing up Section 106 agreements. 
This is particularly true in instances where they may have detailed knowledge of local 
infrastructure needs and costs.  
 

15. Appendix 2 in the adopted 2017 Developer Contributions SPD has proved useful in 
discussions between officers and developers over specific planning applications. 
However, it is not considered appropriate to include more detailed information on 
Section 106 protocol within the supplementary planning document. Consequently, 
rather than making additions to Appendix 2 to reflect the concerns raised by 
respondents, it would be preferable to produce a separate internal Section 106 protocol 
document (see Recommendation c). This protocol document would provide clarity for 
district councillors and town/parish councils on their roles and responsibilities in Section 
106 negotiations and could also include detailed information on the procedure for the 

Page 55



signing of S106 agreements.  An advantage of having a standalone document is that 
there is scope for procedural information to be quickly updated, as and when 
necessary.  
 
Local play areas and grass playing pitches 
 

16. Two parish councils suggested that the SPD required amendment to reflect the current 
‘Fields in Trust’ guidance relating to the hierarchy of play areas to be provided in 
association with new housing development.  
 

17. East Hendred Parish Council sought confirmation that, in instances where a series of 
small sites are being developed but a play area threshold is not reached on one site, 
developer contributions would still be required. The parish council also requested that 
Appendix 3 of the SPD (Distance Standards) be amended to state that the District’s 
population should be within 700m walking distance of a multi-use games area (MUGA) 
and 1200m walking distance from grass playing pitches (football, rugby and cricket).  

 
18. Sport England suggested that there should be reference in the SPD to the requirement 

of a maintenance sum for grass playing pitches of at least 10 years.  
 
Council’s response: 
 

19. The SPD needs to reflect Development Policy 33 and Appendix K of LPP2, which set 
out the council’s standards for play provision. On reflection, we consider that inclusion 
of Table 3 (Children’s Play and Youth Provision) is confusing for developers, as it is 
based on non-statutory ‘Fields in Trust’ guidance rather than adopted Plan policy. We 
have, therefore, removed Table 3 from the SPD and replaced it with text to explain that 
play area requirements will be dependent on existing provision in the area and the 
demands from other development and may be in the form of financial contributions 
rather than on-site provision. 
 

20. Additional text now clarifies that town/parish councils can use their proportion of CIL 
receipts towards the enhancement of existing play areas in situations where either: 
there are a number of small sites being developed where, individually, each site would 
not reach the dwelling threshold required to trigger developer contributions towards 
play areas; or where there is no suitable local site to locate play facilities. Furthermore, 
it now explains that, where a site cannot accommodate its on-site play requirement due 
to exceptional site constraints, S106 contributions may be sought towards off-site 
mitigation. 

 

21. The distance standards in Appendix 3 reflect those in adopted Local Plan policy (as set 
out in Appendix K to Part 2 of the Vale Local Plan) and cannot, therefore, be revised in 
the SPD. However, we have amended the accessibility standard for MUGAs to be 
consistent with Appendix K.  
 

22. We have amended Section 5 to confirm that developers will be required to pay a 
maintenance sum for a period of at least 10 years for grass playing pitches.  
 
Carbon reduction measures 
 

23. Three respondents expressed concern that there was no reference to carbon reduction 
measures to address the global climate emergency in the draft document. 

Page 56



 
 
 
Council’s response: 

 
24. Core Policy 37 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) of LPP1 requires proposed new 

development to address sustainability and climate change intrinsically through location 
and design, by taking into account landform, layout, building orientation, massing and 
landscaping to minimise energy consumption and mitigate water run-off and flood risks. 
Planning conditions can achieve improved provision of carbon reduction measures 
(such as EV charging points) and CIL is the appropriate mechanism for securing 
developer contributions towards off-site and wider carbon reduction initiatives that are 
not directly related to a specific development, including renewable energy and energy 
storage infrastructure. We have reflected all the above in a new paragraph 4.60 in the 
SPD. 
 
Healthcare infrastructure needs 
 

25. One GP practice felt that the council’s consideration of housing growth had failed to 
take account of increasing medical infrastructure needs. 
 

26. Oxfordshire NHS Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) also said it would like to see 
developer contributions towards healthcare facilities explicitly set out as monetary 
calculations, as an appendix to the SPD.  
 
Council’s response: 
 

27. The relevant CCG and GP practices are consulted on all major development proposals 
involving sites over 50 dwellings. In the SPD, each infrastructure type for which S106 
contributions are sought is given a unique reference number (DEV1, DEV2 etc). Under 
DEV9 (Health Care), the SPD explains that new or increased capacity of health 
facilities will be sought through S106 from developments on allocated sites that are 
exempt from CIL. Also, that development contributions for healthcare will be sought 
through S106 from all extra care, nursing and care home developments. We take 
account of feedback from health care providers to inform the S106 contributions sought 
in relation to new development. 
 

28. We do not propose that specific monetary calculations for developer contributions 
towards healthcare provision are included in the SPD, as this type of information can 
become quickly out of date. Instead, text has been added to confirm that the council 
will continue to liaise with the relevant CCG to obtain their latest financial information 
for calculating contributions towards health facilities from specific developments.  
 
Affordable extra care and specialist housing 
 

29. Oxfordshire County Council suggested that the SPD should make explicit reference to 
securing S106 contributions towards affordable extra care and specialist housing. 
 
Council’s response: 
 

30. We agree that text should be added to explain that affordable housing provision may 
include affordable extra care and specialist housing for vulnerable groups (such as the 

Page 57



elderly with care needs and people with physical and learning disabilities or complex 
autism). We have done this and also explained that the council will work with 
Oxfordshire County Council and developers to secure and deliver this provision, in 
accordance with local needs. 

 
Affordable housing monetary calculations 
 

31. Several respondents suggested that it would be helpful and more transparent to 
include information within the SPD (possibly as an Appendix) which sets out how 
developer contributions towards affordable housing (including off-site provision) are 
calculated.  
 
Council’s response: 
 

32. We agree that such information would be helpful for developers. However, we propose 
that this is included in the forthcoming Affordable Housing SPD, to be produced jointly 
by Vale of White Horse and South Oxfordshire District Councils. Until that SPD is in 
place, the council will continue to engage with developers regarding affordable housing 
contributions on an individual site basis.   
 
Development viability 
 

33. Oxfordshire County Council asked whether there was more recent guidance from RICS 
on assessing development viability.  
 
Council’s response: 
 

34. We have updated Section 6 of the SPD to reflect the latest guidance in Assessing 
Viability in Planning Under the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 for England 
(RICS, 1st Edition, March 2021), particularly the paragraph on ‘site value’, which 
required replacing with the latest definition of ‘land value’ and an explanation of the 
‘Existing Use Value Plus’ approach to defining land value for any assessment of 
development viability.  
 
Other infrastructure provision 

 
35. A number of respondents put forward suggestions for other infrastructure items that 

they would like to see referenced in the SPD.  These included: retention and 
maintenance of hedgerows/mature trees; mobile air quality stations; Household Waste 
Recycling Centres; and contributions towards police/security infrastructure. 

 
Council’s response: 
 

36. We have included references to additional infrastructure items, where appropriate, 
throughout the document.  

 
Further Amendments to the Developer Contributions SPD 

 
37. Post consultation, the council has made further amendments to the SPD (for example 

to reflect recent changes to Government policy guidance or in response to further 
internal officer consultation). These are summarised below: 
 

Page 58



i. Clarification under DEV1 (Affordable Housing) on how affordable housing should be 
distributed across a development site and inclusion of the dwelling threshold that 
will trigger affordable housing contributions. Also, reference to footnote 23b of LPP2 
(which confirms that the affordable housing policy CP24 will apply to sites of ten 
dwellings or more, in line with the NPPF). 
 

ii. Removal of reference to the council seeking affordable housing contributions from 
sites of 6-9 dwellings in the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB), as there is 
currently no adopted Vale Local Plan policy which allows the council to apply this 
lower threshold in designated rural areas.  
 

iii. Reference to Core Policy 25 (Rural Exception Sites) of the Vale Local Plan 2031 
Part 1 under DEV1 (Affordable Housing) 
 

iv. Additional text under DEV1 (Affordable Housing) to highlight Government’s new 
First Homes scheme, including the requirement for at least 25% of all Section 106 
Affordable Homes to be First Homes (i.e. sold at a minimum discount of 30% of 
market value, with the discount secured in perpetuity); 
 

v. Confirmation in paragraph 4.11 that, where there is a fractional requirement for 
affordable housing (e.g. 4.5 dwellings), the fractional portion (i.e. the 0.5 in this 
example) will be secured as an off-site contribution. 
 

vi. Amendments to DEV6 (Play Areas) and supporting text to ensure it accurately 
reflects adopted Plan policy in Appendix K of the Vale Local Plan 2031 Part 2. 
 

vii. Rewording of DEV11 (Cemeteries) to clarify that, where the Local Plan or a 
neighbourhood plan identifies a need for an allocated site to provide or contribute 
towards cemetery space, this will be secured through S106.  
 

viii. Rewording of paragraphs 4.63 and 4.64 to ensure consistency with the adopted 
policy wording on biodiversity net gain, as set out in Core Policies 45 and 46 of the 
Vale Local Plan 2031 Part 1. Also, reference to the forthcoming Environment Act, 
which is likely to supersede CP46 and set a national mandatory minimum of 10% 
biodiversity net gain. 
 

ix. Amendments to DEV12 (Public Realm, including Public Art) and its supporting text 
to place greater emphasis on seeking developer contributions towards 
improvements to the wider public realm, as opposed to the SPD’s current focus 
which is primarily on the provision of public art.  
 

x. Amendments to Section 5 to provide greater clarity on the potential options for the 
future management and maintenance of various types of infrastructure (i.e. open 
spaces and buildings). 
 

xi. A new Section 6 covering how the CIL Regulations and S106 agreements relate to 
self and custom-build homes. 
 

xii. Clarification in paragraph 7.10 that the council will include a clause in most S106 
agreements stating that £500 will be charged for each site inspection that the 
council is required to undertake in order to check dwelling occupancy in instances 
where the developer has failed to notify us of a trigger threshold being reached. 

Page 59



 
xiii. New text (at paragraph 7.12) to explain why, in some circumstances, the council 

may seek appropriate security from a developer, in the form of a ‘bond’, to cover 
any unforeseen circumstances resulting in the under/non-payment of deferred 
financial contributions.  
 

xiv. Further minor amendments following a grammar/Plain English sense check, for 
readability and accuracy. 

 
What Happens Next? 

 
38. The Local Planning Regulations do not require the draft SPD to be subject to 

independent examination (as was the case for the draft CIL Charging Schedule) and 
the remaining key milestones for both the SPD and CIL reviews are as shown in Table 
1 below. 

 

Table 1 – Next Steps 
 

Milestone 
 

 

Expected Dates 
 

Cabinet – Adoption of the Developer 
Contributions SPD and consideration of the 
CIL Charging Schedule for adoption by 
Council 

1 October 2021 

Council - Adoption of the CIL Charging 
Schedule 

6 October 2021 

 

Options 
 

39. Not updating the Developer Contributions SPD is an option, but this would mean 
relying on the 2017 version and the council not having an improved, up-to-date 
document to assist developers and communities. It would also mean that the 
consultees’ efforts submitting responses and the officer time involved in updating the 
document would have been wasted. 
 

Climate and ecological impact implications 
 

40. The SPD will help to reduce the negative carbon impact of development through the 
provision of infrastructure and facilities that are on-site or within walking distance of 
new developments. CIL will be the appropriate mechanism for securing off-site and 
wider carbon reduction initiatives. The SPD also sets out where on-site and off-site 
developer contributions will be sought for biodiversity net gain, to mitigate the impacts 
of specific developments (see DEV14 of the SPD at Appendix 3 to this report). 
 

Financial Implications 
 

41. Once adopted and implemented, the updated Developer Contributions SPD 2021 will 
continue to help the council secure significant funding towards necessary infrastructure 
in the district. 
 
 

Page 60



 

Legal Implications 
 

42. The Developer Contributions SPD has been prepared and consulted upon in line with 
the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012. There are no wider legal implications. 
 

Risks 
 

43. As due process has been followed, any risk of a legal challenge following the Council’s 
adoption and implementation of the Developer Contributions SPD is limited. 
 

Other implications 
 

44. The 2017 Developer Contributions SPD will be superseded upon the adoption of the 
2021 SPD (see Appendix 3).  
 

Conclusion 
 

45. Officers recommend that the Developer Contributions SPD is adopted by Cabinet on 1 
October 2021 so that it can come into force alongside the revised CIL rates within the 
council’s CIL Charging Schedule and help us to deliver the necessary infrastructure to 
support development across the District, as set out in the Vale of White Horse Local 
Plan 2031 (Parts 1 and 2). 
 

 
Appendices 
 

 Appendix 1 – List of respondents to the draft SPD public consultation 

 Appendix 2 – Schedule of consultation responses 

 Appendix 3 – Amended version of the Developer Contributions SPD 

 Appendix 4 – Consideration of the Cabinet report and appendices by Scrutiny 
Committee on 26 July 2021 

 

Page 61



 

Appendix 1 
 
List of Respondents to the Draft SPD Public Consultation (from 11 
January to 8 February 2021) 
 

1 Barwell, Giles 

2 Crawford, Andy Cllr 

3 East Hendred Parish Council 

4 Hallett, Debby Cllr 

5 Historic England 

6 Natural England 

7 NHS Oxfordshire CCG 

8 North Hinksey Parish Council 

9 Oxford and District Action on Child Poverty 

10 Oxfordshire County Council 

11 Roberts, Judy Cllr 

12 Scharf, Daniel 

13 Scottish and Southern Electricity Networks 

14 Shrivenham Parish Council 

15 Soha Housing 

16 South Oxfordshire District Council 

17 Sport England 

18 Thames Valley Police 

19 Thames Water 

20 Thompson, Max Cllr 

21 Vale Liberal Democrat Group 

22 Vale of White Horse DC Housing Team 

23 Wantage Town Council 

24 Watchfield Parish Council 

25 Wilts and Berks Canal Trust 

26 Wise, Michael Dr 

27 Woodlands Medical Centre PPG 

 

Page 62



Appendix 2 – Schedule of Consultation Responses 

 

ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

1 
Crawford, 

Andrew Cllr 
Section 4 

Section 4 makes regular but intermittent 
reference for the need to liaise with parish 
councils and local councillors prior to 
drawing up S106 agreements. This is 
welcomed but it is unclear why some 
categories of infrastructure are considered 
areas for liaising (e.g Outdoor Sport and 
Recreation, Social and Community 
Facilities, Play Areas) whilst others do not 
require there to be liaison (e.g Open 
Space, Cemeteries or Public Realm). 
 

Yes, reference is made in relation to 
some infrastructure types and not 
others. This has been done where 
parishes usually play a particular role in 
provision (e.g. play areas, sports 
provision). However, for clarity, an 
appropriate paragraph could be 
provided at the beginning of Section 4 
to cover involvement of parishes, local 
community groups and ward councillors 
in relation to local knowledge of 
infrastructure and costs. 
 

Add a new paragraph after 4.2 in Section 4 as 
follows: 'It is good practice to involve town 
and parish councils, local community and 
access groups and District ward 
councillors at an early stage in 
discussions over infrastructure provision, 
prior to drawing up Section 106 
agreements. This is particularly true in 
instances where they may have detailed 
knowledge of local infrastructure needs 
and costs.' 

2 
Crawford, 

Andrew Cllr 
6.1 

Can we specifically make reference to 
discussion with Ward Councillors? 

Reference can be added to 'local 
councillors' in para 6.1. 
 

Amend para 6.1 to read: '…We encourage 
developers to discuss proposals with the local 
community, local councillors and the 
relevant town or parish council…' 

3 
Crawford, 

Andrew Cllr 
Appendix 

2 

(4) Can we include Ward councillors? 
Also, this para just relates to social and 
community facilities. 

9) It is not clear how concerns of Senior 
Officers or Cabinet Members in areas 
affected by the implications of the 
proposed S106 obligations are taken into 
account. 

(11) Helpful to explain what is required 
under the Council's Constitution. Power to 
authorise planning obligations should 
include Senior Officers and Cabinet 
Members. Could include details on 
administration and approval procedure, 
where S106s require renegotiation. 

It is recommended that a new 
paragraph is provided at the beginning 
of Section 4, which covers consultation 
with town/parish councils and local 
councillors. 

Appendix 2 of the adopted 2017 
Developer Contributions SPD has 
proved useful in discussions with 
developers. However, given that the 
SPD is a policy document and should 
not cover detailed Council procedures, 
it would be more appropriate for a 
separate protocol to be prepared on 
S106 negotiations for internal use by 
Members and Officers, if necessary.  

Add a new paragraph after 4.2 in Section 4 as 
follows: 'It is good practice to involve town 
and parish councils, local community and 
access groups and District ward 
councillors at an early stage in 
discussions over infrastructure provision, 
prior to drawing up Section 106 
agreements. This is particularly true in 
instances where they may have detailed 
knowledge of local infrastructure needs 
and costs.' 
 
Amend paragraph 6.2 to read: '...Further 
information on the Council's approach to 
negotiating planning obligations assessing the 
need for infrastructure, and authorising the 
final agreement is set out in Appendix 2.' 

P
age 63



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

4 
Watchfield 

Parish 
Council 

DEV6 

Use of, and contributions to, off-site play 
and facilities. Multiple developers should 
not be allowed to count the same land 
and/or facilities as sufficient off-site 
provision. This is especially pertinent 
where several large developments are 
happening concurrently and, therefore, 
the impact of the proposed housing and 
population increase from one 
development does not necessarily figure 
in the calculations for the provision or 
space for another development. 
 
 

Children’s play and youth provision will 
be dependent on existing provision in 
the area and demands from other 
development.  
 

Supporting text (at the end of 4.37) needs to 
explain that children’s play and youth 
provision will be dependent on existing 
provision in the area and the demands from 
other development and, in some cases, may 
be in the form of financial contributions rather 
than on-site provision. 

5 
Watchfield 

Parish 
Council 

DEV6 

In 4.37 there appears no difference 
between the LAP/LEAP/NEAP/MUGA 
provision from 81 to 500 house 
developments. The scale of provision 
should be more of a sliding scale with 
NEAP provision for 201-500 houses or all 
provisions for 201+ houses.  

The SPD needs to reflect Development 

Policy 33 and Appendix K of LPP2, 

which set out the Council’s standards 

for play provision. On reflection, we 

consider that inclusion of Table 3 

(Children’s Play and Youth Provision) is 

confusing for developers, as it is based 

on non-statutory ‘Fields in Trust’ 

guidance rather than adopted Plan 

policy. It is, therefore, proposed that we 

remove Table 3 from the SPD and 

replace it with text to explain that play 

area requirements will be dependent on 

existing provision in the area and the 

demands from other development and 

may be in the form of financial 

contributions rather than on-site 

provision. 

 
 

Delete Table 3 and replace with new text at 
the end of para 4.37 to explain that children’s 
play and youth provision will be dependent on 
existing provision in the area and the 
demands from other development and, in 
some cases, may be in the form of financial 
contributions rather than on-site provision.  
 
 

P
age 64



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

6 
Watchfield 

Parish 
Council 

DEV8 

Where improvements to existing 
community facilities are required (e.g. an 
extension to accommodate usage by new 
residents), S106 contributions should 
ensure these are fully funded by the 
development rather than pro rata for the 
increase in the population of the 
village/town. 

S106 contributions are required to be 
directly related to the development. 
Facilities like community centres will 
serve a much wider population than 
that generated by an average 
development. Contributions therefore 
need to be based on the population 
from the development. 
 
 

None required. 

7 
Watchfield 

Parish 
Council 

DEV9 

Health contributions should also be 
sought through S106 for residences built 
specifically for the older market. 

DEV9 (Health Care) states that 
development contributions for 
healthcare will be sought through S106 
from all extra care, nursing and care 
home developments. 
 
 

None required. 

8 
Watchfield 

Parish 
Council 

DEV13 

Rather than contributions towards largely 
irrelevant CEPs, S106 should be sought 
to guarantee truly local employment land 
and opportunities to reduce the need for 
commuting and lessen climate impact. 
Major developments should be required to 
prove the use of local labour for 
development and maintenance phases. 
 
 

The Vale Local Plan 2031 includes 
employment land allocations, which 
support local job opportunities and 
reduce the need to travel to and from 
work. 

None required. 

9 
Watchfield 

Parish 
Council 

DEV14 

S106 should also be used to ensure the 
retention and maintenance of existing 
hedgerows and mature trees. Money for 
retention or enhancement of mature 
boundaries and trees will have a far 
greater net biodiversity gain than planting 
immature specimens with only 5 years 
protection. 
 

Planning conditions will secure the 
retention of hedgerows and trees, 
where necessary. The biodiversity 
provided by existing vegetation is the 
base point and Core Policy 46 
(Conservation and Improvement of 
Biodiversity) requires no net loss of 
biodiversity as a result of development.  
 
Hedgerows and trees form an integral 
part of open spaces and as such, their 
maintenance should be secured as a 
whole (see Section 5 of the SPD for 

None required. 

P
age 65



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

further details on Management and 
Maintenance of Open Spaces). 
 
 

10 
Watchfield 

Parish 
Council 

DEV16 

S106 contributions should also fund 
mobile air quality stations to give 
impartial, relevant, on-site data prior to 
development rather than a reliance of 
distant permanent facilities. 

The Council will require that air quality 
assessments use relevant data. This is 
to be provided by the developer. Where 
ongoing monitoring is required as part 
of development, S106 contributions 
could be secured for this and the 
Council's Air Quality officer would 
specify the nature of that provision.  
 

None required. 

11 
Watchfield 

Parish 
Council 

DEV17 

There needs to be funding for a more 
thorough and professional audit of the 
existing drainage of the wider 
development area. Grampian-style waste 
and water agreements should no longer 
be allowed but up-front improvements to 
infrastructure required to alleviate the 
inevitable overload of existing systems. 
Just specifying a prior occupation clause 
is too easy to negotiate away. 

All development is considered by the 
Council's technical experts in relation to 
drainage and flooding issues. The 
timing of associated infrastructure 
provision is subject to their advice - in 
most instances, infrastructure needs to 
be provided before occupation and 
planning conditions secure the 
necessary provision for drainage. 
Occasionally, S106 agreements are 
needed where land is not within the 
application site.  
 
 

None required. 

12 
Watchfield 

Parish 
Council 

Section 6 

Pre-application discussions regarding 
developments and S106 contributions are 
too often cited by developers as tacit 
approval for the development by the 
parish/town council. All S106 
negotiations/discussions must be an 
entirely separate issue and not used to 
provide any evidence of support. 

The NPPF encourages developers to 
enter into pre-application discussions. 
Such discussions are helpful to explore 
technical matters. Developers are also 
advised of policy requirements, 
including infrastructure, where known.  
It is recognised that pre application 
discussions are only a preliminary 
assessment of proposals, as wider 
consultation has not been undertaken. 
In particular, a complete assessment of 

None required. 

P
age 66



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

infrastructure requirements needs to 
take place at the application stage. 
 

13 
Crawford, 

Andrew Cllr 
Section 6 

There is still a perception that 
developer/District Council negotiations of 
S106 are too subjective and held behind 
closed doors with no parish participation. 
Parishes do not necessarily receive an 
open explanation for the final figures and 
why some projects or areas are not 
funded. It appears that there is a large 
degree of disparity between officers as to 
what is advised, negotiated or followed 
through. Greater clarity would be 
beneficial to all. 

It is recommended that a new 
paragraph is provided at the beginning 
of Section 4, which covers consultation 
with town/parish councils and local 
councillors. 

Appendix 2 of the adopted 2017 
Developer Contributions SPD has 
proved useful in discussions with 
developers. However, given that the 
SPD is a policy document and should 
not cover detailed Council procedures, 
it would be more appropriate for a 
separate protocol to be prepared on 
S106 negotiations for internal use by 
Members and Officers, if necessary.  

Add a new paragraph after 4.2 in Section 4 as 
follows: 'It is good practice to involve town 
and parish councils, local community and 
access groups and District ward 
councillors at an early stage in 
discussions over infrastructure provision, 
prior to drawing up Section 106 
agreements. This is particularly true in 
instances where they may have detailed 
knowledge of local infrastructure needs 
and costs.' 
 
Amend paragraph 6.2 to read: '...Further 
information on the Council's approach to 
negotiating planning obligations assessing the 
need for infrastructure, and authorising the 
final agreement is set out in Appendix 2.' 
 

14 
Barwell, 

Giles 
Page 21 

No reference to carbon reduction or the 
climate emergency in the document. 
Various environmental impact areas are 
listed (on pages 21-25) and important, but 
VOWH should also be requiring the 
implementation of carbon reduction 
measures from developers. If included in 
the list, it would help to encourage the 
development of solutions such as PV on 
roof spaces, EV charge points, heat 
pumps, district heating etc. 

Proposed new development will need 
to address climate change mitigation 
intrinsically through location and design 
(as per Core Policy 37 of LPP1) and 
planning conditions can achieve 
improved provision of carbon reduction 
measures such as EV charging points. 
S106 contributions must be directly 
related to a specific development and 
carbon reduction measures can only be 
determined on a site by site basis. 

Add new sub-section on Climate Change 
Mitigation and include a new paragraph to 
read: 
 
‘Core Policy 37 (Design and Local 
Distinctiveness) of the LPP1 requires 
proposed new development to address 
sustainability and climate change 
intrinsically through location and design, 
by taking into account landform, layout, 
building orientation, massing and 

P
age 67



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

However, CIL is an appropriate 
mechanism to fund off-site and wider 
carbon reduction initiatives that are not 
directly related to the development.  
 
 

landscaping to minimise energy 
consumption and mitigate water run-off 
and flood risks. Planning conditions can 
achieve improved provision of carbon 
reduction measures (such as EV charging 
points) and CIL is the appropriate 
mechanism for securing developer 
contributions towards off-site and wider 
carbon reduction initiatives that are not 
directly related to a specific development, 
including renewable energy and energy 
storage infrastructure.’ 
 

15 
Scottish and 

Southern 
Electric 

  

No comments to make. Noted. None required. 

16 

North 
Hinksey 
Parish 
Council 

All, 
including 

Part 4 
and para 

4.46 

North Hinksey Parish Council fully 
supports the draft SPD, particularly the 
inclusion of local consultations detailed in 
various sub-sections of Part 4 of the 
document. We are keen to see that these 
policies are adhered to. 
 
Under section 4.46 (Cemeteries), either 
the word 'mainly' or 'mostly' needs to be 
inserted before ‘…managed by parish & 
town councils.’ 
 
 

Support noted. 
 
For clarity, paragraph 4.46 could be 
amended to say 'The majority of 
cemeteries…' 

Second sentence of para 4.46 to read: 'The 
majority of cCemeteries are managed by 
parish and town councils…' 

17 
Sport 

England 

Page 28, 
Section 5, 
para 5.10 

Suggest that a maintenance sum for at 
least 10 or more years is required. The 
sum should be based on the agronomist 
report. Also, the infrastructure to support 
playing pitches is required e.g. pavilions, 
where appropriate or at least toilets, and 
car parking. 

It is agreed that infrastructure to 
support playing pitches is required. 
S106 contributions are sought for 
sports pavilions and other supporting 
infrastructure in accordance with 
Appendix K of the LPP2 and Appendix 
3 of the SPD. 
 
There is a need to add ‘sport and 
recreation facilities’ to the types of 
infrastructure mentioned under para 
5.1. 

Add sports and recreation facilities to the 
types of infrastructure listed under para 5.1.  
 
Amend paragraph 5.10 to read:  
'Where new pitches are to be provided on 
site, the Council will require a detailed 
specification, including drainage works and 
where appropriate services, to be submitted 
at full or reserved matters stages. A 
programme of works and funding for an 
agronomist (who will check the specification, 
inspect site works, and inspect and agree 

P
age 68



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

 
Agree that reference to the requirement 
of a maintenance sum for grass pitches 
of at least 10 years should be added. 

practical completion and provide advice on 
future maintenance requirements) will be 
secured by S106 agreement. The developer 
will be required to remedy defects arising 
within the first year of use, based on the 
agronomist’s report and will also be 
required to pay a maintenance sum to 
cover a period of at least 10 years.  
 

18 
Historic 
England 

N/A No comment Noted. None required. 

19 
Scharf, 
Daniel 

General 

Document prepared before the Council's 
declaration of a climate and ecological 
emergency and the commitment to reduce 
carbon emissions to net zero by 2030. 
Also, no evidence relating to possible 
changes to the use of land and buildings 
arising from the Pandemic. The Council 
needs to explore the infrastructure needs 
of a net zero or negative carbon economy 
and one that fits with Post-Covid 
behaviours. Without this evidence, the 
SPD will be funding pre-lockdown 
lifestyles, which would frustrate and not 
assist the transition to a net zero and 
biodiverse environment. Such research is 
likely to show the emerging importance of 
local food systems, awareness of 
protecting soils and water, local 
energy/heat distribution systems, more 
local working, more active travel and a 
huge shift from new building to retrofitting. 
 
 

Agree that changing lifestyles will need 
to be carefully monitored and may well 
have a positive impact on efforts to 
reduce carbon emissions to net zero. 
Evidence will be collected to inform the 
next Local Plan.  

None required. 

20 

Oxford & 
District 

Action on 
Child 

Poverty 

Affordable 
housing 

The cost of buying a house in Oxfordshire 
is prohibitive for families on average 
incomes and impossible for those on low 
incomes. The costs of private rents are 
correspondingly high. One of the few 

Noted. This comment relates to 
Affordable Housing Local Plan Policy/ 
SPD rather than Developer 
Contributions.  

None required. 

P
age 69



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

ways for such families to obtain secure 
accommodation at rents they can afford is 
for properties to be made available at 
Social Rents. We therefore urge the 
council to build into your policy a 
requirement that houses made available 
as part of affordable housing provision 
should be let at Social Rents, as distinct 
from Affordable Rents. 
 
 

21 
Natural 
England 

General 

We welcome the opportunity to give our 
views but have no comment to make. 

Noted. None required. 

22 

Woodlands 
Medical 

Centre PPG 
(on behalf of 

Didcot 
Health 

Centre & 
The Oak 

Tree 
Medical 
Centre) 

General 

Council's consideration of housing growth 
has failed to consider medical 
infrastructure needs. The Oxfordshire 
Clinical Commissioning Group must be 
consulted and their views sought on plans 
to allocate land for housing.  
 
At Great Western Park, insufficient land 
was allocated for primary care facilities 
and the allocated site is too small and 
unfit for purpose. The minimum size for an 
efficient medical centre is now at least 
1,100 sq m. Sufficient space for car 
parking and adjoining pharmacies must 
also be included.  
 
Funding of primary care provision is 
inadequate at present and new policy 
needs to ensure developers make a 
contribution towards new local medical 
infrastructure. Rapid housing growth 
(including plans for Didcot Garden Town) 
make the need for more local facilities 
urgent, particularly as local medical 
centres are already operating at capacity.  
 

The CCG and GP practices are 
consulted on major development on 
sites over 50 dwellings.  

DEV9 (Health Care) states that new or 
increased capacity of health facilities 
will be sought through S106 from 
development on allocated sites exempt 
from CIL and that development 
contributions for healthcare will be 
sought through S106 from all extra 
care, nursing and care home 
developments.  

Feedback from health care providers 
informs the S106 contributions sought 
in relation to new development. 

None required. P
age 70



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

All new development should make 
increased financial contributions towards 
primary care provision or be subject to an 
additional medical infrastructure levy.  
 
 

23 
Wilts and 

Berks Canal 
Trust 

General 

Sets out the objectives of the Wilts and 
Berks Canal Trust. Policy DP32 (Wilts and 
Berks Canal) safeguards a continuous 
route corridor for restoration of the Wilts & 
Berks Canal. WBCT generally supports 
the SPD and would be willing to work with 
the council and landowners in relation to 
restoration of the canal. 
 
 
 

Support noted.  None required. 

24 
Wilts and 

Berks Canal 
Trust 

DEV4 

WBCT supports the inclusion of Policy 
DP32 in DEV4 as this will help towards 
delivery of the restoration of the Wilts & 
Berks Canal. 
 
 

Support noted.  None required. 

25 
Wilts and 

Berks Canal 
Trust 

DEV14 

Would be helpful to delivery of restoration 
of the Wilts and Berks Canal as green 
infrastructure for DEV14 to include 
reference to Local Plan Part 2 - Policy 
DP32 (Wilts and Berks Canal). 
 
 

Agree, Reference to Policy DP32 in 
DEV14 and under 'Biodiversity and 
Green Infrastructure' in Appendix 1 
would be helpful. 

Add DP32 in DEV14 and under 'Biodiversity 
and Green Infrastructure' in Appendix 1 

26 
Wilts and 

Berks Canal 
Trust 

Appendic
es 1 and 

4 

Supports the inclusion of Policy DP32 
(Wilts & Berks Canal) under 'Indoor and 
Outdoor Sports and Recreation' in 
Appendix 4, as this is helpful to delivery of 
the canal's restoration. Policy DP32 
should also be included against 
'Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure' in 
Appendix 1, as this would be helpful to 
delivery of the canal's restoration as green 
infrastructure. 
 

Agree. Reference to Policy DP32 under 
'Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure' 
in Appendix 1 would be helpful. 

Add DP32 under 'Biodiversity and Green 
Infrastructure' in Appendix 1.  

P
age 71



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

 

27 
Soha 

Housing 
Affordable 
housing 

Support lowering the affordable housing 
threshold from 11 to 10 homes in 
accordance with the NPPF and a 
threshold of 5 is about right for rural areas 
where affordable housing is in short 
supply.  
 
As a Registered Provider we sometimes 
redevelop our existing land assets or 
acquire land on the open market to deliver 
wholly affordable schemes. Often on such 
schemes we seek to deliver rented homes 
in preference to shared ownership as we 
perceive their social value to be greater. 
Could the SPD be amended so that, in 
circumstances where it is viable/desirable 
to do so, a greater proportion of rented 
homes can be delivered?  
 
Policy CP24 states that either Social or 
Affordable Rent can be delivered, but the 
SPD makes no mention of Social Rent. 
We feel that Social Rents are far more 
affordable for low income households in 
such a high value area. Ideally, we would 
like the SPD to state that all rented homes 
delivered via planning gain are Social 
Rent (as in West Berks and Oxford City). 
As a fallback position we would support 
this SPD being brought in line with that of 
South Oxfordshire so that 35% of all new 
affordable homes are Social Rent. 
 

In accordance with the NPPF, 
affordable housing is sought on 
development with 10 or more net 
dwellings (within the AONB, an off-site 
contribution is sought on development 
with 6 or more (net) dwellings and on-
site when 10 or more dwellings). 
 
Issues in respect of tenure can be 
considered for the next Local Plan and 
the forthcoming Joint Affordable 
Housing SPD. 

None required. 

P
age 72



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

 

28 
Wise, 

Michael Dr 
Page 8, 
para 3.3.  

Paragraph needs to be enforced. 
Neighbourhood Plans are ignored and the 
Council does not advise developers that 
they should conform to them. I have heard 
developers refer to made Neighbourhood 
Plans as ‘advisory’, or ‘a wish list’ instead 
of realising that they are part of the Local 
Plan. Planning Officers also need to 
enforce their own Local Plan policies. 

Comments noted.  
 
Made Neighbourhood Plans form part 
of the statutory development plan for 
the District and sit alongside the Vale 
Local Plan 2031 (Parts 1 and 2). All 
decisions on planning applications are 
made in line with the policies within the 
Local Plan, any made neighbourhood 
plan covering the application site and 
any other material considerations. 
 
 

None required. 

29 
Wise, 

Michael Dr 
Section 4 

All of Section 4 is to be welcomed, it is 
extremely desirable and should be 
enforced without exception. The pity is 
that many developments currently in 
process have avoided these obligations in 
whole or in part, particularly with respect 
to affordable housing and play space. 
Unfortunately, all of the major sites in 
Faringdon are under development or with 
planning permission. There will be no 
opportunity to remediate the shortfalls in 
play space. 

Support noted. None required. 

30 
Wise, 

Michael Dr 
Appendic

es 

The Appendices are to be welcomed. 
They set out clearly the infrastructure 
needs that developers should be fulfilling, 
particularly Appendices 3 and 4. These 
appendices need to be kept up to date in 
consultation with town and parish 
councils. The requirements for play space 
and allotments should be rigorously 
enforced in planning applications. 
 
 

Support noted. Any future revisions to 
the SPD once adopted, will be subject 
to further public consultation (which will 
include consultation with all town and 
parish councils in the Vale District). 

None required. 

P
age 73



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

31 
Hallett, 

Debby Cllr 

4.16 / 
DEV2 

Education 

Are all education expenses were now 
covered by S106? Does the Council's CIL 
Spending Strategy include education 
currently? 
 
 

Paragraph 4.16 is correct - in addition 
to S106 contributions, it is possible for 
CIL receipts to also be used to fund 
education facilities. 

None required. 

32 
Hallett, 

Debby Cllr 
General 

Include a promise 9a rule to consult with 
local members of the District Council as 
well as local town and parish councils. It 
has been a problem for years that S106 
negotiations go on with only a limited view 
of what is needed. 

It is recommended that a new 
paragraph is provided at the beginning 
of Section 4, which covers consultation 
with town/parish councils and local 
councillors. 

Appendix 2 of the adopted 2017 
Developer Contributions SPD has 
proved useful in discussions with 
developers. However, given that the 
SPD is a policy document and should 
not cover detailed Council procedures, 
it would be more appropriate for a 
separate protocol to be prepared on 
S106 negotiations for internal use by 
Members and Officers, if necessary.  

Add a new paragraph after 4.2 in Section 4 as 
follows: 'It is good practice to involve town 
and parish councils, local community and 
access groups and District ward 
councillors at an early stage in 
discussions over infrastructure provision, 
prior to drawing up Section 106 
agreements. This is particularly true in 
instances where they may have detailed 
knowledge of local infrastructure needs 
and costs.' 
 
Amend paragraph 6.2 to read: '...Further 
information on the Council's approach to 
negotiating planning obligations assessing the 
need for infrastructure, and authorising the 
final agreement is set out in Appendix 2.' 

33 
Hallett, 

Debby Cllr 

4.35 / 
DEV6 
Play 

Areas 

Please specify 'local district councillors'. 
This intention should apply to all the DEV 
references and this promise should be at 
an appropriate level in the document to 
apply to every DEV typology.  

It is suggested that a new paragraph is 
provided at the beginning of Section 4 
regarding consultation with town and 
parish councils and local councillors.  
The reference to 'local councillors' will 
encompass parish and district 
councillors. 

As above. 

34 
Hallett, 

Debby Cllr 

4.36 / 
DEV6 
Play 

Areas 

Specify that local district councillors are to 
be included in consultation and liaison. 

It is suggested that a new paragraph is 
provided at the beginning of Section 4 
regarding consultation with town and 
parish councils and local councillors.  
The reference to 'local councillors' will 
encompass parish and district 
councillors. 

As above. 

35 
Hallett, 

Debby Cllr 
4.40 / 
DEV8 

Strongly urge you to decide how you type 
the word onsite. Is it on-site, onsite or on 
site? 

Document to be checked for 
consistency.  

Represent as 'on-site' throughout document. 

P
age 74



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

 
 

36 
Hallett, 

Debby Cllr 
4.42 / 
DEV8 

Specify which councillors are to be 
included - district councillors. 

It is recommended that a new 
paragraph is provided at the beginning 
of Section 4 regarding consultation with 
town and parish councils and local 
councillors.  The reference to 'local 
councillors' will encompass parish and 
district councillors. 

Add a new paragraph after 4.2 in Section 4 as 
follows: 'It is good practice to involve town 
and parish councils, local community and 
access groups and District ward 
councillors at an early stage in 
discussions over infrastructure provision, 
prior to drawing up Section 106 
agreements. This is particularly true in 
instances where they may have detailed 
knowledge of local infrastructure needs 
and costs.' 
 
Amend paragraph 6.2 to read: '...Further 
information on the Council's approach to 
negotiating planning obligations assessing the 
need for infrastructure, and authorising the 
final agreement is set out in Appendix 2.' 
 

37 
Hallett, 

Debby Cllr 
4.43 / 
DEV9 

Here and throughout the document, 
specify local district councillors. 

It is suggested that a new paragraph is 
provided at the beginning of Section 4 
regarding consultation with town and 
parish councils and local councillors.  
The reference to 'local councillors' will 
encompass parish and district 
councillors. 

As Above 

38 
Hallett, 

Debby Cllr 
4.46 / 

DEV11 

Not all cemeteries are managed by towns 
and parishes. Botley cemetery is 
managed by Oxford City Council. 
 
 

Para 4.46 should be amended to say 
that the majority of cemeteries are 
owned by town and parish councils. 
 

Second sentence of para 4.46 to read: 'The 
majority of cCemeteries are managed by 
parish and town councils…' 

39 
Hallett, 

Debby Cllr 
DEV14 

How will we measure the net gain in 
biodiversity for a development? Is it 
reasonable to have a policy of net 10% 
gain? Why 10%? 

DEV14 states that all development 
should aim to deliver at least 10% net 
gain in biodiversity.  This is in line with 
the forthcoming changes to the 

Provide new text to explain the current Vale 
Local Plan policy requirements in relation to 
biodiversity net gain. 

P
age 75



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

Environment Bill (yet enacted). The 
NPPF only requires a net gain per se, as 
does CP45. Applicants are already 
required to submit a biodiversity 
assessment with planning applications 
to demonstrate net gain and the 
Council's ecologist reviews this 
information to ensure compliance with 
regulations and policy.  

40 
Hallett, 

Debby Cllr 

4.63-4.66 
/ DEV16 

Air 
Quality 

Mitigation measures should partly be 
concerned with how many more vehicles 
new developments will be adding to the 
A34 in Botley or the A415 in Marcham 
and require mitigation via s106. What sort 
of programmes exist for such mitigation? 
Air quality in dwellings and gardens 
nearby are unhealthily polluted. New 
developments should neither contribute to 
air pollution nor subject their future 
residents to pollution levels known to 
increase mortality.  

Transport strategy including traffic 
generation and promotion of alternative 
modes of transport are considered 
through policy and at the planning 
application stage. The County Council 
prepares Local Transport Plans to 
present and address transport strategy 
and advise on planning applications. 
Where sites are unacceptably affected 
by air quality, the Council's technical 
experts will advise whether mitigation 
can assist. The SPD cannot alter 
overarching policy considerations. 
However, existing policy references 
regarding the consideration of air 
quality should be added to the SPD 
under DEV16. 
 

Add reference to Local Plan Part 1 Core 
Policies 33 and 34 under DEV16. 

P
age 76



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

41 
Hallett, 

Debby Cllr 
Protocol 

When a S106 agreement is re-negotiated, 
local district councillors must be re-
consulted and the Chair of Planning 
Committee (at least) must approve the 
new terms. This ensures member 
involvement and meaningful contribution.  

It is recommended that a new 
paragraph is provided at the beginning 
of Section 4, which covers consultation 
with town/parish councils and local 
councillors. 

Appendix 2 of the adopted 2017 
Developer Contributions SPD has 
proved useful in discussions with 
developers. However, given that the 
SPD is a policy document and should 
not cover detailed Council procedures, 
it would be more appropriate for a 
separate protocol to be prepared on 
S106 negotiations for internal use by 
Members and Officers, if necessary.  

Add a new paragraph after 4.2 in Section 4 as 
follows: 'It is good practice to involve town 
and parish councils, local community and 
access groups and District ward 
councillors at an early stage in 
discussions over infrastructure provision, 
prior to drawing up Section 106 
agreements. This is particularly true in 
instances where they may have detailed 
knowledge of local infrastructure needs 
and costs.' 
 
Amend paragraph 6.2 to read: '...Further 
information on the Council's approach to 
negotiating planning obligations assessing the 
need for infrastructure, and authorising the 
final agreement is set out in Appendix 2.' 
 

42 
Hallett, 

Debby Cllr 
Protocol 

Policy must not include descriptions of 
internal processes. Policy must be 
consulted on and changes only 
infrequently. Internal procedures are 
modified in the process of ordinary 
problem solving, sometimes frequently. 
Consequently, details of internal 
procedures do not belong in a policy 
document and should be removed from 
this SPD, leaving only policy. 
 

Agree. Appendix 2 of the adopted 2017 
Developer Contributions SPD has 
proved useful in discussions with 
developers. However, given that the 
SPD is a policy document and should 
not cover detailed Council procedures, 
it would be more appropriate for a 
separate protocol to be prepared on 
S106 negotiations for internal use by 
Members and Officers, if necessary.  

Amend paragraph 6.2 to read: '...Further 
information on the Council's approach to 
negotiating planning obligations assessing the 
need for infrastructure, and authorising the 
final agreement is set out in Appendix 2.' 

P
age 77



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

43 
Hallett, 

Debby Cllr 

4.63-4.66 
/ DEV16 

Air 
Quality 

VOWH is still approving applications for 
hundreds of homes that put thousands of 
cars on the already-over-capacity A34 
and A420 and A338. What mitigation 
could we deliver via s106 obligations to 
over-crowded roads, and air quality that 
fails to meet health standards? For 
example, all the big developments near 
Abingdon bring in more cars, which 
contribute to the lethal levels of air 
pollution in the Botley AQMA alongside 
the A34. 

Transport strategy including traffic 
generation and promotion of alternative 
modes of transport are considered 
through policy and at the planning 
application stage. The County Council 
prepares Local Transport Plans to 
present and address transport strategy 
and advises on planning applications. 
Where sites are unacceptably affected 
by air quality, the Council's technical 
experts will advise whether mitigation 
can assist. The SPD cannot address 
principle policy considerations. 
However, existing policy references 
regarding the consideration of air 
quality should be added to the SPD 
under DEV16. 
 
 

Add reference to Local Plan Part 1 Core 
Policies 33 and 34 under DEV16. 

44 
Thompson, 

Max Cllr 
4.58 

Net gain in green infrastructure should 
include EV provision as mandatory on all 
major developments. 

Paragraph 4.66 explains the council's 
approach to the provision of electric 
vehicle charging points in new 
development and in council-owned car 
parks. 
 
 

None required. 

45 
Thompson, 

Max Cllr 
4.59 

Para 4.59 should list the reasons or tests 
that determine whether net gain in 
biodiversity is not possible through on-site 
provision.  
 
It should also say contributions 'will be' 
sought rather than 'may be'. 

DEV14 states that all development 
should aim to deliver at least 10% net 
gain in biodiversity.  This is in line with 
the forthcoming changes to the 
Environment Bill (yet enacted). The 
NPPF only requires a net gain per se, 
as does CP45. Applicants are required 
to submit a biodiversity assessment 
with planning applications to 
demonstrate net gain, and the 
Council's Ecologist reviews this 
information to ensure compliance with 
regulations and policy. Where possible 
net gain is sought on-site. 
 

Provide new text to explain the current Vale 
Local Plan policy requirements in relation to 
biodiversity net gain.  

P
age 78



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

 

46 
Thompson, 

Max Cllr 

4.31 & 
4.32 / 
DEV5 

Open space - more guidance about the 
location (not on outskirts or clustered). 
Also not 'we will expect' - 'we will require a 
minimum provision of 15%, otherwise the 
development will be considered 
unsustainable'. 

Agree that para 4.31 should say 'we will 
require', which is consistent with 
adopted Local Plan policy DP33. 
However, the design and configuration 
of open space will be a matter for the 
Joint Design Guide, which will also 
consider issues such as the location 
and quality of open space. 

Second sentence of para 4.31 to read: 'In 
accordance with Development Policy DP33, 
we will require expect a minimum provision of 
15% of the residential area to be laid out as 
public open space…' 

47 
Thompson, 

Max Cllr 
4.62 

Waste and recycling - applicants must 
provide drawings and specify exactly 
where bins will be stored, prior to 
approval. 
 
 

Yes, planning application drawings 
should include details of bin storage 
(location and dimensions). 

None required. 

48 
Thompson, 

Max Cllr 
4.77 

VOWH's strong preference for electric 
over gas heating should be referenced. 

The Developer Contributions SPD 
cannot alter overarching regulations or 
policy requirements. These matters can 
be addressed through the new Local 
Plan.  
 
 

None required. 

P
age 79



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

49 
Thompson, 

Max Cllr 
4.35 

Where it says liaise with local councillors 
(and throughout the document) it must be 
made clear that engagement with ward 
councillors on S106 is a prerequisite - 
failure to do so may result in committee 
deferring decisions on the application. 
This cannot be ad hoc. There must be a 
process here. 

It is recommended that a new 
paragraph is provided at the beginning 
of Section 4, which covers consultation 
with town/parish councils and local 
councillors.  

Appendix 2 of the adopted 2017 
Developer Contributions SPD has 
proved useful in discussions with 
developers. However, given that the 
SPD is a policy document and should 
not cover detailed Council procedures, 
it would be more appropriate for a 
separate protocol to be prepared on 
S106 negotiations for internal use by 
Members and Officers, if necessary.  

Add a new paragraph after 4.2 in Section 4 as 
follows: 'It is good practice to involve town 
and parish councils, local community and 
access groups and District ward 
councillors at an early stage in 
discussions over infrastructure provision, 
prior to drawing up Section 106 
agreements. This is particularly true in 
instances where they may have detailed 
knowledge of local infrastructure needs 
and costs.' 
 
Amend paragraph 6.2 to read: '...Further 
information on the Council's approach to 
negotiating planning obligations assessing the 
need for infrastructure, and authorising the 
final agreement is set out in Appendix 2.' 
 

50 
Thompson, 

Max Cllr 
General 

Sustainable' should be clarified 
throughout the document, including how it 
relates to the corporate plan and our 
commitment to net zero by 2045. 

The definition of 'sustainable' is 
provided in national policy guidance 
and within the Glossary of the Vale 
Local Plan 2031.  It is agreed that the 
Council's commitment to achieving net 
zero by 2045 needs to be reflected in 
planning policy, but this needs to be 
within the Joint Local Plan for South 
and Vale, as opposed to this Developer 
Contributions SPD. 
 
 

None required. 

P
age 80



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

51 
Vale Liberal 
Democrat 

Goup 
General 

Reference to consultation with local Vale 
members is an important improvement to 
the SPD that will help to solve several 
problems. Too often money is going to 
obscure places when the obvious ones 
are left out. Currently, by the time the 
obligations contract gets to planning 
committee it is too late. We would like to 
see places in the timeline for s106 
negotiations to include local district 
councillors, as well as parish and town 
councils and relevant local organisations. 
It would be useful to include, at a high 
level if possible (rather than in each 
specific section) something about local 
district members being included in the 
conversations throughout the course of 
negotiations. Then it will be for internal 
procedures to spell out exactly how that 
will be done, and by whom etc.  
 
 

Support noted. 

It is recommended that a new 
paragraph is provided at the beginning 
of Section 4, which covers consultation 
with town/parish councils and local 
councillors.  

Appendix 2 of the adopted 2017 
Developer Contributions SPD has 
proved useful in discussions with 
developers. However, given that the 
SPD is a policy document and should 
not cover detailed Council procedures, 
it would be more appropriate for a 
separate protocol to be prepared on 
S106 negotiations for internal use by 
Members and Officers, if necessary.  

Add a new paragraph after 4.2 in Section 4 as 
follows: 'It is good practice to involve town 
and parish councils, local community and 
access groups and District ward 
councillors at an early stage in 
discussions over infrastructure provision, 
prior to drawing up Section 106 
agreements. This is particularly true in 
instances where they may have detailed 
knowledge of local infrastructure needs 
and costs.' 
 
Amend paragraph 6.2 to read: '...Further 
information on the Council's approach to 
negotiating planning obligations assessing the 
need for infrastructure, and authorising the 
final agreement is set out in Appendix 2.' 

52 
Vale Liberal 
Democrat 

Goup 

Carbon 
Mitigation 

S106 obligations are intended to mitigate 
the harm brought to the community by the 
development. We would like to see 
something specific about how s106 
obligations can be used to mitigate carbon 
released in the construction phase and 
also over the lifetime of the property. 
(Thinking of both the Council's targets and 
Government’s, for carbon neutral in a few 
years time.) So developers who ‘do the 
right thing’ would not have a s106 for 
mitigating harm to the environment. Those 
developers who still use methods of 
construction and design that are not 
carbon zero should be charged for 
mitigation or offset. Maybe there should 
be a fund to finance the expensive retro-fit 
of houses not built to zero-carbon 
standards? 

Proposed new development will need 
to address climate change mitigation 
intrinsically through location and design 
(as per Core Policy 37 of LPP1) and 
planning conditions can achieve 
improved provision of carbon reduction 
measures such as EV charging points. 
The SPD cannot require enhanced 
requirements as these need to be 
introduced through regulations or Local 
Plan policy. 

Add new sub-section on Climate Change 
Mitigation and include a new paragraph to 
read: 
 
‘Core Policy 37 (Design and Local 

Distinctiveness) of the LPP1 requires 

proposed new development to address 

sustainability and climate change 

intrinsically through location and design, 

by taking into account landform, layout, 

building orientation, massing and 

landscaping to minimise energy 

consumption and mitigate water run-off 

and flood risks. Planning conditions can 

achieve improved provision of carbon 

reduction measures (such as EV charging 

points) and CIL is the appropriate 

mechanism for securing developer 

P
age 81



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

 
 

contributions towards off-site and wider 

carbon reduction initiatives that are not 

directly related to a specific development, 

including renewable energy and energy 

storage infrastructure.’ 

53 
Oxfordshire 

County 
Council 

Page 1 

Support the rationale for reviewing the 
adopted Developer Contributions SPD. 

Support noted. None required. 

54 
Oxfordshire 

County 
Council 

Page 4 
Executive 
Summary 

Incorrect to say S106 will be the primary 
mechanism for securing developer 
contributions only in respect of sites that 
do not make a contribution through CIL. 
S106 agreements and CIL may be 
needed. 

Agree that an amendment is required - 
suggest it should read as follows: 
 
'However, for some sites (such as 
strategic sites allocated in the Local 
Plan) that ,which do not make a 
contribution through CIL), S106 will be 
the primary mechanism for securing 
developer contributions...' 

Amend Executive summary as follows:  
 
'However, for some sites (such as strategic 
sites allocated in the Local Plan) that ,which 
do not make a contribution through CIL), 
S106 will be the primary mechanism for 
securing developer contributions...' 

55 
Oxfordshire 

County 
Council 

Page 4 
Executive 
Summary 

We support the specific reference to use 
of S278 of the Highways Act, in addition 
to CIL and S106. 
 
 

Support noted. None required. 

56 
Oxfordshire 

County 
Council 

Page 5, 
para 1.4 

The start of the sentence could be better 
phrased as follows: ‘Developer 
contributions seek both financial and 
non-financial, are secured from 
development to mitigate…’ 
 
 

Agree, amend first sentence of para 1.4 
for clarity.  

First sentence of para 1.4 to read: ' 
‘Developer contributions seek, both financial 
and non-financial, are secured from 
development to mitigate…’ 

57 

Oxfordshire 
County 
Council 

 

Page 6, 
para 1.9 

Delete 'of' before 'use'. Agreed. Para 1.9 to read: '…restriction on the of use of 
land…' 

P
age 82



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

58 
Oxfordshire 

County 
Council 

Page 10, 
DEV1 & 

new para 

Provision should be explicitly made for 
contributions to affordable extra care and 
specialist housing. Amend Policy DEV1 
as follows: 
 
‘Affordable housing will be sought in 
accordance with Core Policy 24 and 
secured through a S106 obligation. 
Contributions towards affordable extra 
care and specialist housing will be 
sought via S106, in accordance with 
Core Policy 26.’ 
 
Then add a new paragraph after 4.8 as 
explanatory text. (suggested wording 
provided). 

The Council agrees that text could be 
usefully be added at the end of 
paragraph 4.5 to explain that affordable 
housing may include extra care or 
specialist housing. However, making 
explicit reference to these typologies in 
the DEV1 Blue Box would limit the 
Council's ability to respond flexibly to 
local affordable housing needs and, in 
any case, current affordable housing 
contributions are not ringfenced to 
General Needs and can be used to 
fund extra care/ specialist housing 
provision, where local need exists.  

Add the following text to the end of para 4.5:  
 
'…Affordable housing provision may 
include affordable extra care and 
specialist housing for vulnerable groups 
(such as the elderly with care needs and 
people with physical and learning 
disabilities or complex autism). The 
Council will work with Oxfordshire County 
Council and developers to secure and 
deliver this provision, in accordance with 
local needs.' 

59 
Oxfordshire 

County 
Council 

Page 11, 
para 4.12 

Occasionally it will be necessary to fund 
temporary buildings on school sites. This 
should be mentioned by adding the 
following text at the end of the paragraph: 
‘Developers may also be required to 
fund temporary accommodation to 
provide for pupils generated from 
development prior to the opening of 
any new permanent school 
classrooms, if the timing of 
development is such as to make this 
necessary.’ 
 

Agree, suggested wording is helpful. The following wording to be added to the end 
of para 4.12: '‘Developers may also be 
required to fund temporary 
accommodation to provide for pupils 
generated from development prior to the 
opening of any new permanent school 
classrooms, if the timing of development 
is such as to make this necessary.’ 

P
age 83



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

60 
Oxfordshire 

County 
Council 

Page 11, 
para 4.14 

For accuracy the paragraph needs 
amending as follows: 'Where land is 
required for educational facilities, detailed 
discussions and sufficient evidence, 
including appropriate surveys, will be 
necessary required in order to ensure it 
is suitable for educational use and to 
agree the actual boundaries of the site 
allocated, including the location of 
surveys, accesses and services. Land will 
need to be provided fully serviced and 
remediated and suitable for educational 
use and there may be additional 
payments to cover any abnormal costs 
associated with the build. Further land 
may be required where it is necessary to 
provide for future expansion of the 
school additional facilities co-located with 
the school. Triggers on the transfer of 
land and payment of contributions will be 
secured in the S106 agreement.' 
 

Agree, amend para 4.14 for clarity. Para 4.14 to be amended to read:  
'Where land is required for educational 
facilities, detailed discussions and sufficient 
evidence, including appropriate surveys, 
will be necessary required in order to ensure 
it is suitable for educational use and to 
agree the actual boundaries of the site 
allocated, including the location of surveys, 
accesses and services. Land will need to be 
provided fully serviced and remediated and 
suitable for educational use and there may be 
additional payments to cover any abnormal 
costs associated with the build. Further land 
may be required where it is necessary to 
provide for future expansion of the school 
additional facilities co-located with the school. 
Triggers on the transfer of land and payment 
of contributions will be secured in the S106 
agreement.' 

61 
Oxfordshire 

County 
Council 

Page 12, 
DEV3 

It should be made clear that a S278 
agreement may be required by adding the 
words in blue: ‘Direct mitigation of 
individual site transport impacts (including 
roads, cycleways, footpaths, public rights 
of way, public transport and the 
monitoring of travel plans) will be secured 
through S106. Infrastructure may need to 
be delivered through the developer 
entering into a S278 agreement with the 
County Council.’ 
Local Plan policy DP17 should also be 
referred to in the text. 
 

Agree, add 'need to' after 'Infrastructure 
may' under DEV3. 
 
Also add reference to DP17 (Transport 
Assessments & Travel Plans) in the list 
of relevant policies - and under 
Transport in Appendix 1 too. 

In blue box DEV3, amend the second 
sentence to read: 'Infrastructure may need to 
be delivered…' 
 
Also add DP17 to the list of relevant Local 
Plan policies at the end of DEV3 and under 
'Transport' in Appendix 1. 

P
age 84



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

62 
Oxfordshire 

County 
Council 

Page 13, 
para 4.20 

The second sentence should be 
amended, so that there is no implication 
of needing to wait for the master planning 
stage before identifying transport 
mitigation proposals:‘…It will be important 
to identify these in the master planning 
stage at the earliest opportunity in 
liaison with the County Council to ensure 
that the transport proposals adequately 
meet the needs arising from the 
development.' 
 
There may also be a need to discuss 
proposals with Highways England, so 
third sentence should be amended as 
follows: 'Discussions with Network Rail, 
Highways England and bus operators in 
the area may also be necessary.’ 

Agree. The suggested amendments 
are helpful. 

Amend second sentence of para 4.20 to read: 
'It will be important to identify these in the 
master planning stage at the earliest 
opportunity, in liaison with the County 
Council…' 
 
Amend third sentence of para 4.20 to read: 
'Discussions with Network Rail, Highways 
England and bus operators in the area...' 

63 
Oxfordshire 

County 
Council 

Page 13, 
para 4.21 

Para 4.21 should be corrected to refer to 
cycle crossings as well as pedestrian 
crossings, and the infrastructure needed 
for public transport: 
 
‘…Traffic Regulation Orders; traffic lights; 
pedestrian and cycle crossings; signage; 
public transport infrastructure on or 
adjacent to the site; lighting and street 
furniture.’ 

Agree. The suggested amendments 
are helpful. 

Amend para 4.21 to read: '…Traffic 
Regulation Orders; traffic lights; pedestrian 
and cycle crossings; signage; public 
transport infrastructure on or adjacent to the 
site…' 

P
age 85



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

64 
Oxfordshire 

County 
Council 

Page 22, 
DEV15 

We support the particular reference to 
Household Waste & Recycling Centres. 
Additional supporting text could be 
usefully included. Oxfordshire County 
Council is responsible for providing 
Household Waste Recycling Centres 
(HWRCs) for residents to deposit 
household materials that are not usually 
collected at the kerbside. HWRCs aim to 
maximise waste reduction, reuse and 
recycling, and support the circular 
economy. The County Council may 
require developers to mitigate the impact 
of their development on HWRC facilities 
by contributing towards the cost of 
improving or providing a new HWRC site 
that will serve the development. 
 
The assessment of contributions will be 
undertaken on a case by case basis and 
will take into account several factors 
(comments include a list).  

Support noted.  
 
Agreed that further text regarding 
Household Waste Recycling Centres 
would be helpful.  

Add a new paragraph 4.63 as follows: 

'... Oxfordshire County Council is 
responsible for providing Household 
Waste Recycling Centres (HWRCs) for 
residents to deposit household materials 
that are not usually collected at the 
kerbside. HWRCs aim to maximise waste 
reduction, reuse and recycling and 
support the circular economy. The County 
Council may require developers to 
mitigate the impact of their development 
on HWRC facilities by contributing 
towards the cost of improving or providing 
a new HWRC site that will serve the 
development.' 

65 
Oxfordshire 

County 
Council 

Page 24, 
para 4.71 

Typo - '…the County Council (as lead 
local flood defence authority)…' 

Agree. Amend para 4.71 as suggested. Third sentence of para 4.71 to read: 
'Developers should, therefore, liaise with the 
County Council (as lead local flood defence 
authority)…' 
 

P
age 86



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

66 
Oxfordshire 

County 
Council 

Pages 29 
& 30, 

paras 6.4 
and 6.5 

The paragraphs refer to RICS guidance 
and in the case of para 6.5 include a 
quote from the RICS guidance note dating 
from 2012. It may be that there is more up 
to date guidance and the paragraphs 
should be revised. Government guidance 
was updated in May 2019 - Paragraph 
013 Reference ID: 10-013-20190509. 

Paragraph 6.5 requires amendment to 
reflect the latest RICS guidance on 
defining land values for development 
viability assessments, as set out in 
'Assessing Viability in Planning under 
the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2019 for England, RICS, 
1st Edition, March 2021'. 

Delete existing para 6.5 and replace with:  

'Definition of Land Value 

To define land value for any viability 
assessment, a benchmark land value 
should be established on the basis of the 
existing use value (EUV) of the land, plus a 
premium for the landowner. The premium 
for the landowner should reflect the 
minimum return at which it is considered a 
reasonable landowner would be willing to 
sell their land. The premium should 
provide a reasonable incentive, in 
comparison with other options available, 
for the landowner to sell land for 
development while allowing a sufficient 
contribution to fully comply with 
Development Plan policy requirements. 
Landowners and site purchasers should 
consider policy requirements when 
agreeing land transactions. This approach 
is often called ‘existing use value plus’ 
(EUV+).' 

Add footnote 7, linked to para 6.4 (March 
2021 RICS guidance). 

67 
Oxfordshire 

County 
Council 

Page 31 

A new section should be added at the end 
of Section 6 ‘Negotiation and 
Administration of Planning Obligations’. 
This new section should be entitled 
‘Bonds’ and refer to how bonds may be 
needed in some circumstances. 
 
 

Agree. New text to explain why bonds 
may be needed in certain 
circumstances would be helpful. 
 
Also recommend that a definition of 
bonds is included in the Glossary. 

Add new para 6.12 to read: 
 
‘Section 106 agreements often require the 
payment of deferred financial 
contributions, which are triggered after the 
implementation of the corresponding 
development. As these financial 
contributions have been identified as 
necessary to allow the development 
proceed, it is reasonable for the Council to 
take steps to secure their delivery in the 
event of unforeseen circumstances 
resulting in the under/non-payment of the 

P
age 87



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

obligations. Consequently, the Council 
may require appropriate security, in the 
form of a bond, to be provided by the 
developer and this requirement will 
initially be identified in the advice from the 
Council following the submission of a 
planning application.’ 

Also add to Glossary: 

‘Bond: A surety document provided by an 
approved third party (e.g. a major bank or 
insurance company) that can be called on 
if the developer defaults.’ 

 

68 

East 
Hendred 
Parish 
Council 

DEV4-7 
Indoor 

and 
Outdoor 
Sports & 
Recreatio

n 

East Hendred PC considers that the 
section related to Sports Facilities, Play 
Areas and MUGAs should be reviewed to 
reflect updated guidance in Tables 1-4 of 
the Fields in Trust's 'Guidance for Outdoor 
Sport & Play - Beyond the Six Acre 
Standard' (2015).  
 
It should also adopt the Fields in Trust 
Policy Framework, outlined on page 4 of 
this document, which places greater 
awareness on the need to promote health 
& well-being within the community, 
especially given the adverse impact of 
Covid on local residents. 

The SPD needs to reflect Development 

Policy 33 and Appendix K of LPP2, 

which set out the Council’s standards 

for play provision. On reflection, we 

consider that inclusion of Table 3 

(Children’s Play and Youth Provision) is 

confusing for developers, as it is based 

on non-statutory ‘Fields in Trust’ 

guidance rather than adopted Plan 

policy. It is, therefore, proposed that we 

remove Table 3 from the SPD and 

replace it with text to explain that play 

area requirements will be dependent on 

existing provision in the area and the 

demands from other development and 

may be in the form of financial 

contributions rather than on-site 

provision. 

Officers will refer to the ‘Fields in Trust’ 

policy framework during preparation of 

the Joint Local Plan for South and Vale. 

 
 

Delete Table 3 and replace with new text at 
the end of para 4.37 to explain that children’s 
play and youth provision will be dependent on 
existing provision in the area and the 
demands from other development and, in 
some cases, may be in the form of financial 
contributions rather than on-site provision.  
 
 

P
age 88



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

69 

East 
Hendred 
Parish 
Council 

Page 16, 
Table 3 

Where, as at East Hendred, a series of 
sites are developed of less than 25 
dwellings, no play facilities are provided at 
all under Table 3 of the draft SPD. Even 
on sites of up to 80 dwellings, only a LAP 
is provided. In Table 3, a MUGA (for 
which there is strong demand in East 
Hendred) would require a development of 
500+ dwellings for a site of 20m x 40m for 
a mixed-use facility. We, therefore, seek a 
review of Table 3, to reflect the 
benchmark guidelines in Table 2 of the 
Fields in Trust guidance (2015). If these 
guidelines had been applied, a number of 
LAPs, a LEAP and contributions towards 
a MUGA could have been sought for the 
Parish. 

It is agreed that there can be situations 
where a series of small sites are being 
developed, but a play area threshold is 
not reached on one site. All major 
development sites will generate S106 
contributions towards on-site play 
provision. However, we agree that 
additional text could usefully be added 
to explain how town/parish councils can 
use CIL receipts towards the 
enhancement of existing play areas in 
certain circumstances, including where 
a series of small sites are being 
developed which, individually, do not 
meet the threshold required to trigger 
developer contributions towards play 
provision.  
 
See above response regarding Table 3 
of the draft SPD. 

Amend paragraph 4.35 as follows: 

‘…Town/parish councils can use their 
proportion of CIL receipts towards the 
enhancement of existing play areas in 
situations where either: there are a 
number of small sites being developed 
where, individually, each site would not 
reach the dwelling threshold required to 
trigger developer contributions towards 
play areas; or where there is no suitable 
local site to locate play facilities. Where a 
site cannot accommodate its on-site play 
requirement, due to exceptional site 
constraints, S106 contributions may be 
sought towards off-site mitigation.’ 

 

P
age 89



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

70 

East 
Hendred 
Parish 
Council 

Appendix 
3 - 

Distance 
Standards 

We seek a review of the distance 
standards in Appendix 3. This requires a 
football, cricket and rugby pitch and 
MUGA of 0.3 hectares (3,000 sq m) per 
1000 population, but only within 15 mins 
drive-time in rural areas. In urban areas it 
is 10 mins walk time. How are school 
children in rural areas expected to be able 
to take a 15 min drive to reach such 
facilities? 
 
Larger Villages such as East Hendred 
with a population of 1,000 residents 
should meet the Guidelines for 6.55 
hectares (16 acres) of formal & informal 
open space per 1,000 population, as set 
out in Table 1 & 3 of the Fields in Trust 
guidance. For example, East Hendred 
should have a MUGA of 0.3 hectare 
(3,000 sq.m) within 700 metres of all 
residents in the village, instead of within a 
15-minute drive-time, as proposed in the 
Draft SPD. 
 
 

The distance standards in Appendix 3 
reflect those in adopted Plan policy (as 
set out in Appendix K of Vale Local 
Plan Part 2) and cannot therefore be 
revised in the SPD.  
 
However, the accessibility standard for 
MUGAs in Appendix 3 of the SPD does 
require amendment to accurately 
reflect Appendix K.  
 

Amend Appendix 3 to state that the distance 
standard for MUGAs is: 
 
‘The whole population within a 1000m walking 
catchment.’ 

71 
Oxfordshire 
NHS CCG 

Page 18, 
DEV9 

The CCG would like to see the 
incorporation of an amount of developer 
contributions expressed as a specific 
figure of £360 per person, in addition to 
there being general statements made that 
'new or increased capacity of health 
facilities will be sought through S106 from 
development on allocated sites exempt 
from CIL'. Cherwell District Council 
Developer Contributions SPD 2018 
(Appendix 15) has a good example. 

Whilst it is acknowledged that Cherwell 
District Council's SPD includes 
calculations of contributions towards 
health and wellbeing at Appendix 15, it 
is not proposed that specific monetary 
calculations for developer contributions 
towards healthcare provision be 
included in the SPD, as this type of 
information can become quickly out of 
date. Instead, text will be added to 
confirm that the Council will continue to 
liaise with the Clinical Commissioning 
Group to obtain their latest financial 
information for calculating contributions 
towards health facilities from specific 
developments. 

Amend para 4.43 to read: 
 
‘…in respect of new facilities funded through 
S106 and will obtain the latest financial 
information from the CCG for calculating 
contributions towards health facilities 
from specific developments.’ 

P
age 90



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

 

72 
Shrivenham 

Parish 
Council 

All 

Shrivenham Parish Council supports the 
proposals within the draft SPD and 
welcomes the proposed liaison with parish 
councils on the provision of community 
facilities. We do, however, require 
clarification within the document that the 
town/parish portion of any CIL contribution 
will not be affected by the proposals in the 
SPD, nor by the ability to pool CIL 
contributions for larger projects.  

Support noted. 
 
The town/parish portion of any CIL 
receipts is not affected by any aspects 
of the Developer Contributions SPD, 
nor by amendments to the CIL 
Regulations in 2019, which removed 
pooling restrictions for S106 obligations 
(i.e. the requirement that no more than 
five S106 obligations could previously 
fund a single infrastructure project).   
 
 

None required. 

73 
Roberts, 
Judy Cllr 

Page 8, 
para 3.3 

This section does not include the County 
Council documents with policies on 
transport and education infrastructure or 
the Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Plan. 
Nor are Didcot Garden Town and the 
Dalton Garden Village mentioned and 
they have policies in place. I think the use 
of blue boxes later in the document could 
be replicated in the section on 
S106/CIL/S278 agreements, to make it 
clearer how they are linked.  

This SPD relates specifically to the 
policies in the Vale Local Plan Parts 1 
& 2 and other district level plans and 
strategies. There are currently no 
separate statutory planning documents 
covering Didcot Garden Town and 
Dalton Garden Village. 
 
Table 1 on page 7 demonstrates the 
links between CIL, S106, S106, S278 
Agreements and planning conditions. 

None required. 

P
age 91



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

74 
Roberts, 
Judy Cllr 

Page 10/ 
DEV 1 

The other types of affordable (sheltered, 
extra care) need to be added. West 
Oxfordshire have custom and self-build 
added. Can we add 'encourage' because 
of the increased statutory information 
required? 

Agree that it would be helpful to add 
text at the end of paragraph 4.5 to 
explain that affordable housing may 
include extra care and specialist 
housing.  

Add the following text to the end of para 4.5:  
'…Affordable housing provision may 
include affordable extra care and 
specialist housing for vulnerable groups 
(such as the elderly with care needs and 
people with physical and learning 
disabilities or complex autism). The 
Council will work with Oxfordshire County 
Council and developers to secure and 
deliver this provision, in accordance with 
local needs.' 

75 
Roberts, 
Judy Cllr 

Page 12/ 
DEV 3 

Can we specify the core policy contents, 
especially the public transport and active 
travel (CP33 and CP35). NPPF also 
requires cycle paths to link into cycle 
routes up to 5 km from site access. 

Policies CP33 and CP35 are high level 
policies promoting public transport, 
cycling and walking, rather than 
offering specific detail on S106 
requirements.  
 
Add 'and cycle' after 'pedestrian' in 
paragraph 4.21.  
 
 

Amend para 4.21 to read: '…Traffic 
Regulation Orders; traffic lights; pedestrian 
and cycle crossings; signage; public 
transport infrastructure on or adjacent to the 
site…' 

76 
Roberts, 
Judy Cllr 

Page 23/ 
DEV16 

Need to add the active travel policies 
CP33 and CP35, as they both have a 
positive impact on air quality. 

Agree. Adding reference to policies 
CP33 and CP35 in DEV16 would be 
helpful. 
 
 

Add CP33 and CP35 to the list of relevant 
Local Plan policies in DEV16  

77 
Roberts, 
Judy Cllr 

All 

There is very little information on the 
detail of how the calculations are made. 
Mendip have a secondary document, a 
Developers Guide to 106 and CIL 
contributions but Burnley put the 
calculations within their SPD. This 
information could be an appendix but by 
whatever system is preferred, having this 
information in the public domain would be 
more transparent and probably provide a 
more uniform officer response when these 
negotiations take place.  
 

Agree that it would be useful to have 
further information/guidance on 
affordable housing calculations, 
including part/fractional and off-site 
provision. However, it is proposed that 
this is included in the forthcoming Joint 
Affordable Housing SPD, to be 
produced by the two councils. In the 
main, on-site provision is required and 
CIL will fund off-site provision.  

New paragraph 4.9 to read as follows: 

'The Council will provide further guidance 
on the calculation of contributions 
towards affordable housing provision, 
within a forthcoming Joint Affordable 
Housing SPD.' 

P
age 92



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

78 
Wantage 

Town 
Council 

DEV10 
Fire & 

Rescue 

In some cases S106 and CIL may apply 
to a development and currently the 
wording of DEV10 could preclude one 
method from being discarded. Suggest 
that it is reworded as 'Improvements to 
the fire and rescue services can be 
funded through S106 and/or CIL.' 

 

Agree. Suggested amendment to 
DEV10 would be helpful. 

Amend DEV10 to read: 'Improvements to the 
fire and rescue services can be funded 
through S106 and/or CIL.' 

79 
Wantage 

Town 
Council 

Appendix 
3 

Needs to be a definition in Glossary of 
'Drive Time' as it varies throughout the 
day dependent on roads taken.  
 
In order to measure/monitor the metrics 
(shown as Standards in the Appendix), it 
would be advantageous to provide current 
implementation of these standards and 
show the short-fall in order to identify 
priority for implementation.  
 
For instance, indoor bowls 0.08 rinks per 
1,000 population, but 15 minute driving 
time for whole population.  Does this 
equate to only within Vale of White Horse 
District or utilise surrounding districts/city 
areas?  

Drive times, as set out in Appendix 3, 
are based on the findings of the Vale of 
White Horse Leisure and Sports 
Facilities Study 2013-2031 (prepared 
for the Council by Nortoft Partnerships). 
The study itself used Sport England's 
'Active Places Power' tool to produce 
maps which indicated the approximate 
travel times by car to a range of 
facilities, taking account of facilities in 
adjoining authorities. Maps were 
produced for facility types other than 
sports halls, swimming pools and 
artificial grass pitches (as accessibility 
of these was better assessed using 
Sport England's Facilities Planning 
Model). Sport England research 
identified that the maximum travel time 
to most built facilities was about 20 
minutes, usually either on foot or by 
car. This criterion was therefore used in 
the consultant's report as the basis for 
determining whether facilities were 
sufficiently accessible. 
 
Future reviews of sports and leisure 
needs will need to consider current 
provision and shortfalls.  
 

None required. 

P
age 93



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

80 
Thames 
Water 

Para 4.76 

Thames Water supports the inclusion of 
text on waste water and utilities. However, 
para 4.76 requires amendment to reflect 
Thames Water's position. 

Agree with Thames Water's proposed 
amendments to para 4.76. 

Amend 4.76 to read '…To ensure timely 
housing delivery, developers will be expected 
to engage with the water authority to agree 
a housing and infrastructure delivery plan 
to ensure that development does not 
outpace the delivery of off-site 
infrastructure. to contribute towards the 
payment of interest, to enable Thames Water 
to take loans and bring forward the provision 
of waste water treatment infrastructure ahead 
of schedule. Any such agreements should be 
made directly between the developer and 
Thames Water.' 

81 
Thames 
Water 

Para 4.77 

Thames Water supports the need for 
developers to engage in pre-application 
discussions on utilities. Para 4.77 could 
be strengthened, which requires 
developers to liaise with Thames Water at 
an early stage of development through 
their pre-planning service. 

Agree with Thames Water's proposed 
amendments to para 4.77. 

Amend 4.77 to read: 'Developers need to 
consider the net increase in water and 
waste water demand to serve their 
developments and also any impact the 
development may have off-site or further 
down the network, if no/low water 
pressure and internal/external sewage 
flooding of property is to be avoided. 
Thames -Water encourages developers to 
use their free pre-planning service 
https://www.thameswater.co.uk/preplanning. This 
service can tell developers at an early 
stage if there will be capacity in Thames 
Water and/or waste water networks to 
serve their development, or what they will 
do if there is not. The developer can then 
submit this communication as evidence to 
support a planning application and 
Thames Water can prepare to serve the 
new development at the point of need, 
helping avoid delays to housing delivery 
programmes.' 

82 

South 
Oxfordshire 

District 
Council 

All 

South Oxfordshire District Council 
supports the revised SPD, which sets out 
clear guidance on when S106 agreements 
will be sought to fund infrastructure. 
 
 

Support noted. None required. 

P
age 94



ID Respondent 

Section, 
Para or 

DEV 
reference 

Summary Officer Response Amendments 

83 

Vale of 
White Horse 
DC Housing 

Team 

Page 10, 
para 4.7 

Suggest para 4.7 is rewritten as follows: 
'The affordable housing provided 
should be distributed evenly across 
the site, and depending on the size and 
tenure of dwellings this should be in 
clusters of: i) around 4 dwellings in the 
case of schemes of 30 dwellings and 
less and ii) up to eight dwellings for 
blocks of flats and schemes over 30 
dwellings, except for strategic sites 
where up to 14 dwelling houses may 
be acceptable. Affordable dwellings 
located adjacent to each other, but 
located in a separate perimeter block, 
will be considered to comprise the 
same cluster.' 
 
 

Agree, suggested wording is helpful. Para 4.7 to read: 'The affordable housing 
provided should be distributed evenly 
across the site and, depending on the size 
and tenure of dwellings this should be in 
clusters of: i) around 4 dwellings in the 
case of schemes of 30 dwellings and less; 
and ii) up to eight dwellings for blocks of 
flats and schemes over 30 dwellings, 
except for strategic sites where up to 14 
dwellings may be acceptable. Affordable 
dwellings located adjacent to each other, but 
located in a separate perimeter block, will be 
considered to comprise the same cluster.' 

84 
Thames 
Valley 
Police 

Page 18, 
DEV10 

Thames Valley Police wish to be included 
as an acknowledged potential recipient of 
S106/CIL monies in the same way as our 
Blue Light Partners, the Fire Service. 
Growth in households and population 
places an additional demand on police 
resources. Without developer 
contributions, TVP has to deal with this 
additional demand from its existing 
(limited) resources, which impacts new 
and existing communities. Paras 8, 26 32 
and 92 of the NPPF support this request 
and Para 20 specifically states that 
policies should deliver development that 
makes sufficient provision for security 
infrastructure.  

Agree. Add reference to the Police in 
DEV10 and para 4.44. 

Expand para 4.44 to read: 
 
'....Growth in households and population 
also places an additional demand on 
police resources. The NPPF confirms that 
sustainable development includes 
securing a safe environment through the 
delivery of social infrastructure needed by 
communities, with paragraph 20 making 
explicit reference to the need for policies 
to deliver development that makes 
sufficient provision for security 
infrastructure.'  
 
Also add 'Police' to the title and text of 
DEV10. 

 

 

P
age 95



Developer Contributions 
Supplementary Planning Document

DELIVERING INFRASTRUCTURE 
TO SUPPORT DEVELOPMENT

November 2021

Page 96



1

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

 Executive Summary 4

1.  INTRODUCTION 5

 Purpose of this document 5

 Developer Contributions 6

 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 6

 Section 106 Planning Obligations 7

 Section 278 Agreements 7

 Planning Conditions 7

2. RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN CIL, S106 PLANNING 
 OBLIGATIONS, S278 AGREEMENTS AND PLANNING 
 CONDITIONS 8

3. POLICY FRAMEWORK  9

4. DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS  11

	 Affordable	Housing	 12

 Education  14

 Transport 16

 Recreation and Leisure 18

 - Sport and Recreation 18

 - Open Space 19

 - Play Areas 20

 - Allotments 21

 - Social and Community Facilities 21

 Essential Services 23

	 -	Health	Care	 23

 - Fire & Rescue and Police 23

 - Cemeteries 24

Page 97



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

2

November 2021

 Placemaking and Public Realm  25

 Employment, skills and training 27

 Environmental Impacts 28

 - Climate Change Mitigation 28

 - Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure 28

 - Waste & Recycling 30

 - Air Quality 30

 - Flood Protection and Water Management 31

 - Waste Water 33

 Utilities 33

 Street Naming 34

5. MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF INFRASTRUCTURE 35

 Open Space 35

 Buildings 36

 Public Art 37

 Equipped Play Areas 38

 Pitches 38

6. SELF-BUILD AND CUSTOM-BUILD HOUSING 39

7. NEGOTIATION AND ADMINISTRATION OF PLANNING 
 OBLIGATIONS 40

 Approach to Negotiating Planning Obligations 40

 Viability and Deliverability 40

	 Definition	of	Land	Value	 41

 Open Book Approach 42

 Legal, Administration and Monitoring 42

 Interest on late payment and enforcement 42

 Indexation 43

 Bonds 43

Page 98



3

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

 APPENDICES 44

 Appendix 1 - Summary Table of Relevant Local  Plan Policies 45

 Appendix 2 – Approach to Negotiating Planning Obligations  48

 Appendix 3 – Standards for Indoor and Outdoor Sport 49

	 Appendix	4	-	Specifications	for	Children’s	Play	Provision	 51

 Glossary 53

Page 99



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

4

November 2021

 Executive Summary

New development plays an important role in creating new homes and jobs in 
our	communities.	However,	new	development	can	have	a	significant	impact	on	
the capacity of local infrastructure such as schools and health facilities and can 
put additional pressure on local green space and other important community 
facilities.

There are a number of ways in which councils can seek developer contributions 
towards the provision of necessary infrastructure to support new development 
and mitigate impact on the local community. 

This Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) provides guidance on planning 
obligations under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended), which are more commonly known as S106 Agreements and are 
a mechanism used by councils to mitigate the direct impacts of a particular 
development. 

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is another important mechanism which 
councils can use to raise funds from certain new developments towards the 
provision	of	infrastructure	throughout	the	district.	However,	for	some	sites	(such	
as strategic sites allocated in the Local Plan), which do not make a contribution 
through CIL, S106 will be the primary mechanism for securing developer 
contributions towards infrastructure provision. 

In addition to CIL and S106 developer contributions, Oxfordshire County Council 
can	use	S278	of	the	Highways	Act	to	seek	contributions	from	developers	for	
improvements or changes to public roads. 

There	are	different	purposes	and	legislative	rules	for	each	of	the	developer	
contributions mechanisms (CIL, S106 and S278). This document gives 
guidance as to when S106 contributions will be sought, ensuring the provision 
of sustainable development in line with the policies of the Development Plan 
and other relevant considerations.

Page 100



5

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

1.  INTRODUCTION

 Purpose of this document

1.1 Supplementary Planning Documents (or SPDs) are documents which add 
further detail to the policies in a Local Plan. They can be used to provide 
further	guidance	for	development	on	specific	sites	or	on	particular	issues,	such	
as design or developer contributions. SPDs are capable of being a material 
consideration in planning decisions but are not part of the development plan. 
The requirements for producing Supplementary Planning Documents are set 
out in Regulations 11 to 16 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England)	Regulations	2012.	Whilst	SPDs	relate	specifically	to	adopted	Local	
Plan policies, in instances where more recent national planning policy or 
targets have been published, it is those national policies or targets that will take 
precedence.

1.2 This Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) is relevant to all development 
proposals (including residential, employment and retail) and its purpose is to:

• outline	the	differences	between	each	of	the	mechanisms	for	securing	
developer contributions and to explain the relevant legislative and 
planning policy context within which contributions are sought;

• identify which contributions mechanisms will be used in which 
circumstances; and

• explain what is expected of applicants and what the applicant can expect 
from the Council in relation to securing infrastructure through S106 
planning agreements.

1.3	 This	SPD	sets	out	the	Council’s	specific	S106	requirements	by	type.	For	ease	
of reference, in Section 4 of the document each type of infrastructure is given a 
unique	reference	number	(DEV1,	DEV2	etc)	and	the	specific	requirements	are	
highlighted in boxes, alongside a cross reference to relevant Local Plan policies. 
In instances where allocated sites are mentioned, these could be sites in either 
the Local Plan or any made neighbourhood plan. Additional commentary on the 
rationale behind certain requirements is also provided.

1.4	 This	SPD	takes	effect	from	the	date	of	adoption	by	the	Council	and	replaces	
the Developer Contributions - Delivering Infrastructure to Support Development 
Supplementary Planning Document June 2017.

Page 101

https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Supplementary_planning_document
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Regulations
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Town_and_Country_Planning_(Local_Planning)_(England)_Regulations_2012
https://www.designingbuildings.co.uk/wiki/Town_and_Country_Planning_(Local_Planning)_(England)_Regulations_2012


VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

6

November 2021

 Developer Contributions

1.5	 We	secure	developer	contributions,	both	financial	and	non-financial,	from	
development to mitigate the negative impacts of development, address 
infrastructure needs, contribute towards placemaking and meet Local Plan policy 
requirements. 

1.6 There are three main mechanisms used to secure infrastructure funding and 
provision from developers: 

• The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

• Planning obligations under Section106 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended); and

• Agreements made with the County Council under Section 278 of the 
Highways	Act.		

1.7 In some circumstances, planning conditions attached to planning permissions 
may	also	be	used	to	secure	non-financial	mitigation,	to	define	timing	or	apply	
standards.

 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

1.8 CIL is charged on certain new development in the district, in accordance with the 
Council’s	CIL	Charging	Schedule	and	the	CIL	Regulations	2010	(as	amended).	
The monies received from CIL are pooled together to help fund infrastructure 
to support development in the district. CIL has been set at a level that does not 
threaten	the	viability	and	delivery	of	development	identified	in	the	Vale	of	White	
Horse	Local	Plan	2031	Part	1	(LPP1)	and	Part	2	(LPP2).	

1.9 The Council publishes a CIL Spending Strategy, setting out how the spending 
of CIL funds will be prioritised and administered. In accordance with the CIL 
Regulations, a proportion of the CIL monies is passed to the local town or parish 
council. The District Council is required to spend CIL on infrastructure and the 
Council’s	adopted	CIL	Spending	Strategy	allocates	funds	to	stakeholders	such	
as Oxfordshire County Council and the Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group. The Spending Strategy is regularly reviewed. 

1.10 There are several exemptions and reliefs to CIL that applicants can apply for 
to	reduce	or	remove	the	amount	of	CIL	payable.	The	Vale	of	White	Horse	CIL	
Charging	Schedule	and	supporting	documents	can	be	found	on	the	Council’s	
website here.

Page 102

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/community-support/infrastructure-to-support-communities-2/community-infrastructure-levy-or-cil-header-page/community-infrastructure-levy-cil-payments-and-procedures/cil-charging-schedule/


7

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

 Section 106 Planning Obligations

1.11 S106 agreements are used to secure the infrastructure required to mitigate the 
direct	impact	of	a	particular	development	and/or	to	meet	specific	planning	policy	
requirements.	Developer	contributions	via	S106	can	be:	financial	contributions;	
affordable	housing	provision;	the	provision	of	land	or	restriction	on	the	use	of	
land; or the direct delivery of facilities.

1.12 As set out in CIL Regulation 122, S106 obligations should only be used to 
secure infrastructure where:

• necessary to make a development acceptable in planning terms

• directly related to a development

• fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development

1.13	 Government’s	Planning	Practice	Guidance	states	that	tariff-style	S106	
contributions cannot be sought from small-scale, self-build or starter homes 
developments.

1.14 A planning obligation is usually an agreement between interested parties, (e.g. a 
developer,	landowner,	the	District	Council	and	the	County	Council).	However,	it	
can also be in the form of a unilateral undertaking (where the developer makes 
an	unconditional	promise)	that	is	offered	to	the	District	Council	to	make	an	
application acceptable in planning terms. 

 Section 278 Agreements

1.15	 These	are	legally	binding	agreements	made	under	S278	of	the	Highway	Act	
1980	between	the	developer	and	the	County	Council	(as	Highway	Authority)	to	
fund, or undertake, alterations or improvements to the public highway, where the 
County	Council	considers	the	agreement	is	of	benefit	to	the	public.	

 Planning Conditions

1.16 In addition to developer contributions, planning conditions attached to a planning 
permission may set out details or required standards/timeframes for works which 
must be carried out at set stages. Failure to comply with planning conditions 
can make a development unlawful and un-implementable in its original form. 
Planning conditions cannot require the payment of money or the transfer of land 
ownership and these matters should be covered in a S106 or S278 agreement.

Page 103



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

8

November 2021

2.	 RELATIONSHIP	BETWEEN	CIL,	S106	PLANNING	
OBLIGATIONS, S278 AGREEMENTS AND 
PLANNING CONDITIONS

2.1 Table 1 below summarises the relationship between the three key developer 
contributions mechanisms (CIL, S106 and S278) and planning conditions.

Table 1:   Interaction between CIL, Section 106, Section 278 Agreements and 

planning conditions

Mechanism 

Community 
Infrastructure 
Levy 

Section 106 
planning 
obligation

Section 278 
Agreements

Planning 
condition

Purpose 

A	financial	payment	which	can	be	
used for any infrastructure needed 
to support the development of the 
district.

Can secure on-site infrastructure 
and	contributions	towards	off-
site infrastructure required to 
make development acceptable in 
planning terms.

Allows developers to fund 
alterations and improvements to 
the public highway in the public 
interest.

To mitigate the potential 
adverse	effects	of	the	proposed	
development and ensure 
compliance with development plan 
policy. To enable development 
proposals to proceed where it 
would otherwise be necessary to 
refuse planning permission. 

Use

District-wide and local 
infrastructure.

To secure planning policy 
requirements	(e.g.	affordable	
housing). 

To address/mitigate direct 
impacts of development, 
including the provision of 
infrastructure.

Highway	improvements	and	
alterations to address the 
impact of new development on 
the network.

To make the development 
acceptable (where the 
requirement does not involve 
the payment of money or the 
transfer of land ownership). 

Page 104



9

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

 1  Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and section 70(2) of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990.

3. POLICY FRAMEWORK 

3.1 Nationally, policies relating to developer contributions are set out in the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2021 (NPPF), with additional guidance provided in 
Government’s	Planning	Practice	Guidance.	

3.2 All development proposals should be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise1. The 
development plan comprises the Local Plan, made neighbourhood plans and the 
Minerals and Waste Local Plan. It will also include the Joint Local Plan and the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050, which are currently in preparation. In summary, at a local 
level, development proposals must be considered in line with the following:

• Vale	of	White	Horse	Local	Plan	2031	Part	1	(LPP1)

• Vale	of	White	Horse	Local	Plan	2031	Part	2	(LPP2)

• Any made (adopted) Neighbourhood Plan covering the area in which the 
development is proposed

• Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan Part 1 Core Strategy and 
saved policies from the Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 1996

• Oxfordshire Plan 2050 (currently in preparation)

• Joint	South	Oxfordshire	and	Vale	of	White	Horse	Local	Plan	(currently	in	
preparation)

• Any relevant Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs)

3.3	 This	SPD	supports	the	delivery	of	the	Vale	of	White	Horse	Local	Plan	2031	Parts	
1 and 2 and is an important material planning consideration in the decision-
making process of planning applications. The main development plan policy that 
this document seeks to support is LPP1 Core Policy 7: Providing Supporting 
Infrastructure and Services, which is set out overleaf.

3.4 A summary table of other relevant Local Plan policies is set out in Appendix 1.

Page 105



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

10

November 2021

Core Policy 7 – Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services 

‘All new development will be required to provide for the necessary on-site and, where 

appropriate, off-site infrastructure requirements arising from the proposal. Infrastructure 

requirements will be delivered directly by the developer and/or through an appropriate 

financial contribution prior to, or in conjunction with, new development. Where appropriate, 

developers will be expected to collaborate on the provision of infrastructure which is needed 

to serve more than one site. In ensuring the timely delivery of infrastructure requirements, 

development proposals must demonstrate that full regard has been paid to the Infrastructure 

Delivery Plan and all other relevant policies of this plan.  

If infrastructure requirements could render the development unviable, proposals for major 

development should be supported by an independent viability assessment on terms 

agreed by the relevant parties including the Council and County Council and funded by 

the developer. This will involve an open book approach. Where viability constraints are 

demonstrated by evidence, the Council will:  

i.  prioritise developer contributions for essential and then other infrastructure in line with 

the definitions as set out in paragraph 4.42 and the detail of requirements outlined in the 

IDP, and/or

ii.  use an appropriate mechanism to defer part of the developer contributions requirement 

to a later date, or 

iii. as a last resort, refuse planning permission if the development would be unsustainable 

without inclusion of the unfunded infrastructure requirements taking into account 

reasonable contributions from elsewhere including CIL.

The Council’s Delivering Infrastructure Strategy will include both a CIL Charging Schedule 

and a Supplementary Planning Document for Section 106 and Section 278 legal agreements 

that will provide more detail about its approach to securing developer contributions.

Upon adoption of the CIL Charging Schedule, CIL will be used to pool developer 

contributions towards a wide range of new and improved infrastructure necessary to deliver 

new development.

Where not covered by the CIL Charging Schedule, infrastructure and services, including 

provision for their maintenance, should be delivered directly by the developer through the 

development management process and in accordance with the Regulation 122 Tests*.

Infrastructure and services will be sought through the negotiation of planning obligations, 

conditions, levy, undertaking and/or other agreement as secured through the planning 

permission, to mitigate the direct impacts of development and secure its implementation.’

Page 106



11

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

4. DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS 

4.1	 The	overarching	LPP1	core	policies	relating	to	the	provision	of	affordable	
housing and infrastructure are CP4, CP7, CP24, CP37, and CP38. LPP2 then 
includes additional site and sub-area strategy policies, as well as detailed 
development policies. In order to achieve sustainable development and 
deliver high quality places, development proposals need to be consistent 
with	all	relevant	Local	Plan	policies,	as	well	as	contributing	towards	identified	
infrastructure requirements.

4.2 It is essential that all infrastructure requirements are factored into the cost of 
a potential development when negotiating to buy or take an option on a site. 
Infrastructure provision must be considered an integral part of any development 
proposal and planning application submission. Developers should read the 
Council’s	most	recent	Infrastructure	Delivery	Plans	for	help	in	identifying	the	
likely infrastructure requirements.  Further information (for example, on the 
costs	of	delivery	of	different	infrastructure	types	and	the	associated	financial	
contributions that will be sought from development) is available on the District 
Council’s	website.	This	information	is	updated	annually	to	take	account	of	
indexation	and	inflation.

4.3 It is good practice to involve town and parish councils, local community and 
access groups and District ward councillors at an early stage in discussions over 
infrastructure provision, prior to drawing up Section 106 agreements. This is 
particularly true where they may have detailed knowledge of local infrastructure 
needs and costs.

Page 107



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

12

November 2021

	 Affordable	Housing

4.4 The NPPF advises that, where there is an objectively assessed need for 
affordable	housing	in	a	market	area,	local	planning	authorities	(LPAs)	should	set	
policies to meet this need. It refers to the size, type, tenure and range of housing 
that	should	reflect	local	demand.	

DEV1 Affordable Housing 

Residential

For all sites providing a net gain of 10 or more dwellings, 35% of the total number of 

dwellings	will	be	secured	as	affordable	housing	through	a	S106	obligation.

Relevant Local Plan policies include: LPP1 - CP24 & CP25. Also Footnote 23b of 

LPP2.

4.5	 Core	Policy	24	of	the	LPP1	states	that	35%	affordable	housing	will	be	sought,	
with	a	tenure	mix	of	75%	affordable	rented	and	25%	intermediate	housing,	on	
sites	of	eleven	or	more	dwellings.	However,	in	line	with	updated	NPPF	policy,	the	
Council	is	now	seeking	affordable	housing	on	sites	of	ten	or	more	dwellings	(this	
position	was	recognised	in	footnote	23b	to	LPP2).	Affordable	housing	provision	
may	include	affordable	extra	care	and	specialist	housing	for	vulnerable	groups	
(such as the elderly with care needs and people with physical and learning 
disabilities or complex autism). The Council will work with Oxfordshire County 
Council and developers to secure and deliver this provision, in accordance with 
local need. 

4.6	 Government’s	First	Homes	scheme	came	into	force	on	28	June	2021	and,	
from	this	date,	national	policy	will	require	at	least	25%	of	all	affordable	homes	
delivered	by	developers	under	Section	106	agreements	to	be	First	Homes.	
Government	guidance	on	aspects	of	the	scheme	(including	a	First	Homes	
definition,	eligibility	criteria,	transitional	arrangements	and	guidance	on	how	
developer	contributions	can	be	secured	for	First	Homes)	can	be	found	at	https://
www.gov.uk/guidance/first-homes.

4.7 LPP1 Core Policy 24 advises that planning permission will be refused for 
development proposals where it appears that a larger site has been sub-
divided into smaller development parcels in order to avoid the requirements of 
the	affordable	housing	policy.	On	occasions	where	it	is	not	apparent	that	this	
is the case as part of the initial scheme, any subsequent application for more 

Page 108

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/first-homes
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/first-homes


13

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

development on the same land or adjoining land will be treated as an application 
for	planning	permission	for	the	wider	development	and	the	affordable	housing	
requirement will be applied to the combined sites.

4.8 Core Policy 25 covers rural exception sites and is aimed at providing homes 
for local people who are unable to rent or buy property on the open market in 
rural	locations.	Affordable	housing	schemes	will	be	permitted	on	such	sites,	
that would not otherwise be acceptable for housing development, provided the 
scheme would satisfy a series of detailed criteria. This includes meeting a clearly 
established	local	need	identified	through	a	robust	housing	needs	assessment.

4.9	 Affordable	housing	should	be	distributed	evenly	across	a	site	and,	depending	
on the size and tenure of the dwellings, this should be in clusters of: (i) around 
4 dwellings in the case of schemes of 30 dwellings and less; and (ii) up to 8 
dwellings	for	blocks	of	flats	and	schemes	over	30	dwellings,	except	for	strategic	
sites	where	up	to	14	dwellings	may	be	acceptable.	Affordable	dwellings	located	
adjacent to each other, but located in a separate perimeter block, will be 
considered to comprise the same cluster. 

4.10	 Affordable	housing	should	be	indistinguishable	from	market	housing.	Car	
parking provision, layout, location, landscaping and external features should be 
comparable in design to market units. Where apartment blocks are proposed for 
affordable	housing,	this	should	also	be	reflected	in	the	market	provision.

4.11	 Affordable	housing	should	be	provided	on-site	unless	there	is	robust	justification	
for	off-site	contributions	as	set	out	in	CP24.	Where	there	is	a	fractional	
requirement	for	affordable	housing	(e.g.	4.5	dwellings),	the	fractional	portion	(i.e.	
the	0.5	in	this	example)	will	be	secured	as	an	off-site	contribution.	The	Council	
will	provide	further	guidance	on	the	calculation	of	off-site	contributions	towards	
affordable	housing	provision,	within	a	forthcoming	Joint	Affordable	Housing	SPD.

Page 109



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

14

November 2021

2  Planning enough school places | Oxfordshire County Council

 Education 

4.12 As set out in the NPPF, the Government attaches great importance to ensuring 
that	a	sufficient	choice	of	school	places	is	available	to	meet	the	needs	of	existing	
and new communities. Education provision includes nursery, pre-school, 
primary, secondary, sixth form and special needs education. 

4.13 The County Council publishes a Pupil Place Plan2 which sets out how it expects 
school provision to change over the next few years and explains the issues that 
the County Council will face in meeting its statutory duties for providing nursery 
and school places, including those due to new housing.  

DEV2 Education

Residential

Provision or extension of educational facilities relating to particular sites will 

generally be secured through S106.

Contributions towards land for educational facilities will be secured through S106.

4.14 Where a site is due to make an education contribution through S106, a 
calculation of expected pupil numbers will be made by the County Council so 
that S106 contributions towards nursery, primary, secondary (including sixth 
form) and special educational needs can be sought.

4.15 Contributions towards educational infrastructure will be calculated by assessing 
the number of pupils, of the appropriate age, arising from the net increase in 
dwellings and the cost of providing the infrastructure required to meet the needs 
of the pupils generated. Developers may also be required to fund temporary 
accommodation to provide for pupils generated from development prior to the 
opening of any new permanent school classrooms, if the timing of development 
is such as to make this necessary.

4.16 The requirement for new provision for planned development has been set out 
in	the	Council’s	Infrastructure	Delivery	Plan.	It	will	be	important	to	identify	the	
proposed school site at the master planning stage and ensure that it is of a 
size	sufficient	to	meet	the	needs	arising	from	the	development	and	allow	for	
expansion of future needs.

Page 110



15

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

4.17 Where land is required for educational facilities, detailed discussions and 
sufficient	evidence,	including	appropriate	surveys,	will	be	required	in	order	to	
ensure it is suitable for educational use and to agree the actual boundaries of 
the site allocated, including the location of accesses and services. Land will 
need to be provided fully serviced and remediated and there may be additional 
payments to cover any abnormal costs associated with the build.  Further land 
may be required where it is necessary to provide for future expansion of the 
school. Triggers on the transfer of land and payment of contributions will be 
secured in the S106 agreement.

4.18 In circumstances where it is not possible to provide school places within a 
reasonable walking distance, an additional contribution towards the cost of 
providing transport for children to school may be required and secured through a 
S106	planning	obligation.	The	contribution	would	reflect	the	cost	of	providing	the	
transport	for	a	defined	period	of	time.

4.19	 For	the	strategic	allocations	identified	in	LPP1	and	LPP2,	which	are	exempt	from	
CIL, education provision (both land and funds) will be secured through S106. 
With	other	developments,	financial	contributions	collected	through	CIL	could	also	
be used to fund education facilities.  

Page 111



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

16

November 2021

 Transport

4.20 Section 9 of the NPPF requires the planning system to promote sustainable 
transport. The provision of viable transport infrastructure, necessary to support 
sustainable development in the district, also makes an important contribution 
towards	Government’s	wider	sustainability	and	health	objectives.

4.21 New development in the district will place additional pressure on local transport 
and highway networks, including public transport infrastructure, bus services and 
pedestrian and cycle routes. Core Policy 7 of LPP1 states that new development 
must	be	served	and	supported	by	appropriate	on	and	off-site	infrastructure	and	
services. Core Policy 35 also states that new developments, which generate 
significant	amounts	of	movement,	must	be	supported	by	a	transport	assessment	
and travel plan where appropriate. 

4.22 Development Policy DP16 (Access) in LPP2 includes requirements for 
acceptable	off-site	improvements	to	the	highway	infrastructure	(including	traffic	
management measures), cycleways, public rights of way and the public transport 
network.

DEV3 Transport

All development

Direct mitigation of individual site transport impacts (including roads, cycleways, 

footpaths, public rights of way, public transport and the monitoring of travel plans) 

will be secured through S106.  Infrastructure may need to be delivered through the 

developer entering into a S278 agreement with the County Council.

Contributions towards strategic transport infrastructure projects will be secured 

where necessary in accordance with the Local Plan and the Infrastructure Delivery 

Plan.

Grampian	condition(s)	may	be	necessary	where	off-site	measures	are	required	to	

enable development to come forward.

Relevant Local Plan policies include: LPP1 - CP12, CP17, CP21, CP33, CP35, 

CP37 and LPP2 - CP12a, CP18a, DP16, DP17

4.23	 New	development	proposals	will	be	required	to	provide	for	appropriate	specific	
works	and	improvements,	both	on-site	and	off-site,	to	mitigate	the	direct	impact	
of the development scheme on the transport network, including highways, 

Page 112



17

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

buses and the rail network. It will be important to identify these at the earliest 
opportunity, in liaison with the County Council, to ensure that the transport 
proposals adequately meet the needs arising from the development. Discussions 
with	Network	Rail,	Highways	England	and	bus	operators	in	the	area	may	also	be	
necessary.

4.24	 Site-related	transport	works	required	as	direct	mitigation	will	have	been	identified	
in a Transport Assessment and may include: works to footways/cycle ways 
including public rights-of-way; raised kerbs; new junctions; access roads to and 
within	the	site;	link	roads;	Traffic	Regulation	Orders;	traffic	lights;	pedestrian	and	
cycle crossings; signage; public transport infrastructure on or adjacent to the 
site; lighting and street furniture.

4.25 S278 Agreements are made between the developer and the County Council as 
Highway	Authority,	and	will	generally	refer	to:

• the relevant planning permission and authorisation under which the 
works are to be carried out;

• schedule and drawings detailing the works;

• the full costs of the works and costs of managing the agreement to be 
paid by the developer;

• location	and	amount	of	land	being	conveyed	to	the	Highways	Authority	
(County Council);

• details of bonds/surety;

• who will design, manage and undertake the works; and

• details of any commuted sum for future maintenance.

4.26 In addition to the provision of infrastructure improvements, Travel Plans can form 
an important part of a planning application proposal with the aim of reducing car 
usage and increasing the use of public transport, walking and cycling, in support 
of	the	Council’s	sustainable	transport	objectives	(SO8	and	SO9	in	the	Local	
Plan Part 1). Travel Plans will normally be sought via a planning condition, with 
contributions towards monitoring of the Travel Plan secured through S106. 

Page 113



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

18

November 2021

 Recreation and Leisure

 Sport and Recreation

4.27 The NPPF recognises the contribution that access to sport and recreation 
facilities can make in promoting the health and well-being of communities.   

4.28 LPP2 Development Policy DP34 requires new housing developments to provide 
or contribute towards indoor and outdoor leisure facilities in accordance with the 
standards set out at Appendix K of the Local Plan. 

DEV4 Indoor and Outdoor Sports and Recreation

Residential 

On-site provision of sports and recreation facilities will be secured through S106. 

The	provision	and	enhancement	of	off-site	sports	and	recreation	facilities	will	be	

funded through S106 or CIL.

Relevant Local Plan policies include: LPP1 - CP37 and LPP2 - DP32, DP34, 

Appendix K

4.29 Further information on the standards the Council will use as a basis for 
calculating the levels of contribution sought is set out in Appendix K of the Local 
Plan Part 2 (and reproduced at Appendix 3 to this document). The Council will 
liaise with the relevant sporting representative body and town or parish council 
and local councillors to establish the most appropriate form of provision, taking 
account of the location, scale and form of the proposed development. 

4.30 On allocated sites, especially where several are in close proximity, the Council 
will seek to cluster the on-site provision of sports facilities, for example by 
devoting all the outdoor sport provision on a particular site towards a single 
sport. This will enable the provision of sporting facilities that will attract, and 
can	sustainably	be	used	by,	local	clubs,	with	resultant	benefits	in	long	term	
management and maintenance. It will also enable the provision of more 
specialist sports facilities within the district.

4.31 Where development generates a need for on-site provision that cannot be met 
on-site, for instance due to exceptional site constraints, or the Council prefers 
off-site	mitigation	to	meet	a	required	need,	as	identified	above,	off-site	mitigation	

Page 114



19

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

in the form of S106 contributions will be sought. If, in exceptional circumstances, 
the loss of a sport or recreation facility becomes necessary, substitute provision 
will be secured through S106 agreement.  

4.32	 The	quality	and	design	of	sports	facilities	should	reflect	current	best	practice,	
including design guidance from Sport England and the national governing body.

 Open Space

4.33 LPP2 Development Policy DP33 requires developers to provide safe, attractive 
and publicly accessible public open space, in accordance with the requirements 
set out in Appendix K of LPP2 (see Appendix 3 of this SPD). 

DEV5 Open Space

Residential

On-site provision and management of open space and landscaping, amenity space 

and green space will be secured through S106 or conditions.  

Where	off-site	mitigation	is	required,	the	enhancement	of	open	space	and	

landscaping, and green space will be secured through S106.

Where open space is to be transferred to the District Council, town or parish council 

or	other	management	body,	a	commuted	sum	for	sufficient	funds	for	ongoing	

maintenance is required. 

Relevant Local Plan policy: LPP2 - DP33

4.34 The need for open space and informal amenity areas will be assessed on a 
site by site basis, taking into account: features of the site; the nature of the 
development; and the accessibility of other provision within the locality. In 
accordance with Development Policy DP33, we will require a minimum provision 
of 15% of the residential area to be laid out as public open space, additional to 
space for play, youth provision, allotments biodiversity and mitigation works.

4.35 Open space is an integral part of creating sustainable places and should be 
provided as an amenity within a development to promote healthy living, informal 
areas of play and to create a sustainable, accessible, distinctive and attractive 
development. All open space should, therefore, be usable, have a purpose and 
be of a size, location and form appropriate for the intended use, avoiding space 
left over after planning (SLOAP) requirements or pushing open space to the 

Page 115



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

20

November 2021

periphery	of	development.	It	should	be	located	outside	areas	liable	to	flood	and	
should not comprise road verges or noise embankments. Open space should 
not be located where users would be subject to unacceptable noise levels.

4.36 Section 5 of this SPD covers requirements for future management and 
maintenance of open space and other community infrastructure.

 Play Areas

4.37 Play space for children is vital to their health and development. Consideration 
must also be given to the need to provide young teenagers with areas to 
assemble and play, as well as to the provision of play equipment for children 
with disabilities.

4.38 Development Policy DP33 endorses the Fields in Trust (formerly the National 
Playing	Fields	Association)	standards	for	children’s	play	and	youth	provision.

DEV6 Play Areas

Residential 

On-site delivery of play space is required on major development sites and secured 

through S106.

Relevant Local Plan policies include: LPP2 - DP33 & Appendix K

Where play areas are to be transferred to the District Council, town or parish council 

or	other	management	body,	a	commuted	sum	for	sufficient	funds	for	ongoing	

maintenance is required. 

4.39 The District Council will liaise with town/parish councils and local councillors to 
establish the most appropriate form of provision, taking account of the location, 
scale and form of the proposed development. Provision should be made 
taking into account any existing play facilities within the local area, in order to 
avoid duplicating existing play equipment. Town/parish councils can use their 
proportion of CIL receipts towards the enhancement of existing play areas in 
situations where either: there are a number of small sites being developed 
where, individually, each site would not reach the dwelling threshold required to 
trigger developer contributions towards play areas; or where there is no suitable 
local site to locate play facilities. Where a site cannot accommodate its on-site 
play requirement, due to exceptional site constraints, S106 contributions may be 
sought	towards	off-site	provision.			

Page 116



21

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

4.40 On sites where provision is to be made for young people, developers should 
work with the District Council and town or parish councils to carry out 
consultation with young people in the local area to identify their needs and seek 
their input into the design of facilities.

4.41 The Council endorses the general design principles set out in ‘Planning 
and Design for Outdoor Sport and Play’ (NPFA, Fields in Trust) and further 
specifications	for	children’s	play	provision	are	set	out	in	Appendix 4.	Children’s	
play and youth provision will be dependent on existing provision in the area and 
the demands from other development and, in some cases, may be in the form of 
financial	contributions	rather	than	on-site	provision.

 Allotments

4.42 Development Policy 33 requires the provision of allotments in accordance 
with the standards set out in Appendix K of LPP2. Allotments are valuable 
community spaces that provide people with the opportunity to enjoy an active 
and healthy lifestyle. The Council seeks the provision of 0.4ha of allotments per 
1000 population and 0.23 ha per 1,000 population in the Market Towns (in line 
with recommendations in the Joint Recreational Space, Local Leisure Facilities 
and Playing Pitch Strategy, which formed part of the LPP2 evidence base). The 
Council will liaise with the town and parish councils regarding provision and 
management	of	allotments,	which	will	usually	be	offered	to	town	and	parish	
councils. 

DEV7 Allotments

Residential 

Provision of on-site allotments will be provided on allocated sites where required 

and	on	other	greenfield	sites	over	400	dwellings,	to	be	secured	through	S106.	

Elsewhere, allotments will be sought in accordance with the standards where a local 

need	is	identified.

Relevant Local Plan policies include: LPP2 - DP33 & Appendix K

 Social and Community Facilities

4.43 The NPPF sets out the need to take account of and support local strategies 
to	improve	health,	social	and	cultural	wellbeing	for	all,	and	deliver	sufficient	
community and cultural facilities and services to meet local need.

Page 117



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

22

November 2021

4.44 Core Policy 7 seeks to ensure that social and community and facilities are 
delivered alongside new development.

DEV8 Social and Community Facilities

Residential

Allocated Local Plan sites will provide social and community facilities either on-site, 

where	required	in	the	Infrastructure	Delivery	Plans,	or	contribute	to	off-site	provision	

through S106.

For other development, improvements to existing social and community facilities will 

generally be funded through CIL.

Relevant Local Plan policy: LPP2 - DP8

4.45 Community and social facilities include: community centres/halls; indoor leisure 
facilities; libraries; museums; adult day care services; adult learning services and 
indoor youth facilities. These provide for the social, welfare, learning and cultural 
needs of residents and help to create and maintain sustainable communities. 

4.46 On large and strategic sites, the number of new residents and the need to 
provide a focus of social activity for the new community may generate a need for 
a new community building(s) on-site or improved provision nearby. Whether a 
need	exists	for	such	facilities	is	usually	identified	in	the	allocation	or	application	
process and, sometimes, the limited capacity and distance from existing 
facilities warrants a new or improved facility. The Council will liaise with the local 
community including town and parish councils, local councillors and community 
groups to identify appropriate provision. A new community development worker 
to encourage active participation and support community groups, activities and 
local resident associations may also be required and will be secured by a S106 
obligation. It will be necessary to identify responsibilities for management (which 
may be the district, town or parish council or another organisation) and ongoing 
maintenance for new facilities will also be required. In some instances, it may be 
preferable to secure improvements to existing facilities, provided those facilities 
are within recommended travelling distances.  

Page 118



23

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

 Essential Services

 Health Care

4.47	 Core	Policy	7	of	the	Local	Plan	2031	sets	out	the	Council’s	approach	to	the	
delivery of infrastructure to support development, whilst Strategic Objective 
SO4 of the Plan seeks to improve the health and well-being of Vale residents, 
as well as seeking to reduce inequality, poverty and social exclusion within the 
district. The Council will liaise with the relevant Clinical Commissioning Group3, 
GP practices, town and parish councils and local councillors in respect of new 
facilities	funded	through	S106	and	will	obtain	latest	financial	information	from	
the	CCG	for	calculating	contributions	towards	health	facilities	from	specific	
developments.

DEV9 Health Care

Residential

New or increased capacity of health facilities will be sought through S106 from 

development on allocated sites exempt from CIL.

Development contributions for healthcare will be sought through S106 from all extra 

care, nursing and care home developments. 

For other residential development, the provision and enhancement and/or extension 

of healthcare facilities will generally be funded by CIL. 

Relevant Local Plan policy: LPP1 - CP26

 Fire & Rescue and Police

4.48	 Any	new	development	can	increase	demands	on	the	fire	and	rescue	service,	
both	by	extending	an	area	of	fire	risk	and	increasing	the	level	of	fire	risk	in	an	
area.	The	demands	placed	on	the	fire	and	rescue	service	manifest	themselves	
in a variety of forms depending on the scale and nature of the proposed 
development. Growth in households and population also places an additional 
demand	on	police	resources.	The	NPPF	confirms	that	planning	policies	should	
promote public safety and include, where appropriate and proportionate, steps 
that can be taken to reduce vulnerability, increase resilience and ensure public 
safety and security.

3 There	are	four	NHS	Clinical	Commissioning	Groups	(CCGs)	which	cover	different	parts	of	the	Vale	of	White	
Horse	District	–	Oxfordshire,	Swindon,	Berkshire	West	and	Gloucestershire.Page 119



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

24

November 2021

DEV10 Fire & Rescue and Police

All development

Improvements	to	the	fire	and	rescue	and	police	services	can	be	funded	through	

S106 and/or CIL.

4.49	 It	will	generally	be	a	requirement	that	external	fire	hydrants	are	provided	to	
the satisfaction of the Oxfordshire Fire & Rescue Service, through building 
regulations. 

 Cemeteries

4.50 Increased population within the district will require the provision/expansion of 
cemeteries. The majority of cemeteries are managed by town or parish councils 
who would need to undertake future responsibility secured through the S106, 
together with appropriate maintenance. 

DEV11 Cemeteries

Residential 

Where	the	Local	Plan	or	a	neighbourhood	plan	identifies	a	need	for	an	allocated	site	

to provide or contribute towards cemetery space, this will be secured through S106.

Page 120



25

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

 Placemaking and Public Realm 

4.51 The NPPF states that the Government attaches great importance to the design 
of the built environment. It is important to plan positively for high quality and 
inclusive design for all development, including individual buildings, public and 
private spaces and wider area development proposals. This includes responding 
to	a	site’s	heritage	context	and	local	character.

4.52 LPP1 Core Policy 37 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) requires all proposals 
for new development to be of high quality design that provides a clear and 
permeable structure of streets, routes and spaces that are legible and easy 
to navigate through because of the street typology, views, landmarks, public 
art and focal points. CP37 also requires new development to secure a high 
quality public realm with well managed and maintained public areas, which are 
overlooked to promote greater community safety. 

4.53 LPP2 Development Policy 20 requires that for all major development proposals 
and sites larger than 0.5 hectares, the provision of public art will be sought that 
makes	a	significant	contribution	towards	the	appearance	of	the	scheme	or	the	
character	of	the	area	or	which	benefits	the	local	community.

DEV12 Public Realm, including Public Art  

All development

Enhancement of the public realm (for example through the provision of street 

furniture,	signage,	wayfinding	and	links	to	wider	walking	and	cycling	networks)	will	

be secured, where appropriate, through S106. 

Major development sites

Strategic public realm improvements, including town centre improvements to 

increase accessibility for people with disabilities, may be sought through S106.

On all major developments or sites over 0.5ha, developers should incorporate public 

art into their development or in the local area (for example, through the design of 

spaces and buildings).  

Relevant Local Plan policies include: LPP1 - CP37 & LPP2 - DP20

Page 121



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

26

November 2021

4.54 Public art integrated into developments will assist in delivering buildings and 
spaces that provide visual interest and a sense of identity. The involvement 
of the local community alongside professional artists in the design and 
commissioning of bespoke public art is important in creating a unique sense of 
place.

4.55 The provision of public art, including its location and design, should be 
in	accordance	with	the	Council’s	Design	Guide	SPD.	The	Council’s	Arts	
Development	Officer	should	be	involved	in	the	master	planning	of	major	
schemes at an early stage. A written public art statement, setting out the 
commissioning process, location, budget and artist briefs, is expected to be in 
place prior to the commencement of the development. Timescales for delivery of 
public art should also be secured. 

4.56 Where public art remains in private ownership the provision will be secured by 
condition. If the land is to be transferred into public ownership the provision, 
including management will be secured through S106. The budget/contribution 
for	each	development	will	be	based	on	the	public	impact,	visibility	and	profile	of	
the development.

Page 122



27

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

 Employment, skills and training

4.57 The NPPF supports economic growth to create jobs and prosperity. It is 
important	that	local	people	are	able	to	access	the	benefits	of	such	growth	in	the	
district.

4.58 Core Policy 38 of LPP1 requires major development to provide access to 
education and training facilities to meet the needs of the community.

DEV13 Employment, Skills and Training

Contributions towards employment, skills and training initiatives (including 

Community Employment Plans) may be secured through S106 from non-residential 

development over 1,000 sqm/ 1 hectare and residential development of 500 or more 

dwellings.

Relevant Local Plan policy: LPP2 - DP11

4.59 Community Employment Plans are employer-led initiatives which seek to 
mitigate the impacts of development through ensuring that local people can 
better access job opportunities arising from the development. Outcomes 
contained	within	CEPs	should	relate	to	outcomes	flowing	from	the	‘construction’	
phase	and	‘end	user’	phase	and	are	likely	to	include	apprenticeships,	
employment/training programs for all ages, and best endeavours to maximise 
local labour.

Page 123



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

28

November 2021

 Environmental Impacts

 Climate Change Mitigation

4.60 Core Policy 37 (Design and Local Distinctiveness) of the LPP1 requires 
proposed new development to address sustainability and climate change 
intrinsically through location and design, by taking into account landform, layout, 
building orientation, massing and landscaping to minimise energy consumption 
and	mitigate	water	run-off	and	flood	risks.	Planning	conditions	can	achieve	
improved provision of carbon reduction measures (such as EV charging points) 
and CIL is the appropriate mechanism for securing developer contributions 
towards	off-site	and	wider	carbon	reduction	initiatives	that	are	not	directly	related	
to	a	specific	development,	including	renewable	energy	and	energy	storage	
infrastructure.

 Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure

4.61 Green infrastructure comprises parks and gardens, accessible natural and semi 
natural green space, green links, watercourses and canals, ecological networks, 
and nationally and locally designated nature conservation sites. These provide 
important informal recreation facilities and a biodiversity resource. 

4.62 The NPPF highlights the role that planning plays in the protection, enhancement 
and management of biodiversity networks and requires planning policies to 
minimise impacts on and provide net gains for biodiversity. The Biodiversity 2020 
Strategy4	sets	out	Government’s	objectives	to	conserve	enhance	and	restore	
the	diversity	of	England’s	wildlife	and	to	contribute	to	rural	renewal	and	urban	
renaissance, by enhancing biodiversity in green spaces among developments. 
Biodiversity enhancements will generally be secured by restrictive conditions 
through	the	Biodiversity	Offsetting	Scheme,	requiring	a	certificate	confirming	the	
agreement	of	an	Offsetting	Provider	to	deliver	a	Biodiversity	Offsetting	Scheme.	
The	details	of	biodiversity	enhancements	shall	be	documented	by	the	Offset	
Provider and issued to the Council for their records.

4.63	 In	some	circumstances	where	specific	mitigation	or	compensation	is	required	
to make a development scheme acceptable, a separate planning obligation 
through S106 may also be required. 

4.64 Core Policy 45 of the LPP1 states that a net gain in green infrastructure, 
including	biodiversity,	will	be	sought	either	through	on-site	provision	or	off-site	

4 Biodiversity	2020:	A	strategy	for	England’s	wildlife	and	ecosystem	services,	Department	for	Environment,	
Food	and	Rural	Affairs,	August	2011 Page 124



29

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

contributions. The South and Vale Green Infrastructure Strategy (October 2017) 
identifies	the	level	of	provision	for	all	the	major	settlements	and	areas	of	need.	

4.65 Core Policy 46 of the LPP1 goes on to state that opportunities for biodiversity 
gain will be actively sought and that a net loss of biodiversity will be avoided. 
The forthcoming Environment Act is likely to supersede this, setting a national 
minimum	figure	for	10%	biodiversity	net	gain	and	making	this	a	mandatory	
requirement for all development. 

4.66 Policy DP31 of LPP2 states that the Council will actively seek opportunities 
to improve the accessibility and the addition of new connections and status 
upgrades to the existing rights of way network, including National Trails.

DEV14 Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure

All development

Biodiversity mitigation and enhancements will be secured through conditions or 

S106.	This	can	include	off-site	mitigation	and	enhancement	measures	for	both	the	

direct and indirect impacts of a development scheme. All development should aim to 

deliver at least 10% net gain in biodiversity5. 

Strategic habitat creation, enhancement and restoration would most appropriately 

be funded through CIL.

Relevant Local Plan policies include: LPP1 - CP37, CP45, CP46 and LPP2 - DP30, 

DP31, DP32. Also, the forthcoming Environment Act. 

5 A minimum 10% net gain in biodiversity will become a statutory requirement with the passage of the 
Environment Act. Page 125



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

30

November 2021

 Waste & Recycling

4.67 Development Policy DP28 requires development to make adequate provision for 
the management of waste in new developments.

DEV15 Waste & Recycling

Residential:

Site related provision of household recycling and waste bins will be secured through 

S106.

Improvements	to	or	provision	of	Household	Waste	&	Recycling	Centres	may	be	

secured through S106.

Relevant Local Plan policies include: LPP1 - CP43 and LPP2 - DP28

4.68 New development will require the provision of new waste and recycling bins. The 
Council	will	seek	a	financial	contribution	towards	the	provision	of	bins	to	new	
properties on sites of 10 or more units through Section 106. On smaller sites of 9 
or fewer units, the Council will issue an invoice to the applicant.

4.69		 Oxfordshire	County	Council	is	responsible	for	providing	Household	Waste	
Recycling	Centres	(HWRCs)	for	residents	to	deposit	household	materials	
that	are	not	usually	collected	at	the	kerbside.	HWRCs	aim	to	maximise	waste	
reduction, reuse and recycling and support the circular economy. The County 
Council may require developers to mitigate the impact of their development on 
HWRC	facilities	by	contributing	towards	the	cost	of	improving	or	providing	a	new	
HWRC	site	that	will	serve	the	development.

 Air Quality

4.70 Core Policy 43 of the LPP1 requires new development to have regard to air 
quality and any Air Quality Management Areas. Development Policy 26 of LPP2 
also requires new development to minimise the impact on air quality through 
design of mitigation measures.

4.71 There are three Air Quality Management Areas (in Botley, Abingdon and 
Marcham)	where,	due	to	traffic	issues,	air	pollution	exceeds	the	levels	set	
by European and UK regulations. In Abingdon, an action plan has been put 
into	place	to	alter	the	movement	of	traffic	in	the	town	centre.		At	Botley,	the	
designation	is	due	to	high	levels	of	traffic	on	the	A34.	At	Marcham,	the	AQMA	
follows both sides of the A415, as it passes through the built-up area.

Page 126



31

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

DEV16 Air Quality

All development

Mitigation	measures	(required	directly	as	a	result	of	a	specific	development	and	

cumulative impacts) and wider Air Quality Measures associated with development 

will be secured through S106. 

Relevant Local Plan policies include: LPP1 - CP33, CP34, CP35, CP43 and LPP2 - 

DP26

4.72 For developments which are likely to have an impact on air quality, an air quality 
assessment will need to be submitted as part of the planning application. It 
will need to consider cumulative impacts upon air quality. The overall aim of 
an air quality assessment is to determine whether the development will have a 
significant	impact	on	air	quality	or	whether	the	existing	air	quality	environment	is	
unacceptable for the proposed development. It will identify likely impacts on air 
quality and the need for additional monitoring. 

4.73	 The	Council’s	Air	Quality	Action	Plan	(2015)	aims	to	increase	the	provision	
of electric vehicle charging points in new development and in Council-owned 
car parks.  Planning conditions will be used to secure the provision of electric 
vehicle charging points. Electric vehicle charging points will be required for all 
dwellings with on-plot parking and communal charging facilities will be required 
for	flats	/	apartments.	For	commercial	development,	at	least	one	electric	vehicle	
charging	point	will	be	required	and,	for	every	1,000m²	of	floorspace,	a	further	
charging point. 

 Flood Protection and Water Management

4.74	 Section	14	of	the	NPPF	deals	with	the	challenges	of	climate	change,	flooding	
and coastal change. It states that planning authorities should adopt proactive 
strategies	to	mitigate	and	adapt	to	climate	change,	taking	full	account	of	flood	
risk, coastal change and water supply and demand considerations.

4.75	 Core	Policy	42	of	the	LPP1	requires	new	development	over	1	hectare	in	flood	
zone	1,	plus	all	new	development	in	flood	zones	2	and	3,	to	provide	a	site	
specific	flood	risk	assessment.		All	development	will	be	required	to	provide	a	
drainage strategy.

Page 127



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

32

November 2021

DEV17 Flood Protection

All development

Provision	and	maintenance	of	off-site	flood	protection	and	water	management,	i.e.	

Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS), will be secured through conditions and 

S106. 

Relevant Local Plan policy: LPP1 - CP42

4.76	 The	flood	risk	measures	required	to	mitigate	a	development	proposal	should	
be managed on-site by way of planning obligation or condition. In some 
circumstances,	a	Section	106	agreement	may	be	needed	for	on	and/or	off-site	
measures. These may cover design and maintenance of sustainable drainage 
systems	or	flood	management	features.	The	Council	will	expect	any	flood	
management measures to be in place prior to occupation of the development. 

4.77	 Potential	flooding	and	pollution	risks	from	surface	water	can	be	decreased	
by reducing the volume and rate of water entering the sewerage system and 
watercourses. SuDS seek to manage surface water as close to its source 
as	possible	and	mimic	surface	water	flows	arising	from	a	site	prior	to	its	
development.

4.78 The use of SuDS is required for all new development, where appropriate, and 
should be carefully designed as a structural feature of the development. SuDS 
are often integral to a development and cannot easily be accommodated within 
a site once a layout has been planned. Developers should, therefore, liaise with 
the	County	Council	(as	lead	local	flood	authority)	and	the	District	Council	at	
an early stage to discuss options for an appropriate and sustainable approach 
to site drainage. Full details of the proposed SuDS and/or how the proposed 
development	meets	the	County	Council’s	Flood	Risk	Management	Strategy	is	
required as part of the planning application.

4.79 When planning a sustainable drainage system, developers need to ensure their 
design allows for maintenance of the system, so that it continues to provide 
effective	drainage	for	the	development.	A	poorly	maintained	system	can	increase	
flood	risk	rather	than	reduce	it.	Developers	need	to	make	arrangements	for	
the future maintenance of sustainable drainage systems. SuDS associated 
with adopted highway provision will be dealt with under S278 and S38 of the 
Highways	Act	1980.

4.80 All drainage should be designed in accordance with Oxfordshire County Council 

Page 128



33

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

and District Council local standards as well as comply with the non-statutory 
technical standards for sustainable drainage and Sewerage Sector Guidance 
approved documents. To secure suitable future maintenance arrangements, all 
drainage	eligible	for	adoption,	must	be	offered	for	adoption	under	S104	of	the	
Water Industry Act to the statutory water authority covering the district, with a 
suitable proposed S104 agreement plan provided prior to commencement of the 
development.	A	copy	of	the	associated	technical	approval	certificate	and	signed	
adoption	agreement	should	be	provided	to	the	District	Council	prior	to	first	
occupation.

 Waste Water

4.81 Core Policy 7 requires all new development to provide the necessary on-site 
infrastructure. This includes demonstrating that there is adequate water supply, 
surface water drainage, foul drainage and sewerage treatment capacity both on 
and	off-site	to	service	the	development.	

4.82 There are known capacity issues with waste water treatment in the district as 
evidenced in the Water Cycle Study 2015 and the Addendum to the Water 
Cycle Study (2018)6.	The	Infrastructure	Delivery	Plan	identifies	those	strategic	
sites where Thames Water has indicated that works are required to facilitate 
development.

4.83 Necessary improvements to sewerage water treatment infrastructure will 
be programmed by the water companies and need to be completed prior to 
occupation of the development. To ensure timely housing delivery, developers 
will be expected to engage with the water authority to agree a housing and 
infrastructure delivery plan to ensure that development does not outpace the 
delivery	of	off-site	infrastructure.	This	is	usually	secured	by	condition.

 Utilities

4.84 With regard to utilities including electricity, water and broadband provision, the 
developer will need to work closely with relevant providers to ensure adequate 
capacity	to	serve	the	development.	Some	site-specific	requirements	for	larger	
sites may involve the provision of new electric substations, water pumping 
stations, supply pipe work etc., depending on their scale, location and nature. 
The Council will want assurance that the developer and utility providers have put 
in place arrangements for the delivery of this type of infrastructure and that its 

6 Addendum to the Water Cycle Study 2018

Page 129

http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/java/support/Main.jsp?MODULE=FolderView&ID=627990642&CODE=5B5E037FB8EDDB17AA1EFFC78D0AE00A&NAME=WWF01.1+Vale+of+White+Horse+District+Council+Water+Cycle+Study+%28September+2015%29&REF=Local Plan 2031 Part 1 Examination Library


VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

34

November 2021

provision has been planned for at the early the stages of the development.  The 
developer should liaise with utility providers at an early stage (pre-application) to 
identify any capacity issues and how to overcome these.

4.85 Developers need to consider the net increase in water and waste water 
demand to serve their developments and also any impact the development 
may	have	off-site	or	further	down	the	network,	if	no/low	water	pressure	and	
internal/external	sewage	flooding	of	property	is	to	be	avoided.	Thames	Water	
encourages developers to use their free pre-planning service. This service can 
tell developers at an early stage if there will be capacity in Thames Water and/
or waste water networks to serve their development, or what they will do if 
there is not. The developer can then submit this communication as evidence 
to support a planning application and Thames Water can prepare to serve the 
new development at the point of need, helping avoid delays to housing delivery 
programmes.

 Street Naming

4.86	 Vale	of	White	Horse	District	Council	is	the	Street	Naming	and	Numbering	
authority for this district and carries out these functions under the provisions of 
the Oxfordshire Act 1985. For new development (of 10 dwellings and above) that 
requires	new	street	names	and	street	nameplates,	the	Council	will	seek	financial	
contributions for street naming and the provision of street nameplates through 
Section 106. 

DEV18 Street Naming

Residential 

Contributions towards street naming and numbering will be funded through S106.

Relevant Local Plan policy: LPP1 - CP7

Page 130

https://www.thameswater.co.uk/preplanning


35

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

5. MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF 
INFRASTRUCTURE

 Open Space

5.1 On-site infrastructure may comprise open space, sport and recreation facilities, 
play areas, green infrastructure, allotments, public art and community centre/
halls etc.  The laying out and maintenance and management of the infrastructure 
is the responsibility of the developer, who will be required to demonstrate that 
satisfactory	provision	for	indefinite	future	maintenance	has	been	made.

5.2 Where the District Council or local town/parish council has expressed an interest 
in managing the open space and other facilities or on-site infrastructure, the 
Council will explore this option with the applicant and town/parish council, to 
ensure that satisfactory long term maintenance is met and provided for, including 
a commuted sum for the long term maintenance. In the case of open space, 
this should cover a 20 year period. In these instances, the S106 agreement will 
allow	for	the	town/parish	council	to	be	offered	the	option	of	taking	the	land	or	
facility and to have a set period in which to consider, usually 3 months. If the 
town/parish council accepts the transfer, there must be opportunity for the town/
parish council to inspect the ongoing works. Once open space is completed, the 
Council and/or the town/parish council will be required to check the completed 
works, involving relevant expertise, before accepting the transfer. If necessary, 
the developer should fund the procurement of the relevant expertise. The land 
or facility should be transferred upon completion, together with the commuted 
sum. The Council will consider the merits of each case as to whether a direct 
transfer and payment to the town/parish council can be made or should come to 
the District Council initially. If the transfer / payment is direct to the town/parish, 
the developer shall provide evidence of the transfer and payment to the Council 
within 1 week of the transactions.

5.3 Additional options for management and maintenance could include:

(1)  the land being owned by the District Council and leased to the town or 
parish council or another organisation, with the commuted sum being 
released on an annual basis; or

(2) the land being owned by another organisation (e.g. a Management 
Company or other body with long-term stewardship goals, such as a 
development	specific	organisation	or	community/land	trust).

Page 131



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

36

November 2021

5.4 If the land is not to be transferred to a third party management body, the 
applicant will need to demonstrate how the open space will be managed and 
funded, usually through the creation of a management company including the 
allocation of funds to the management company to cover a 20 year maintenance 
and management period. The developer may need to consider service charges 
for	new	residents.	However,	affordable	housing	will	be	exempt	from	such	
charges	(or	charges	shall	be	capped)	and	this	will	be	specified	in	the	S106	
agreement. Where the third party body is a Management Company, the principal 
objective of the Management Company shall be providing for the maintenance 
of the Public Open Space / Facility. The management company shall also 
be limited by shares or by guarantee and membership shall be restricted, for 
instance to the Owner, the Developer, the transferees or lessees of General 
Market	Housing	Units	and	Shared	Ownership	Units,	the	Registered	Provider	and	
Town or Parish Council. The District Council and town or parish council shall be 
advised of the contact details of the management company and these details 
also displayed at the site. Any change in ownership / contact details shall be 
notified	to	the	District	Council	and	the	sign	/	town	or	parish	council	updated.

5.5 In some circumstances, the Council may seek a commuted sum for the 
management	of	off-site	infrastructure.	This	would	apply,	for	instance,	in	cases	
where	off-site	provision	is	agreed	in	lieu	of	on-site	facilities.

 Buildings

5.6 The Council will need to establish the future ownership and management of 
community buildings that are provided as part of a new development. The 
facility	should	be	offered	to	the	District	Council,	town/parish	council	or	a	
relevant	organisation	(such	as	a	sports	club)	in	the	first	instance	or	fall	back	to	a	
management company if the option is not taken up.

5.7 Where community buildings are provided, the Council will require certain 
safeguards to ensure the building is built in accordance with relevant standards, 
including those on energy performance. The buildings will often need to be 
provided	to	a	specification	beyond	usual	building	control	standards,	e.g.	in	
accordance	with	Sport	England	or	other	governing	bodies	standards.	Sufficient	
funds will be secured through the S106 for the Council to employ a relevant 
expert with liability insurance to advise on these matters. The Council will seek 
the following type of information:

• a	detailed	specification	(based	on	an	outline	specification	to	be	attached	
to the S106 agreement) to a standard agreed by the Council 

Page 132



37

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

• details of the identity of the contractor and the terms of the construction 
contract

• details of the identity of the professional team including the architect/
designer, structural engineer, M&E consultant, and sub-contractors with 
design input into the target building, together with copies of the terms 
upon which each is appointed

• the build programme

• access	to	the	Council’s	nominated	representative	to	inspect	the	
construction at all reasonable times on reasonable notice together with 
an obligation to take into consideration points made by the nominated 
representative

• a commitment that all defects and omissions are remedied within an 
agreed timescale

• collateral warranties in favour of the Council or at the nomination of 
the council in favour of a third party from the contractor and from all 
members of the professional team and from all sub-contractors which 
have design input into the target building

5.8 In addition, the Council may require a bond or another form of guarantee to 
ensure the facility is implemented as agreed. Should it be determined that the 
Council	is	required	to	undertake	this	function,	sufficient	funds	should	be	secured	
in the S106 agreement to cover the costs of appointing external expertise with 
the necessary insurances in place. 

5.9	 The	Council	will	require	specifications	as	part	of	the	S106	and	planning	process	
and the Infrastructure and Development team will be part of any discussions 
around including community facilities in new agreements.

 Public Art

5.10 Where the ownership of on-site art features is to pass to anyone other than 
the site owner/developer, the Council will require a commuted sum. This will 
represent 7% of the value of the works to cover the costs associated with 
monitoring, repairs and maintenance over a 15-year period.

Page 133



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

38

November 2021

 Equipped Play Areas

5.11 Post installation equipped play areas will be subject to a post installation   
RoSPA inspection, which must be supplied to the Council. An inspection regime 
must be incorporated in the management and maintenance plan.  

5.12 A detailed maintenance schedule and management plan for 15 years 
maintenance will be submitted with detailed / reserved matter applications to 
be approved by condition. The maintenance and management must address 
safety inspections including weekly visual inspections and 3 monthly RoSPA 
inspections. The management shall include arrangements for litter picking, dog 
waste clearance, dog waste and general waste collection.

 Pitches

5.13 Where new pitches are to be provided on-site, the Council will require a detailed 
specification,	including	drainage	works	and	where	appropriate	services,	to	be	
submitted at full or reserved matters stages. A programme of works and funding 
for	an	agronomist	(who	will	check	the	specification,	inspect	site	works,	inspect	
and agree practical completion and provide advice on future maintenance 
requirements), will be secured by S106 agreement. The developer will be 
required	to	remedy	defects	arising	within	the	first	year	of	use,	based	on	the	
agronomist’s	report	and	will	also	be	required	to	pay	a	maintenance	sum	to	cover	
a period of at least 10 years.

Page 134



39

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

6.	 SELF-BUILD	AND	CUSTOM-BUILD	HOUSING

6.1 The CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) introduced an exemption from 
paying CIL for self-build and custom-build dwellings, subject to compliance 
with necessary processes and requirements set out in the Regulations. Such 
development is, however, still liable for S106 developer contributions (as set out 
in this SPD). The Council may also require obligations in a S106 agreement for 
self	or	custom-build	housing	to	require	that	the	Council	is	notified	in	the	event	
where self or custom-build plots are not taken up. Dwellings constructed and 
sold in a conventional way by housebuilders will be liable for CIL.

6.2 The CIL Regulations state that commencement of development triggers 
payment of CIL and that any application for self-build exemption from CIL must 
be made prior to commencement by the person assuming liability for each plot. 
Consequently, applicants for development comprising multiple self or custom-
build	plots	should	apply	for	a	‘phased’	planning	permission,	which	would	allow	
each plot to be a separate chargeable development. This would prevent the 
CIL charge being triggered for all the plots within the wider development, as 
soon	as	development	commences	on	the	first	plot.	Each	self-builder	should	
apply for their CIL exemption before they commence works on their plot. Where 
necessary	infrastructure	works	are	intended	to	be	undertaken	first	(e.g.	access,	
utilities) in order to enable the plots to be made available as serviced plots, a 
phased	permission,	with	the	first	phase	being	the	enabling	works,	would	allow	
this enabling work to take place without triggering CIL liability for the wider site. 
It	can	also	ensure	that,	if	a	disqualifying	event	for	CIL	exemption	occurs	affecting	
one unit, it does not trigger a requirement for all plots to pay CIL. Under CIL 
Regulation	8(3A),	schemes	can	be	‘phased’	for	CIL	purposes	for	both	detailed	
and outline applications. For multiple plot self and custom-build schemes, the 
phasing should be set out in the planning permission or secured through a pre-
commencement condition.

Page 135



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

40

November 2021

7. NEGOTIATION AND ADMINISTRATION OF 
PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

 Approach to Negotiating Planning Obligations

7.1 Applicants will be expected to enter into pre-application discussions prior to 
submitting	planning	applications.	The	provision	of	infrastructure	and	affordable	
housing and the mechanisms to secure infrastructure will be part of these 
discussions. These pre-application discussions should help to identify any 
issues and assist in ensuring that the Council can determine applications without 
unnecessary delays. We encourage developers to discuss their proposals with 
the local community, local councillors and the relevant town or parish council 
and to engage with utility providers and stakeholders. 

7.2 Following these discussions, the planning application submission should clearly 
set out how the policies of the development plan will be addressed, including the 
provision	of	infrastructure	and	affordable	housing.	‘Heads	of	Terms’	for	the	S106	
agreement must be agreed prior to recommendation on the planning application. 
Further	information	on	the	Council’s	approach	to	negotiating	planning	obligations	
is set out in Appendix 2.

 Viability and Deliverability

7.3 The Council expects development to be delivered in accordance with the 
policies	of	the	Development	Plan	and	NPPF,	including	the	policies	for	affordable	
housing, infrastructure and place making requirements. The growth objectives 
and policies to create sustainable developments set out in the LPP1, LPP2 
and the Community Infrastructure Levy have been tested for viability and 
deliverability. This is a strong foundation for delivering plan led growth in the Vale 
of	White	Horse	District.

7.4	 Infrastructure	provision,	including	affordable	housing	provision,	is	a	necessary	
cost that needs to be factored into overall development costs. Similarly, clear 
up costs arising from previous uses need to be included in development cost 
calculations. For those sites allocated in the Local Plan, viability will have 
already been considered through the formal Local Plan preparation process 
and associated infrastructure requirements will have been included in the 
Council’s	Infrastructure	Delivery	Plan.	It	is,	therefore,	expected	that	identified	
affordable	housing	and	infrastructure	requirements	will	not	be	challenged	once	
development	proposals	reach	the	stage	of	a	planning	application.	Government’s	

Page 136



41

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) states that viability assessments should not 
normally	be	required	for	individual	development	schemes.	However,	any	viability	
assessment undertaken will need to be based on the requirements of the 
NPPF	and	PPG.	In	all	cases,	land	value	should	reflect	policy,	S106	and	CIL	(in	
accordance with latest RICS guidance7), provide a competitive return to willing 
developers and land owners and be informed by comparable, market-based 
evidence,	wherever	possible	(but	where	transacted	bids	are	significantly	above	
the market norm they should not be used). 

	 Definition	of	Land	Value

7.5	 To	define	land	value	for	any	viability	assessment,	a	benchmark	land	value	
should be established on the basis of the existing use value (EUV) of the land, 
plus a premium for the landowner. The premium for the landowner should 
reflect	the	minimum	return	at	which	it	is	considered	a	reasonable	landowner	
would be willing to sell their land. The premium should provide a reasonable 
incentive, in comparison with other options available, for the landowner to sell 
land	for	development	while	allowing	a	sufficient	contribution	to	fully	comply	with	
Development Plan policy requirements. Landowners and site purchasers should 
consider policy requirements when agreeing land transactions. This approach is 
often	called	‘existing	use	value	plus’	(EUV+).	

7.6	 The	land	value	should	also	reflect	the	requirements	to	meet	policy	and	
infrastructure provision and known abnormal costs.  For major development 
sites where there are exceptional circumstances (and abnormal costs could 
not reasonably have been foreseen) and where the applicant considers 
that	the	proposed	development	cannot	viably	support	the	Council’s	policy	
requirements	and	other	identified	needs,	the	Council	will	require	the	applicant	
to submit a viability assessment (see Core Policy 7 of the LPP1). The viability 
assessment should clearly explain why the development cannot bear the 
requirements of the Development Plan, which has been viability tested, and 
specify what has changed since the plan was adopted. It should identify and 
justify	what	affordable	housing	and	infrastructure	can	be	delivered	as	part	of	
the development and when. The Council will need to independently assess the 
viability assessment and the developer will fund the costs of this independent 
review. 

7 Assessing Viability in Planning Under the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 for England – 1st 
Edition March 2021, RICS Page 137



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

42

November 2021

 Open Book Approach

7.7 In accordance with Policy CP7 of the LPP1, the assessment will be an ‘open 
book’	viability	assessment.	The	developer	will	be	required	to	pay	for	the	District	
and	County	Councils’	independent	review	of	the	viability	assessment.	The	
results of this review will then be considered as a material consideration in the 
assessment of the development proposal. Where it has been demonstrated that 
infrastructure requirements could render the development unviable, the Council 
will prioritise the needs for developer contributions for essential infrastructure/ 
affordable	housing	and/or	use	an	appropriate	mechanism	to	defer	part	of	the	
developer’s	required	contribution	to	a	later	date.	In	accordance	with	Core	Policy	
7 and as a last resort, if the development cannot meet policy requirements 
for	affordable	housing	or	provide	the	necessary	infrastructure	to	ensure	a	
sustainable development in line with the wider objectives of the Local Plan, 
planning permission will be refused.

 Legal, Administration and Monitoring

7.8 The District and County Councils will require their legal costs of preparing a 
planning obligation to be borne by the developer/ applicant.  These costs will 
depend upon the form and complexity of the obligation and the amount of work 
necessary to settle the draft and proceed to completion.  Developers will need to 
meet reasonable legal fees even if the planning obligation is not completed. Both 
Councils’	solicitors	will	negotiate	legal	fees	on	a	case	by	case	basis.		

7.9 The Council also needs to administer and monitor the provisions of a planning 
obligation and will require the applicant/developer to bear the cost of monitoring 
S106 agreements. There will be no charge where the applicant pays upfront all 
the contributions with a unilateral undertaking. The County Council will similarly 
require its administration and monitoring costs of developments to be met by the 
applicant/developer.	Costs	are	available	on	the	Council’s	website.

 Interest on late payment and enforcement

7.10 Trigger points, including triggers for payments, will vary for each individual 
obligation within the Section 106 agreement. The developer is bound in each 
Section 106 agreement to notify the District and County Councils of certain 
trigger points, including commencement of the development. Where the councils 
are	not	notified	and	obligations	become	overdue,	they	will	seek	to	enforce	
the obligation and will activate the default interest clause. A clause included 

Page 138



43

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

in the Section 106 agreement will encourage prompt payment by inserting a 
provision for payment of interest at a default rate where payments are overdue. 
Most Section 106 agreements will also include a clause stating that £500 will 
be charged for each site inspection that the Council is required to undertake 
in order to check the number of dwelling occupancies, in instances where 
the developer has failed to update the Council of a trigger being reached. 
Non-financial	obligations	are	also	legally	binding.	As	a	final	recourse,	where	
obligations are not subsequently enforced, the District Council and/or the 
County Council will take legal action against those in breach of a Section 106 
agreement.

 Indexation

7.11 Financial contributions are based upon the costs of infrastructure. Financial 
contributions	will	be	indexed	to	ensure	that	they	retain	their	original	‘real	value’.	
The base date of the indexation will be stipulated when costs are prepared. An 
appropriate index will be used for the type of infrastructure sought. 

 Bonds

7.12	 Section	106	agreements	often	require	the	payment	of	deferred	financial	
contributions, which are triggered after the implementation of the corresponding 
development.	As	these	financial	contributions	have	been	identified	as	necessary	
to allow the development proceed, it is reasonable for the Council to take steps 
to secure their delivery in the event of unforeseen circumstances resulting in the 
under/non-payment of the obligations. Occasionally, a development will require 
the provision of a facility of substantial value, such as a school, and protection 
to ensure the delivery is sought. Consequently, the Council may require 
appropriate security, in the form of a bond, to be provided by the developer and 
this	requirement	will	initially	be	identified	in	the	advice	from	the	Council	following	
the submission of a planning application. 

Page 139



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

44

November 2021

APPENDICES

Page 140



45

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

Appendix 1 - Summary Table of Relevant Local  Plan Policies

Infrastructure 
provision

Affordable	
housing

Education

Transport

Local Plan 2031 Part 1

CP7 (Providing Supporting 
Infrastructure & Services)

CP4	(Meeting	Our	Housing	Needs)

CP8 (Spatial Strategy for 
Abingdon-On-Thames and Oxford 
Fringe Sub-Area)

CP15 (Spatial Strategy for South 
East Vale Sub-Area)

CP20 (Spatial Strategy for Western 
Vale Sub-Area)

Appendix A (Site Development 
Templates)

CP38 (Design Strategies for 
Strategic and Major Development 
Sites)

CP24	(Affordable	Housing)

CP25 (Rural Exception Sites)

CP30	(Further	and	Higher	
Education)

CP12 (Safeguarding of Land for 
Strategic	Highway	Improvements	
within the Abingdon-On-Thames 
and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area)

CP17 (Delivery of Strategic 
Highway	Improvements	within	the	
South East Vale Sub-Area)

Local Plan 2031 Part 2

CP4a	(Meeting	Our	Housing	
Needs)

CP8a (Additional Site Allocations 
for Abingdon-On-Thames and 
Oxford Fringe Sub-Area)

CP8b (Dalton Barracks Strategic 
Allocation)

CP15a (Additional Site Allocations 
for South East Vale Sub-Area)

CP15c (Grove Comprehensive 
Development Framework)

CP12a (Safeguarding of Land for 
Strategic	Highway	Improvements	
within the Abingdon-on Thames 
and Oxford Fringe Sub Area)

CP18a (Safeguarding of Land for 
Strategic	Highway	Improvements	
within the South-East Vale Sub-
Area)

Page 141



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

46

November 2021

Transport
(con’t)

Indoor and 
outdoor 
recreation 
and sports 
facilities

Open space

Play areas

Allotments

Social and 
community 
facilities

Health	care

Local Plan 2031 Part 1

CP18 (Safeguarding of Land for 
Transport Schemes in the South 
East Vale Sub-Area)

CP21 (Safeguarding of Land for 
Strategic	Highway	Improvements	
within the Western Vale Sub-Area)

CP33 (Promoting Sustainable 
Transport and Accessibility)

CP35 (Promoting Public Transport, 
Cycling and Walking)

CP37 (Design and Local 
Distinctiveness

CP37 (Design and Local 
Distinctiveness)

CP26 (Accommodating Current 
and Future Needs of the Ageing 
Population)

Local Plan 2031 Part 2

DP16 (Access)

DP17 (Transport Assessment and 
Travel Plans)

DP32 (The Wilts and Berkshire 
Canal)

DP34 (Leisure and Sports 
Facilities)

DP33 (Open Space)

DP33 (Open Space)

DP33 (Open Space)

DP8 (Community Services and 
Facilities)

Page 142



47

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

Public realm 
(including 
public art & 
community 
safety)

Employment, 
skills & training

Biodiversity 
& green 
infrastructure

Waste & 
recycling 
facilities

Air Quality

Flood 
protection & 
sustainable 
drainage 
systems

Local Plan 2031 Part 1

CP37 (Design and Local 
Distinctiveness)

CP37 (Design and Local 
Distinctiveness)

CP45 (Green Infrastructure)

CP46 (Conservation and 
Improvement of Biodiversity)

CP43 (Natural Resources)

CP33 (Promoting Sustainable 
Transport and Accessibility)

CP34 (A34 Strategy)

CP35 (Promoting Public Transport, 
Cycling and Walking)

CP43 (Natural Resources)

CP42 (Flood Risk)

Local Plan 2031 Part 2

DP20 (Public Art)

DP11 (Community Employment 
Plans)

DP30 (Watercourses)

DP31 (Protection of Public Rights 
of Way, National Trails and Open 
Access Areas)

DP32 (Wilts and Berks Canal)

DP28 (Waste Collection and 
Recycling)

DP26 (Air Quality)

Page 143



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

48

November 2021

Appendix 2 – Approach to Negotiating Planning Obligations 

The Council will negotiate planning obligations on the following basis:

1. Developers of large or complex sites will enter into pre-application discussions with the District 
Council and infrastructure providers. This will include draft S106/S278 agreements or detailed 
Heads	 of	 Terms	 addressing	 the	 requirements	 that	 cannot	 reasonably	 be	 addressed	 by	 the	
submission or conditions. The Council highlights the need to engage with all parties involved at 
an early stage.

2. The District Council and /or the County Council, for large or complex sites, will seek to enter into 
a planning performance agreement with the applicant.

3. The District Council will, in co-operation with the County Council and other bodies, identify the 
impacts expected to arise from development proposals on infrastructure such as transportation, 
highway	works,	schools	and	libraries.	The	need	for	planning	obligations	should	be	identified	as	
early in the application process as possible.

4. On sites where social and community facilities will be secured through Section 106, the District 
Council will discuss with internal services, relevant sporting bodies, the local parish or town 
council and councillors on the need and type of infrastructure, relating to outdoor recreation and 
sports facilities, play areas and community facilities. Neighbourhood Plans and Community Led 
Plans will help identify the need for necessary infrastructure.

5. Where the need arises for provision and/or contributions for services not administered by the 
District Council, it will work with the County Council and other agencies.

6. Where the applicant considers that the proposed development cannot viably support the 
identified	 infrastructure	 requirements,	 they	 will	 submit	 a	 viability	 assessment	 at	 the	 earliest	
possible opportunity (preferably pre-application) in accordance with LPP1 Core Policy 7.

7. Where an application is made that is part of a wider development area then master planning 
for the wider site must also be shown, with appropriate landowner agreements shown to be in 
place, so that infrastructure needs are planned in for the wider area.

8. The developer must demonstrate that they have the necessary control of the land subject to the 
S106 agreement. Legal fees will be paid by the developer.

9. Detailed	draft	 ‘Heads	of	Terms’	for	a	S106	should	be	agreed	before	a	planning	application	is	
referred to Planning Committee, who will be asked to agree those heads of terms.   

10. All	parties	will	need	to	act	efficiently,	effectively	and	reasonably	to	secure	the	timely	completion	of	
agreements prior to the issuing of any planning permission. If there has been a material change 
in circumstances (e.g. viability) or infrastructure requirements in the period from resolution to the 
final	draft	agreement,	the	applications	and	heads	of	terms	may	be	referred	back	to	the	Planning	
Committee for agreement. 

11. The	S106	agreement	will	be	prepared	and	finalised	in	accordance	with	the	Council’s	constitution.	

12. The legal agreement must be signed before the issue of a planning permission. The absence of 
a	necessary	planning	obligation	may	be	sufficient	for	the	Council	to	refuse	permission.

Page 144



49

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

Appendix 3 – Standards for Indoor and Outdoor Sport

Sport

Squash courts

Sports	Halls

Swimming 
pool

Artificial	grass	
pitches

Athletics 
tracks

Health	and	
Fitness

Provision Standards

0.1 squash court per 1,000 people.

0.29 badminton courts per 1,000 people 

11.36 sqm of indoor swimming pool per 1,000 
people.

The new replacement pool at the proposed 
Wantage/Grove leisure centre should have: 

• 25 m x 6 lane main swimming pool

•	Teaching	pool	with	moveable	floor

0.03 large size AGP per 1,000 population 

The	whole	population	within	20	minutes’	drive	of	
the nearest AGP.

The retention of one outdoor track for 
community use at Tilsley Park.

In Faringdon, the provision of a small outdoor 
athletics training facility (subject to feasibility 
study). 

5.64 stations per 1,000 population.

The	area	for	each	indoor	fitness	station	is	taken	
to be an average of 5 sq m. It is appropriate that 
developers should be asked for a contribution 
towards the building cost for the health and 
fitness	space,	but	not	the	equipment	which	is	
often supplied on a contract basis. The cost of 
the building space is currently estimated to be 
£16,400 per station, or £2733.33 per sq m

Distance Standards

The whole population 
within	20	minutes’	
drive of the nearest 
court.

The whole population 
within 20 minutes 
driving time of the 
closest hall.

The whole population 
within	20	minutes’	
drive of the nearest 
pool.

The whole population 
within 30 minutes 
driving time of 
nearest facility.

Page 145



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

50

November 2021

Sport

Indoor bowls

Outdoor tennis

Multi Use 
Games Areas 
(MUGAs)

Grass playing 
pitches - 
football, 
cricket and 
rugby

Provision Standards 

0.08 rinks per 1,000 population.

0.39 courts per 1,000 population.

0.3ha MUGA per 1,000 population.

1.16ha sports pitches per 1,000 population.

Football
52% of pitches should be football pitches.

Cricket
27% of pitches should be cricket pitches.

Rugby
21% of pitches should be rugby pitches.

All	grass	playing	field	sites	used	by	the	
community require no or minimum informal use 
and should be fenced. 

There is also a requirement for developers 
to contribute towards the cost of clubhouses/
pavilions	and	ancillary	facilities	at	playing	field	
sites. This requirement is based on the following 
assumption: 

•  Football: 1 x 4-team changing room pavilion 
for 3 ha pitch space 

•  Cricket: 1 x clubhouse per 2 ha ground 

•  Rugby: 1 x 4 team changing room clubhouse 

for 4 ha pitch space

Distance Standards 

The whole population 
within 15 minutes 
driving time of 
nearest facility.

The whole population 
within 1000m walking 
catchment.

Football
The whole population 
within 10 minutes 
walking catchment 
or 15 minutes driving 
time.

Cricket
The whole population 
within 15 minutes 
driving time.

Rugby
The whole population 
within 20 minutes 
driving time.

Page 146



51

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

Appendix	4	-	Specifications	for	Children’s	Play	Provision

Ty
pe

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
fo

r 

Pl
ay

 (L
A

P)

Lo
ca

lly
 

Eq
ui

pp
ed

 A
re

a 

fo
r P

la
y 

(L
EA

P)

Ne
ig

hb
ou

rh
oo

d 

Eq
ui

pp
ed

 A
re

a 

fo
r P

la
y 

(N
EA

P)

M
in

im
um

 
Si

ze

10
0 

sq
m

40
0 

sq
m

10
00

 s
qm

Eq
ui

pm
en

t/F
ac

ili
tie

s

A 
de

si
gn

ed
 s

pa
ce

 fo
r n

at
ur

al
 p

la
y,

 u
si

ng
 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 le

ve
l, 

na
tu

ra
l f

ea
tu

re
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

bo
ul

de
rs

, l
og

s 
or

 s
m

al
l d

ip
s,

 a
nd

 p
la

nt
in

g 
w

ith
 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 te

xt
ur

es
, s

ce
nt

s 
an

d 
co

lo
ur

s.

C
re

at
in

g 
a 

sp
ac

e 
th

at
 w

ill 
st

im
ul

at
e 

se
ns

es
 

an
d 

en
ab

le
 y

ou
ng

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
to

 c
la

im
 th

e 
sp

ac
e 

as
 th

ei
r o

w
n.

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 s
ea

tin
g.

At
 le

as
t 5

 ty
pe

s 
of

 p
la

y 
eq

ui
pm

en
t, 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
8 , 

av
oi

di
ng

 d
up

lic
at

io
n 

of
 

ne
ar

by
 p

la
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.

Pl
an

tin
g 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 te
xt

ur
es

, 
sc

en
ts

 a
nd

 c
ol

ou
rs

.

Se
at

in
g 

in
 s

un
 a

nd
 s

ha
de

. L
itt

er
 b

in
s.

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 L
EA

P 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 - 

m
in

im
um

 
ac

tiv
ity

 z
on

e 
of

 1
,0

00
m

2,
 w

ith
 p

la
y 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
an

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

.

H
ar
d	
su
rfa
ce
d	
ar
ea
	o
f	4
65
sq
m
	fo
r	fi
ve
	a
	s
id
e	

fo
ot

ba
ll 

an
d 

ot
he

r g
am

es
.

Se
pa

ra
tio

n 
of

 m
or

e 
ad

ve
nt

ur
ou

s 
pl

ay
.

D
is

ta
nc

e 
fr

om
 

dw
el

lin
gs

5m
 fr

om
 

bo
un

da
ry

20
m

 fr
om

 
fa

ca
de

30
m

 fr
om

 
bo

un
da

ry

B
ou

nd
ar

y 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t

In
co

rp
or

at
ed

 

w
ith

in
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 

pl
an

tin
g 

m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 in

di
ca

te
 

bo
un

da
rie

s.
 

Pe
rim

et
er

 fe
nc

in
g 

is
 n

ot
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
.

Th
e 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
 

its
el

f m
ay

 b
e 

fe
nc

ed
 fr

om
 ro

ad
s 

if 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

.

R
ec

og
ni

sa
bl

e 

by
 e

ith
er

 fe
nc

in
g 

or
 la

nd
sc

ap
in

g.
 

Pe
rim

et
er

 fe
nc

in
g 

is
 g

en
er

al
ly

 

in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 

al
th

ou
gh

 th
e 

si
te

 

m
ay

 b
e 

fe
nc

ed
 

fro
m

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 

ro
ad

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

ha
za

rd
s.

M
an

ag
em

en
t

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s

Ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

gr
affi

ti	
re
m
ov
al
,	l
itt
er
	

pi
ck

in
g,

 d
og

 w
as

te
 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e,
 d

og
 

w
as

te
 a

nd
 g

en
er

al
 

w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n.

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 L
EA

P 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 –

 

Po
st

 in
st

al
la

tio
n 

R
oS

PA
 in

sp
ec

tio
n.

In
sp

ec
tio

n 
re

gi
m

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 p

la
n.

W
ee

kl
y 

vi
su

al
 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
.

3 
m

on
th

ly
 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 to

 a
 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 s

ta
nd

ar
d.

D
es

ig
n 

C
on

si
de

ra
tio

ns

Ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 

co
m

m
un

ity
 n

ee
ds

.

U
ni

qu
e 

to
 th

e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

Ta
ki

ng
 in

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

na
tu

ra
l f

ea
tu

re
s.

In
te

gr
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 

th
e 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
.

Ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 to

 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s.

G
oo

d 
na

tu
ra

l 

su
rv

ei
lla

nc
e.

Sa
fe

r s
ur

fa
ci

ng
.

G
en

er
ou

s 
us

e 
of

 

pl
an

tin
g.

Lo
ca

te
d 

w
he

re
 

th
ey

 a
re

 o
f m

os
t 

va
lu

e 
to

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 to

 b
e 

se
rv

ed
.

8 Running, balancing, sliding, climbing, swinging, crawling and jumping, socialising, playing ball games and being generally 
active. Page 147



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

52

November 2021

 Children’s Play - further guidance

• Vale	of	White	Horse	Design	Guide	SPD

• Guidance for Outdoor Sport and Play - Beyond the Six Acre Standard 
(Fields in Trust, 2015)

• Design for Play: A guide to creating successful play spaces (Play 
England, 2008)  

• ROSPA’s	guidance	on	accessible	play	areas	(http://www.rospa.com/
play-safety/inspections/disabled-people/)

Page 148

http://www.rospa.com/play-safety/inspections/disabled-people/
http://www.rospa.com/play-safety/inspections/disabled-people/


53

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

Glossary

Air Quality 
Assessment: 

Affordable 
Housing:

Bond:

Community 
Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL):

CIL 
Regulations:

Air Quality Assessment: An assessment of the impact of a development 

on the levels of certain pollutants in the local area. 

Social	rented,	affordable	rented	and	intermediate	housing,	provided	to	

eligible households whose needs are not met by the market. Eligibility 

is determined with regard to local incomes and local house prices. 

Affordable	housing	should	include	provisions	to	remain	at	an	affordable	

price for future eligible households or for the subsidy to be recycled for 

alternative	affordable	housing	provision.	(See	also	First	Homes,	a	new	

category	of	affordable	housing	introduced	in	2021).

In	accordance	with	the	NPPF	affordable	housing	is	to	be	met	on-site	

unless:	a)	off-site	provision	or	an	appropriate	financial	contribution	in	

lieu	can	be	robustly	justified;	and	b)	the	agreed	approach	contributes	to	

the objective of creating mixed and balanced communities. Provision of 

affordable	housing	should	not	be	sought	for	residential	developments	that	

are not major developments, other than in designated rural areas (where 

policies may set out a lower threshold of 5 units or fewer).

Bond: A surety document provided by an approved third party (e.g. a 

major bank or insurance company) that can be called on if the developer 

defaults.

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a charge which can be 

levied by local authorities on new development in their area to help fund 

supporting	infrastructure.	CIL	can	only	be	applied	in	areas	where,	firstly,	

a	local	authority	has	identified	a	funding	gap	to	deliver	the	necessary	

infrastructure and, secondly, where it has consulted on (and approved) 

a charging schedule which sets out its CIL charging rates and has 

published	the	schedule	on	its	website.	Vale	of	White	Horse	District	

Council has taken these steps and operates CIL.

CIL Regulations came into force in 2010 and have been amended 

several times. On the 1st September 2019, the Community Infrastructure 

Levy (Amendment) (England) (No. 2) Regulations 2019 came into force, 

removing the requirement for a Regulation 123 List.

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/community-infrastructure-
levy

Page 149



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

54

November 2021

CIL Charging 
Schedule:

Development 
Plan:

First Homes:

Infrastructure:

Intermediate 
Housing:

Local Area for 
Play (LAP):

The	Council’s	non-statutory	CIL	Spending	Strategy	sets	out	how	

the spending of CIL funds on infrastructure will be prioritised and 

administered for the district. It is reviewed annually, in line with Council 

priorities. In accordance with the CIL Regulations, a proportion of the 

CIL monies is passed to the local town or parish council. The Spending 

Strategy also allocates funds to stakeholders such as Oxfordshire County 

Council and the Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group.

Is	defined	in	section	38	of	the	Planning	and	Compulsory	Purchase	Act	

2004, and includes adopted local plans, neighbourhood plans that have 

been made and published spatial development strategies, together with 

any regional strategy policies that remain in force. Neighbourhood plans 

that have been approved at referendum are also part of the development 

plan, unless the local planning authority decides that the neighbourhood 

plan should not be made.

The	government’s	preferred	discounted	market	tenure	which	should	

account	for	at	least	25%	of	all	affordable	housing	units	delivered	by	

developers	through	planning	obligations	from	June	2021.	First	Homes	

are	defined	as	discounted	market	sale	units	that:

a) must be discounted by a minimum of 30% against the market value;

b)	are	sold	to	a	person	or	persons	meeting	the	First	Homes	eligibility	

criteria;

c)	on	their	first	sale,	will	have	a	restriction	registered	on	the	title	at	HM	

Land Registry to ensure this discount (as a percentage of current 

market value) and certain other restrictions are passed on at each 

subsequent title transfer; and

d)	after	the	discount	has	been	applied,	the	first	sale	must	be	at	a	price	no	

higher than £250,000.

Service provision, physical infrastructure and amenity.

Homes	for	sale	and	rent	provided	at	a	cost	above	social	rent,	but	below	

market	levels,	subject	to	the	criteria	under	the	Affordable	Housing	

definition	in	Annex	2	of	the	NPPF.	These	can	include	shared	equity	

(shared ownership and equity loans) and other low cost homes for sale 

and	intermediate	rent,	but	not	affordable	rented	housing.

Small	area	of	unsupervised	open	space	specifically	designated	for	young	

children for play activities close to where they live.

Page 150



55

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

Locally 
Equipped Area 
or Play (LEAP):

Local Plan:

MUGA (Multi 
Use Games 
Area):

NEAP 
(Neighbourhood 
Equipped Area 
for Play):

Planning 
condition:

Planning 
contributions 
(also known 
as developer 
or Section 106 
contributions):

Planning 
obligation:

Unsupervised play area equipped for children of early school age.

A plan for the future development of a local area, drawn up by the 

local planning authority in consultation with the community. In law this 

is described as the development plan documents adopted under the 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. A local plan can consist of 

either strategic or non-strategic policies, or a combination of both.

Unsupervised area where a number of games can be played by children 

or adults.

Unsupervised site serving a substantial residential area, equipped mainly 

for older children but with opportunities for play for younger children.

Requirement attached to a planning permission to limit or direct the 

manner in which a development is carried out.

Contributions which are, prior to the determination of a planning 

application, considered necessary to be paid to the local planning 

authorities in order to mitigate the impacts of development and to make 

the development acceptable in planning terms.

Legal agreement between a planning authority and a developer, or 

undertaking	offered	unilaterally	by	a	developer,	which	ensures	that	

planning contributions and/or works related to a development are 

undertaken (for example, the provision of highways). Sometimes called 

Section 106 agreements.

Page 151



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

56

November 2021

Residential:

Section 38 of 
the Highways 
Act 1980

Section 
106 (Legal) 
agreement:

Section 
278 (Legal) 
agreement:

Self-build and 
custom-build 
housing:

Supplementary 
Planning 
Document 
(SPD):

For	the	purposes	of	this	document,	the	term	‘residential’	includes	student	

accommodation,	houses	in	multiple	occupation	(HMOs),	age	restricted	

and sheltered housing, extra-care, nursing and care homes.

Relates to the adoption of roads within a development site and who is 

responsible for their future maintenance.

A legal agreement under Section 106 of the 1990 Town and Country 

Planning Act. Section 106 agreements are legal agreements between a 

planning	authority	and	a	developer/landowner,	or	undertakings	offered	

unilaterally by a developer (see planning obligation).

A legal agreement made with Oxfordshire County Council (or 

occasionally,	in	the	case	of	strategic	highways,	the	Highways	Agency)	

regarding improvements to the public highway.

Defined	in	the	Self-Build	and	Custom	Housebuilding	Act	2015	(as	

amended	by	the	Housing	and	Planning	Act	2016),	“self-build	and	

custom housebuilding” means the building or completion by individuals, 

associations of individual, or persons working with or for them, of houses 

to be occupied as homes by those individuals. But it does not include 

the building of a house on a plot acquired from a person who builds the 

house	wholly	or	mainly	to	plans	or	specifications	decided	or	offered	by	

that	person.	In	interpreting	the	definition	above,	the	Act	also	sets	out	

that:	‘home’,	in	relation	to	an	individual,	means	the	individual’s	sole	or	

main	residence;	‘completion’	does	not	include	anything	that	falls	outside	

the	definition	of	‘building	operations’	in	section	55(1A)	of	the	Town	and	

Country Planning Act 1990.

Provides supplementary information in respect of the policies in 

Development Plan Documents. It can constitute a material planning 

consideration but does not form part of the development plan and is not 

subject to independent examination. 

Page 152



57

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPDNovember 2021

Sustainable 
transport 
modes:

Unilateral 
undertaking:

Any	efficient,	safe	and	accessible	means	of	transport	with	overall	low	

impact on the environment, including walking and cycling, low and ultra-

low emission vehicles, car sharing and public transport.

A type of planning obligation distinct from an agreement, in which only 

one party makes an express promise or undertakes a performance, 

without	first	securing	a	reciprocal	agreement	from	the	other	party.

Page 153



VALE OF WHITE HORSE DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS SPD

58

November 2021

Page 154



Appendix 4: 
 

Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning  
Document (SPD) - Adoption  

Consideration of the Cabinet Report and Appendices  
by Scrutiny Committee on 26 July 2021 

 
Cabinet Member Councillor Debby Hallett introduced this Cabinet report and 
appendices for consideration by Scrutiny Committee. During discussion, the 
Committee raised a number of questions, as follows: 
 
Q1 With regard to Appendix 3 of the SPD (Standards for Indoor and Outdoor 

Sport), why wasn’t the council able to secure some of the leisure contributions 
from a development proposal that was recently allowed on appeal in the 
Vale?  

 
Officer Response: The standards in Appendix 3 are a starting point for 
negotiations but we also need to consider the area/site specifics in each 
individual case. It is not possible for the SPD to contain additional/more 
detailed requirements to that within the adopted Local Plan. However, the 
council’s Infrastructure Delivery Plans (IDPs) and ‘made’ (i.e. adopted) 
Neighbourhood Plans often contain useful evidence on local need for leisure 
and community infrastructure, which can be referenced when considering 
planning applications.  
 

Q2 What is the purpose of the Developer Contributions SPD? 
 
 Officer Response: The SPD is part of a suite of documents (including the CIL 

Charging Schedule and Infrastructure Delivery Plans), which the council can 
use to secure developer contributions towards necessary infrastructure to 
support planned growth in the district. The SPD provides supplementary 
information to support the delivery of policies in the adopted Local Plan 2031 
(Parts 1 and 2) and is a material consideration in planning decisions.  

 
Q3 Under DEV12, what is the difference between public art and public realm 

contributions? 
 

Officer Response: Public art generally comprises art installations, sculpture, 
murals etc. Public realm is the built environment in which the local community 
have free access and financial contributions could be secured towards 
elements such as benches, railings, signage etc. There is flexibility within this 
infrastructure category to secure a variety of public realm improvements, 
including public art. 

 
Q4 Under ‘Utilities’ in paragraph 4.84, could we remove the word ‘gas’ from the 

list? Although it is currently referred to in the Local Plan, we don’t want to see 
it promoted as a fuel source because it is unsustainable. Could we also add 
‘broadband’ to the list of essential utilities? 

 

Page 155



Officer Response: We have amended paragraph 4.84 to read: 
 
‘With regard to utilities including electricity, water and broadband provision, 
the developer will need to work closely with relevant providers to ensure 
adequate capacity to serve the development…’ 
 

Q5 Under ‘Health Care’ in paragraph 4.47, Can we add reference to the four 
different Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) that cover the Vale district? 
Do we currently liaise with each regarding infrastructure requirements? 

 
 Officer Response: Yes, we liaise with the relevant CCG regarding developer 

contributions. We have added a footnote to paragraph 4.47, which reads: 
 
 ‘There are four NHS Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) which cover 

different parts of the Vale of White Horse District – Oxfordshire, Swindon, 
Berkshire West and Gloucestershire.’  

 
Q6 How can we ensure timely delivery of infrastructure/facilities?  
 

Officer Response: Section 5 of the SPD covers the management and 
maintenance of infrastructure. Options for management are considered on a 
case by case basis and included in individual S106 agreements. There are 
trigger points in S106 agreements for taking enforcement action against non-
compliance with the S106 terms by the developer. The council’s infrastructure 
and development team is responsible for enforcement.  

 
Section 106 Internal Protocol 
 
The Committee discussed the officer recommendation that a separate internal S106 
protocol document be produced to give clarity regarding the S106 negotiations 
process and the specific roles that district, town and parish councillors play in these 
negotiations.  
 
Officers will produce a document template and a task group will be established with 
whom officers can consult on the draft protocol (to be agreed with Cabinet Member 
Cllr Hallett) 
 
A number of councillors expressed a wish to see the draft SPD protocol document 
before it was considered by Cabinet, but it was decided more helpful for the 
Committee to give some thought to the key principles and outcomes that they would 
like the protocol to cover.  
 
Resolution of Scrutiny Committee to: 
 
1. Invite committee members to suggest their key principles and outcomes for the 

S106 protocol to the Head of Planning and Cabinet Member, by email within the 
week; and 
 

2. Request early consultation on S106 negotiations for parish and town councils. 
 

Page 156



 

 

Cabinet Report 

 
  

Report of Head of Development and Regeneration 

Author: Catrin Mathias 

Telephone: 07801 203571 

E-mail: catrin.mathias@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All  

 

Vale Cabinet member responsible: Councillor Andrew Crawford 

Tel: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: 

JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – Tuesday 14 September 2021  

VALE CABINET – Friday 1 October 2021  

 

 

Strategic Property Review 

Recommendations 

That Cabinet: 

a) notes the update on the Strategic Property Review  

b) approves the Land and Property Asset Disposal policy 

c) approves the council approach to transfer of assets from developers 

d) notes that in line with proposed processes set out in the Land and Property Asset 
Disposal Policy an Asset Management Group (AMG) an advisory non-decision 
making group will be set up to review, check and challenge the recommendations 
from the Strategic Property Review prior to formal decision being taken on disposals 
of assets 

 

Purpose of report 

1. Officers have recently completed a Strategic Property Review (SPR), which provides 
an overview of all council assets and the alignment of council business, capital and 
property asset strategies to ensure that the organisation’s property assets are 
optimised to meet the council’s corporate plan objectives. 

2. Underpinning the delivery of the SPR outcomes is the Land and Property Asset 
Disposal Policy that will provide the council with an agreed documented process to 
support dealing effectively with its land and property assets.  

CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 157

Agenda Item 9

mailto:catrin.mathias@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

 

Corporate objectives  

3. The SPR asset challenge process will help identify assets that are underperforming, 
assets that are surplus to requirements, assets that are not fit for purpose, assets that 
can be re-purposed and assets that are suitable for new income generation or 
disposal (including transfers to parish and town councils where appropriate) or to fulfil 
other corporate plan priorities. 

4. By implementing the Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy there will be a number 
of tangible benefits including: 

 ability to implement Corporate Plan aims relating to the climate emergency. 

 maximising capital and/or revenue from existing assets 

 reducing the costs associated with managing the portfolio 

 understanding potential financial risks/liabilities in holding Council-owned 
assets in the short, medium and long term 

 improved efficiency in running the estate, thereby contributing to financially 
effective delivery of services 

5. This will, in turn, assist with delivery of a number of strategic aims of the councils’ 
through their Corporate Plan (2020-24), namely: 

 Providing the homes people need 

 Tackling the Climate Emergency 

 Building healthy communities 

 Building stable finances. 

Background 

6. The property management function was outsourced in 2016, and then brought back 
in-house in 2018.  Accordingly, the historic property database for the council’s 
property assets was not accurate and an exercise needed to be undertaken to 
establish certainty on property ownership. 

7. This has highlighted the need for a full SPR, as this has provided an improved 
understanding of the councils’ property asset portfolio and an opportunity to 
‘challenge’ each and every asset. The suitability for purpose, condition, level of 
utilisation/occupancy, health and safety compliance, statutory compliance, lifecycle 
costs and how it meets the council’s Corporate Plan objectives are now fully 
understood.   

8. In order for the council to make informed decisions and recommendations on the 
portfolio, the property team have established key information for each asset in order 
to: 

 provide an overview of the council land and property estate, thereby providing 
an improved understanding of the council’s property asset base 

 establish priorities for the ongoing management and development of the 
council’s estate as a corporate resource for the residents of the district 

 ensure the council’s estate fully supports the council’s Corporate Plan by 
providing the right property in the right location to meet service needs 

Page 158



 

 

 provide a framework for rationalisation and disposals of the council’s land and 
buildings where appropriate 

 secure efficiencies by considering the promotion of joint working 

 promote land use for stimulating development and growth 

 better enhance income and reduce costs 

 better understand the costs of managing and owning the council’s estate 

 identify and reduce risk. 
 

9. As part of this process, capital receipts and revenue from the disposal of council-
owned property can be maximised whilst the risks /liabilities to the council (in terms of 
health and safety, statutory obligations, and financial liabilities) can be identified, 
understood, and minimised.  This will allow the council to benefit from quantifiable 
improvements to its financial position which, in turn will link in with the aims of its 
Corporate Plan.   

10. Our ambition is for the council to be amongst the leading public sector organisations 
for development, property, and asset management with a proactive approach to 
deriving the best from our asset base and service delivery.  This can be done by 
ensuring it makes the best use of its land and property assets to generate significant 
cost savings and revenue in order to protect the council’s front-line services, in 
addition to capital receipts which can be realised from the disposal of surplus stock. 

11. An on-going asset challenge process is intended to be introduced in order to review 
each asset on a rolling programme before financial decisions are made regarding 
their continued use, in order to ensure that only those buildings providing best value 
are retained in the future and to ensure that every pound we spend is done so in the 
right way. 

Headline Findings 

12. Following a review of the 340 assets the key findings can be found below: 

Category Number of assets 

Premises held for investment and long-term 
leases 

11 

Potential disposals 157 

Potential housing 102 

Potential opportunities to tackle the Climate 
Emergency 

92 

Strategic sites 4 

Retain 133 

Retain for operational purposes 40 

 
Definitions 

 Premises held for investment and long-term leases are held for investment 
purposes through both market and long-term leases. Further work may be 
needed to to re-classify these assets.  

 Potential disposals have been identified as surplus to Councils’ requirements 
and will be subject to further discussion via the AMG. 

Page 159



 

 

 Potential housing are sites which may be suitable for housing. They are 
subject to further review with Legal and may ultimately not be considered 
suitable for a number of reasons. 

 Potential opportunities to tackle the Climate Emergency are assets where 
there may be opportunities to improve ecological factors in order to meet the 
councils’ climate change objectives. 

 Strategic sites are subject to further review by external strategic advisors. 

 Retain refers to properties which are to be retained in the near future. They will 
be subject to further review, and are subject to other council strategies.  

 Retain for operational purposes refers to properties which are being retained 
as operational assets, e.g, parks, car parks. 

Corporate Plan (2020-24) – Key Themes 

13. The SPR can support the delivery of the council’s Corporate Plan, for example, 
identifying opportunities to improve the energy efficiency of council-owned and 
occupied buildings and introducing projects to undertake the same will help the 
council move towards achieving its own carbon neutral target by 2030.  The alignment 
of the strategies for each property asset with local community initiatives for ‘greening’ 
of the council-estate (i.e., the pilot Tiny Forests initiative and community/third-party 
planting of woodland/wildflower meadows) that will further assist the council with its 
actions to tackle the Climate and Ecological Emergencies. 

14. The SPR will also assist with the initial identification of potential development sites for 
affordable housing infrastructure that meets local needs.  The disposal of larger 
surplus sites for potential residential development will also assist with this aim, as well 
as bringing in capital receipts (either directly or indirectly) to fund this and other 
council policies/objectives. 

15. Finally, the SPR will be the beginning of a process to consolidate strong stewardship 
of all council owned assets and investments, thereby improving the council’s financial 
viability and performance - to the benefit of the residents in the district. 

Strategic Property Review – Governance 

16. As part of this review, it is apparent that there is currently no formal, cohesive 
disposals policy relating to the council’s surplus assets. This policy will provide the 
council a clear and defined process in making property decisions going forward and 
will assist with driving efficiencies in the way the council’s property assets are 
managed and streamlining the process by which the recommendations of the SPR 
are implemented.   

17. A decision has been made to implement an advisory Asset Management Group. 
Whilst this will not be a decision-making group, the purpose of the group is to ensure 
that all Corporate Plan objectives are considered and decisions are made with a 
council-wide perspective. This AMG should meet on a regular basis to review the 
Property teams’ recommendations. The AMG would be comprised of the Deputy 
Chief Executive - Place, Head of Legal and Democratic, Head of Finance, Head of 
Development and Regeneration, and two Cabinet Members to be nominated by the 

Page 160



 

 

Leader. Other Heads of Service would be invited should the assets being discussed 
directly impact their service. 

Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy 

18. As part of the SPR work conducted, it was identified that the council does not have a 
disposals policy to outline the process that is to be followed in the event that a 
council-owned asset is identified for disposal. The disposal or relinquishment of 
surplus or underperforming Council land and property assets is a key part of council 
strategies to meet the aims outlined in the Corporate Plan.  

19. The Disposal policy document (see Appendix 1) provides a framework by which the 
council might consider how surplus or underperforming assets within its existing land 
and property asset portfolio can deliver and maximise capital receipts and/or income 
revenue, to facilitate the council’s provision of existing and future services and locality 
needs. 

20. This policy will ensure that a consistent, robust disposal and governance process is 
adopted in order to support effective property disposal decision making within the 
council and to ensure that requests to purchase council-owned assets are dealt with 
in a fair and consistent manner. 

21. Under the current Constitution, the Head of Development and Regeneration is able to 
authorise the disposal of surplus land and property assets with an estimated value of 
up to £10,000, (although consultation, evidenced in writing, with the Cabinet member 
is required for disposals of land and property with a book value of over £5,000). 

22. Under the current Constitution, disposals of land and property assets above £10,000  
must be authorised by the relevant Cabinet member or by Cabinet . 

Transfer of Assets to the Council from Developers 

23. As part of the planning process and negotiations on major developments the council 
takes a positive approach to securing land and buildings through s106 agreements, 
such as public open space and community buildings with appropriate commuted 
sums.  Where the council is successful in this approach with developers this can 
enable the council to manage its assets in line with SPR.  In addition this will allow the 
council to work with the community when they want to take on these assets. 

Options 

24. Consideration has been given to not creating a disposal policy.  This has been 
discounted for the following reasons:  

25. It has been realised that there is a need to ensure that all relevant services are 
included in Property-making decisions. The AMG ensures exemplary internal 
governance and enables inclusivity for cross council service delivery. Formal 
decisions will be taken in accordance with the council’s constitution.   

26. A clear disposals policy is required to ensure that all disposals are completed in the 
most transparent manner. 

Page 161



 

 

Climate and Ecological Impact Implications 

27. The SPR will help embed a culture of innovation that maximises best use of 
appropriate technologies that support new ways of working and protects the 
environment by utilising available financing to support implementation. 

28. Part of the review process will involve an asset challenge process which, amongst 
other considerations, will encourage a continuous rolling programme of responding to  
climate change and environmental implications of the council’s estate. 

29. With the Climate and Ecological Emergencies forming a major consideration as part 
of the asset management and ongoing review process for the council’s property asset 
portfolio, measures will be introduced for the enhancement of building sustainability, 
reducing water consumption, cutting waste and improving energy efficiency in new 
developments and refit/refurbishment projects.  

30. There will therefore be an opportunity through the ongoing/continuous property asset 
review process to align individual action plans for the council’s land and properties 
with the climate emergency objectives.  

Financial Implications 

31. The outcome of the SPR and continuous rolling programme for challenging council 
assets will identify asset rationalisation and disposal opportunities to support the 
council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP).  By making financial efficiencies 
through the effective management of our land and property assets, to ensure they 
provide the right space in the right place and on the best terms. This should lead to a 
reduction in the costs associated with running the portfolio and will also align a 
planned future maintenance programme for the estate within financial budgets.   

32. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the council’s overarching financial position. For Vale, the position reflected in the 
council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in February 
2021 showed that the council is due to receive £2.6 million less in revenue funding than 
it plans to spend in 2021/22 (with the balance coming from reserves including 
unallocated New Homes Bonus).  

 
33. This funding gap is predicted to increase to over £5 million by 2025/26. As there 

remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the announcement 
of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term financial 
consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap could increase 
further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisance of the need to eliminate 
this funding gap in future years. 

 

Legal Implications 

34. The council’s Legal team will work alongside the Property team to carry out due 
diligence/title reports for the council’s assets as part of the ‘review, check and 
challenge’ to ensure that legal documentation is current and accurate, prior to 
consideration of reports by the AMG and thereafter formal decisions. 

Page 162



 

 

Other Implications 

35. The SPR will require an internal AMG to help progress and support delivery of the 
recommendations made in the SPR.  This working group will be a non-executive non 
decision-making body that will consist of two relevant cabinet Members, Deputy Chief 
Executive - Place, the Head of Development and Regeneration, Head of Finance and 
Head of Legal and Democratic with other Heads of Service as and when individual 
property recommendations impact on their service.  

36. It will be appropriate in some circumstances to consult/work with local town and 
parish councils, possibly through the creation of sub-groups; and also to consult/work 
with community groups where council assets are identified as possible Community 
Asset Transfers as an outcome arising from the SPR. 

37. There are numerous risks associated with property portfolios and property 
transactions by the very nature of the asset class. The introduction of an AMG will 
mitigate the risks associated with these transactions. The mitigation risks for the 
policy are detailed within the policy document. 

38. This may follow where new assets are secured through the planning process (S106 
agreements) on major developments. 

Conclusion 

39. Cabinet are asked to approve the Disposals policy provided in this report to provide 
robust procedures and processes for dealing with property matters 

40. Cabinet are also asked to note that an AMG as referenced in this report will be set up 
to consider and recommend for approval as set out above items considered by the 
AMG as part of  the rolling asset challenge process.  Cabinet are also asked to note 
the update on the Strategic property review. 

 

Appendices 

 Strategic property review – Vale of White Horse District Council 

 Land and property Asset Disposal policy 

 

Page 163



Appendix 1 

Strategic Property Review 

JULY 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 164



 

2 
 

Strategic Property Review 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The following text details the steps undertaken in order to provide a Strategic 

Property Review (SPR) of the Vale of White Horse District Council’s (‘the council’) 

assets.  The methodology is discussed and a summary of the collated information 

explained.  After considering these aspects, the assets are considered via a rigorous 

asset challenge process and a recommendation for the future plans for each site 

detailed.  It must be stressed that the recommendations are those of the Property 

department and based upon financial findings and on Property principles.  

As a result it is proposed that an Asset Management Group (AMG) with member 

participation is set up to check and challenge Property findings to ensure they meet 

the council’s priorities.   

The main outcomes of the review are detailed below: 

 Set up the AMG. 

 Ongoing legal asset title reviews and reports. 

 A quarterly review group to review and challenge disposal decisions together 

with the Capital Project Register, in line with Corporate Plan. 

 Enter into engagement with town/parish councils. 

 Commence work on disposals. 

Summary/Portfolio Overview 

Following the review of the council’s portfolio, the results can be summarised thus: 

 

Total number of sites 340 

Total area (land) 
3,496,156 sq m 

Total area (buildings) 31,681 sq m 

Total number of sites – retain 132 

Total number of sites – dispose 157 

Total number of sites – potential housing 92 

Environmental considerations 93 

Total income £1,366 166 

Total expenditure -£953,123. 

 

  

Page 165



 

3 
 

CORPORATE POLICY 

The Corporate Plan was published on 30 October 2020. This document sets out the 

council’s six strategic themes and for each theme are a set of key aims for meeting 

these priorities for our communities in the district 

Corporate plan priority themes: 

 Providing the homes people need 

 Tackling the Climate Emergency 

 Building healthy communities 

 Building stable finances 

 Working in partnership  

 Working in an open and inclusive way 

Our aim is to manage and maintain our land and building assets effectively, 

efficiently and sustainably. The evaluation process for each asset during the SPR 

considered how the council’s assets could help support and deliver these strategic 

aims. 

Further details on how the SPR will look to support and deliver the strategic themes 

are included in the ‘Other Considerations’ section of this document. 

INTRODUCTION 

Government departments and public sector bodies are currently under 
unprecedented financial pressures to reduce operating costs, raise cash and 
improve the efficiency of service delivery. 

The council is no different. In common with local authorities across the UK which 
hold significant property portfolios acquired, gifted or inherited over many years, the 
council owns or operates over 340 land and building assets. 

Accordingly, a key element of fulfilling the financial improvement objectives of the 

council involves consideration, at a strategic level, of how it uses its land and 

buildings. A strategic approach to property asset management will result in positive 

benefits of cost-effective and productivity-enhancing accommodation, the 

coordinated management of all other operational resources and maximising 

investment income. 

To support this, and in order to make informed decisions on the portfolio, the council 

has undertaken a SPR in order to: 

 Provide an overview of the council’s land and property estate, thereby 
providing an improved understanding of the council’s property asset base.  

 Establish priorities for the ongoing management and development of the 
council’s estate as a corporate resource for the residents of the district.  

 Ensure the council’s estate fully supports the council’s corporate plans by 
providing the right property in the right location to meet service needs.  

Page 166



 

4 
 

 Provide a framework for rationalisation and disposals of the council’s land 
and buildings where appropriate. 

 Secure efficiencies by considering the promotion of joint working. 

 Promote land use for stimulating development and growth. 

 Better enhance income and reduce costs. 

 Better understand the costs of managing and owning the council’s estate. 

 Identify and reduce risk. 

Our ambition is for the council to be amongst the leading public sector organisations 
for development, property and asset management with a proactive approach to 
deriving the best from our asset base and service delivery.  This can be done by 
ensuring it makes the best use of its land and property assets to generate significant 
cost savings and revenue in order to protect the councils’ front-line services, in 
addition to capital receipts which can be realised from the disposal of surplus stock. 

The aim is for this SPR to be the beginning of a rolling programme with all assets 
within the portfolio to be reviewed and challenged on a regular and frequent basis. 

THE COUNCIL’S LAND & BUILDING ASSETS 

The council owns a substantial and varied property portfolio located within the 

district, which extends to over 340 separately listed land and building assets. The 

council’s Corporate Estate holds 340 assets with a value of £47.8 million (as at 31 

March 2020), including the investment portfolio for the council holds 9 assets with a 

freehold value of £9.0 million, generating a rental income in excess of £530,000 per 

annum. 

These are the monetary amounts included within the council’s accounts and, whilst 

this is not necessarily the exact amount that the council would receive if it sold all of 

its assets, demonstrates what a considerable resource our land and buildings are, 

and why they need to be carefully managed. A further consideration to be borne in 

mind is that the book values do not necessarily correlate to the market value of said 

assets, as some are valued on a depreciated replacement cost basis. Others may 

not include any element of ‘hope value’. Marketing is the only true test of value and 

independent valuations can be carried out at the time of sale to verify that best value 

is being achieved. 

There is a wide range of assets within the council’s current portfolio which comprises 

industrial, retail, community centres, car parks, depots, public conveniences, leisure 

facilities, assets leased to community organisations and some assets used to 

generate a commercial income. Some of the assets may also have development 

potential. The council’s land and buildings vary in size from small pieces of amenity 

land, roads, car parks, WCs, and parks to the larger investment generating assets 

mentioned above.  Some assets were gifted to the council as legacies from 

donations whilst others were transferred through local government reorganisation or 

previous acquisitions. Historically, a number of such assets were to be transferred to 

town/parish councils, but such transfers were never completed. 

Page 167



 

5 
 

Without careful management and ongoing review, there is potential to waste money 

by retaining buildings that are not fit for use or are unnecessary/surplus to 

requirements. Furthermore, on-going routine maintenance expenditure should 

prevent greater expenditure as building fabric and plant and equipment should 

benefit from extended life. Equally, all assets have a value and if they are no longer 

required, the council could consider selling them to unlock that value and use or 

invest the money elsewhere. 

The council assets are used to deliver a mixture of front-line services, indirect 

service provision and in supporting local communities. It is imperative that the 

council’s land and property assets support the Corporate Plan, either financially or 

for service delivery reasons. 

 

As the way the council delivers services changes, its assets need to adapt to support 

the council as it moves forward.  The council should look to continue to invest in its 

assets – as well as potentially investing in new assets - where required, to ensure 

the council provides services that are fit for the future, to maximise benefit to the 

people and businesses in the district and meet the council’s objectives. 

In support of maximising value for money, in relation to the maintenance and day-to-

day running of the buildings, processes will ensure that capital works are prioritised 

appropriately and planned and preventative maintenance (PPM) programmes are in 

place, based on evidence from building condition surveys, and are in alignment with 

operational priorities of those services in occupation. 

Additionally, the reasons for holding these assets will vary and, as a result, the 

council will need to measure its individual asset performance in different ways. 

Performance of each asset must therefore be linked to the strategic purpose for 

holding it.  An on-going ‘Asset Challenge’ process is intended to be introduced in 

order to review each asset on a rolling programme before financial decisions are 

made regarding their continued use, in order to ensure that only those buildings 

providing best value are retained in the future.  This process explores the utilisation 

of assets, along with analysis of running and maintenance costs, and geographical 

location.  

The outcome of this process will identify asset rationalisation and disposal 

opportunities to support the council’s Medium Term Financial Plan.  The governance 

structure provides further assurance that money is spent in the right places and on 

the right buildings. 

As part of the planning process and negotiations on major developments the council 
takes a positive approach to securing land and buildings through S106 agreements, 
such as public open space and community buildings with appropriate commuted 
sums.  Where the council is successful in this approach with developers this can 
enable the council to manage its assets in line with SPR.  In addition this will allow 
the council to work with the community when they want to take on these assets. 

 

  

Page 168



 

6 
 

DIAGRAM 1 – VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL’S MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

METHODOLOGY 

An initial review of each individual asset has been conducted in order to consolidate 
the known information held for each property, as well as to identify gaps in historical 
knowledge/documentation from a property asset perspective.  This has been 
produced in table form using an Excel spreadsheet, with the details of individual 
property assets listed against individual town/villages in the council’s district.  

The information analysed, produced and verified within the spreadsheets is wide-
ranging and extensive and includes basic property information (such as the asset ID 
and address of each council-owned property asset, together with its tenure – 
typically whether it is held on a freehold or leasehold basis – and use). 

Verification of each asset has been conducted, including checking occupational 
agreements, what legal documentation is held/stored on Concerto (the council’s 
property management database) and whether the council’s mapping system 
accurately reflects the extent of ownership of council land.  

Summaries of the level of compliance and status of condition surveys for council-
owned buildings has also been recorded. 

Page 169



 

7 
 

The information from this review has then been used to assist with the provision of a 
high-level, initial strategy for each property in terms of whether a first consideration 
should be to continue to hold an asset, to refurbish it, to repurpose it or to dispose of 
it.  This work is ongoing and will be subject to further AMG consideration where 
appropriate. 

Useful summaries of each property asset have then been produced to capture the 
majority of essential property-related information which led originally to the 
formulation of the initial individual property strategy recommendations. 

Concerto 

As part of the SPR, the council is reviewing the data held on the property 

management database, Concerto. The use of this data will also be reviewed. It is 

anticipated that the use of the system will be enhanced in order to maximise its value 

to the council both to assist the Property team in day to day duties, inform on 

strategic decisions, and provide a useful reporting tool.  

ASSETS 

There are a number of asset types that require particular mention in this review 
summary section and we comment on these as follows: 

Car Parks 

The council operates a number of car parks (most of which are Pay and Display) 

across the district and we have approached the initial review of these on the 

assumption that the council is committed to the retention of their car parks in town 

and village centres as a vital benefit to the local economy.  We have therefore 

committed the outcome for each car park to be a ‘Retain’ strategy, although would 

add that further work investigating the income receivable for each car park against 

the cost of running it (in terms of management, maintenance, insurance/business 

rates etc.) would be beneficial.  As part of this exercise, we recommend that 

utilisation rates are also investigated in order that options for value creation and 

redevelopment of underutilised car parks may be considered.   

 

Public Toilets 

The council provides public toilets at a number of locations across the district, mostly 
located in the main town centre car parks. Although the council does not have any 
statutory obligation to provide public toilet facilities, it is recognised that they can 
provide an important facility to visitors from longer distance coming into an area 
where there is no other provision immediately available.  As with car parks, for the 
purpose of our initial review we have assumed that a ‘Retain’ strategy will be 
implemented in the first instance.   

However, further additional consideration should be given if there is more than one 

public facility in a town centre, where consolidation might create a value adding 

opportunity and thereby save on operational costs.  We will also investigate the 

prospect of transferring these assets to the local town or parish council in order that 

Page 170



 

8 
 

they may assume responsibility for ongoing provision (although it should be 

recognised that payment of a consideration to the relevant town or parish council for 

essentially taking on the liability of the public toilet facility may be required). 

Leisure Centres 

The council provides a number of leisure centre and swimming pool facilities across 

the district, albeit 3rd party management agreements are in place for all of these.  In 

the absence of the Active Leisure Strategy, we have assumed that these properties 

are adopted as ‘Retained’ properties for the present time. Once the strategy has 

been completed the report will be updated. 

Properties with potential strategic importance 

Separate to the SPR, there are three properties which are currently undergoing a 

separate consolidated review by an external agent.  These consist of the significant 

properties in Abingdon (Abbey House, The Charter and Upper Reaches). For the 

purpose of the SPR and pending receipt of the separate review for these properties, 

we have placed a ‘Retain – Opportunity’ allocation to these properties. There will be 

a separate report, which will be presented by September and thereafter, formally 

adopted into the SPR. 

Investment Properties 

In addition, the council owns a number of income-producing properties as part of an 

investment portfolio within its wider property portfolio. 

The investment portfolio of the council is relatively well-balanced with a mix of office 

and retail sector properties.  It should be noted that other income producing 

properties are held by the council, although these are not considered typical 

investment assets as they are held in line with the council’s aims of service provision 

aligned to its Corporate Plan (for example, the provision of town centre car parking 

for the benefit of the community and local economy and the ownership of several 

mobile homes sites which assists with residential provision).  The council currently 

holds nine ‘conventional’ investment properties, producing a combined income of 

£530,000 pa (this includes the long leasehold Bury Street Precinct asset in 

Abingdon). 

Community centres, scout huts and community buildings 

In Vale of White Horse, the tenancy of some of these properties has been converted 

from short leases at modest rents to long leases (typically 99 years) at peppercorn 

rents. This puts responsibility and control for the premises very largely with the 

community organisation who are then able to fully invest in managing and improving 

the buildings for the benefit of the community they serve. This saves time in 

managing leases and billing small rents, although the Property team still has to deal 

with tenant applications. The council retains some strategic control as to use and 

approving new occupiers in the event that the original tenants wish to assign the 

lease. 

Page 171



 

9 
 

The Localism Act 2011 gives communities the freedom to run their own affairs in 

their own way by enacting a series of specific rights that can be exercised on the 

initiative of local people. Specifically, ‘community right to bid’ gives the power to bid 

to potentially save assets of community value threatened with closure, by allowing 

communities to bid for ownership and management of them.   

The council should review leases to community groups as and when they are due for 

renewal, or earlier if requested by the occupational body, and should respond 

positively in granting community associations long (more than 25 years) full repairing 

and insuring (FRI) leases or asset transfers where there is no realistic prospect of 

the building being redeveloped in the medium to long term and the body is capable 

of ensuring the future of the asset. 

At present, the Review recommends that The Beacon be retained, as part of the 

wider site which includes the Portway Car Park. Should the council reconsider its 

strategy with regard to The Beacon, this asset will be reviewed. 

Electricity sub-stations 

The council’s portfolio has a large number of these and although the scope to 
maximise revenue/capital receipts from them is limited, there is a potential 
opportunity to generate a higher level of income than is currently being achieved in 
line with other sub-station rents being achieved elsewhere in the UK. 

Mobile Home Parks 

The council owns the Pebble Hill and Woodland Park sites in Radley with over 216 

homes and receives an income from the rental of the plots, generating approx. 

£300,000 pa currently.  In addition, the council receives 10% of the value of any 

sales of homes from these parks. The parks are managed by a mobile home parks 

officer who works across three sites in both Vale and South districts.  

For the time being, these properties deliver a source of income and we have 

therefore allocated an initial ‘Retain’ strategy against the mobile home park assets 

for that purpose. 

REVIEWING EACH ASSET/MEASURING PERFORMANCE 

To manage the council Assets effectively and efficiently, the council needs to know 

how they are performing. To do this, it is proposed that the council uses a selection 

of Performance Dashboards, covering performance in utilisation, cost and, where 

appropriate, income and total return metrics.  As a review of the council’s property 

asset portfolios has not been undertaken for a number of years and without 

alignment to the council’s Corporate Plan, this SPR was, by its very nature, started 

almost ‘from scratch’.  

However, the council’s ability to develop greater intelligence relating to its land and 

buildings will be enhanced through the life of the strategy, with ongoing reviews as to 

how the council manages and reports on asset performance.  

Page 172



 

10 
 

It is intended that Performance Dashboards will be designed and utilised. Such 

criteria will feed into the Asset Challenge process over time. 

ASSET CHALLENGE PROCESS 

Asset Challenge is proposed to be an embedded process, which means that the 

council will be reviewing all of its asset portfolio on a continuous rolling programme. 

This ensures that only those assets that are needed are retained. The ultimate aims 

of Asset Challenge are to reduce costs, to identify assets that should be retained for 

use and/or invested in and to identify those that are surplus to requirements and 

therefore can be disposed of. 

To do this, each asset is assessed using a step-by-step challenge process, ensuring 

that every asset has been fundamentally tested against a common set of criteria. 

The outline challenge process is set out in the table below: 

TABLE: OUTLINE CHALLENGE PROCESS 

 

It is essential that a balanced approach to the Asset Challenge phase of the SPR is 

adopted, in order to ensure that the council invests in the assets it needs/intends to 

retain and devises a strategy to dispose of the assets it no longer requires. This will 

be addressed through the creation of the AMG, which is discussed later in the paper. 

 

  

Page 173



 

11 
 

Income 

The Property team is aggressively pursuing outstanding rent reviews, licence fee 

reviews and lease renewals in order to maximise the income from the portfolio. By 

completing this work, the council will not only benefit from increased revenue, but will 

ensure that disposal receipts are maximised. 

Expenditure 

The Property team is working with other service departments to ensure that the 

council fully identifies and captures expenditure on all its assets. This will enable the 

council, where appropriate, to recover all expenditure which can be recovered. 

Furthermore, a complete understanding of expenditure incurred for each asset is a 

critical part of the decision-making criteria.  

Maintenance Costs 

As part of the rolling SPR, Stock Condition Surveys of the council’s built assets have 
been undertaken. As surveys are completed, the results will be fed into the Asset 
Challenge process to identify the anticipated future costs for building fabric and M&E 
(Mechanical and Electrical) maintenance.  This, in turn, will provide key anticipated 
future expenditure which will further assist in determining the appropriate strategy for 
each asset. 

In addition, the Stock Condition Survey programme will assist with achieving the 
following aims:  

 To ensure council buildings are safe and provide a suitable environment 
to deliver services, support the customer/service users/district residents 
and council staff.  

 To allocate funding to projects that will achieve the maximum positive 
impact. 

 To ensure that effective PPM is in place and achieve an efficient balance 
between planned and reactive maintenance work. 

 To achieve maximum efficiencies in the way the council procures 
building maintenance work. 

 To ensure that tenants comply with their lease obligations to minimise 
costs required when assets are relet. This will not replace the need for 
Schedules of Dilapidations to be prepared and served upon lease expiry. 

Priorities for building/repair/refurbishment projects will be identified by conducting 
this rolling programme of condition surveys which aims to understand maintenance 
requirements over a period of 15 years.  The lifecycle costs will identify maintenance 
works required within years 1–3, 3–7, 7-10 and 10 to 15 years. Specialist plant and 
equipment hasn’t been reviewed and total lifecycle condition costs will be completed 
for specific assets in due course. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 

It is also clear that, in order to facilitate building fabric repair and improvement 

projects, a review is necessary to ascertain what S106 and Community Infrastructure 

Page 174



 

12 
 

Levy (CIL) monies might be available to meet the short, medium and long term 

costings associated with the council’s assets. 

It will be appropriate in some circumstances to work with local town and parish 

councils – possibly through the creation of sub-groups – and with Community 

Groups as an outcome arising from the SPR. 

SUMMARY OF REVIEW TO DATE 

To date, a high-level initial review of each individual asset has been conducted in 

order to consolidate the known information held for each property.  This has been 

produced in table form using an Excel spreadsheet, broken down into individual 

property assets per town/village in the council’s district.  The information produced 

for each property comprises the following: 

 Asset ID – The unique council Asset ID reference relating to each specific 

property. 

 Site Name/Address – detailing what the asset is known as and its address 

details. 

 Tenure – whether the council owns the freehold or holds a leasehold interest. 

 Category – whether the asset is operational (i.e. occupied or utilised by the 

council as part of its service provision to residents of the district) or non-

operational (typically held for other purposes such as investment assets, 

amenity land, highways etc.).  

 Site Area – expressed in metres squared, this gives the approximate gross 

site area of each asset.  

 Occupational Agreements – confirmation of whether these are complete/up 

to date. 

 Landlord Compliance – confirmation, where required, that the council has 

fulfilled its obligations in terms of ongoing Health and Safety compliance. 

Compliant for each of the properties indicates that statutory services have 

been undertaken within the frequency and date required. This does not 

include remedial works arising from service visits, which will be subsequently 

undertaken, fire door condition, or where tenants are responsible for statutory 

compliance. 

 Tenant Compliance – confirmation, where required, that checks are in place 

to verify that tenants of the council have fulfilled their obligations in terms of 

ongoing Health and Safety compliance. 

 Property/Legal Documents – confirmation that appropriate Property and 

Legal documentation has been retrieved and saved on Concerto, the Property 

department’s property management system. 

 Health & Safety – whether (and when) Health & Safety Risk Assessments 

have been carried out, and whether (and when) a recent Health & Safety 

property inspection has been carried out. This is separate from 

landlord/tenant compliance and relates to non-tenanted land. 

 Condition Survey – whether a stock condition survey has been completed. 

Page 175



 

13 
 

 GIS Review – whether the Geographic Information System mapping 

accurately reflects the extent of council property ownership for individual sites. 

 Deeds Packet – whether a review of the information held in the Deeds Packet 

for each asset has been carried out. 

 Concerto/Unit 4 checks – to ensure that each Asset ID is correctly logged on 

the Concerto and Unit 4 property management and finance IT systems. 

 Income – the total income received at each asset in financial year ending 

March 2020. 

 Expenditure – this compromises business rates, insurance, maintenance, 

utilities, and other items for financial year ending March 2020. Staffing costs 

have not been included as they are not currently recorded against each asset. 

This is being reviewed and a project undertaken in order to record these costs 

in the future. 

 Strategic Review Outcome – the initial, desktop-based review to ascertain 

what strategy should be adopted for the property in the immediate future (i.e. 

retain or dispose). This is subject to a more detailed analysis and review prior 

to a final recommendation being made. 

 Housing Opportunity – an initial, desktop-based review to ascertain whether 

the site might have potential for housing development. 

 Recommended Action/Strategic Next Steps – confirmation of what further 
work is required in terms of furthering property strategy 

 Climate Change Measures – These are the sites that have been identified as 
surplus land that could be utilised to meet climate a range of measured 
including tiny forests, building enhancements and ecological measures 
 

Note some sites could be identified as dispose and also identified as potential sites 
for climate change measures, for example we could create a wildflower meadow and 
potentially transfer to a town or parish council. 

COUNCIL FUNDING 

Vale of White Horse District Council, like so many other councils, has experienced 

significant funding reductions and therefore needs to make careful choices when 

prioritising the money it spends. 

This is especially true in relation to property, with a property-related gross revenue 

budget of £1,743,109 (2020/21), and the council needs to ensure that every pound 

spent is done so in the right way.  There is a capital budget for Corporate buildings 

maintenance of £100,000 (2020/2021, only). 

The council has challenges relating to the age, condition and suitability of its 

portfolio.   

Despite these financial challenges, the council is committed to supporting the 
economic growth of the county of Oxfordshire and encouraging job creation and 
investment in the district. New building development plays an important part in this 
and it is important to note that the council’s capital investment attracts further inward 
investment. This helps the local economy to grow and thrive so that every pound 

Page 176



 

14 
 

invested by the authority generates a local economic benefit well in excess of this 
initial investment.  

As a result of this SPR, the Property team will consider requesting a capital project 
budget as part of the 2022/2023 budget setting. This budget could be supplemented 
by CIL funding where appropriate and in line with the CIL spending strategy to 
improve/develop the council’s assets to increase revenue, for example, developing 
residential units or renovating existing assets. 

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

Working with Others 

As part of the SPR, the council will seek to be active members of the One Public 

Estate programme, working closely with other public sector organisations across the 

district and wider County to explore opportunities to reduce premises costs and 

make assets work better for the council’s communities and customers.   

There may also be the opportunity to work with a wide range of the district’s anchor 

employers and key stakeholders, to explore opportunities for shared services and 

how our assets may be able to support this. 

The council will continue to explore opportunities for partnership working with both 

public and private sector bodies and agencies to ensure successful ongoing review 

of our land and building assets and the SPR will serve as a rolling reminder for 

careful consideration of these opportunities to be constantly examined and, where 

appropriate, pursued. 

Community Engagement 

Part of the delivery of the localism agenda is that, wherever practical, buildings or 

land used to support community uses should be considered for transfer to the local 

Community, Parish or Town council governance to enable local control and 

determination.  

Local people are often best placed to manage community facilities in their area. They 

already make extensive use of these assets and their local knowledge and hands-on 

management often results in lower overheads and better value-for-money. 

Community organisations also use volunteers and take great pride in their local area. 

Managing these facilities can help to empower local communities and can bring 

opportunities for greater independence and financial sustainability.  

The council is fully committed to using its assets to form long-term partnerships with 

suitable community organisations, to create stronger, more cohesive and more 

sustainable communities and the SPR will help the council identify such 

opportunities and provides a framework, in tandem with the council’s Disposals 

Policy, for achieving this. 

Housing 

Page 177



 

15 
 

The cost of buying or renting a home is expensive and infrastructure (in terms of 

roads, schools and GP practices) in the district has not always kept up with the pace 

of housing development.  Modern housing developments do not always meet the 

prospect of a low carbon future. 

Accordingly, the council’s Corporate Plan seeks to ensure that new 

housing/infrastructure provision in the district meets local needs, is 

sustainable/meets zero carbon in their build and is affordable. 

The SPR supports the council’s Corporate Plan by identifying potential development 

sites for affordable housing that meets local needs.  The disposal of larger surplus 

sites for potential residential development identified as a result of the SPR will also 

assist with meeting the council’s aim, as well as bringing in capital receipts (either 

directly or indirectly) to fund this and other council policies/objectives. 

Environmental 

The council’s Corporate Plan 2020-2024 set out what the council hopes to achieve 

over the next 4 years. One of the key themes within the Corporate Plan is the 

challenge of Tackling the Climate Emergency, by transforming council operations 

and inspiring the district residents and businesses to do the same.  The council’s 

leadership, by developing and implementing a climate change program to make the 

council net carbon neutral by 2030, can be supported by seeking to improve the 

environmental credentials of the council’s built estate, although existing lease terms 

and market norms may limit what action the council can take. 

During the course of the SPR, consideration will be given to properties having low 

Energy Performance Certificate ratings in order that energy efficiency improvements 

can be made through housekeeping, behavioural change and investment in the 

corporate estate.  Wider consideration will also be given to enhancing sustainability 

in the council’s new developments and refit/refurbishment projects. On the 

investment portfolio, the council can also engage in a timely way with its tenants 

when they are planning works and seek to ensure that energy efficiency of buildings 

is improved where possible. 

In addition, by identifying and putting in place a strategy for each individual property 

asset through the SPR, alignment with council initiatives such as Tiny Forests and 

community-led projects such as the planting of native woodland/wildflower meadows, 

will also support the council in meeting its aims to combat the Climate Emergency 

whilst improving local environments. 

In summary, property assets will continue to be reviewed to consider the climate 

change and environmental implications and to support delivery of the council’s 

Climate Emergency ambitions. 

  

Page 178



 

16 
 

Legal 

Ongoing due diligence work is required to the council’s estate management system 

(Concerto) which will likely require Legal input for the ‘review, check and challenge’ 

phase for ensuring the legal documentation held is up to date and accurate. 

The implementation of the SPR outcomes is likely to lead to an increase in workload 

for the legal team.  

Finance 

One of the main drivers for the SPR is to make financial efficiencies through the 

effective management of our land and property assets, ensuring they provide the 

right space in the right place and on the best terms. This will lead to a reduction in 

the costs associated with running the portfolio and will also align a planned future 

maintenance programme for the estate within financial budgets.   

Part of the review has identified the need for reconciliation of differences between 

the asset database and the accounting function held for fixed asset accounting 

purposes (meaning that assets will be ‘synchronised’ on both Concerto and Unit 4 – 

the council’s respective property management and finance IT systems).  

Capital Expenditure Register 

All identified capital expenditure will now be incorporated into a planned Capital 

Expenditure Register (CER). These projects will include replacement of large items, 

potential refurbishment/redevelopment, and development.  In order to drive these 

projects a register will be created with proposed cost and timescales.  This register 

will be used to prioritise projects and rank against corporate plan priorities and apply 

for external funding from CIL or alternative sources.  An example of a CER is shown 

below. 

GOVERNANCE 

New Land & Property Asset Disposal Policy 

In order to effectively and efficiently implement the SPR, it has been necessary to 

draft supporting policies and strategies which the council will need to consider for 

adoption.  

DISPOSAL POLICY 

As part of the SPR work conducted to date, it was identified that the council does not 

have a Disposal Policy to outline the process that is to be followed in the event that a 

council-owned asset is ear-marked for disposal.  

It is essential for the council to have a coherent policy for disposing of assets that are 

declared surplus as an outcome from the SPR and it is recommended, as part of the 

SPR, that the Disposal Policy is adopted.  

Page 179



 

17 
 

Next Steps 

It has been identified by the SPR that the setting up of an internal AMG is essential 

to help progress and support delivery of the recommendations made in the SPR 

itself.  Whilst certain recommendations from Property would be financially based as 

aforementioned, there are a number of reasons assets are held in order to ensure all 

services are provided, and such reasons would be an important factor in any 

decision. 

ASSET MANAGEMENT GROUP 

In order to ensure that all Corporate Plan priorities are represented and that when a 

site presents more than one option, that those options are debated, an AMG is to be 

established.  This AMG will be an advisory group (not decision making) and should 

meet on a regular basis to review the Property teams’ recommendations.  The AMG 

would be comprised of the Deputy Chief Executive Place, Head of Legal and 

Democratic Services, Head of Finance, Head of Development and Regeneration, 

and two Cabinet Members to be nominated by the Leader. Other Heads of Service 

would be invited should the assets being discussed directly impact their service.  

 

Cabinet 

Asset Management 

Group 

Property 

Recommendation 

Ward member 

consultation 

Membership 

Deputy Chief Executive - Place 

Head of Legal and Democratic 

Head of Finance 

Head of Development and Regeneration 

Two Cabinet members nominated by the Leader 

Page 180



 

18 
 

 

These recommendations would then be agreed by way of the appropriate formal 

decision, in accordance with the terms of the council’s constitution, depending on the 

value of the asset concerned and passed to the Property team for implementation 

under business as usual.  If a recommendation is not agreed, a forward plan or 

business case will be requested from the relevant service manager in advance of the 

next meeting. 

Prior to the meeting taking place the recommendations for all potential disposals 

would be circulated to the group, ward members would be consulted, and the AMG 

would meet to agree whether the Property teams’ recommendations are supported 

by the AMG and put forward for formal decision.  If recommendations are not 

agreed, a future plan for the site will be completed and presented to the Property 

team to action as business as usual. 

The AMG meeting would be held on a quarterly basis.  A written report will be issued 

28 days before the meeting with information sheets on the assets to be discussed 

and an appropriate consultation undertaken with the relevant ward member.  The 

first of these meetings is planned for October 2021 and be repeated on a quarterly 

basis as the SPR is updated. 

Property 
team

Rec. report 
circulated 

Ward 
member 

consultation

Asset 
Management 

Group

Decision

Page 181



 

19 
 

 

Progression with the strategies identified for each individual property asset will also 

be significantly assisted by the ratification/adoption of the Land and property disposal 

policy. 

Finally, there is a distinct need for an ongoing review of the property assets held by 

the council and the SPR should be seen purely as the beginning of the process.  It is 

intended that six monthly updates are given to Cabinet and relevant ward members 

on the implementation of the key recommendations made within the SPR together 

with a 12 monthly formal review report. 

Concerto 

A separate review is being undertaken of the property asset management system.  

At the time of creating this report all findings have been manually input into a 

spreadsheet but there is a separate project commencing through which the Concerto 

database system will be updated and the data contained therewithin will be made 

available in support of the review. 

Agree annual 
asset 

challenge 
review 

programme

First quarter 
report

Second 
quarter 
report

Third quarter 
report

Fourth 
quarter 
report

Report and 

associated 

information sheet 

circulated 28 days 

prior to Asset 

Management Group 

 

Page 182



APPENDIX 2 

Vale of White Horse District Council 

LAND AND PROPERTY ASSET DISPOSAL POLICY  

 

 

 

Policy and Guidance Document 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 183



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 2 of 34 

Vale of White Horse District Council 

Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy  

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 The disposal or relinquishment of surplus or underperforming council land and 

property assets is a key part of Vale of White Horse District Council’s (“the 

council”) strategy to meet the aims outlined in its Corporate Plan 2020-2024.  

 

1.2 This disposal policy document provides a framework by which the council might 

consider how surplus or underperforming assets within its existing land and 

property asset portfolio can deliver and maximise capital receipts and/or 

income revenue, in order to facilitate the council’s provision of existing and 

future services and locality needs.  

 

1.3 The policy document will ensure that a common, robust disposal and 

governance process is adopted in order to support effective property disposal 

decision making within the council and to ensure that requests to purchase 

council-owned assets are dealt with in a fair and consistent manner. 

 

1.4 All actions recommended within this disposal policy document will strive to 

promote the disposal of assets in a way that positively supports the delivery of 

the council’s Corporate Plan 2020-2024.  

 

1.5 This document sets out a 5-stage procedure to be adopted by the council in 

connection with the disposal of its surplus and underperforming assets.  Whilst 

this procedure will normally be followed, it should be noted that there may be 

occasions where these procedures may require adapting – particularly for 

larger, more complex land/property sales.   

 

1.6 To comply with legislation and accepted best practice, it is essential that the 

procedures adopted for land and property disposal are, where reasonable, 

directed: 

 

 Ensuring that assets are only disposed of where appropriate 

 To obtaining the best terms reasonably available. 

 Allowing all credible interested parties an equal opportunity to purchase. 

 Avoiding partiality or bias. 

 

1.7 Each asset disposal should be treated on its own merits and nothing in this 

policy document binds the council to a particular course of action in respect of a 

disposal.  Alternative methods of disposal, not specifically mentioned in this 

Page 184



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 3 of 34 

policy, may be used where appropriate and subject to obtaining proper 

authority. 

2.0 OBJECTIVES 

2.1 The objectives of the council’s disposal strategy are intended to align with the 

council’s Corporate Plan 2020-2024, with reference to reducing the funding gap 

between income and expenditure in adherence to the council’s Medium Term 

Financial Plan, and aim to: 

 

 Complement the council’s policy of only holding assets that meet the 

council’s objectives for operational, socio-economic or investment 

purposes. 

 Enable actual and latent capital value tied up in potentially surplus assets 

to be realized.  

 Eliminate liabilities. 

 Unlock the benefits of regeneration. 

 Enable local Development Plan/Framework policies to be realised. 

 Maximise the proceeds or land use benefit from disposals for the benefit 

of the council and its community. 

3.0 THE ROLE OF COUNCIL-OWNED PROPERTY 

3.1 The council owns many properties ranging in type and size with a portfolio 

including offices, shops, and leisure and community centres as well as parcels 

of land such as parks and amenity space. 

 

3.2 The council utilises its property in several ways, including: 

 

 Operational accommodation for corporate use. 

 The provision of residents’ health and wellbeing facilities through 

managed leisure centres and swimming pools, outdoor sports pitches and 

parkland and nature reserve facilities. 

 Encouragement of economic development in the district through the 

provision of commercial property to let, resulting in subsequent income 

generation. 

 Car parks are provided to ensure a joined-up approach to traffic 

management, strategic planning, and economic development. 

 The provision of community space for community events and club 

meetings, exercise classes, children’s parties, and community meetings. 

 The holding of property as an investment to produce an income. 

  

Page 185



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 4 of 34 

4.0  DEFINITION OF A DISPOSAL 

4.1 For the purposes of this policy, a disposal of property is considered to be a 

disposal if it consists of the transfer of the freehold interest or the surrender, 

assignment of a leasehold interest held by the council.  

 

4.2 In respect of the grant of new leases these will not be considered to be a 

disposal (but they will be de-recognised from the council’s fixed assets and 

added to long-term debtors in the balance sheet) where the following applies: -  

 

 The grant of leases to community groups charities or other organisations 

where the primary objective is the provision of a service to the community. 

 In respect of properties held at least partially for investment purposes 

unless it is for an unbroken lease term in excess of 25 years.  

5.0 DISPOSAL PROPERTY 

5.1 The Strategic Property Review (SPR) process will help determine the suitability 

of existing council property assets for retention (in their existing condition or 

after refurbishment), redevelopment or disposal. 

 

5.2 In the case of the latter option, these property assets will be classed as 

‘surplus’ properties where some or all of the following criteria are met: 

 

 The property in question makes a nominal or nil contribution to the 

delivery of the council’s services or Corporate Plan objectives, either 

directly or indirectly (nor generates appropriate income and has limited 

potential for future service delivery or community regeneration projects). 

 A more suitable alternative property for the delivery of the council’s 

services or Corporate Plan objectives has been identified which would 

achieve a lower cost and/or more cost-effective service delivery. 

 Following the property being vacated by the council there is no potential 

for future alternative service delivery or regeneration. 

 The property suffers from a lack of condition, suitability, or environmental 

factors compared with service standards or has adverse running costs. 

 Better public value can be obtained by transfer of the asset to another 

public or community body. 

 Part of the property is vacant and is likely to remain vacant for some time. 

 The alternative use value is higher, and the service can be relocated 

elsewhere and still leave a net capital receipt.  

 The beneficial use or financial return (both revenue and capital growth) 

from the property is below that which could be achieved from an 

alternative use, or a disposal and alternative investment opportunity. 

 The property repeatedly performs poorly in property performance 

assessments owing to a lack of condition, suitability, sufficiency, or 

Page 186



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 5 of 34 

environmental factors compared with service standards, or has adverse 

running costs.  

 The property being subject to option agreements or pre-existing 

commitments for disposal. 

 For anomalies in the council’s property asset portfolio which require 

remedying (such as previous transfers of ownership through the Large 

Scale Voluntary Transfer which left small parcels of land incorrectly 

remaining in the council’s ownership even though the intention was for a 

transfer to the acquiring party). 

  

5.3  It should be noted that some land or property assets which meet the ‘surplus’ or 

‘underperforming’ criteria may still be held by the council with the aim of 

enabling long term development or future infrastructure projects, as part of 

wider strategic regeneration or place shaping. Further, some property disposals 

may be compulsory transfers driven by statute rather than the identification of 

surplus or underperforming assets.  

6.0 STATUTORY POWERS 

6.1 The council’s power of disposal is a general power contained in Section 123 of 

the Local Government Act 1972, which provides that the consideration should 

not (except with the consent of the Secretary of State) be less than that which 

can reasonably be obtained. 

 

6.2 There are, however, exceptions where, for example, a disposal might be 

considered by the council to contribute to the promotion or improvement of the 

economic, social and environment wellbeing in the district.  In such 

circumstances, the Local Government Act - General Disposal Consent 

(England) 2003 gives the council more flexibility to dispose of land at less than 

market value, known as an ‘undervalue’ (the difference between the market 

value of the property and the actual consideration) - provided that any 

undervalue does not exceed £2million. In cases where the undervalue exceeds 

£2million, consent to the proposed disposal will need to be obtained from the 

Secretary of State. 

7.0 PROCEDURE FOR ASSET DISPOSALS 

7.1 There are five distinct elements of the council’s asset disposal procedure: 

 

 PROCESS – to identify the assets as ‘surplus’ or ‘underperforming’. 

 PREPARATION - for disposal, including obtaining confirmation that the 

property is suitable for disposal. 

 DETERMINATION - of the method of disposal. 

 ONGOING MANAGEMENT - for managing the asset in the run up to 

disposal.  

Page 187



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 6 of 34 

 DISPOSAL of the asset. 

8.0 PROCESS FOR IDENTIFICATION OF SURPLUS PROPERTY 

8.1 There are several circumstances or initiatives which might result in land or 

property assets belonging to the council being identified as either surplus or 

underperforming properties.  These include, but are not limited to: 

 

 Strategic Property Reviews and recommendation of Asset Management 

Group (AMG; see Appendix 1). 

 Identification of development opportunities. 

 Condition surveys. 

 Regeneration schemes. 

 Local Plan designation. 

 Capital Accounting Valuation processes. 

 Direct approaches from interested 3rd parties (i.e., developers, adjoining 

owners) 

 Where a disposal has been identified as helping to deliver other objectives 

to the council, such as the provision of housing. 

 Where management of the council’s land/property is considered suitable 

for community. 

 

8.2 The council regularly receives direct approaches from interested third parties 

wishing to acquire an interest in property owned by the council.  In a number of 

instances, these applications are received from adjacent or neighboring owners 

to purchase the freehold interest in small or inconsequential areas of land in the 

council’s ownership. Set out at Appendix 2 (Enquiries for Minor Land 

Disposals) is the procedure for dealing with these third-party enquiries where 

the land is typically: 

 

 surplus to council requirements 

 has no inherent development value 

 has no inherent open market opportunity 

 a market value of less than £10,000. 

 

8.3 In these instances, a departure from open marketing may be considered on the 

advice of the Property team. In addition, it is recognised that, in some of these 

cases, such disposals may involve inconsequential or incidental public open 

space which in turn is governed by additional requirements relating to the 

transfer process (see Appendix 3 – Disposal of Open Space). 

 

8.4 In the case of land/property being considered suitable for community 

ownership, if an asset is used for social, community and public purposes and 

the benefits of that service are deemed to outweigh the value of continuing 

ownership by the council on behalf of its residents, the council may consider 

Page 188



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 7 of 34 

the transfer of the asset to the Parish or Town council or a charity or community 

group, known as a Community Asset Transfer.  

 

8.5 A Community Asset Transfer is a voluntary process which allows the transfer of 

management and/or ownership of public land and buildings from the council to 

a community organisation for less than market value in order to achieve a local 

social, economic or environmental benefit (i.e., through the powers conferred 

on the council by the General Disposal Consent (England) 2003). 

 

8.6 A Community Asset Transfer to a community, a charity or another public body 

should only take place if supported by a robust business case (e.g., the 

transferee has sound long-term management and governance arrangements, 

the proposed use of the property meets the authority’s objectives/community 

strategy, there is certainty of funding if applicable and there is an agreed 

timescale for the disposal to be completed).     

   

8.7 Further explanation regarding the Community Asset Transfer process is given 

in Appendix 4 – Community Asset Transfers Policy. 

8.8   A Community Asset Transfer is distinct from a surplus property that has been 

listed as an ‘Asset of Community Value’, and if an ‘Asset of Community Value’ 

is earmarked by the council for disposal, the council should ensure that an 

opportunity for a Community Right to Bid is given before a wider disposal 

process is progressed.  Under the Community Right to Bid section of the 

Localism Act 2011, groups that have succeeded in having an asset listed as 

being of community value are allowed 6 weeks to express an interest in buying 

it should it come up for sale and a further 6 months in which to develop a bid.  

They may then bid alongside any other potential purchasers in the market. 

8.9 Once identified as surplus or underperforming, a property should be earmarked 

for disposal and appropriate notification should be given to internal 

stakeholders (for example, the Head of Development and Regeneration, the 

Cabinet Member, and the relevant ward member). It is acknowledged that 

members, because of their local knowledge of the ward they represent, may be 

able to contribute to the discussion as to the value or otherwise of the 

continued retention of the asset and also potentially provide useful market 

intelligence – such as identification of potential special purchasers – hence 

engagement with them should be sought and encouraged at an early stage of 

the disposal process.   

9.0 PREPARATION FOR DISPOSAL (PRE-MARKETING) 

9.1 Once confirmed as surplus and a prospect for disposal, the property should be 

logged on the council’s surplus land register.  

 

9.2 Once a property has been declared surplus where appropriate external 

consultation of partner and other public sector organisations and community 

Page 189



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 8 of 34 

groups is to take place prior to market disposal. If appropriate, the Community 

Enablement Team will be consulted. 

 

 Details, if appropriate, to be sent to partner organisations (e.g., Parish or 

Town councils, the police/fire/ambulance services, NHS, PCT etc.) and 

housing associations. 

 Details, if appropriate, to be sent to the relevant community groups to 

establish any potential interest. 

 

9.3 Where consultation with the above groups is undertaken best practice is to 

follow the same timetable as Community Right to Bid for all expressions of 

interest from partner organisations and community groups.  Expressions of 

interest in the surplus property must therefore be made within 6 weeks of 

notification of the property being declared surplus and should include 

supporting documentation sufficient to demonstrate a serious intention to 

proceed. 

 

9.4 Where a property is deemed unsuitable or unviable for use by either a partner 

organisation or the local community, then the council should proceed to market 

disposal following the due authority process.  Before deciding whether to 

formally dispose of land or property, a report setting out all relevant information, 

including the planning position, potential use, current or proposed development 

restrictions and estimated value should be commissioned to help inform the 

Asset Management Group and therefore aid the decision-making process.  

 

9.5 Under the council’s constitution published 1 November 2020, the Head of 

Development and Regeneration can authorise the disposal of surplus land and 

property assets with an estimated value of up to £10,000 (although 

consultation, evidenced in writing, with the Cabinet member is required for 

disposals of land and property with a book value of between £5,000-£10,000). 

 

9.6 Above a value of £10,000, disposals must be authorised by Cabinet or relevant 

Cabinet member.  

 

9.7 The relevant Property surveyor should seek to inspect the site in order to 

assess any development potential and any matter, such as on-site physical 

constraints, that is likely to materially affect the disposal. In addition, and where 

relevant, building condition surveys, health and safety certification and 

Environmental Performance Certificates should be collated (through Facilities 

Management/Property helpdesk) and the VAT position should be established 

(through Finance). 

 

9.8 Where development potential has been identified, early engagement with the 

council’s Planning department should be made in order to establish the 

authorised use of the property and what potential alternative uses might be 

considered in order to assess the means by which maximum sale proceeds can 

Page 190



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 9 of 34 

be generated.  Where the council wishes to ensure a desired use of the 

property to achieve its policy objectives, it will be necessary to introduce 

absolute user clauses (in leases) and restrictive covenants (for sales) where 

appropriate. Overage and clawback provisions might also be considered, in 

order that the council might share in the benefits of any future increase in value 

due to a more alternative planning consent being secured by the purchaser of 

any property. 

 

9.9 The council’s Legal department should be engaged at an early stage to 

produce a report on title for the property to be disposed of, to include any rights 

or obligations which might affect it.  Consideration should also be given as to 

whether there is an obligation to offer the land back to a former owner under 

the Crichel Down Rules (see Appendix 5 – Crichel Down Rules) or whether 

the property has been the subject of funding in the past, which requires the 

repayment of grant monies. 

 

9.10 In accordance with Paragraph 61 of Financial Procedural Rules (FPR) an 

internal or external valuation should be completed by a RICS registered valuer 

early within the process. Where an asset is likely to be valued at more than 

£100,000 two valuations will be required one of which will be external. There 

may be some instances where an offer may be accepted conditional on a 

satisfactory valuation being obtained. 

 

9.11 There is a need for continual liaison/communication with all stakeholders 

between a property being declared surplus and the completion of a disposal.  In 

particular, the party responsible for the day-to-day management of the property 

is to be kept regularly informed of developments to an agreed timescale. 

 

9.12 The council should, in most cases, seek to obtain the best consideration by the 

most appropriate method of disposal. To protect the council’s interest in the 

event of subsequent (onward) sales, it should include where appropriate, the 

right for the council to have a ‘first call’ on the property in the event of a 

proposed subsequent sale (to be based on the council paying no more than the 

original transfer amount). As well as the clawback or overage clauses and 

restrictive covenants mentioned earlier, ransom strip retention or user rights 

may also be introduced where relevant.   

 

9.13 To avoid the possibility of a challenge to a decision to sell at less than best 

price (e.g., by a Council Taxpayer or other interested party), it is important that 

there is a clear link to the furtherance or corporate objectives. 

  

Page 191



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 10 of 34 

10.0 DETERMINATION OF METHOD OF DISPOSAL 

 

10.1 The most appropriate method of disposal should be determined from the 

following table and the necessary approvals sought. 

10.2 In every occasion when a land disposal is undertaken, consideration will be 
given to whether an overage provision or restrictive covenant is appropriate. 
Inclusion of either of these will ensure the council benefits from any potential 
future development. 

10.3 In accordance with Financial Procedure Rules 61 all disposals over £5k require 
to be put on the open market and competitive bids sought (unless otherwise 
agreed by the Chief Finance officer and Monitoring officer).  

 
BASIS METHOD When to adopt 

Open 
market 

Private Treaty Limited interest and narrow valuation band.  The most 
common form of concluding a sale and one used for 
all types of properties mainly as it affords the seller 
the greatest degree of flexibility and time. Can have a 
closing date and by progress by the way of informal 
tender where considerable interest is shown during 
marketing  

 Auction Wide interest anticipated, no obvious purchaser and 
easy to allocate a reserve.  Speed and best price can 
be demonstrated.  Effectively promotes an immediate 
sale.  
 
Often appropriate for residential assets not suitable for 
third party lending, land sales where there is limited 
prospect of development or alternative use and 
commercial property investments.  
 
Requires ‘up front’ authority to allow setting of 
appropriate reserve and may result in no sale if reserve 
is not met. 

 Formal Tender Wide interest, land ownership not complex, no 
uncertainties regarding the grant of planning consent 
and any obligations that are to be placed on a 
purchaser are clear and capable of specification in 

advance.   Not commonly used due to its complex 
nature and the rigid structure of the formal tender 
process.  

 Informal 
Tender 

To identify a preferred bidder and enable further 
detailed terms or proposals for development to be 
negotiated.  Appropriate for sales where there are 
uncertainties (particularly planning) and for large or 
complex development or regeneration sites and where 
the proposal may need to be developed in co-operation 
with the council to achieve best consideration.  Allows 
for the use of conditional contracts, including clauses 
which allow for further sums to become payable 

Page 192



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 11 of 34 

(clawback) upon the grant of planning in the future or 
improvement in market conditions (overage). 

Special 
purchaser 

 Sale to adjoining owner where special circumstances 
prevail.  Typical examples include a conditional 
disposal where the council is selling for a particular 
purpose (i.e., to a developer for regeneration or to a 
nominated housing association for social housing 
development) or where there is a small area in size 
and value and the adjoining or locally located 
landowner is the only potential or likely purchaser (e.g., 
for garden extension). 
 
See separate draft policy for land sales to enquiring 
parties (Appendix 2 – Enquiries for Minor Land 
Disposals).  

  Sale to former owners under the Crichel Down Rules. 
 
See Appendix 5 – Crichel Down Rules. 

 
10.3 Until a legally binding contract has been entered into, the council has a duty to 

consider any late offers or bids.  This should be made clear to any prospective 

purchaser when disposing of land by private sale or negotiated/informal tender.  

In considering late bids, the council should take into account the likelihood of 

the late bid proceeding to completion in a timely manner and the possibility of it 

being used as a spoiling or delaying tactic, and the council may reject bids for 

sound commercial reasons such as these. 

 

10.4 In cases where the council does not wish to exercise any control over the future 

use of the property, other than through the planning process, then the disposal 

of the freehold will obtain the best price. However, where the council wants to 

exercise some control of the future use of the land, a leasehold disposal for a 

term necessary to ensure the satisfactory completion of the scheme is usually 

required. 

 

10.5 In the case of the latter, these are often highly complex agreements and a 

development agreement will usually be entered into before a formal disposal is 

concluded – plus, in many instances, a Section 106 Agreement (setting out 

conditions and contributions to the community through the planning system).   

Major regeneration disposals are now more commonly negotiated by dedicated 

teams of valuation, finance and legal professionals representing local 

authorities, it is recommended that the property disposal and S106 Agreement 

are negotiated in tandem by appropriate private sector specialists for these 

types of disposals, in order to maximise the benefits to the council. 

11.0 ONGOING MANAGEMENT IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO DISPOSAL 

11.1 In times when the market is not appropriate for a disposal, the council should 

attempt to find a temporary use for the property to mitigate against the council’s 

Page 193



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 12 of 34 

holding costs for the asset (i.e., void rates, security, etc.).  In cases where there 

is a letting to an external party, this should be by way of a contracted-out lease 

so that vacant possession can be easily obtained. 

 

11.2 Consideration should be given to how the management costs associated with 

holding the property (between it being declared surplus and the point of 

disposal) are dealt with. 

12.0 PROPERTY DISPOSAL 

12.1 An appropriate marketing strategy should be developed for use by either the in-

house Property team or external agents undertaking the disposal, with all costs 

(legal, consultants, marketing, and agency fees) being charged against the 

receipt.  

 

12.2 Marketing materials should be produced in draft form whether inhouse or by the 

appointed disposal agent the latter for approval by the relevant council surveyor 

and arrangements made for the erection of a ‘For Sale’ board where 

appropriate. 

 

12.3 Where formal sales particulars are prepared these should be forwarded, as a 

minimum, to: 

 

 relevant ward members 

 be posted on the council website page (Property for Sale – 

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-

council/about-the-council/property-and-council-land/property-to-let-or-for-

sale-commercial-use/ 

 any relevant potential buyers whose interest is registered on the ‘Disposal 

Enquiries Register’ 

 the relevant town or parish council clerk. 

 

12.4 This list is not exhaustive, and the relevant member of the Property team will 

determine other appropriate recipients on a case-by-case basis to ensure as 

broad exposure as possible. 

 

12.5 Consideration should be given to advertising the availability of the property on 

social media and the local press/property websites. 

 

12.6 All negotiations for disposal should be conducted by a suitably qualified 

property professional, preferably a member of the Royal Institution of Chartered 

Surveyors.  

12.7 If appropriate, for example a community group together with a developer submit 

a bid to acquire the asset and assessment of potential purchasers will be 

Page 194



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 13 of 34 

conducted by way of an appropriate weighted scoring matrix (this will ensure 

compliance with S123 requirements), like the one attached as Appendix 6.  

12.8 Once a purchaser is found, following confirmation in respect of proof of funding 

and ability to proceed then Heads of Terms (subject to contract) are to be 

agreed. The necessary authority to dispose will be sought at this point. 

 

12.9 Websites/marketing boards should be updated to reflect the property being 

‘under offer’ and the Legal team should be instructed by the relevant Property 

surveyor to prepare the relevant legal documentation. 

13.0 RESOURCE AND RISK IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 An individual disposal policy should set milestones, manage risk, and regularly 

report progress.  

 

13.2 The Disposal Policy will be delivered and supported by key officers in Property, 

Finance and Legal Services.  With regard to finance and legal resources, key 

activities will typically be delivered in-house to provide reassurance to the 

council ensuring that there are appropriate ‘checks and balances’ in place.  

Where appropriate, specialist external suppliers and advisors may be utilised – 

for example, for more complex legal transactions and the provision of specialist 

tax advice.  

 

13.3 Returns to the council will be impacted by the level of resource required and the 

particular disposal option authorised. 

 

13.4 There are inherent risks in property ownership and capital receipts derived from 

property and their capital value will increase and decrease in line with the 

market and their location and specification attributes.  The disposal report 

setting out all relevant information (i.e. the planning position, potential use, 

current or proposed development restrictions and estimated value of the 

subject property) will also consider the risks of ongoing property ownership 

weighed up against the level of returns expected, taking into account the point 

in the market cycle. 

14.0 CONCLUSION 

14.1 The Disposal policy will streamline the delivery of the SPR ensuring the council 

purely holds assets that support service delivery and corporate objectives. 

14.2 The Disposal policy will result in no longer holding assets that incur costs whilst 

not supporting service delivery. 

14.3 The financial returns in the form of capital receipts delivered from this policy will 

support the council in its delivery of essential services to residents.  

Page 195



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 14 of 34 

Appendix 1 

ASSET MANAGEMENT GROUP STRUCTURE 

 

Note: this is an advisory group. Formal decision making for any disposal will follow 

consideration by the group   

 

 

  

Cabinet 

Asset Management 

Group 

Property 

Recommendation 

Ward member 

consultation 

Membership 

Deputy Chief Executive - Place 

Head of Legal and Democratic 

Head of Finance 

Head of Development and Regeneration 

Two Cabinet members as decided by the Leader 

Page 196



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 15 of 34 

APPENDIX 2 

ENQUIRIES FOR MINOR LAND DISPOSALS 

1.0 Background  

1.1 The Property team receives a number of requests to purchase land for use 

either as gardens or for parking purposes. The challenges facing the council 

are to respond to enquiries in a timely way and to achieve a balanced and 

consistent approach to applications so as to ensure that disposals if they do 

occur do not have unintended consequences for adjacent occupiers and 

landowners. 

 

1.2 This sets out how disposals of small parcels of land, which typically may be 

council-owned amenity land, can be agreed/progressed.  

 

1.3 The attached procedure for disposing of parcels of council-owned land strikes a 

balance by setting out a transparent process for assessing applications and a 

fee and charges process so that the costs of considering an application are 

met. 

 

1.4 In the current climate of ongoing budget pressures, it is vital, that all local 

authorities make the most of their property assets. This proposal is consistent 

with this objective in that it ensures best value is obtained, covers the 

administrative costs of processing enquiries, and sets out an indicative 

timetable for processing enquiries. 

2.0 Proposed Procedure 

2.1 In cases where an enquiry is made to the council for the sale of a piece of land 

by a neighbouring owner and the land is surplus to requirements, is unlikely to 

have any developable or open market opportunity for sale and has a market 

value of less than £10,000, it is permissible (under FPR 61) in these instances 

with the agreement of the Chief Finance officer and Monitoring Officer to adopt 

‘confined negotiations’ with the adjacent or neighbouring owner to achieve the 

most advantageous financial result or for reasons of good estate management 

(e.g. if the land is ‘landlocked’ or is difficult or expensive to maintain). 

 

2.2 Furthermore, it is likely that the sale of such parcels of land will be considered 

where:  

 

 There is a broader community benefit to the disposal e.g. rationalisation of 

small parcels of ‘backland’ open space, either rarely used or often 

misused. 

Page 197



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 16 of 34 

 There are management/financial issues for the council e.g. that the land is 

costly to maintain. 

 The enquiring party has extenuating circumstances e.g. there are health 

grounds in relation to the application and/or progressing the sale of the 

land would improve the quality of life and would not adversely affect the 

quality of life of others in the neighbourhood. 

 

2.3 These owners are considered ‘special purchasers’ as these particular assets 

have special value to those owners only – the advantages arising from the 

ownership of a particular piece of land would unlikely be available to other 

buyers in a market.  It may also be in the council’s interest to initiate and/or 

pursue these minor disposals in order to reduce the ongoing maintenance 

liabilities and obligations associated with holding these (sometimes isolated) 

pockets of land. 

 

2.4 Each request should be dealt with on a case-by-case basis, but the following 

should be considered in every request: 

 

 A requirement to get obtain the ‘best price’ for the parcel of land 

 Whether any pre-emption rights exist 

 Whether market testing has or should take place 

 How the land is accessed (can the enquiring party gain access without 
going over other council-owned property)? 

 What the land is required for 

 Whether the land is a ransom-strip 

 Whether a disposal of the land would have a negative or positive impact 
on council operations or services, including maintenance 

 Would the disposal have a detrimental impact on the remaining land, 
where only a proportion has been requested 

 Is there any relevant historical background to the land? 

 Should any restrictive covenants or special conditions be attached to the 
disposal? 

 Is the land to be disposed of a revenue generating asset? 

3.0 Principles of Disposal 

3.1 The general principles to be applied for the disposal of minor land assets are as 
follows: 

 

 All disposals must follow council approval process. 

 Where negotiations on price are required, these should be conducted by 
the council’s surveyor and/or agent. 

 Advice should be sought from the council’s surveyor and/or agent on the 
most appropriate method of disposal. 

 Enquiring parties will be required to meet the council’s reasonable legal 
and other relevant professional fees as outlined below. 

  

Page 198



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 17 of 34 

 

ITEM FEE 

Initial Application fee  
£250 (refundable 

against sales price) 
Land valuation fee (varies depending upon complexity) £TBC 

Statutory Notice charges for disposal of public open space  £TBC 

Informal Pre-Application Planning review 
See Planning 
Portal 

Change of Use planning application fee  
See Planning 
Portal 

Council’s legal fees (varies depending upon complexity)  £TBC 

 
 

3.2 The level of fees chargeable will be reviewed annually. 
 
3.3 Fees need to be paid in advance of work being carried out and there are no 

exemptions. 
 
3.4 The fees are a contribution towards the cost of administering the applications 

and it is proposed that these would be non-refundable unless the enquiry leads 
to the open marketing of the property. 

 
3.5 It is proposed that an online application process is adopted for enquiries for 

minor land disposals, in order that application forms can be made available 
online or from the Property team.  A draft application form (Land Purchase 
Application Form) is attached, and it is proposed that forms would be 
completed by the enquiring party and returned to the Property helpdesk, 
together with the initial application fee, for uploading to Concerto before the 
case is allocated to the council’s Property surveyor.   

 
3.6 The process for deciding whether to progress with an enquiry will depend on 

the nature and value of the transaction and it should be made clear to the 
enquiring party, at every stage of the process, that the council is not obliged to 
sell the asset. 

 

4.0 Stage 1 - Application 

4.1 Once it has been established that it appears the council owns the land the 
enquiring party is interested in purchasing the Land Purchase Application Form 
will be issued. The Land Purchase Application Form should be returned to the 
Property team at the council with the applicant to ensure that the form is fully 
completed and signed/dated and is accompanied by an on-line payment for the 
non-refundable application fee (£250).  

 
4.2 The Guidance Notes forming part of the Land Purchase Application Form will 

assist with the correct completion of the application and the enquiring party 
should ensure that the proposed future intended use is accurately stated (to 
include any proposed method of enclosing the land) – the council’s internal 

Page 199



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 18 of 34 

processes will consult based upon this information and any subsequent 
changes may require a new application. 

 
4.3 The council will confirm receipt of the application and the Property team will 

check: 
 

 That the council owns the land the enquiring party is interested in 
purchasing.  

 Legal are instructed to prepare a title report to establish among other 
things that the title does not contain any restrictions that would prevent the 
sale.  

 That known ‘exclusions’ don’t apply (see Reasons for the council 
Retaining the Land Ownership see below).  

 That the council service department responsible for the land will support 
the sale.  

 
4.4 Subject to completion of the necessary steps outlined within this procedure, the 

Property team will then begin the consultation process with the local Ward, 
Town and Parish council elected members. Providing they are supportive of the 
sale proceeding, the relevant Cabinet Member will be informed. 

 
4.5 A quotation for the provision of a Red Book valuation of the subject piece of 

land will be obtained from external RICS Registered Valuers drawn from the 
council’s Panel of Surveyors if approval to the proposed sale is confirmed. 

 
4.6 It is at this stage that the enquiring party will then be advised whether or not the 

sale can progress to the next stage (to include the placing of any conditions 
upon which the sale can proceed) and, if relevant, any reasons for refusal.  

 
4.7 If the proposed sale is supported by the council, the enquiring party will be 

asked for confirmation as to whether they wish to proceed to the next stage 
(suggested time limit of 21 days for confirming this) and asked to supply the 
Valuation Fee due before the valuation can be instructed. 

 
(Indicative timescale for council’s decision 10-12 weeks) 
 
NOTE - Open market sale: The council is, with certain exceptions, obliged by law 
under the Local Government Act 1972, to sell land for the best price reasonably 
obtainable. This means that if, following consultation, it is considered that the land 
the enquiring party has asked to purchase could be of interest to other parties or 
could be sold for development land, the council must advertise it for sale on the open 
market. In such a case, the more usual disposal process as outlined in the council’s 
Disposal Policy should be adopted with the enquiring party to be sent sales details 
once prepared.  The enquiring party will be able to make an offer for the land during 
this marketing phase along with any other interested party. In such cases, it is 
proposed that the enquiring party’s initial application fee will be refundable. 

  

Page 200



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 19 of 34 

5.0 Stage 2  – Valuation 

5.1 The council is obliged by statute, under the Local Government Act 1972, to sell 
the land for the best price reasonably obtainable. In order to comply with this 
requirement, it will ascertain the market value of the land for the use proposed.  

 
5.2 Providing that the enquiring party has supplied the Valuation Fee within the 

indicated time limit, the council will appoint the successful RICS Registered 
Valuer to undertake the Red Book valuation of the land and, once produced, 
the Property team will then invite the enquiring party to make an offer to 
purchase the land based upon the valuation for the proposed use (subject to 
satisfactory completion of the following stages and subject to contract).  

 
5.3 As the valuation will be based upon the use that the enquiring party originally 

indicated, the proposed land sale may include strict conditions on the disposal 
(to ensure that it cannot be used for other/alternative purposes in the future). It 
should be pointed out to the enquiring party that if the sale completes with 
restrictions applied, it may be possible to remove these conditions at a later 
stage – subject to the council requiring the land is re-valued and any uplift in 
value paid prior to these restrictions being released, along with any cost 
incurred by the council in administering this.  
 

5.4 The enquiring party will be asked whether they wish to proceed to the next 
stage, (suggested time limit of 21 days for confirming this) and, if the disposal 
relates to Public Open Space - asked to supply the Statutory Notice Charges 
Fee due before the relevant advertisements can be placed. 

 
(Indicative timescale for confirmation of council’s decision 2-3 weeks) 

6.0 Stage 3 – Statutory Notices for Disposal of Public Open Space 

6.1 If the amenity land that the enquiring party would like to purchase is deemed to 
be Public Open Space, the council is obliged by statute under the Local 
Government Act 1972 to advertise the proposed sale within a local newspaper 
for two consecutive weeks and consider any objections received.  

 
6.2 In order to comply with this requirement, the necessary authority will be 

obtained and then the council will advertise the proposed land disposal within 
the appropriate media and the enquiring party will be required to pay for the 
charges associated with placing the advertisement. If objections are received 
following the advertisement, the matter will be referred to the relevant Cabinet 
Member for a decision. 
 

6.3 The enquiring party will be advised of the outcome of the Statutory Notices, 
whether or not the sale can proceed to the next stage and any reasons for 
refusal. If the proposed disposal is supported by the council, the enquiring party 
will be asked to secure planning permission, where required, for the change of 
use from Public Open Space to the proposed use. 

 
(Indicative timescale for council’s decision 4 - 5 weeks) 

Page 201



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 20 of 34 

7.0 Stage 4 – Planning Permission 

7.1 Planning consent may be required for change of use and/or development of the 
land that the enquiring party proposes to purchase or for other matters such as 
fencing and boundary treatment.  

 
7.2 The enquiring party is wholly responsible for finding out whether planning 

consent is required and should make their own enquiries with the council’s 
Development Control Planning team, highways, and any other authorities. It is 
the enquiring party’s responsibility to ensure that any consent required is 
gained. 

 
7.3 Planning offers a pre-application service which is an informal option as to 

whether planning permission is likely to be granted. Although there may be a 
charge for this service, the enquiring party may want to consider this option 
before making a formal application, as it could save time and money in the long 
run. 

 
7.4 The enquiring party may be required to serve notice on the council when the 

application is made and should be mindful that applications involving council 
owned-land have to be determined by Planning Committee which can impact 
on timescales for a decision (as the Planning Committee meet on average 
every 3 weeks). 
 

7.5 Once planning permission has been secured for change of use then the 
enquiring party must inform the council’s Property team, provide evidence that 
planning permission has been secured and confirm that they wish to proceed to 
the next stage.  

 
NOTE - Any decision by the council to sell the land is separate from any decision to 

grant planning consent and the enquiring party should not assume that 
planning consent will be granted automatically just because the council has 
agreed to sell the land and vice versa. 

 
(Indicative timescale 5-6 weeks but may vary depending on the Planning Committee 
cycle). 
 

8.0 Stage 5 – Sale Contract 

8.1    Approval will need to be sought form Chief Finance officer and Chief 
Monitoring officer following the requisite approvals process. The council will 
issue the enquiring party with a final offer letter, subject to contract, and the 
enquiring party will be given a time limit for confirming that they want to 
proceed.  

 
8.2 Once the enquiring party has confirmed that they wish to proceed, the council’s 

Legal team will be instructed to issue and complete the land transfer 
documentation. The enquiring party will be required to pay the council’s 
reasonable legal fees which will depend upon the complexity of the case, the 

Page 202



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 21 of 34 

time taken and the number and extent of queries that are received from the 
solicitors acting on behalf of the enquiring party. The Legal team will provide an 
indication of their fees and where appropriate will request an on account 
payment prior to commencing work. The enquiring party will also be 
responsible for charges and disbursements as well as land registry fees for 
registering the new land ownership and any stamp duty land tax post-
completion. The council’s Legal team will collect the land purchase price and 
any associated charges/fees not invoiced prior from the enquiring party as part 
of the land sale completion process. 
 

8.3 The acquiring party must appoint their own solicitors to deal with the land 
purchase and provide up to date contact details to the council.  

 
(Indicative timescale 8-12 weeks) 

9.0 Appeals 

9.1 There is no appeals procedure.  However, if the enquiring party feels that they 

have additional information or justification to support their application that has 

not previously been considered, it may be possible to process the application 

again, based on the new information. 

 

9.2 The enquiring party may be charged further administration fees if a revised 

application involves undertaking the consultation process again. 

 

The council reserves the right to review and amend this procedure at any time 

10.0 Reasons for the Council Retaining the Land Ownership 

10.1 In certain circumstances the council will not be able to consider an application 
for the purchase of amenity land. The majority of these circumstances are set 
out below: 

A) PLANNING AND HIGHWAYS CRITERIA 

 Land forms part of an existing or potential strategic or locally important 
open space. 

 Ward is deficient in public open space as defined in the adopted Local 
Plan. 

 Area contains a Scheduled Ancient Monument / Tree Preservation Order 
or encompasses Protected Hedgerows. 

 Land is subject to adopted Highway rights. 

 Land encompasses a right of way, cycle, or footpath. 

 Land has a title covenant that restricts its use or requires it to be retained 
as public open space. 

 Land sale will cause detrimental effects within neighbouring or nearby 
properties. 

 Boundary of land to be sold is shared by more than one neighbouring 
property. 

 

Page 203



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 22 of 34 

 

B) HEALTH AND SAFETY CRITERIA 

 Land sale will reduce the width of any public rights of way corridors. 

 Land sale will adversely affect highway sight lines. 

 Land forms part of riparian buffer zones or flood plain protection. 

 Land contains services or land drains and the sale of the land would incur 
additional costs for the council (e.g. re-siting of lamp posts or telephone 
cables). 

 

C) AMENITY CRITERIA 

 Area acts as a wildlife corridor 

 Land has specific habitat / species protection / biodiversity 

 Land sale would impact upon or cause loss of local amenity / recreational 
value 

 Land contains public art 

 Land acts as a residential buffer 

 Land is part of a SUDS or adjacent to a drainage system 
 

D) MAINTENANCE CRITERIA 

 Land sale would inhibit access to other council land and/or increase 
maintenance costs for any retained landscaped areas 

 Land sale would result in loss of trees / shrubs / hedges 
 

E) BEST VALUE CRITERIA 

 The land is suitable for development and / or may be of interest to other 
parties and best value will only be obtained if it is offered for sale on the 
open market 

 The council has other foreseeable operational use of the land 

 

F) OTHER 

 The land offers or would offer regeneration or development opportunities 
for the council 

 There are management or other issues that would cause inconvenience to 
the council if the land was to be sold 

 The applicant has outstanding debts with the council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 204



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 23 of 34 

Land Purchase Application Form  

 
Vale of White Horse District Council 
135 Eastern Avenue 
Milton Park 
Milton 
Oxfordshire OX14 4SB 
 
Tel: 01235 422660 
Email: property@southandvale.gov.uk 
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk 

Enquiry for Potential Purchase of  
Amenity Land – APPLICATION FORM 
 
 
FORM MUST BE COMPLETED IN CAPITALS USING BLACK INK 
 

 
Enquiring Party’s 
Full Name: 

 

Enquiring Party’s 
Address: 

 

Home Tel. No. :  
Mobile Tel. No. :  
Email Address:  

 
 
Address of Site:  

Comments:   
[Please draw an indicative sketch showing the approximate position of the land you are expressing an 
interest in, in relation to your property.  Use a separate sheet if necessary] 

Page 205

mailto:property@southandvale.gov.uk
http://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/


VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 24 of 34 

Proposed Use: 
 

 

Comments: 
[Please describe your proposed use as fully as possible and use a separate sheet if required] 
 

 
 
Proposed Boundary Features: 
[If you intend to enclose the land with boundary features, please identify/explain the proposed wall, 
fencing, hedging etc together with proposed dimensions and height.  Please use a separate sheet if 
required] 
 

 
 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE: 
 
Please complete the declaration below to confirm that you have read and fully understand the 
contents of the ‘Enquiries for Minor Land Disposals’ webpage produced by Vale of White 
Horse District Council.  This application is an initial enquiry only into a potential purchase of 
Council-owned land and does not constitute an offer or legally binding contract.  The matter is 
therefore subject to contract and the formal approval of the Council in accordance with its 
Constitution 
 
 
DECLARATION: 
 

Name: 
 

 

Signature: 
 

 

Date: 
 

 

 
 
 
ONCE FULLY COMPLETED AND SIGNED, PLEASE SUBMIT THE FORM TO THE ADDRESS AT 
THE TOP OF THIS FORM TOGETHER WITH PAYMENT OF £250 (THE INITIAL APPLICATION 
FEE) TO: 
 
[Bank account Details to be inserted] 

 
By Checking this box  you agree to the terms and conditions and also confirmed you have 
reviewed our Privacy Policy on how we treat the information you have provided to us.  

  

Page 206



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 25 of 34 

APPENDIX 3  

PUBLIC OPEN SPACE DISPOSALS 

1.0 Background 

1.1 Section 10 of the Open Spaces Act 1906 states: 

 

"A local authority who have acquired any estate or interest or control over any open 

space or burial ground under this Act shall, subject to any conditions under which the 

estate, interest or control was acquired: 

(a)    hold and administer the open space or burial ground in trust to allow, and with a 

view to, the enjoyment thereof by the public as an open space within the 

meaning of this Act and under proper control and regulation and for no other 

purpose; and 

(b)    maintain and keep the open space or burial ground in a good and decent 

state…" 

 

1.2 The case of Muir v Wandsworth Borough Council [2017] EWHC 1947 (Admin) 

(28 July 2017) provided guidance to local authorities on the scope of the 

restrictions that apply to disposals of open spaces. 

 

1.3 Further, open space is defined in the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 

any land ‘laid out as a public garden, or used for the purposes of public 

recreation, or land which is a disused burial ground’.  It is generally considered 

to be a valuable community resource, to be enjoyed by the wider community 

and there will be a general presumption against the disposal of these assets. 

 

1.4 The council will not normally dispose of any core recreational open spaces by 

way of freehold transfers, but may consider applications for the disposal of 

‘incidental’ open space and areas of landscaping, particularly where it will 

improve the management of land benefitting the wider public or where a 

disposal would remedy the anomalies of past land sales, acquisitions and 

transfers. 

 

1.5 It is anticipated that potential disposals of this ‘incidental’ land to enquiring 

parties will generally follow the principles outlined in Appendix 2 (Enquiries for 

Minor Land Disposals) with the requirement that any proposed disposal of 

public open space be adequately advertised. 

  

Page 207



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 26 of 34 

2.0 Procedure 

2.1 In the event that a disposal of ‘incidental’ public space is proposed (typically 

where the area in question does not provide a valued opportunity for sport, 

recreation or leisure), there is a legal requirement for the council to give notice 

of the intention to dispose by placing a notice in a local newspaper for two 

consecutive weeks and consider any objections that are received as a result. 

 

2.2 All costs of advertising the proposed sale must be met by the enquiring party. 

 

2.3 Any objections that are received must be adequately considered. 

 

2.4 In agreeing to the disposal of such land, the council should consider whether 

the personal safety for users of any remaining nearby open space will be 

detrimentally affected (e.g., where a narrow alleyway is created).  Furthermore, 

sales which lead to a loss or destruction of the visual quality of the surrounding 

area should not be contemplated unless there are covenants imposed on the 

sale to retain the open nature of the landscaped area and/or to require certain 

standards of new boundary fencing, walling or delineation are met. 

  

Page 208



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 27 of 34 

APPENDIX 4 

COMMUNITY ASSET TRANSFERS POLICY 

1.0 Background 

1.1. A Community Asset Transfer involves the transfer of management and/or 

ownership of property/land asset from the council to a third party (community or 

voluntary) organisation.  Such transactions are typically conducted through a 

lease arrangement or, in largely exceptional circumstances, ownership of a 

community-based asset at less than best consideration in order to achieve a 

public benefit and/or unlock ‘social value’. 

 

1.2. Third party organisations eligible for Community Asset Transfers include 

registered charities, parish and town councils and community groups.  Such 

groups must be properly constituted and must be a legal entity capable of 

entering into a lease agreement with the council. 

 

1.3. This policy does not cover the ‘Community Right to Bid’ which was introduced 

in the Localism Act 2011 which has its own legal process and is discussed 

within the main framework of the council’s Disposal Policy document. 

2.0 Best Consideration v Social Value 

2.1 Although the council is usually required to dispose or transfer its land and 

property assets on the basis of obtaining the best consideration reasonably 

obtainable, disposal at an undervalue of up to £2m is permissible provided the 

council considers that a disposal will help it secure the promotion or 

improvement of the economic , social or environmental well-being of its area. 

 

2.2 Social value in the context of the council’s Community Asset Transfer Policy is 

about ensuring that when a council-owned property is transferred to a third 

party organisation, the business case for the transfer explains how it will help 

maximise economic, social and/or environmental benefits to local residents, the 

neighbourhood and/or the community. 

3.0 Principles of Community Asset Transfers 

3.1   The council holds a number of community assets which include parks, play 

areas, allotments, toilets, and shelters which may be suitable for transfer, 

subject to the Community Asset Transfer process. 

 

3.2  However, not all assets will be capable of transfer to third party organisations 

and circumstances of where Community Asset Transfers may not be possible 

are given as examples below: 

Page 209



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 28 of 34 

 

 The asset is surplus but proceeds of sale are required as a capital receipt 

to fund the council’s capital programme. 

 The asset is held by the council to earn revenue in the form of 

rental/receipts income which in turn is used to fund service delivery. 

 The asset is held for regeneration projects. 

 The asset is held to support housing requirements. 

 The asset is required for operational purposes for use by the council. 

 

3.3. It is the council’s role to determine whether an asset may be released for 

Community Asset Transfer or not. 

 

3.4. The key principles for the council’s Community Asset Transfer policy are: 

 

 Any transfer application must support the aims and priorities of the council 

as set out in its Corporate Plan. 

 Community Asset Transfer is not an automatic right and all applications 

will be treated on a case by case basis. 

 Approved transfers will generally be on a leasehold basis and although 

freehold transfers may be considered, such transactions are likely only in 

exceptional circumstances. 

 Some transfer applications may require committee approval in addition to 

the decision-making process outlined further in this Appendix 4. 

 

3.5. The reasons for a Community Asset Transfer may include: 

 

 Supporting the third-party organisation to continue delivery of a key 

activity for residents when the transfer will allow the organisation to bid for 

and secure funds and/or to support a more sustainable business model. 

 Supporting the third-party organisation to deliver a specific service in line 

with the council’s objectives where the service can best be provided 

through a council-owned asset. 

 Protecting a heritage or otherwise important council asset that may fall 

into disrepair if stewardship is not provided by a third sector organisation. 

 When a third-party organisation is considered to be best placed to provide 

an alternative delivery model for an existing council service from an 

existing council-owned asset. 

 

 

  

Page 210



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 29 of 34 

Benefits to Community Benefits to Council Benefits to Third Party 
Organisation 

Increased/improved local 
based service provision 

More efficient use of a 
public-sector asset (the use 
of volunteers and their local 
knowledge and hands-on 
management can result in 
lower overheads/VFM) 

Increased sustainability for 
organisations and increased 
leverage with other public 
and private sector 
organisations – a well-
managed asset can provide 
a third sector organisation 
with greater financial 
viability and reduce 
dependency on grants 

Improved sense of 
community identity/pride 
and potential for improved 
community cohesion 

Enables external 
organisations to 
complement public service 
provision in ways that are 
more responsive and better 
related to local need 

Enables an external 
organisation to apply for 
funding that is not available 
to the council and/or even to 
secure loan finance on the 
value of the asset 
 
 

Benefits to Community 
(cont.) 

Benefits to Council (cont.) Benefits to Third Party 
Organisation (cont.) 

Potential to provide 
additional jobs, training, and 
business opportunities 
locally 

Enables effective 
partnerships between public 
sector and third sector 
organisations to enhance 
local services 

Facilitates collaboration and 
resource sharing amongst 
organisations 

Contribution to physical 
regeneration 

  

Potential to increase skills, 
confidence, and aspirations 
locally 

  

 

4.0 Application Process 

4.1. The council is responsible for ensuring that a transfer of the asset achieves not 

only the reason for the transfer but also that the community organisation has 

demonstrated that they have the skills and financial stability to become a new 

custodian of the council-owned asset. 

 

4.2. Only recognised third sector organisations should apply and evidence of the 

applicant’s status will be required as part of the application process described 

below. 

 

4.3. STAGE 1 – EXPRESSION OF INTEREST (‘EOI STAGE’) 

 

4.3.1. To be submitted by the applicant with the following information provided, in 

order that the council can decide whether formal application for a Community 

Asset Transfer is appropriate: 

 

Page 211



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 30 of 34 

 confirmation that the applicant is a third sector organisation 

 summary details of the third sector organisation, where they are based, 

their purpose, their service offer and an outline of the outcomes they 

expect to achieve 

 details of the council-owned land or building asset that the organisation 

is interested in, what service delivery they intend to provide and brief 

details of the proposed transfer 

 an explanation of why the organisation is applying for a Community 

Asset Transfer  

 a declaration to confirm the applicant organisation has read and 

understood the Community Asset Transfer policy, can evidence their 

support and promotion of the council’s vision, values and objectives, is 

able to provide a robust and sustainable business case and has the 

experience or necessary resources to manage the asset. 

 

4.3.2. The EOI Stage information will be assessed by the council.  All ward 

councillors will be consulted on the EOI and the applicant will be notified of 

the decision ideally within 15 working days of receipt of the EOI application. 

 

4.4. STAGE 2 – TRANSFER APPLICATION  

 

4.4.1. Once a third sector organisation has been notified that the EOI Stage 

application has been successful, it may proceed to full application.  

Information required at this stage includes: 

 

 Full details of the organisation’s intended use of the building and how it 

can be used to raise additional funds and achieve additional social 

value aligned to the council’s aims and objectives. 

 Full details of when these benefits will be achieved and how they will be 

monitored and reported to the council. 

 Evidence to support a local demand for the service. 

 Full details of the organisations experience in managing property and 

providing the intended service including governance and constitution 

arrangements. 

 Full details of the applicants transfer requirements and proposed lease 

terms. 

 Full details of the organisations business case. 

 Identification and mitigation of any risks associated with the transfer. 

 

4.4.2. Authorisation to this transfer will be required by Chief Financial Officer and 

Chief Monitoring Officer under FPR 61.  Once obtained a DA will be required 

approved by Head of Development and Regeneration. 

 

4.4.3. The Community Asset Transfer will be assessed by the council and the 

requisite authority obtained then the third sector party will normally be 

Page 212



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 31 of 34 

expected to be notified of the decision within 30 working days of the council 

receiving the Transfer Application. 

5.0 Decision Making Process 

5.1. It is important that a consistent, transparent, and well-structured approach is 

taken and that economic, social, or environmental benefits will be obtained by 

the council in place of a financial return. 

 

5.2. The council must seek to assess: 

 

 The best consideration that would otherwise be receivable under normal 

market conditions, i.e. the financial value of the disposal to the council if 

the use of the property were not restricted 

 The financial value likely to be received on the proposed terms and 

conditions of the application; and 

 Any direct and indirect social value benefits associated with the disposal 

(economic, social, or environmental benefits), expressed in monetary 

terms wherever possible. 

 

5.3. The focus then turns to whether the social value benefits assessed at C) match 

or exceed the financial undervalue (i.e. the value at A) less the value at B)). 

 

5.4. Each application is to be reviewed by the Property team with additional input by 

the relevant council team, who benefit from or may be impacted by the 

application.  Feedback from ward councillors will also be considered. 

 

5.5. Successful applicants will be required to sign an undertaking to monitor or 

evidence that the social value proposal in their application is being achieved 

and to provide a report on their findings to the council at least annually. 

 

5.6. The council reserves the right to review the terms of the transfer if the third 

sector organisation is found to be failing to meet the social value elements of 

the agreement. 

 

5.7. New opportunities for Community Asset Transfers should be identified by the 

council and advertised through the website and by press release where 

appropriate. 

  

Page 213



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 32 of 34 

 

APPENDIX 5 

CRICHEL DOWN RULES 

1.0 Background 

1.1 In 2015 the Department for Communities and Local Government updated a 

circular entitled “Compulsory Purchase and the Crichel Down Rules” which 

prescribed the way in which all Government departments and executive 

agencies that are subject to a power of direction from a Minister must manage 

the disposal of land previously acquired by the use of compulsory powers. 

Local authorities, which are not subject to a ministerial power of direction, are 

not subject to such a prescription but are still recommended to also follow the 

rules. 

 

1.2 In particular the General Rule of these guidelines states that “where a 

department wishes to dispose of land to which the Rules apply, former owners 

will, as a general rule, be given the first opportunity to repurchase the land 

previously in their ownership, provided that its character has not materially 

changed since acquisition.”  Disposals to former owners under these 

arrangements will be at current market value. 

 

1.3 This principle was established in the 1954 Crichel Down case and has been 

used as a guideline ever since. 

 

1.4 It is recommended that the council has regard to these rules when disposing of 

land that was formerly acquired by compulsory means subject to the following 

guidance. 

2.0 Stage 1 Identification of land 

2.1 Crichel Down rules relate to land that has been compulsorily acquired by the 

council and is no longer required, subject to the following exceptions: 

 Agricultural land acquired before the 1st April 1935. 

 Agricultural land acquired on or after the 30 October 1992 that becomes 

surplus to requirements more than 25 years after its acquisition. 

 Non-agricultural land that becomes surplus and available for disposal 

more than 25 years after its acquisition. 

 Land that has materially changed since acquisition. 

 Land where boundaries of agricultural land have been obliterated. 

 

2.2 The date of acquisition is the date of the conveyance, transfer, or vesting 

declaration. 

Page 214



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 33 of 34 

 

2.3 There is also an exception in relation to the disposal of small areas of land where 

the attempted identification of an absent former owner who has now disposed of 

his/her interest in land adjacent to the subject property would be out of 

proportion to the value of the land. Only where the current market value of the 

subject is likely to exceed the value of £25,000 will the council be obliged to take 

steps as specified within the Rules to identify a previous owner. 

 

2.4 Despite these exceptions it is acknowledged it may still be appropriate to first 

offer to the adjacent landowner unless there are overriding local circumstances 

or best value may not be achieved. 

 

2.5 Recent guidance indicates that the Rules will not apply where land is to be 

transferred to another body which is to take over some or all of the functions or 

obligations of the authority that currently owns the land. In this case the transfer 

itself does not constitute a “disposal” for the purpose of the Rules. 

 

2.6 Disposals for the purposes of Private Finance Initiative/Private Public 

Partnership projects also do not fall within the Rules and the position of any 

land surplus once the project has been completed would be subject to the 

Private Finance Initiative/Private Public Partnership contract. 

3.0 Stage 2 Consultation 

3.1 Consultation shall take place with Asset Management Group. 

 

3.2 Local Authorities as previously stated are not under a statutory obligation to 

comply with the Crichel Down rules. Therefore, any compliance with these rules 

will be at the discretion of Head of Development and Regeneration in 

consultation with the Head of Legal and Democratic. 

 

3.3 For instance where it is concluded that there is an overriding local or 

community interest such as a disposal to a parish council, registered charity or 

other properly constituted body where best value may not be achieved, then 

upon the direction of the Head of Property disposal may proceed to such a 

body even when it was not the former owner of the property. 

  

Page 215



VWHDC Land and Property Asset Disposal Policy – September 2021_v1 Page 34 of 34 

APPENDIX 6 

SCORING MATRIX 

Bidder Price Score 
(55) 

Board 
Approval 

Score 
(10) 

Due 
Diligence 

Score 
(10) 

Community 
Value 

Score 
(25) 

Total 
(100) 

 

 

 

 

Page 216



Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Head of Service James Carpenter 

Author: Suzi Wild 

Telephone: 07919 381609 

E-mail: suzi.wild@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Bethia Thomas 

Tel: 07906 821680 

E-mail: Bethia.Thomas@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date: 1 October 2021 

 

 

Partnership grant scheme – future 

options for the scheme 

Recommendations 

That Cabinet agrees to: 
 
1. Commission information and advice services from 2023 onwards (budget 

permitting) 
 
2. Extend the current partnership grants to Oxfordshire South and Vale Citizen’s 

Advice Bureau and Wantage Independent Advice Centre (now known as Vale 
Community Impact) and Community First Oxfordshire towards the provision of 
services across the district in 2022/23.   

 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of the report is to seek a decision from Cabinet on the future of the 
council’s Partnership Grant Scheme. 

Corporate Objectives  

2. The council’s partnership grant scheme supports the corporate plan objective of 
building healthy communities. It also supports the equality objective to support 
communities to deliver better outcomes for disadvantaged groups and encourage 
community cohesion. 

Page 217

Agenda Item 11

mailto:suzi.wild@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Bethia.Thomas@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Background 

1. The council has for many years provided funding for organisations to provide 
community advice, support and outreach services in the district.  This has been in the 
form of a partnership grant for which there is currently a budget of £154,920 per 
annum. 

2. According to our records there was no formal policy in place for determining which 
organisations would receive funding and the terms of any grant. The council has 
therefore reduced the number of these grants over the years to those where we have 
ongoing commitments.  

3. The organisations currently receiving funding are as follows:   

 Oxfordshire South and Vale Citizen’s Advice Bureau (CAB) £88,920 to deliver 
advice services across the district. 
 

 Wantage Independent Advice Centre (WIAC) now known as Vale Community 
Impact (VCI) £58,000 to deliver advice services across the district. 

 Community First Oxfordshire £8,000 to offer outreach support and training 
programmes to community organisations across the district 

4. This funding comes to an end this financial year (March 2022).    

5. The Options for consideration are: 

a) Continue with the status quo, funding the three organisations currently in receipt 
of a partnership grant delivering information and advice services for 12 months 
(within the constraints of the budget). 

b) Commission an organisation to provide the advice and support services 
currently provided by the existing recipients or some of them. 

c) Develop a policy for the funding that reflects the new corporate priorities and 
invite all local VCS organisations to apply. 
 

d) Close the current scheme, or reduce the value of the scheme, given the 
council’s other financial pressures. 

Option A: Considerations and risks of continuing with the status quo for 
12 months 

6. By offering the current recipients of a partnership grant for 12 months, our communities 
will continue to benefit from the support and advice they offer as the long-term 
implications of the pandemic become ever clearer. It will also help to put these 
organisations’ minds at rest that subject to a successful business case and thorough 
review of their targets, the scheme will remain closed to them, as their resources will 
continue to be stretched supporting our residents.  

7. This approach though does not address the current issues with the scheme, most 
prominently avoiding duplication in service delivery and funding or being able to better 
influence service delivery and therefore outcomes for residents. As the grant primarily 

Page 218



provides funding towards an organisation’s running costs rather than towards specific 
services. Officers could look to review the service delivery of the current grant 
recipients to establish if there is and where there are duplication of services. In 
addition, as part of the application process, we could look to encourage the current 
grant recipients to work together to develop their targets in partnership with the council 
to help avoid duplication in service delivery, where possible. 

8. The continued absence of a policy for offering partnership funding could open up the 
council to criticism from Vale VCS organisations that the council is not transparent in 
the process or fair in the opportunity to apply. However, there is not time to write and 
approve a policy and open up the scheme before the end of the financial year which 
would then result in gaps in funding for the current organisations.  Officers could, over 
the next 12 months, look to establish a fair and transparent process for the scheme 
from 2023 onwards.  

 

Option B: Considerations and risks of commissioning advice and 
support services from one organisation  

11. Commissioning VCS organisations to provide key services is clearly not a new 
initiative in the public sector as the following examples show: 

 Calderdale Council - voluntary sector commissioning programme (2021-24), a 
strategic grants and commissioning programme and the council has contracted 
advice services since April 2014. 

 Cheltenham Borough Council – currently commissioning additional universal youth 
work services in 2021 across Cheltenham (£60,000 budget) with the principles and 
practices of commissioning embedded in the council’s structure. 

 Newcastle City Council - £50.5million (14 per cent) of the council's spend on 
contracts and grants was with Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) organisations 
(2019/2020) 

 Oxford City Council - ‘Commissioning arts and cultural organisations programme’ 
(2019 – 2021) two-year funding of up to and including £35,000 per year (maximum 
£70,000 over the period 2019/2020 and 2020/21) 

12. This option is likely to attract interest from the current partnership grant recipients. 
Securing a contract would offer financial and operational stability for the successful 
organisation and ensure a continuous and consistent service for our residents. 

13. Commissioning advice and support services from one organisation would remove any 
duplication in funding and service delivery, which is a risk with the current approach. 
VCS organisations have a clear understanding of the specific services they are 
tendering to provide. By funding programmes as opposed to running costs, it would 
also encourage organisations to reduce their ongoing financial dependency on the 
Council by exploring their delivery and funding models. 

14. We could invite consortia bids to encourage the current recipients to collaborate, but 
despite the longer term financial and operational security of this approach, it may not 
be welcomed by them.  

Page 219



15. Any of the current recipients that are unsuccessful would need some time to respond 
and adapt to any shortfall in funding. 

16. The procurement approach required would take approximately eight months to 
complete (possibly longer), so to avoid any financial or operational difficulties for the 
current recipients a further extension (12 months) on their 21/22 grant would be 
needed. 

17. A commission - based approach could generate interest and tenders from national 
VCS organisations who lack the local insight of and presence in the district. This could 
lead to disruption in services for our most vulnerable residents and could damage the 
council’s relationship with local Vale VCS organisations not successful in tendering for 
the contact. We can mitigate this through the procurement process as we can reserve 
contracts for local providers with clear justification. Please note this approach is only 
possible for contracts below £189,330. 

18. Whilst commissioning is not new for the VCS sector, it is likely to be a new approach 
for the smaller VCS organisations across the Vale who might lack the capacity or 
confidence to submit a tender. However, Oxfordshire Community and Voluntary Action 
can support organisations new to the commissioning process. 

19. There is potentially a reputational risk to the council as commissioning can sometimes 
be viewed as a way of reducing service provision due to tightening budgets. However, 
there are no plans to reduce the current budget.  This approach is ultimately about 
delivering better outcomes for our residents, where there’s the greatest need and 
delivered by VCS organisations best placed to address them. It’s also moving away 
from encouraging a reliance on grant giving bodies for future survival. 

20. There is a risk that the council may not be able to restrict tenders to VCS organisations 
only, which would allow small and medium-sized enterprises (SME’s) to tender. We 
can mitigate this through the procurement process, as we can stipulate Oxfordshire 
VCSs only, but only for contracts below £189,330. Taking this approach would also 
mean we would not be able to accept any bids from surrounding counties even if just 
over the Oxfordshire border. However, if providing face to face services is part of the 
specification then the opportunity is unlikely to attract interest from outside the area. 

Option C: Considerations and risks of developing a policy and opening 
up the scheme 

21. This will involve drafting and agreeing a policy before being able to invite new 
applications for funding. The earliest this can happen is 3 December Cabinet, due to 
Committee cycle. This would not allow sufficient time to invite, evaluate applications 
and make funding decisions before the end of the financial year. This would lead to 
gaps in funding for the current recipients. However, these organisations have been 
asked to share their plans for how they will fund their services in 2022/2023 when there 
is no council grant to rely on.  We are expecting to see and review these mid-October. 

22. Alternatively, if the council wishes to continue to fund the current VCS organisations 
whilst the new scheme is implemented, we could extend the current arrangement for a 
further 12 months.  

23. Applications would be open to all VCS organisations, with a transparent policy and 
process. However, it is likely to result in more eligible applications than the current 

Page 220



budget can support, so we would risk disappointing organisations that are supporting 
very worthy causes in the district. 

24. Inviting applications for funding can create ongoing dependencies, which the council 
may not be able to support in the future.  

Option D: Considerations and risks of closing or reducing the value of 
the scheme 

25. This would support the Corporate Plan priority to build stable finances but conversely 
not our priority to build healthy communities.  

26. Closing the scheme or reducing the value of the pot available would cause operational 
and financial difficulties to the organisations currently in receipt of partnership funding. 
That said, the need to set out a plan for their future financial sustainability has been 
well trailed. Equally, it could also drive creativity and innovation in the sector.    

27. Officers are conscious that a reduction in funding could result in a reduction in the 
services and support offered in the district to residents. An identifiable risk could be that 
issues are handed over to the Council to deal with in areas where the VCS “fills the 
gap”. This could increase demands on council staff as our residents seek support 
directly from us. As set out previously, to help to mitigate against a reliance on council 
funding, a condition on this year’s funding was for the current recipients to provide a 
plan for how the organisation will fund their services in 2022/2023.  These will be 
helpful to us in developing our approach further. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

28. A partnership grant scheme could offer positive opportunities to contribute to the 
council’s climate emergency work through contractual agreements or targets to reduce 
carbon emissions where possible. Mindful that the annual budget is relatively modest, 
targets to support our Corporate Plan priorities will be proportionate to the grant or 
contact awarded and relevant to the organisation and the services provided.  

Financial Implications 

29. The council has had an ongoing partnership grants budget to fund VCS organisations 
for a number of years now. £154,920 per annum is included in the medium-term 
financial plan for 2022/2023 to 2024/2025, subject to the annual budget setting 
process.  

30. Due to the likely contract values in Option B commissioning model, we would need to 
go down the national ‘Find a Tender’ service with an estimated timescale from 
tendering to approval of eight months. 

31. Any council decision that has financial implications must be made with the knowledge 
of the council’s overarching financial position. For Vale, the position reflected in the 
council’s medium-term financial plan (MTFP) as reported to Full Council in February 
2021 showed that the council is due to receive £2.6 million less in revenue funding than 
it plans to spend in 2021/22 (with the balance coming from reserves including 
unallocated New Homes Bonus).  

Page 221



32. This funding gap is predicted to increase to over £5 million by 2025/26. As there 
remains no certainty on future local government funding, following the announcement 
of a one-year spending review by government, and as the long-term financial 
consequences of the Coronavirus pandemic remain unknown, this gap could increase 
further. Every financial decision made needs to be cognisance of the need to eliminate 
this funding gap in future years. 

33. Whilst at face value a reduction in the value of the scheme could deliver a saving, this 
has to be offset against the risk outlined above of the work defaulting back to the 
council in the absence of delivery by VCS partners. 

Legal Implications 

34. The council will need to follow the council’s contract procedure and procurement rules 
if it wishes to go down the commissioning route. Contracts would also need to be 
drawn up with the successful organisations, however this is no different to the current 
scheme arrangements.  

35. Should the current partnership scheme remain, legal agreements with the successful 
organisations would be required following approval of a successful business case. 
Successful organisations will also need to ensure compliance to the subsidy control 
regime. 

Other implications 

36. In line with the public sector equality duties, we have considered the implications of a 
one-year partnership grant extension for the three current recipients with a view to 
moving towards a commissioning model from 2023 (budget depending), officers will 
continue to regularly monitor the grants or contracts awarded to include both six-month 
and twelve-month review. Officers are of the view that no groups will be disadvantaged 
by this decision. All organisations the council funds through this scheme help to 
advance equality of opportunity for the communities they provide services for. 

Conclusion 

37.Considering the issues with the current approach whilst equally being mindful of budget 
     and time constraints, officers are recommending a blend of option a and b.  This would 

involve extending the grant term for the three organisations currently in receipt of a 
partnership grant whilst a commissioning programme is implemented.  

 

Background Papers 

 None  

 

Page 222



Cabinet Report 

 
Report of Acting Deputy Chief Executive - Partnerships 

Author: Susan Harbour 

Telephone: 07717 346920 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422 422 

E-mail: susan.harbour@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: Sutton Courtenay, Drayton and Blewbury & Harwell 

 

Cabinet member responsible: Neil Fawcett 

Tel: 01235 422 422 

E-mail: neil.fawcett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Date: 1 October 2021 

 

 

Revision of Science Vale Enterprise Zone 

accountable body memorandum of 

understanding  

Recommendations 

That cabinet agrees: 
 
1. that the Vale council should enter into a revised memorandum of understanding 

(MOU) with Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership and Oxfordshire County 
Council for the retention and distribution of business rates growth income from the 
Science Vale Enterprise Zone. 

 
2. that authority to finalise terms of the revised MOU and to enter into it, is delegated 

to the Deputy Chief Executive - Partnerships in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Strategic Partnerships and Place. 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To request that cabinet notes that the existing Science Vale Enterprise Zone 
accountable body memorandum of understanding (MOU) with Oxfordshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership Ltd (OxLEP) and Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) for the 
retention and distribution of business rates growth income from the Science Vale 
Enterprise Zone (also known as EZ1), requires updating. 

2. To request that the cabinet agrees that the Vale council should enter into a revised 
memorandum of understanding (MOU) with OxLEP and Oxfordshire County Council for 

Page 223

Agenda Item 12

mailto:susan.harbour@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:neil.fawcett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


the retention and distribution of business rates growth income from the Science Vale 
Enterprise Zone.    

Corporate Objectives  

3. Entering into a revised MOU supports the Vale of White Horse District Council's 
corporate objective: 'Work in partnership to influence and shape regional and national 
agendas to maximise opportunities for our communities and businesses'. 

Background 

4. In 2011, following a competitive process, government named Science Vale as an 
enterprise zone, based on sites at Milton Park and Harwell Campus. OxLEP with the 
support of the Vale council, made the bid for enterprise zone status, and has overall 
responsibility for the delivery of the zone. Enterprise zone status brought a number of 
advantages for businesses locating to the zone, such as business rate discounts. 

5. Government legislation and policy allows all business rate growth within the Science 
Vale Enterprise Zone to be retained locally to 2038, for reinvestment in the local area, 
in accordance with OxLEP’s economic priorities. A local authority must be nominated to 
be the accountable body for the retained business rates for audit and accounting 
purposes. The accountable body is also expected to undertake the following tasks: 

 Prepare and revise estimates of additional business rates income generated in 
the enterprise zone for OxLEP; 

 Report actual additional business rates income retained to the LEP; 

 Agree with OxLEP, and Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) as OxLEP’s 
accountable body, mechanisms to disburse the retained business rates income 
to OxLEP. 

6. In 2013 cabinet agreed that the Vale council should act as accountable body and in 
2014, the council entered into an accountable body MOU with OxLEP and Oxfordshire 
County Council for the retention and distribution of business rates growth income from 
the Science Vale Enterprise Zone. 

7. Since 2014 there have been a number of changes to the governance and corporate 
structure of the Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership, which are relevant to the 
MOU.  

8. Therefore, there is a need to revise and update the MOU. Officers, in consultation with 
OxLEP and Oxfordshire County Council have drafted a proposed revised MOU. A copy 
of the proposed revised MOU is attached as appendix A. 

Options 

9. Not to enter into a revised MOU – the existing MOU could continue but its wording 
would not accurately record the way in which the council now works with OxLEP and 
Oxfordshire County Council in respect of the retention and distribution of business 
rates growth income from the Science Vale Enterprise Zone. 

Page 224



10. To no longer be the accountable body - the enterprise zone is wholly within the 
council’s area, and the council manages and promotes the enterprise zone. As billing 
authority, the council will in any event have to account for the retained business rates, 
and it is well placed to forecast future receipts. 

Financial Implications 

11. The existing MOU and the proposed revised MOU sets out those costs that can 
reasonably be recharged to OxLEP. Any other costs incurred by the council, we will 
meet from existing resources. This is in line with OxLEP’s and government’s 
expectation that all Oxfordshire local authorities will support OxLEP in delivering its 
objectives. 

Legal Implications 

12. The Non-Domestic Rating (Designated Areas) Regulations 2013 provide Vale council, 
as billing authority, with the power to retain additional business rates generated in the 
enterprise zone area over and above a baseline quoted in those regulations for use by 
OxLEP. 

13. If the Vale council acts as the accountable body an MOU is needed between Vale 
council, OxLEP and Oxfordshire County Council that determines the arrangements for 
managing the retained business rates collected in the enterprise zone area. The 
council is required to act properly in the expenditure of such funds and in accordance 
with statute and the principles of democratic and financial accountability. 

14. A memorandum of understanding provides this accountability and also provides clarity 
for all parties about how they can work together effectively. It can be terminated by one 
or all the parties without legal consequences. 

Risks 

15. There is a risk that OxLEP will commit retained business rates income that does not 
materialise. This will be managed through ensuring that estimates of retained business 
rates income are robust and prudent. 

Conclusion 

16. Cabinet is asked to agree that the Vale council should enter into a revised 
memorandum of understanding (MOU) with Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership 
and Oxfordshire County Council for the retention and distribution of business rates 
growth income from the Science Vale Enterprise Zone. 

Appendix A 

Proposed revised memorandum of understanding (MOU) with Oxfordshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership and Oxfordshire County Council for the retention and 
distribution of business rates growth income from the Science Vale Enterprise Zone. 

Background Papers 

   Cabinet report, 6th December 2013 

 

Page 225



1 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING is made on 2021 

BY AND BETWEEN THE 

PARTIES: 
 

(1) OXFORDSHIRE LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP LTD 
(“OxLEP”) 

 

(2) 
 

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL of 135 Eastern Avenue. 
Milton Park. Milton. OX14 4SB (“Vale”) 

 

(3) 
 

OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL of County Hall, New Road, 
Oxfordshire OX1 1ND (“OCC”) 

 

each a “Party” and together known as the “Parties”. 
 

1 Introduction and Background 

 
1.1 This memorandum of understanding (MoU) sets out the arrangements between the 

Vale of White Horse District Council (the Vale), Oxfordshire Local Enterprise 
Partnership (OxLEP) and Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) for the retention and 
distribution of business rates growth income from designated sites in the Vale of 
White Horse district that together constitute the Science Vale UK Enterprise Zone1.  
 

1.2 This MoU replaces the MoU between the Vale, OxLEP and OCC in 2014. A new MoU 
is required to take account of changes to OxLEP’s Governance and Working 
Arrangements.  
 

1.3 OxLEP was established in 2011 with the aim of encouraging enterprise in the 
Oxfordshire economy, helping to create more sustainable, value adding jobs and 
removing barriers to growth.  It is a primary partnership between the business 
community and local government. OxLEP was incorporated in March 2015 as a private 
company limited by guarantee. 
 

1.4 The Governance and Working Arrangements of OxLEP are attached as Schedule One 
hereto. 

 
1.5 Science Vale UK includes two enterprise zones amounting to 216 hectares (ha).  

This was achieved through two successful OxLEP bids to Government in 2012 and 
2016.  Science Vale UK (EZ1) comprises a single site of 93 ha on the Harwell 
Campus and nine separate development sites at Milton Park amounting to 21 ha.  A 
map detailing the EZ sites is attached at Annex A. 

 

1.6 Enterprise zone status means that additional business rates income earned within 
each zone over a 25-year period will be retained locally and will be spent on 
economic priorities.  For EZ1 this retention period runs from 1st April 2013 to 31st 
March 2038. 

 
1.7 The OxLEP Board is responsible for determining how business rates achieved 

through growth in the Enterprise Zone are spent. It does this by setting an 
overarching investment strategy for Oxfordshire whilst ensuring that there are clear 
governance, management and delivery arrangements in place. Government has 

                                                           
1 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/107/schedule/1/made 

Page 226



2 

 

 

requested that spending is in support of local economic priorities. 
 

1.8  The role of “Accountable Body” for management of retained business rates requires 
a body which must be a legal entity, nominated to act on behalf of OxLEP for the 
receipt of business rates income growth within the enterprise zones area and correct 
usage of that growth in line with economic priorities as supported by the OxLEP 
Board.  The Vale of White Horse District Council (the Vale) accepted this role with 
effect from 6 December 2013.  All subsequent references to the Vale refer to the 
Vale acting in that Accountable Body role, unless otherwise stated. 

 
1.9 The purpose of this MoU is to set out the respective roles and responsibilities of the 

Vale acting as Accountable Body for OxLEP for retained business rates growth in 
Enterprise Zone 1, and that of OxLEP itself., Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) is 
included as a party to this agreement as they are the Accountable Body for OxLEP.  
The Parties hereby agree the Scheme of Operation as set out in Schedule Two 
hereto and the Scheme of Roles and Responsibilities set out in Schedule Three 
hereto. 
 

1.10 Under this MoU, the Vale will act as an Accountable Body only for retained business 
rates growth within the Enterprise Zone 1. 

 

1.11 OxLEP, OCC and the Vale may change these arrangements by mutual agreement.  
 
2 Commencement 

 
 

2.1 This MoU shall commence upon the date hereof and shall continue in effect until 
terminated by any Party upon giving three months’ notice in writing to the others. In 
terminating this MoU, the Parties shall comply with the requirements, if any, of central 
government and any other funding agencies. 

 
3 Principles of Decision Making 

 
 

3.1 The following principles apply to decision making: 
 

3.1.1 due regard to all relevant considerations and disregard of all irrelevant factors; 

3.1.2 proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome); 

3.1.3 lawfulness and financial propriety and prudence; 

3.1.4 the ability to explain the options considered and the reasons for decisions; 

3.1.5 due consultations; 

3.1.6 taking of professional advice, as required; 

3.1.7 respect for human rights and application of the Human Rights Act 1998; 

3.1.8 a presumption in favour of openness; 

3.1.9 clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 

 
 

4 Termination and Variation 
 
 

4.1 If the Vale ceases to be the Accountable Body, it shall: 

 
4.1.1 continue to co-operate with OxLEP and any successor Accountable Body and 

with all grantors to ensure a smooth transition, and; 
 

4.1.2 provide to OxLEP or the new Accountable Body (where requested to do so by 

Page 227



3 

 

 

OxLEP) all such invoices, receipts and other relevant records which are in its 
possession and which it holds in connection with its role of Accountable Body. 
For the avoidance of doubt, documents will be retained in accordance with 
Vale’s Corporate Retention Schedule Policy. 

 
4.2 This MoU shall terminate automatically on 31 March 2038, being the last qualifying 

date for the EZ1 business rates retention. The allocation and /or distribution of any fund 
balances remaining at termination will be decided by the OxLEP Board in advance of 
the termination date, together with the arrangements for making outstanding and/or 
future payments due under existing funding agreements. 

 
4.3 This MoU shall be varied only by the written mutual agreement of the Vale, OCC and 

OxLEP save that this shall not prevent OxLEP from making amendments to its 
Governance and Working Arrangements. Where a variation of this MoU requires a 
change to be made to OxLEP’s Governance and Working Arrangements, that change 
shall not come into effect until the Governance and Working arrangements have been 
duly amended in accordance with its requirements. 

 
5 Charges and Liabilities 

 
5.1 Except as otherwise provided, the parties shall bear their own costs and expenses in 

the preparation of this MoU and any variation of the MoU. 
 
5.2 The Vale, as billing authority, will collect all business rates generated in the enterprise 

zones area.  As Accountable Body, Vale will forecast and retain business rates growth 
income in the Enterprise Zone 1 area and, on behalf of OxLEP, will disburse funds in 
accordance with the funding agreements put in place by OxLEP and OCC. The Vale 
will advise OxLEP and OCC of sums available for distribution, which will be the amount 
of retained business rates growth income received less a sum held for contingency 
purposes. The contingency value will be agreed between the parties and reviewed 
annually. OxLEP shall not commit to spend more than the sum identified as being 
available for distribution. 

 
5.3 Where OxLEP agrees to disburse funds to agreed projects/activities, OCC will prepare 

relevant funding agreements with the participating parties.  OCC will pay out funds to 
the agreed parties in accordance with funding agreements, subject to their being 
enough retained business rates available to make the agreed payments.   

 

5.4 Funding agreements will include enforceable terms to protect the delivery of the 
project, including recovery of funds if the recipient fails to satisfactorily complete the 
funded project/activity.  In such circumstances OCC will use reasonable endeavours to 
recover such sums as may be due and to enforce such terms. If full recovery is not 
possible, the risk of any shortfall will be borne by the retained business rates income 
fund. 

 
5.5 A record of retained business rates income and expenditure funded from those receipts 

will be prepared by the Vale on an annual basis, with quarterly updates being reported 
to the Enterprise Zone sub group and biannually to the OxLEP Board as part of the 
overarching finance report prepared by Oxfordshire County Council as the Accountable 
Body for OxLEP. 

 
5.6 The Vale will consolidate OxLEP’s retained business rates balances with its own cash 

balances and deposit the aggregate funds in accordance with the Vale's Treasury 
Management Strategy.  

 

5.7 The Vale will pay interest annually on the average cash balances held for OxLEP in the 
retained business rates growth fund, based on the average Bank of England base rate 
for the period in question.  Interest will be charged to the retained business rates 

Page 228



4 

 

 

growth fund on overdrawn balances, at 2 per cent above the Bank of England Base 
Rate. In the event that the 2 percent above the Bank of England Base Rate would 
result in negative interest rates being applied then it is agreed that these negative rates 
will not be applied to funds held for OxLEP unless the Vale interest rates are negative 
overall.  

 
5.8 The Vale will provide internal staff resources for the management and distribution of the 

retained business rates growth fund, free of charge. This arrangement will be reviewed 
annually with OxLEP. 

 
5.9 External support will be procured where specialist skills are needed that are not 

available from the Vale’s internal staff resources, for example for any business rates 
forecasting, due diligence process, evaluation of state aid status, preparing legal 
agreements, programme management, if required, and to deal with peak workflows. 
Where these additional services are required the Vale, acting as the Accountable 
Body, will ensure value for money in the procurement of these services, compliance 
with applicable legislation, appropriate procurement policies and with the Vale’s 
constitutional requirements. The cost of the additional services will be agreed with 
OxLEP and will be met from the retained business rates growth fund. 

 
5.10 The Vale will maintain satisfactory insurances to cover the extent of its obligations 

under this MOU. 
 
6 Data Protection 

 
6.1 The Parties hereto shall comply with their obligations under the Data Protection Act 

2018 in the performance of their obligations under this agreement. 
 

7 Confidentiality 

 
7.1 No Party to this agreement will use or disclose any confidential material provided by 

the other pursuant to this agreement otherwise than for the performance of their 
obligations under this agreement, save as may be otherwise agreed or required by 
law. 

 
7.2 For the avoidance of doubt, confidential information shall not include (a) any 

information obtained from a third party who is free to divulge such information; (b) 
any information which is already in the public domain otherwise than as a breach of 
this agreement; or (c) any information which was rightfully in the possession of a 
Party prior to the disclosure by the other Party and lawfully acquired from sources 
other than the other Party. 

 
8 Freedom of Information 

 
8.1 Each of the parties hereto shall co-operate with the other parties hereto and supply all 

information properly required in connection with any request received by the Vale or 
OCC under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or the Environmental Information 
Regulations 2004 and shall supply all such information and documentation at no cost 
to the requesting party within 5 working days of a request. 

 
8.2 Each of the parties hereto acknowledges that in responding to requests received by 

the Vale or OCC under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or the Environmental 
Information Regulations 2004, the requesting party will be entitled to provide 
information relating to the MoU. 

 
9 Escalation 

 
9.1 If any Party has any issues, concerns or complaints about any matter in this MoU, 

Page 229



5 

 

 

that Party shall notify the other Parties and the Parties shall then seek to resolve the 
issue by a process of consultation. If the issue cannot be resolved within a 
reasonable period, the matter shall be escalated to the OxLEP Chief Executive, 
South and Vale councils’ Acting Deputy Chief Executive - Partnership & Planning and 
OCC’s Director of Finance who shall collectively decide on the appropriate course of 
action to take. 

 
9.2 If any Party receives any formal enquiry, complaint, claim or threat of action from a 

third party they shall notify the other Parties and co-operate with each other to 
respond, or take such action, as is appropriate and/or necessary 

 
10 Equality 

 
10.1 In performing their obligations in pursuance of this MoU, the Parties shall comply with 

requirements of the Equality Act 2010. 
 

11 The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 

 
11.1 The Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 shall not apply to this MoU but this 

does not affect any rights which are available apart from this Act. 
 

12 Status 

 
12.1 This MoU is not intended to be legally binding, and no legal obligations or legal rights 

shall arise between the Parties from this MoU. The Parties enter the MoU intending to 
honour all their obligations. 

 

13 Governing Law 

 
13.1 This MoU shall be governed by and construed in accordance with English law. 
 

  

Page 230



6 

 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding is agreed and signed by: 
 
Signed for and on behalf 
of Oxfordshire County Council by 

 

 
 
 
………………………………………… 
Signature 

 
………………………………………… 
Name and Position 

 

 
 
 
 
 
Signed for and on behalf of Vale of 
White Horse District Council by 

 

 
 
………………………………………….. 
Signature 

 
………………………………………….. 
Name and Position 

 
 
 
 
Signed for and on behalf of Oxfordshire 
Local Enterprise Partnership Ltd by 

 

 
 
………………………………………….. 
Signature 

 
………………………………………….. 
Name and Position 

Page 231



7 

 

 

Schedule One 

 

Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership Ltd (OxLEP) 

Governance and Working Arrangements 
 
1 Overview 
 
1.1 The Oxfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership was established at the 

beginning of 2011. Its primary aim is to provide strategic leadership in 
encouraging enterprise in the Oxfordshire economy, helping to create more 
sustainable, value adding jobs and removing barriers to growth. 

 
1.2 OXLEP Ltd was incorporated as a private company limited by guarantee 

without share capital on 31 March 2015 (Company number 09519056).  
 
1.3 OxLEP’s governance and working arrangements are designed to ensure that 

OxLEP fulfils its primary aim. In so doing it works with existing partnerships 
or working arrangements that are already operating successfully in support 
of economic growth. The working relationship between OxLEP and any other 
partnership and/or working group is typically captured in the form of a 
Memorandum of Understanding and/or a Service Agreement. 
 

2 OxLEP’s Governance arrangements 
 
2.1 OxLEP’s governance structure is published on its website at 

https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/about/our-governance and is set out in detail 
in its Assurance Framework, describing the roles of its Board and its 
Committees and Sub-Groups.  As OxLEP is an incorporated entity, its 
governance is also directed by its Articles of Association and its Bye-Laws.  
These documents and others relevant to OxLEP’s governance can be found 
here https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/z-key-policies-and-documents, together 
with our Chair and Chief Executive’s assurance statements, updated annually. 
 

2.2 OxLEP’s Business Plan sets out OxLEP’s key objectives, delivery strategy 
and programme priorities and is reviewed and updated bi-annually.  It can be 
found here https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/publications 
 

2.3 OxLEP’s funding status requires there to be a public sector body identified as 
the Accountable Body for audit and transparency purposes. OCC is the 
Accountable Body for OXLEP.  OxLEP’s relationship with OCC as its 
Accountable Body is set out in a separate Memorandum of Understanding 
(MoU).  OCC’s S151 Officer publishes an Annual Assurance Statement; the 
latest MoU and assurance statement can be found here 
https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/z-key-policies-and-documents. 

Page 232

https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/about/our-governance
https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/z-key-policies-and-documents
https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/publications
https://www.oxfordshirelep.com/z-key-policies-and-documents


8 

 

 

 

Schedule Two 
 

Scheme of Operation 
 
1 Organisational frameworks 
 
1.1 OxLEP will operate in accordance with: 

i) its governance and working arrangements; 
ii) This MoU; 
iii) The guidelines provided by central government or any other body 

whose regulation controls the use of funds provided to OxLEP; and 
iv) Statutory requirements. 

 
1.2 Vale will operate in accordance with: 

i) their constitutions; 
ii) This MoU; 
iii) The guidelines provided by central government or any other body 

whose regulation controls the use of funds provided to OxLEP; and 
iv) Statutory requirements. 

 
2 Science Vale UK Enterprise Zone 

 
2 . 1  OxLEP successfully bid for an enterprise zone (Science Vale UK Enterprise 

Zone, also known as EZ1) to be designated within the Vale of White Horse 
District Council area. Business rates growth income from EZ1 can be retained 
and spent in support of local economic priorities.  

 
2.2 For audit and accounting purposes a public sector entity must be identified as 

the Accountable Body for the retention and distribution of the business rates 
growth income. The Vale of White Horse district Council has agreed to act as 
the Accountable Body for Science Vale UK Enterprise Zone. 
 

3 Accountable Body arrangements 
 
3.1 The principles of the Accountable Body arrangements in respect of the 

retention of business rate growth income are set out below: 

 
3.1.1 Business rates growth income from the Science Vale UK Enterprise 

Zone will be retained by the billing authority (the Vale), on behalf of 
OxLEP. 

 
3.1.2 OxLEP, the Vale and OCC will put in place the following local 

arrangements to ensure this revenue is spent in line with local economic 
priorities, as supported by the OxLEP Board: 

 
i)   OxLEP submit ‘claim form’ to the Vale’s Head of Finance confirming that funds will be 
used in line with 3.1.3 and 3.1.5 and use will be recommended to OxLEP board. 

ii)  Claim form will be signed off by the Vale Head of Finance following which payment 
shall be made to made to OCC as the OxLEP Accountable Body.  

iii) All such payments will be reported to quarterly the OxLEP/South & Vale EZ sub-group. 

iv) An annual report is given by OxLEP to the EZ sub-group on use of funding paid (e.g. 
grants awarded and paid to beneficiaries, project progress, outputs and outcomes 
achieved to be provided). 

Page 233



9 

 

 

3.1.3 More specifically, the retained business rates growth income will be 
used by OxLEP for key economic priorities, related to the enterprise 
zone itself or elsewhere within OxLEP’s boundaries; 

 
3.1.4 Retained business rates growth income will continue to be viewed by 

government as public funds. As such a public authority should act as the 
responsible organisation for audit and accounting purposes; 

 
3.1.5 In line with expectations for the treatment of other public funding, it is 

expected that OxLEP and its Accountable Bodies (The Vale as the 
Accountable Body for retention of retained business rates growth 
income. OCC as the Accountable Body for OxLEP.) which will oversee 
distribution of retained business rates received from the Vale will take 
collective responsibility for ensuring that there is transparency in the way 
retained business rate growth income is spent. The billing authority 
should retain a degree of oversight of transparency arrangements for the 
total fund of retained business rates. 

 
3.2 Forecasting business rates uplift 
 

3.2.1 The Vale will prepare, and periodically update, a forecast of expected 
additional business rates income earned within the enterprise zone. 
The forecasts will be based on anticipated levels of development 
activity in the enterprise zone area, but independent sensitivity testing 
will be carried out from time to time, on these forecasts.  Forecasts 
should be approved by OxLEP as robust. 

 
3.2.2 As development is delivered the amount of available retained business 

rates growth income available to distribute increases. Conversely, 
should development fail to materialise in line with projections, 
distribution at desired levels may not be achievable and may even fall 
should properties be demolished prior to new development or 
occupancy levels change. 

 
3.3 Retaining and accounting for additional business rates 

 
3.3.1 The Vale as billing authority is responsible for collecting the business 

rates growth income generated in the enterprise zone area.  As 
Accountable Body, the Vale will act on behalf of OxLEP in retaining the 
growth income and disbursing the funds as per the agreed OxLEP 
priorities. 

 
3.4 Disbursement of funds 
 

3.4.1 The retained business rates growth income generated in the enterprise 
zone will be used by OxLEP to support its economic priorities, either in 
the enterprise zone area, or elsewhere within the wider area covered by 
OxLEP. 

 
3.4.2 The Parties to this agreement recognize that they have the above 

arrangements set out at 3.1.2 above to manage payments to OxLEP and 
that OxLEP and OCC have arrangements in place for the disbursement 
of funds. This process will recognise that recipients of these funds may 
use them for the repayment of loan arrangements.  Except for interest 
on fund balances, the funds will stop accruing after 31st March 2038 for 
EZ1.  However, such borrowing arrangements may continue beyond this 
date and sums drawn down in line with the respective repayment 

Page 234



10 

 

 

agreements. Recipients under OxLEP Board approved funding 
agreements are free to determine over what period they wish to borrow, 
as these funding agreements will stipulate that the recipients carry the 
repayment risk of that borrowing.} 

 
3.4.3 Under these arrangements, the Vale will undertake the following tasks: 

 
i. In conjunction with OCC as OxLEP’s overall Accountable Body, when 

determining expenditure commitments will agree a prudent proportion 
of retained funds that will not be distributed in order to provide a safety 
margin or contingency - which is needed due to the uncertainty 
surrounding future income levels.  
 

ii. Consideration will also be given to the funding of OxLEP’s borrowing 
and operating costs - should the OxLEP Board agree that these 
should be funded from the retained business rate growth income.  

 
iii. Note that OCC as OxLEP’s overall Accountable Body will prepare 

agree and enter into payment/funding agreements, including any cost 
recovery, on behalf of OxLEP for organisations undertaking projects 
that OxLEP has agreed can be funded from retained business rates 
growth income. 

 
3.4.4 The Vale will not bear risks relating to undertaking any funded project. 

The organisation undertaking the project will be responsible for the 
following: 

 
i. Undertaking any necessary borrowing. 
ii. Cost control for the project. 
iii. Owning the financial risk and acting as guarantor should borrowing 

costs exceed those projected. 
 

3.4.5 If a project has cost overruns, the organisation undertaking the 
development will report to OxLEP on the circumstances, should they 
wish to seek additional funding they will be obliged to follow the terms of 
their funding agreement in that regard. It is for the OxLEP Board to 
decide on this matter and the Vale will act on OxLEP’s instructions. 

 
3.4.6 If retained business rate funds are paid out in respect of a project that 

ultimately does not deliver the outcomes as determined by OxLEP, Occ 
as OxLEP’s overall Accountable Body will make all reasonable 
endeavours to recover those funds on behalf of OxLEP. 

 
3.5 Monitoring and reporting 
 

3.5.1 The Vale will report the following to OxLEP and OxLEP’s Accountable 
Body on a quarterly basis: 

 
i. The amount of retained business rates growth income received 

against latest forecasts. 

 
ii. Commitments made against retained business rates and contingency 

amounts available. 

 
3.5.2        OxLEP will monitor progress of projects funded from retained business rates 

against the relevant project plans   

Page 235



11 

 

 

Schedule Three 
 

Scheme of Roles & Responsibilities 
 
1 General 
 
1.1 OxLEP shall: 
 

1.1.1 undertake all decisions in respect of the policy necessary for allocating 
business rates growth income funding, the payment of funding and 
monitoring the delivery of projects; 

1.1.2 ensure that all such decisions are fully documented and recorded in 
writing; 

1.1.3 agree robust and transparent assessment criteria against which funding 
will be allocated; 

1.1.4 agree the robust and objective assessment methodology based on the 
assessment criteria to support the prioritisation of projects and to 
facilitate independent assessment in accordance with the appropriate 
use of public funds; 

1.1.5 ensure that projects are approved only after an appraisal has been 
carried out; 

1.1.6 invite applications for funding; 

1.1.7 agree applications for funding following assessment on behalf of OxLEP; 

1.1.8 commit to allocate no more than the sum identified by the Accountable 
Body as being available for investment. 

 
1.2 Vale, as billing authority, shall 
 

1.2.1 Collect and account for all business rates generated in the enterprise 
zone area. 

 
1.3. Vale, as Accountable Body, shall 

 
1.2.2 prepare and bi-annually update forecasts of the amount of growth in 

business rates in the enterprise zone area that will be available for 
retention; 

1.2.3 {on a timely basis, prepare such data as required by government for 
completion by OxLEP of regular returns on Enterprise Zone 
performance, outputs and outcomes;}  

1.2.4 advise OxLEP of sums available for investment, which will be the 
amount of business rates growth income retained less approved 
commitments and a sum held for contingency purposes; 

1.2.5 retain and hold the business rates growth income generated in the 
enterprise zone and all interest or income earned on it for and on behalf 
of OxLEP and ensure that the income is not moved or spent, without 
specific instruction from OxLEP; 

Page 236



12 

 

 

1.2.6 administer the retained business rates growth income under its own 
accounting policies and financial procedures to ensure that funds are 
applied and accounted for appropriately. This will be carried out under 
the direction of the Section 151 Officer; 

1.2.7 provide support and assistance to OxLEP to ensure both legal and 
financial probity in relation to the receipt of retained business rates 
growth income; 

1.2.8 advise OxLEP on the procedures necessary to ensure formal 
compliance with any requirements for administering the retention of 
business rates growth income; 

1.2.9 provide proper and effective governance for the allocation of retained 
business rates growth income; 

1.3 OCC as overall Accountable Body for OxLEP shall: 

1.3.1 enter into appropriate contracts or agreements on behalf of OxLEP for 
projects to be funded from retained business rates growth income, once 
the projects have been approved by OxLEP; 

1.3.2 undertake any necessary action to seek recovery of retained business 
rates funding where projects do not deliver outcomes determined by 
OxLEP; 

1.3.3 ensure that the funding is passed on to the project delivery organisation 
in line with the conditions of the funding agreement(s) and in accordance 
with agreed project payment profiles, providing there is sufficient 
retained business rates growth income available. 

1.4 For the avoidance of doubt, any reference in this schedule to financial 
information being provided to OxLEP should also be provided to Oxfordshire 
County Council, as OxLEP’s Accountable Body. 

 
2 Financial/Audit 

 
2.1 OxLEP shall 
 

2.1.1 co-operate with and assist the Vale acting in its role as Accountable 
Body in undertaking the day to day responsibility for financial matters; 

2.1.2 direct the Vale to make funding available to persons and organisations 
who it has resolved shall receive these; 

2.1.3 co-operate with and assist Vale in regular audit examinations of all 
operating systems; 

2.1.4 act upon all recommendations contained within the Vale’s internal audit 
reports where the Vale’s chief financial officer so requires; 

2.1.5 shall not reverse funding instructions once the Vale as Accountable 
Body has entered into binding legal agreements to advance funding. 

2.2 Vale as Accountable Body shall 
 

2.2.1 establish and maintain a financial system to account for all monies 
received and paid to OCC on OxLEP’s behalf; 

Page 237



13 

 

 

2.2.2 pay over to OCC, subject to evidence of due diligence, having been 
carried out by OxLEP funding for projects identified by OxLEP; 

OCC as accountable body for OxLEP shall  

2.2.3 receive income and make payments for and on behalf of OxLEP; 

2.2.4 maintain proper records, in accordance with its Constitution, of all 
monies received and disbursed for OxLEP and make such records 
available for inspection by both internal and external regulators; 

2.2.5 prepare and supply a record of retained business rates growth income 
and the expenditure funded from those receipts, on an annual basis to 
OxLEP, and provide quarterly updates to OxLEP; 

2.2.6 prepare and supply, as necessary, completed statements of income, 
expenditure and disbursements to other organisations as required by 
law. 

3 Recovery of retained business rates growth income used to fund 
projects 

 
3.1 The conditions where funds will be recovered will be laid out in each project 

funding agreement. OCC will take the step to recover funds only from those 
parties with whom it has a direct agreement. If the project concerned employs 
a third party such as a subcontractor, it would be up to the funding recipient to 
take any action they require to recover their losses from such third parties. 

 
3.2 The general phasing of fund recovery will be as follows: 
 

 Stage 1: Notice sent containing the reason for concern, outlining the 
potential fund recovery situation and giving time where appropriate for 
corrective action; 

 Stage 2: If no corrective action is taken or is deemed insufficient to avoid 
fund recovery a further notice will be sent asking for the return of funds 
with a specified return deadline.  In cases of particular difficulty, OCC, in 
consultation with the OxLEP Board, may accommodate a funding return 
payment plan, specifying payment instalments over an agreed period of 
time.  This payment plan approach must be agreed in writing and cannot 
be assumed; 

 Stage 3: If funds are not returned within the set deadline the OCC may 
then instigate debt recovery procedures which may result in legal action 
being taken. 

 
3.3 OCC will undertake these steps only if unavoidable, to protect the public purse 

and to ensure that public funding is being used appropriately. 
  

Page 238



14 

 

 

Annex A – Science Vale Enterprise Zone Certified Maps 
 

 
Harwell Campus site 

 

Milton Park sites 

 
 

Page 239



 

Cabinet Report 

 

 

 
Report of Head of Finance 

Author: Angela Cox 

Telephone:07761 329169 

Textphone: N/A 

E-mail: angela.cox@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

 

South Cabinet member responsible: Cllr. Leigh Rawlins 

Tel: 01189 722565 

E-mail: leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk  

Vale Cabinet member responsible:  Cllr Andrew Crawford 

Tel: 01235 772134 

E-mail: andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: CABINET 

Dates: South Oxfordshire District Council 30 September 2021  

Vale of White Horse District Council 1 October 2021 

 

 

Joint Procurement Strategy  

Recommendations 

(a) That cabinet approves the Joint Procurement Strategy and the actions within it, as 
set out in Appendix 1 to this report 

(b) That cabinet approves the Procurement Action Plan and the actions within it, as set 
out in Appendix 2 to this report 

(c) That cabinet approves the Ethical Procurement Statement and the actions within it, 
as set out in Appendix 3 to this report 

 

Purpose of report 

1. For South Cabinet and Vale Cabinet to separately approve the Joint Procurement 
Strategy.  

Page 240

Agenda Item 13

mailto:angela.cox@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


 

Corporate objectives  

2. The proposed Joint Procurement Strategy directly supports all of both councils’ 
corporate priorities and strategic themes 

Background 

3. Best practice dictates that organisations should have an overarching Procurement 
Strategy in place to offer clear guidance for officers when procuring goods and 
services, whilst at the same time supporting the organisations’ priorities and strategic 
themes. 

4. The risk to the council in not having a Procurement Strategy is that officers do not have 
guidelines to follow to ensure that the council is not open to challenge because of their 
procurement activities.  It is difficult to know whether there are any increased risks at 
this current time due to contracts already in place. 

5. The Strategy should also offer clear guidance to ensure procurements comply with 
both statutory requirements and the councils’ own constitutional requirements. 

6. Sitting alongside the Strategy, organisations require an accompanying Procurement 
Action Plan to set out a program of activities that will help achieve the objectives of the 
Strategy. 

The proposed Procurement Strategy and proposed Procurement Action Plan and 
Ethical Procurement Statement are attached to this report as Appendix 1, Appendix 
2, and Appendix 3 respectively.  Also attached, for information at Appendix 4 is the 
application of contract procedure rules requirement from the Constitution. 

Options 

7. The recommended course of action is for the Strategy and Action Plan to be agreed 
and adopted by Cabinet.  This will give the councils, and importantly individual service 
teams, clear direction, and guidance of matters to be considered and procedures to 
followed when purchasing goods, services and works.  In turn, this will ensure 
resources are focussed on delivering the councils’ priorities and strategic themes.  
Additionally, and not to be underestimated, is by having a clear Strategy and Action 
Plan it will minimise the risk of non-compliant procurements which could be subject to 
challenge. 

8. An alternative option, which is not recommended, is to not have a defined Strategy and 
Action Plan.  This option might be considered as giving service teams more freedom 
and flexibility in their work without the constraints of a defined framework to operate 
within.  However, this option would increase the risk of procurements being undertaken 
that do not support the councils’ priorities and strategic themes and/or procurements 
being non-compliant and opening the councils up to challenge, and the associated 
costs that can bring. 

 

Page 241



 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

9. Climate change commitments are included within the Strategy at Section 2 
(Objectives).  As mentioned above, it is highly important for the councils to have a 
clear procurement strategy that supports their priorities and strategic themes.  This will 
help ensure climate and ecological impacts are considered when buying goods, 
services, and works and therefore support the councils’ priority to tackle the climate 
emergency. 

Financial implications 

10. There are no direct financial implications arising from the adoption of a Joint 
Procurement Strategy.  
 

11. However, by having a clear Strategy and Action Plan the councils will be better placed 
to ensure value for money is achieved.  Additionally, as mentioned above, this course 
of action will reduce the likelihood of subsequent (costly) challenges to non-compliant 
procurements. 

 

Legal implications 

12. There are no direct legal implications arising from the adoption of a Joint Procurement 
Strategy.  

13. However, as previously mentioned, by having a clear Strategy and Action Plan the 
councils will be better placed to reduce the likelihood of subsequent (costly) challenges 
to non-compliant procurements. 

Risks 

14. If the councils do not adopt the Procurement Strategy and Procurement Action Plan it 
will increase the risk of procurements not supporting their priorities and strategic 
themes and/or leaving themselves open to challenge to non-compliant procurements. 

Conclusion 

15. As set out in the main body report, it is best practice to have a Procurement Strategy 
and Procurement Action Plan.  This course of action will not only increase the 
likelihood that the buying of goods, services and works will support the councils’ 
priorities and strategic themes, it should also improve compliance. 

 

Background papers 

 None 
 

Page 242



Appendix 1 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 

Procurement Strategy 
  
2021/22 – 2025/26 
 
 
  

Page 243



Appendix 1 

2 
 

 
 
 

Contents 

1. Introduction 3 

2. Objectives 4 

3. Governance, structure and Corporate responsibility 4 

4. Procurement policy, procedures, best practice and management Information 5 

4.1  Procurement Policies & Procedures ......................................................................................... 5 

4.2  Countering fraud .............................................................................................................................. 6 

4.3 Management of risk .......................................................................................................................... 6 

5. Ethical Procurement 6 

6. Climate Change 6 

7. Standard of conduct 7 

8. Social Value 7 

 
 

 
  

Page 244



Appendix 1 

3 
 

 
 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1. This procurement strategy is a high-level document which sets out the approach to show 

how procurement will support the councils’ corporate plans and their priorities and strategic 
themes for the next five years 

 
1.2. The aim of the strategy and its underlying procedures is to bring value for money to the 

forefront of any expenditure when procuring services, goods and works. The strategy will 
help to ensure efficient and economic contracts are in place, that are managed well, and 
help to reduce costs and risk within the supply chain. The strategy will also help to ensure 
procurements contribute to the economic, social, and environmental benefits for our 
communities. 
 

1.3. The strategy establishes the rules to be followed in the procurement of works, goods, and 
services.  
 

1.4. DEFINITION: “Procurement is the process of acquiring goods, services and works.  The 
process spans the whole cycle from the identification of needs, through to the end of a 
service or contract or the end of the useful life of an asset.  It involves options appraisal 
and the critical “make or buy” decision which may result in the provision of services in-
house in appropriate circumstances”.   1 
 

1.5. The councils’ vision for procurement is to: 
 

 challenge the buying decisions of the councils 
o is the procurement necessary?  
o is there another way of achieving the end goal? 

 the councils will only procure goods, services, or works when it represents best value2 
to do so 

 actively manage all third-party spend to support growth and reduce complexity, cost, 
and risk in the supply chain 

 actively manage our suppliers to act in a socially responsible way.  (for example, does 
a supplier pay their staff the living wage). 

 
Priorities and Strategic Themes of the councils  
 

Vale of White Horse District 
Council 

 South Oxfordshire District Council 

Providing the homes people 
need 

 Homes and Infrastructure that meet local 
needs 

Tackling the climate emergency 
 

 Action on the climate emergency 

Building healthy communities  Improved economic and community well-
being 

Building stable finances  Investment that rebuilds our financial 
viability 

Working in an open and inclusive 
way 

 Openness and accountability 

 
Working in partnership  Protect and restore our natural world 

                                            
1 National Procurement Strategy for Local Government 2018 
2https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/418505/
Revised_Best_Value_Statutory_Guidance_final.pdf 

Page 245



Appendix 1 

4 
 

 

2. Objectives 
 
The councils’ intention is to procure goods, services and works that: 

1. provide best value whilst meeting defined and agreed needs for cost and quality 
and to carry out all procurement in an environmentally, economically, and socially 
responsible manner in line with corporate plans 

2. ensure all financial commitments and expenditure are managed and controlled in 
a consistent and effective manner and are conducted in a fair, objective, and 
transparent process 

3. ensure sustainable procurement is embedded in the councils where the need for 
goods, services, works, and utilities are procured in such a way that achieves 
value for money on a whole life basis in terms of generating benefit not only to the 
councils but also to the local community and the economy, whilst minimising 
damage to the local environment and reducing carbon emissions 

4. ensure ethical procurement is embedded in the councils by respecting 
fundamental international standards against criminal conduct (i.e. bribery, 
corruption and fraud) and human rights abuse (i.e. slavery in modern times) and 
respond immediately to such matters where they are identified; contributing to 
improvement to the lives of people involved in supply chains and people that are 
impacted by decisions made by supply chains 

5. are accessible (through work with economic development colleagues) to local 
businesses, especially SMEs who may be suitable to bid for certain opportunities, 
keeping the money in the local economy and reducing the supply chain. In some 
instances the councils can reserve below threshold procurements for suppliers by 
location and/or SMEs / VCSEs, where appropriate3 

6. ensure opportunities are packaged at an appropriate size to enable SMEs to bid 
for smaller parts of larger contracts/projects 

7. will support South Oxfordshire District Council’s delivery of its Climate Action Plan 
and the council’s commitment to becoming carbon neutral within its own 
operations by 2025 

8. will support Vale of White Horse District Council’s delivery of its Climate Action 
Plan and the council’s aim for a 75 per cent reduction in carbon emission in their 
own operations by 2025 and to become carbon neutral by 2030. 

 

3. Governance, structure and corporate responsibility   
 

3.1. The councils have a shared Exchequer and Procurement Service Manager, reporting 
directly to the Head of Finance who has overall responsibility for the procurement 
function. 

3.2. The duties of the procurement function include: 

1. To challenge service teams with “do we really need to procure it?” or “can the 
outcome be achieved in a different way 

2. supplier analysis and category management to identify supplier base, spend per 
supplier (total and average transactional spend) and spend per commodity as the 
basis for co-ordinated and efficient procurement and the implementation of this 
strategy and associated processes and procedures 

3. to assist service teams to develop specifications, qualitative evaluation criteria and 
contractual targets  

                                            
3 Procurement Policy Note 11/20 Reserving Below Threshold Procurements 

Page 246



Appendix 1 

5 
 

4. to measure suppliers’ ethical and environmental performance against established 
baselines 

5. to advise and assist contract owners in the control and management of all 
contracts  

(including facilitation, tendering and ongoing performance management to bring 
improvement to current contracts) 

6. to co-ordinate the actions of employees carrying out procurement activities across 
the councils in compliance with the strategy 

7. using the online portal to provide alerts for relevant contract opportunities to the 
market. Proactively advertising to local suppliers 

8. to use the councils’ websites, in conjunction with the Economic Development team 
to advertise opportunities to local businesses who may not otherwise be aware of 
opportunities 

9. to encourage service teams to follow the wider Corporate Delivery Framework to 
ensure the correct approach is taken in regard to governance of a project and the 
appropriate approvals are sought. 
 

10. To develop and maintain procurement documentation and information on intranet 
for use by staff undertaking procurements 

 
3.3. The procurement function, itself, will be subject to regular internal audits to ensure 

continued compliance with all policies and procedures. 
 

4. Procurement policies, procedures, best practice and management information 
 

4.1. Procurement Policies & Procedures 
 

4.1.1. To support service teams in ensuring the above principles are sustained, the councils:  
 

1.   have documented procurement policies 

2. use an online procurement portal to manage the entire procurement process from 
expression of interest to contract award4 and allows the secure publication of 
contract opportunities and the entire procurement process to be open, transparent, 
and compliant with a full audit trail 

3. have an integrated supplier register in the online portal which is used to introduce 
competition into the procurement process 

4. have standard quotation, tender and contract documentation to ensure a 
consistent corporate approach 

5. have a procurement team able to provide advice and guidance 

6. have access to the Government’s Contracts Finder system to advertise contracts 
(currently over £25k) in line with procurement legislation. 

 
4.1.2  The councils also recognise that to achieve the procurement objectives, they will 

need to build capacity and skills within the organisation.  As such training 
programmes will be developed to increase skills of staff engaged in procurement 
activity. 

  
4.1.3  The councils are committed to ongoing review, of all applicable procurement 

documentation, processes, and procedures. 

                                            
4 The council currently subscribes to the South East Business Portal (Proactis) 

Page 247



Appendix 1 

6 
 

 
 
 
 
 

4.2. Countering fraud  
 
4.2.1. The councils are committed to countering fraud and corruption and officers who 

procure goods, works, and services must be fully aware of the rules and procedures 
that support this aim. 

 
4.2.2. Counter-fraud and corruption arrangements should be the consequence of effective 

business systems, practices, and control arrangements, specifically the: 
 

o procurement Strategy 

o procurement policies and procedures 

o employees’ code of conduct, which applies to all procurement and especially the 
sections on relationships with contractors, personal interests, equalities, separation of 
roles in procuring/tendering, use of financial resources, gifts, and hospitality 

o anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy and process. 
 

4.3. Management of risk 
 

4.3.1. Risk management is embedded within the councils. The risk when procuring, 
including that of fraud and corruption, will be a key consideration and an integral part 
of the procurement process. The councils will identify the risks associated with major 
procurements and the contingency for service disruption in the corporate risk 
register, if applicable. 

4.3.2. Procurement activity throughout the councils will be monitored on a regular basis by 
the Exchequer and Procurement Service Manager. 

 

5. Ethical Procurement 
 

5.1. The councils recognise that through the purchase of goods, services and works the resulting 
contracts should promote ethical procurement. Decisions made during the procurement  
process can have a direct effect on socio-economic and environmental implications. 
 

5.2. The councils’ approach to this is attached as Appendix 3 – Ethical Procurement Statement 
 

6. Climate and Ecological Impacts 
 

6.1. The councils require consideration of climate and ecological impacts to be at the heart of 
procurement decisions.  

6.2. Due consideration of the carbon footprint of service delivery, goods manufacturing and 
provision of works should be factored into the procurement process through statements of 
requirements and evaluation criteria 

6.3. Current Government policy requires local authorities to consider tackling climate change 

through their procurement activities. 5 

 
 

                                            
5 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/990288/PPN_05_21-

_National_Procurement_Policy_Statement.pdf 

Page 248

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/990288/PPN_05_21-_National_Procurement_Policy_Statement.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/990288/PPN_05_21-_National_Procurement_Policy_Statement.pdf


Appendix 1 

7 
 

 
 
 
 
 

7. Standard of conduct 
 

7.1. The highest standards of conduct must be observed by all employees engaged in 
procurement activity.  In their dealings they must preserve the highest standards of 
honesty, integrity, impartiality, and objectivity and comply with this strategy, the 
procurement process and policies. 

7.2. All procurement activity undertaken by employees must be conducted in a fair, objective, 
reasonable and transparent manner.  This is monitored regularly by the Internal Audit 
Team. 

7.3. In developing the procurement strategy and procurement procedures the National 
Procurement Policy Statement PPN 5/21, the National Procurement Strategy for Local 
Government in England 2018; The Public Contracts Regulations 2015, the Local 
Government Transparency Code 2015 and the Modern Slavery Act 2015 have all been 
considered. 

 

8. Social Value  
 

8.1. The Public Services (Social ValueAct 2012 requires the councils to consider how the 
economic, social and environmental well-being of their area may be improved when 
procuring public service contracts. It allows the councils to take into consideration, in the 
award of contracts, any offer of additional community benefit over and above the specified 
requirements, where these meet the councils’ priorities. The Public Services (Social Value) 
Act 2012 is intended to have as a positive impact on: 

 
1. growth in the local economy by supporting local business and community groups 

2. the Improves and protection of the local environment 

3. residents’ health, safety and wellbeing in the community by maintaining and 
improving the services provided including supporting vulnerable residents, reducing 
health inequalities and improves educational attainment. 

 
8.2. The council’s procedures will direct service teams, where relevant, to include Public 

Services (Social Value) Act 2012 requirements in their specifications and evaluation matrix  
 
 
This strategy should be read in conjunction with the following council documentation: 
Procurement Policy - Action Plan 

Page 249



Appendix 2 

 
 

Action plan  
        

Task Description Comment Date Next Review Date 

 
Standard 
procurement 
documents 
 

 
Best practice dictates that if 
standard documents are used 
the procurement process is the 
same every time and ensures 
continuity 

A suite of procurement 
documents and guidance 
notes were produced in 
2019.  These need to be 
reviewed and updated as 
necessary 

April 2021 April 2022 

 
Ethical 
Procurement 
 

Ethical procurement involves 
Impartiality or objectivity 

 fairness and openness,  

 due diligence, 
competency and  

 a duty of care. 

Ethical procurement 
statement has been 
included in strategy.  Will 
be included in staff training 
material 

To be completed by end 
September 2021 

September 2022 

Sustainable 
Procurement 
 

Procurement must achieve 
value for money on a whole life 
basis in terms of generating 
benefit not only to the council 
but also to the local community 
and economy 

Working with Economic 
Development to make local 
businesses aware of the 
contract opportunities 
within the council 

April 2022 April 2023 

Contract Register 

A register of all 
contracts/expenditure over 
£5,000 that are put in place by 
the Council 
 

The contract Register is 
now in place and is 
continually being monitored 
by Procurement 

April/May 2021 March 2022 

Staff Training 

Training on procurement 
policies and the use of standard 
documents to ensure that all 
staff involved in the procurement 
of goods and services are able 
to undertake procurement 
activities, where applicable 
 

Initial training completed 
Nov 2019.  Review of all 
training material and 
develop online learning 
information (LEAH) 

To be completed by end 
September 2021 

September 2022 

 
Procurement 
Workplan 

 
Prepare a high-level 
procurement workplan 

This is currently in draft 
format and will be a 
working document 

October 2021 April 2022 

P
age 250



Appendix 2 

 
 

 

 
Reduction of 
Supplier Base 
 
 

Decreasing the number of active 
suppliers through consolidation 
of multiple contracts  

Step by step reduction in 
the supplier base.  Where 
multiple suppliers are 
providing the same services 
to the council  
 

Exercise to commence in 
April 2022 

April 2023 

 
 
External Website 
 
 
 

 
Keep procurement pages on the 
external website up to date and 
fresh 

Effectively advertising the 
councils’ procurement 
activity. 
 

 
 
End September 2021 
 

 
 
October 2022 

 
 
E-tendering Portal 

E-tendering is the use of 
electronic tools to increase 
efficiency and reduce costs 
during the tendering process. 
Through the use of e-tendering, 
a reduction in paper and 
overhead costs for both suppliers 
and buyers can be expected 

The council is part of the 
South East Business Portal. 
Build the supplier base on 
the portal to ensure that 
local suppliers, especially 
SMEs are aware of all 
opportunities. 
 

 
 
 
April 2022 in conjunction with 
Economic Development team 

 
 
 
April 2023 

 
Local Government 
Transparency Code 
2015 
 

This code sets out the minimum 
requirements for local authorities 
to publish sets of data one of 
which is procurement contracts 
awarded with a value of >£5,000. 

Prepare information using 
the contracts register and 
publish on a quarterly basis. 

October 2021 October 2022 

P
age 251



Appendix 3 

 
 

 
 

Ethical Procurement Statement 
 
This statement sets out South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District 
Council’s approach to ethical procurement.   
 
It is based on the following principles6 with advice on how to apply them when procuring 
goods, services, and works for the councils: 
 

1. working conditions are safe 
2. promotion of good health 
3. employment is freely chosen 
4. working hours are not excessive 
5. wages meet, at least, the national minimum standards 
6. training is provided 
7. diversity and good workforce practices are encouraged  
8. child labour is eliminated  
9. inhumane treatment is eliminated 
10. Minimise environmental impact7 
 

Legal requirements 
 
Public procurement must be carried out in accordance with UK Public Procurement 
Directives. 
 
This requires the councils to award relevant contracts, whether subject to procurement 
rules 8 or not, in line with EC Treaty principles, including the principles of non-
discrimination, equal treatment, transparency, fairness, mutual recognition and 
proportionality. 
 
These ethical principles are mostly governed by law within the UK/EU and, as such, are 
legal requirements which would be grounds for excluding a supplier from an award of 
contract if breached. 
 
These principles, where appropriate, will be included in the councils’ standard terms and 
conditions to ensure that suppliers fully understand the councils’ expectations. 
 
Working Conditions are safe 
Operate appropriate health and safety policies and procedures overseen by a senior 
manager responsible for compliance and monitoring and ensuring employees have the 
necessary training and health and safety equipment.  
  
Provide comfortable and hygienic working conditions with clean toilets and water suitable 
for drinking and washing.  

                                            
6 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/69421/ethical-
procurement-policy-statement.pdf  
7 List not in order of priority 
8 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/102/pdfs/uksi_20150102_en.pdf  
 

 

Page 252

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/69421/ethical-procurement-policy-statement.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/69421/ethical-procurement-policy-statement.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/102/pdfs/uksi_20150102_en.pdf


Appendix 3 

 
 

 
Promotion of good health 
Invest in measures for tackling ill health as healthy employees experience a better quality 
of life and tend to be more productive. 
 
Employment is freely chosen 
Afford employees the freedom to choose to work and not use forced, bonded or 
nonvoluntary prison labour.  
 
Afford employees freedom of association with the right to join an independent trade union 
or other workers’ associations and to carry out reasonable representative functions in the 
workplace.  
 
Facilitate alternative means of democratic representation where laws restrict freedom of 
association and collective bargaining. 
 
Working hours are not excessive 
Comply with national and international laws or industry standards on employee working 
hours, whichever affords greater protection 
 
Wages meet, at least, the national minimum standards 
Work towards paying the Living Wage and provide wages and benefits at rates that meet 
at least national legal standards.  
 
Provide employees with an easy-to-read contract of employment clearly explaining wage 
levels.  
 
Wages should be in cash and not in kind (e.g. goods, vouchers) with no deductions made 
unless permitted under national law or agreed by the employee, without duress. 
 
Training is provided 
Suppliers will be expected to show, where applicable, training programmes for staff to 
raise skills and aid professionalism 
 
Diversity and good workforce practices are encouraged  
No discrimination - Practice no discrimination in hiring, compensation, training, 
promotion, termination, or retirement either directly or indirectly, in accordance with the 
Equality Act 2010 (or subsequent iteration of the Regulations). For the avoidance of doubt 
this includes compliance with Regulations in relation to blacklisting employees.  
 
Disputes procedure - Provide clear and accessible processes for resolving disputes with 
employees. 
 
Child labour is eliminated  
Provide for any children found to be performing child labour to attend and remain in quality 
education until no longer a child.  
 
Ensure no children and young persons are employed at night or in hazardous conditions, 
as defined by the International Labour Organisation. 
 
 
 

Page 253



Appendix 3 

 
 

Inhumane treatment is eliminated 
Suppliers must prohibit physical abuse or coercion, the threat of physical abuse, sexual or 
other harassment and verbal abuse or other forms of intimidation 
 
Minimise environmental impact 
Consideration of the environment and impact on climate change should be made in all 
procurements, ensuring minimal impacts.  Suppliers should be able to demonstrate their 
environmental standards. 
 
 
 
Reference Documents 
 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/69421/ethical-procurement-policy-
statement.pdf 
 
Other local authority published statements 

 
 

Page 254

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/69421/ethical-procurement-policy-statement.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/69421/ethical-procurement-policy-statement.pdf


 

 
 

 
Application of contracts procedure rules requirements 

 

 
Contract 
Value 

 
One 
Written 
quotation 

 
Three 
Written 
quotations 

 
Tenders 

 
Tenders 
Opened 
by 
officers 
or 
Validator 

 
Acceptance 
of tenders 
by officers 

 
Acceptance 
of tenders 
by relevant 
Cabinet/me
mber or 
Committee 

 
Order / 
Contract 
Signed by 
head of 
service 
 

 
Contract 
Approved 
and Sealed 
by HLD 

 
Bond 
Required 

 
Up to 
£10,000 
 

 
Yes 

 
Optional 

 
No 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
Yes 

 
Optional 

 
N/A 

 
£10,001 - 
£75,000 
 

 
No 

 
Yes 

 
Optional 

 
Yes 

 
If within 
Budget 

 
If exceeds 
Budget 

 
Yes 

 
Optional 

 
N/A 

 
£75,001 
– UKT9   

 
No 

 
No 

 
Yes 

 
Yes 

 
No 

 
Cabinet 
member 

 
No 

 
Yes 

Risk 
Assessment 
must be 
carried out 

 
Over  
UKT    

 
No 

 
No 

 
Yes/UKT  

 
Yes 

 
No 

 
Cabinet or 
relevant 
Cabinet 
member or 
committee 

 
No 

 
Yes 

 
Risk 
Assessment 
must be 
carried out 

 

                                            
9 UKT – UK Threshold for Procurement  

P
age 255



  

 

Cabinet report  

 

Report of Head of Policy and Programmes 

Author: Harry Barrington-Mountford 

Telephone: 07554432156 

E-mail: Harry.Barrington-Mountford@southandvale.gov.uk  

Wards affected: All 

Cabinet member responsible: Cllr Debby Hallett 

E-mail: Debby.Hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk  

To: Scrutiny - 23 September 2021 

      Cabinet - 01 October 2021 
 

 

  

Vale of White Horse District Council 

Quarter 1 Performance Report 2021 

Recommendation 

that Cabinet members approve the Quarter 1 Performance Report 2021 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To introduce the first quarterly performance report to Vale of White Horse District 
Council for the Corporate Plan 2020-2024. The intention of this report is to demonstrate 
the progress made in the reporting period against the corporate aims as set out in the 
Corporate Plan.  

2. The contact officer is Harry Barrington-Mountford, Head of Policy and Programmes for 
South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council 
(VWDC). 

Corporate Objectives  

3. Working in an open and inclusive way. 

Background 

4. In April and May of 2021, officers and Cabinet members worked on drafting a set of 
measures which could be assigned to each of the individual aims within the approved 
Corporate Plan 2020-2024. The draft measures were progressed through Scrutiny (27 
May 2021). The measures were well received and were endorsed to progress to the 
following Cabinet meeting where they were approved, along with the accompanying 
Performance Management Framework document (PMF) on 28 May 2021. 

Page 256

Agenda Item 14

mailto:Harry.Barrington-Mountford@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Debby.Hallett@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


  

 

5. The PMF set out the key elements of performance reporting across the organisation 
and proposed a reporting timetable of 4 quarterly reports, aligned with the financial 
year.  

The Q1 Performance Management Report 

6. The appended report is the first quarterly report covering activity within the period 1 
April 2021 and 30 June 2021. This report demonstrates the progress made against the 
aims in the Corporate Plan, and will facilitate constructive conversations with Cabinet 
Members and their respective Head of Service. These conversations will ensure that 
progress is being made and is able to be demonstrated, or will facilitate appropriate 
challenge where members do not feel that this has happened. 

Climate and ecological impact implications 

7. There are no direct climate or ecological implications arising from the report.  A number 
of the identified measures and the detail provided by services in response, relate to 
Corporate Plan themes which focus on the climate and ecological agenda. By their 
nature, their progress being reported here will contribute to an advancement of the 
aims in the Corporate Plan. 

Financial Implications 

8. There are no direct financial implications arising from the detail provided in the Q1 
Performance Report as this is specific to activity which took place in the period of 1 
April 2021 to 30 June 2021. 

Legal Implications 

9. None 

Risks 

10. None 

Other implications 

11. None 

 

Background Papers 

 Vale of White Horse District Council Quarter 1 Performance Report 

Page 257



 

1 
 

Vale of White Horse District Council  

Strategic Performance Report  

Quarter 1 2021/22 

August 2021 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 258



 

2 
 

CONTENTS 
BACKGROUND .................................................................................................................................................. 3 

STRATEGIC CONTEXT ....................................................................................................................................... 4 

THEME 1. PROVIDING THE HOMES PEOPLE NEED .............................................................................................. 5 

THEME 2: TACKLING THE CLIMATE EMERGENCY ............................................................................................. 13 

THEME 3:  BUILDING HEALTHY COMMUNITIES .................................................................................................. 23 

THEME 4:  BUILDING STABLE FINANCES .......................................................................................................... 34 

THEME 5:  WORKING IN PARTNERSHIP ............................................................................................................ 42 

THEME 6:  WORKING IN AN OPEN AND INCLUSIVE WAY .................................................................................... 52 

COVID-19 RESPONSE AND RECOVERY .......................................................................................................................................................... 61 
 

 

  

P
age 259



 

3 
 

BACKGROUND 
1. The Council monitors performance and progress towards achieving the aims and priorities set out in the Corporate Plan. 

 

2. This report provides a strategic overview of performance for Q1 (1 April to 30 June 2021) focusing on the activity to deliver the corporate 
priorities in the Vale of White Horse Corporate Plan 2020-24.  

 

3. In addition to providing a performance update and assurance against the delivery of the Council’s six strategic themes in the Corporate 
Plan, this report will also provide any strategic context relevant to the Council’s operations and given the significant impact of Covid-19 on 
communities, services, and staff, the report will include a section on Covid-19 response and recovery.  
 

4. This report is the first iteration, and it is expected that it will evolve in line with the new approach to Performance Management being 
embedded in the Council as well as from feedback from senior officers and Members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 260

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/sites/3/2020/11/VOWH-Corporate-Plan-2020-2024.pdf


 

4 
 

 

 

The impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic continued to have far-reaching implications for the Council and our communities, during Quarter 1 – 01 

April to 30 June 2021.   Although the pandemic has created an unprecedented challenge for the Council, we have responded to the needs of our 

communities, whilst successfully starting to deliver on our commitments within the Vale of White Horse District Council Corporate Plan – a 

forward-looking plan which is the start of a new direction to 2024.  

This Quarter included significant easing of restrictions as part of the Government’s roadmap steps 2 and 3, increasing many residents’ social 

freedoms.  However, those who are clinically extremely vulnerable, or those who feel the level of risk is too high, have not been able to access 

these new social freedoms, which may create the risk of social isolation for some residents, with consequences for both mental and physical 

health. This Quarter has also seen the continuation of the biggest NHS vaccination programme in health service history, with half of adults over 

30 having been vaccinated against Covid-19 by 27 June 2021, the impact of the pandemic on resident wellbeing remains a focus for the Council 

in Quarter 2 and beyond.  

The national reopening of sports facilities, retail and hospitality sectors and cultural centres from 26 June and the reopening of the Beacon in 

Quarter 2 (formally used as a Covid-19 test centre), and potential income generation opportunities from projects to be delivered later in the 

Corporate Plan – such as the Strategic Property Review are both important aspects to building financial resilience. In addition, this Quarter the 

Council has responded to opportunities to influence HM Government for an improved financial settlement for councils, to ensure long term 

financial and service sustainability.  We have submitted consultation responses on the future of the New Homes Bonus (which included 

proposals on a new funding formula), the outcome of which will be monitored over the upcoming Quarter.  

 

 

  

STRATEGIC CONTEXT 
  

P
age 261



 

5 
 

 

 

 

Strategic Lead – Suzanne Malcolm – Deputy Chief Executive – Place 

We will:  

 find ways to provide more genuinely affordable housing, including housing for social rent, 
to better provide for the needs of the Vale residents 

 aim to provide a mix of tenures in each development to build sustainable homes in 
balanced and sustainable communities 

 use our influence on decision makers, where the responsibility lies outside of Vale.  
 

We will do this by:  

 exploring and considering opportunities to bring forward the delivery of homes people can 
afford 

 adopting a policy framework that ensures those homes could be delivered in a way that 
supports the environment and people living healthy lives. 

 

Key Activities in Q1:  

In order to deliver on our commitment to provide more genuinely affordable housing, work has 

commenced on the research and collation of data that will underpin the exploration of 

opportunities to expedite delivery of homes people can afford. We have been working with 

partners to investigate how to utilise Growth Deal funding and S106 commuted sums to provide 

more genuinely affordable housing.   

 

£391,400 has been allocated from the newly approved and adopted S106 affordable housing 

funding application process and criteria which will enable the delivery of affordable homes. 

 

An options appraisal is being carried out for additional mobile home berths or affordable housing 

within a mobile home park at Radley.  

THEME 1. PROVIDING THE HOMES PEOPLE NEED 
  

  

P
age 262



 

6 
 

 

In order to influence decision makers that sit outside the Vale we have been exploring the creation 

of a council-owned holding company or vehicle with developers, other local authorities, and key 

agencies.  This will enable us to deliver a wide range of regeneration and community benefits 

including housing, community facilities, land maintenance and health.  

 

To further our ambition to provide a mix of tenures in each development to build sustainable 

homes in balanced and sustainable communities an updated Community Infrastructure Level 

spending strategy is now in place to accelerate the delivery of local infrastructural improvements. 

We have implemented systems to enable real time monitoring and reporting on income 

generation, spend and infrastructure projects.  A workshop with Bioregional has been arranged 

for 14 July to showcase local examples lower-carbon construction and promote more sustainable 

ways of living across the Vale of White Horse.  

 

Work has commenced on the research and collation of data that will feed into a refreshed housing 

policy.  The policy will outline the types of housing, provide, the mix of design and for what 

demographic and tenure.  It will also include affordable housing aspirations and environmental 

policies. This policy will inform our Local Plan and our work going forward.    

 

We are using the Dalton Barracks Garden Villages and Towns designation as a mechanism to 

introduce innovative housing to meet our needs for high quality, low energy, zero-carbon homes. 

A Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) is being prepared to ensure a comprehensive 

approach to master-planning housing on the site.  We have now included low and zero carbon 

as part of its S106 spend criteria to facilitate the construction of high-quality, sustainable housing 

in the area and have engaged with our councillors about challenges and further opportunities. To 

facilitate engagement with the project, a site walk was held with councillors to learn about the 

opportunities and challenges relating to the Dalton Barracks Garden Village. This engagement 

activity will be further enhanced by the formation of a ‘project board’ – this is also intended to 

improve governance arrangements. 

 

£391,400 
OF S106 ALLOCATED 

TO DEVELOP 

AFFORDABLE 

HOMES 

P
age 263



 

7 
 

To support the Councils’ commitment to deliver homes that support people living healthy lives, 

we have recently submitted a consortium bid into HM Government Levelling Up Fund for the 

B4044 cycle scheme and are working with partners to produce an Active Travel Network map of 

current and required coverage across the Vale. 

P
age 264



 

8 
 

Performance Measures  

 
Corporate 
Plan ID 

 
Stated Aim/Project 
description 
 
 

Measure 
 
 

Cabinet 
Lead  
 

Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update  

PHPN1.1 

 

Programme 1 - Explore and 
consider opportunities to bring 
forward the delivery of homes 
people can afford 

Narrative report of newly 
identified opportunities to bring 
forward/expedite the delivery of 
affordable homes 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Chris Traill 

Work has commenced on the research and collation of data that will 

underpin the report on newly identified opportunities to bring 

forward/expedite the delivery of affordable homes. In collaboration with 

partners (Registered Providers, community groups etc), the Council is also 

looking to identify and expedite the delivery of affordable housing through 

Growth Deal funding and the use of its own S106 commuted sums. 

 
 
 
PHPN1.2 

Explore a council-owned 
holding company/vehicle, to 
focus on delivering a wide 
range of regeneration and 
community benefits including 
housing, community facilities, 
land maintenance and health 

Narrative update on the 
potential 
opportunities/challenges around 
the creation of a holding 
company/SPV 

 Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Eliot Ward 

The Vale have started preliminary discussions with developers, partners, 

and other local authorities about how the Council engages above the 

planning process. In addition, meetings have been held with several key 

agencies, including Homes England, Oxfordshire County Council and the 

Clinical Commissioning Group.  

 
 
 
 
 
PHPN1.3 

 
Explore how the council can 
provide low-cost sustainable 
housing. Include working with 
developers, registered 
providers, community trusts, as 
well as new partnerships. 
Include council owned housing. 
Include a definition of 
affordability relative to ability to 
pay, not to market value, and 
social rent definitions 
 
 

Narrative report on provision of 
low-cost housing, focusing on 
partnership working, including 
an update on the shifting metric 
of affordability based on relative 
ability to pay rather than market 
value and social rent definitions. 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Chris Traill 
No progress reported Q1 2021/22 

 
 
 
 
PHPN1.4 

 
 
 
Review our affordable housing 
planning policies and ensure 
they are providing what's  
needed in the Vale 
 

Narrative report on review of 
planning policies 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Chris Traill 
No progress reported Q1 2021/22 

P
age 265



 

9 
 

 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate 
Plan ID 

 
Stated Aim/Project 
description 

 

 
Measure 

 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

 
Officer 
Lead 

 

Performance Update  

 
 
 
 
PHPN1.5 

 
Review our strategy for 
spending s106 sums paid in 
lieu of onsite affordable 
housing and identify how 
earmarked funds, including 
retained S106 monies, can be 
best utilised to deliver 
affordable homes 
 
 

Narrative report on s106 spend, 
focusing on the stated aim and 
any updates to the existing 
strategy 
 
Additional quantitative elements 
- s106 spend/units provided 
from spend 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Chris Traill 

A S106 affordable housing funding and application process and spend 

criteria has been approved by the council. £391,400 was allocated during 

Q1 2021/22. 

 
 
 
PHPN1.6 

Explore how mobile homes 
might be better used as 
affordable homes, reviewing 
sites and policies to ensure 
good use of available space 

Narrative update on utilisation of 
mobile homes/mobile home 
sites or opportunities for creating 
such sites 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Chris Traill 

An options appraisal is being carried out for additional mobile home berths 

as affordable housing within a mobile home park at Radley. More generally, 

it must be noted that Registered Providers do not consider mobile homes to 

be viable as affordable housing. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PHPN1.7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Use Garden Villages and 
Towns designation as a 
mechanism to introduce 
innovative housing to meet our 
needs for high quality, low 
energy, zero-carbon homes 
 
 
 

Narrative report on garden 
village and town designation 
utilisation and any projects 
which fall within this designation. 
Also, to include initiatives which 
will result in low energy, zero 
carbon homes. 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Chris Traill 

To facilitate engagement with the project, a site walk was held with 

councillors where could learn about the opportunities and challenges 

relating to the Dalton Barracks Garden Village. This engagement activity 

will be further enhanced by the formation of a ‘project board’ – this is also 

intended to improve governance arrangements.  

 

A Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) for Dalton Barracks is 

currently being prepared by the Planning Team with input from 

Development and Regeneration. This will ensure a comprehensive 

approach to master-planning housing on the site, as well as guaranteeing 

that Garden Village principles are adhered to. In addition, the Council has 

included low and zero carbon as part of its S106 spend criteria to facilitate 

the construction of high-quality, sustainable housing. 

P
age 266



 

10 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate 
Plan ID 

 
Stated Aim/Project 
description 

 

Measure 

 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

 
Officer 
Lead 

 

Performance Update  

 
 
 
PHPN2.1 

 
Programme 2 - Adopt a policy 
framework that ensures those 
homes could be delivered in a 
way that supports the 
environment and people living 
healthy lives 
 

Narrative report against the 
Programme aim 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Chris Traill 

 

No progress reported in Q1 cycle 2021/22 

 

 
 
PHPN2.2 

Develop a s106 obligations 
strategy to inform negotiations 
between planners and 
developers 

Narrative report on strategy 
development/adherence (once 
delivered) 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Adrian 
Duffield 

No progress reported Q1 2021/22 

 
 
 
 
 
PHPN2.3 

Update the CIL spending 
strategy and associated 
procedures to accelerate the 
delivery of local infrastructural 
improvements for our 
communities both in line with 
our corporate objectives and, 
where appropriate, to support 
current spending on existing 
infrastructure 

Narrative update on CIL spend 
to support the delivery of local 
infrastructure  
 
Total CIL spend + CIL spend 
breakdown 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Chris Traill 

 

An updated CIL spending strategy came into effect on 1 April 2021. This 

strategy includes the option for an annual review if required. 

 

While reporting on income, spend and projects can be requested at any 

time, cabinet members are, as a matter of course, provided with quarterly 

CIL and S106 spend/income reports. In addition, a statutory infrastructure 

funding statement – covering sums received, spent and their intended use 

– will be published by December each year.  

 
 
 
 
 PHPN2.4 

Consider ways we can 
encourage lower-carbon 
construction in Vale 

Narrative update to include any 
activity supporting lower-carbon 
construction in the Vale 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Chris Traill 

The Economic Development team have arranged a ‘Sustainable 

Construction’ workshop to be held on 14 July 2021. This is intended to 

showcase local examples of lower-carbon construction, as well as 

providing an opportunity for attendees to hear from Bioregional – a charity 

and social enterprise committed to developing more sustainable ways of 

living.  

  

P
age 267



 

11 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 
Lead 

Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
PHPN2.5 

Develop an affordable housing 
SPD. Evidence of housing 
needs, housing mix, self-build, 
rural exception sites. Include 
definition of 'affordable' 

Narrative update on the 
development of an affordable 
housing SPD, additionally 
include information on planning 
permissions granted with 
affordable housing numbers 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Adrian 
Duffield 

No progress reported Q1 2021/22 

 

 

PHPN2.6 

 

 

Develop a Land Use strategy 
to inform and guide 
OxPlan2050 and Vale Local 
Plan with proposed need for 
housing, retail, employment, 
leisure, open spaces 

 

Narrative update on progression 
against stated aim of PHPN 2.6 
in the corporate plan. 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Adrian 
Duffield 

Annual Target - No response submitted Q1 2021/22 

 
 
 
 
PHPN2.7 

 
 
Update the Local Development 
Plan to reflect the Oxfordshire 
Infrastructure Strategy (OxIS) 
and connecting our strategic 
housing sites with employment 
land 
 
 

Narrative update on progression 
against stated aim of PHPN 2.7 
in the corporate plan. 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Adrian 
Duffield 

Annual Target - No response submitted Q1 2021/22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
PHPN2.8 

 
 
 
 
Update Vale’s Local Plan and 
OxPlan2050 with modern 
environmental policies in 
support of government's and 
Vale's goals 
 
 

Narrative update on progression 
against stated aim of PHPN 2.8 
in the corporate plan. 
 
 
 

Cllr Debby 
Hallett 
 
 
 

Adrian 
Duffield 
 
 
 

Annual Target - No response submitted Q1 2021/22 

 

  

P
age 268



 

12 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate 
Plan ID 

 
Stated Aim/Project 
description 

 

Measure 

 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

 
Officer 
Lead 

 

Performance Update  

 
 
 
 
 
 
PHPN2.9 

 
Develop a Housing Policy: that 
outlines the types of housing 
we are going to provide, in 
what mix of design and for 
what demographic and tenure, 
to inform our Local Plan and 
future work. Include affordable 
housing aspirations, 
consideration of an aging  
population, and environmental 
policies for housing 
 

 
Narrative update on housing 
policy and adherence.  
 
Include quantitative measures 
for housing mix, tenure, and 
affordable and shared 
ownership. 
 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Chris Traill 

Work has commenced on the research and collation of data that will feed 

into the report on housing policy. The Vale (in collaboration with Registered 

Providers, community groups and others) are also in the process of 

identifying and expediting the delivery of affordable housing opportunities 

through Growth Deal funding and S106 commuted sums. 

 
 
 
 
 
PHPN2.10 

 
Work with partners to produce 
an Active Travel Network map 
of current and required 
coverage across the Vale to 
include commercial and 
community buses, cycle paths 
and storage facilities, 
pavements and footpaths, 
green and blue infrastructure, 
and local taxi firms. Encourage 
systems that increase use of 
the Active Travel Network 
 
 

Narrative update on progress 
toward completion of map, once 
map completed, this should 
transition to an annual review of 
the accuracy of map 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Chris Traill 

The facilitation of Active Travel is predominantly a County function. Officers 

are, and will, work with their colleagues at Oxfordshire County Council to 

encourage cycling, walking and other alternatives to the car. A recent 

example of this work is the submission of a bid for Levelling Up Fund 

Resources for cycle routes on the B4044. 

P
age 269



 

13 
 

 

 

Strategic Lead – Suzanne Malcolm – Deputy Chief Executive – Place  

 

We will:  

 do everything we can to help tackle the Climate Emergency 

 reduce council emissions by 75% by 2025 

 become a carbon neutral council by 2030 

 reduce all emissions across the Vale District by 75% by 2030 

 aspire to be a carbon neutral Vale district by 2045.  

 

We will do this with:  

 a Climate Emergency programme, focussed on what the council has control over, working 

towards our own targets for our own buildings, vehicles, leisure and arts centres 

 a Climate Emergency programme focussed on encouraging the wider district community 

to reduce its carbon footprint in order to meet the Climate Emergency targets 

 a programme around exercising our influence with partners on wider policy, working with 

neighbouring authorities, lobbying Government, and identifying environmental policy gaps. 

 

Key Activities in Q1:   

Working to reduce carbon emissions from our own operations including our buildings is an 

important part of our work tackling the climate emergency. During Quarter 1 the Vale secured 

£361,000 of external funding from the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme to fully refurbish 

the heating system at Faringdon Leisure Centre with the installation of a low carbon, renewable 

energy system. A Project Manager has been appointed to coordinate the delivery of these 

improvements and the initial stages of the tendering process are underway. The works are on 

track for completion in 2022. 

 

THEME 2: TACKLING THE CLIMATE EMERGENCY 
  

P
age 270



 

14 
 

The design process for the new Council shared office is also well underway, with the minimisation 

of carbon emissions a key part of the brief. The building is being designed to achieve ‘BREEAM 

excellent’ accreditation and deliver a strong performance in terms of carbon emissions- 40% 

lower than those stipulated in the 2013 building regulations. Furthermore, provision has been 

made so that the embedded carbon in the building fabric as well as emissions from day-to-day 

operations will be calculated to facilitate offsetting. 

 

With the aim of increasing tree cover and improving biodiversity in the district, development of 

the policy for planting trees on Council land is underway. Sites are currently being explored by 

the Property team drawing on insights from the Strategic Property Review.  

 

As part of our work to encourage the wider district community to reduce their carbon footprint, the 

climate action pages of the council website have been revamped and now include up to date 

information on how residents can play their part, including in cutting carbon emissions from their 

home.  

 

The Council has also joined the Oxfordshire Greentech network. The network can provide be 

valuable resource for businesses as they seek to reduce their carbon footprint.     

 

The Air Quality Annual Status Report to Defra was submitted on 30 June 2021. To achieve our 

aim of improving how we measure air quality, Environmental Protection are working to determine 

where a Particulate Matter (PM) monitor would best be located. Vale has £16,500 in capital 

funding available for this project. The Government’s forthcoming ‘Environment Bill may well 

introduce a requirement to monitor PMs and include specific requirements around the 

specification and location of equipment and the Council is acting with this in mind.   

 

Throughout Quarter 1, the Climate Action Team have worked with colleagues across council 
departments to ensure that our commitments on the climate emergency are reflected in the work 
we do. The team have reviewed plans, provided insight and expertise, and advised colleagues 
on how projects can be made as climate friendly as possible, with all formal reports now having 
a “climate implications” section. This engagement with teams across the council has contributed 

£361,000 
 

EXTERNAL FUNDING 

SECURED TO 

REFURBISH HEATING 

SYSTEM AT FARINGDON 

LEISURE CENTRE 

P
age 271



 

15 
 

to ‘tackling the climate emergency’ being such an important factor across several themes in this 
report. It also reflects the fact that action on climate change must be wide ranging if we are to 
meet the scope of our ambition in this area. 
 
The council is moving forward in the development of the Climate Action Plan and will be co-
creating the plan with service areas to ensure the Climate Emergency is fully embedded into all 
service plans.

P
age 272



 

16 
 

Performance Measures   

Corporate Plan 

ID Stated Aim/Project 

description 
Measure 

 

Cabinet 

Lead  

 

 

Officer 

Lead 

 

Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROGRAMME 1 

A climate emergency 
programme, focussed 
on what the council has 
control over, working 
towards our own 
targets for our own 
buildings, vehicles, 
leisure and arts centres 

A narrative summary 
comprised of all new 
activity to reduce the 
carbon footprint of all 
Council assets on a 
quarterly basis 

 
Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

The new shared office – located in South Oxfordshire – is being designed to both 
achieve BREEAM (the world’s leading sustainability assessment method for master 
planning buildings) excellent accreditation and a greater than 40% reduction in 
carbon reductions from those contained within the 2013 building regulations. The 
embedded carbon in the building fabric and emissions from day-to-day operations 
will be calculated to facilitate offsetting as part of a wider corporate approach to 
climate change. 
 
The Vale has also successfully secured £361k of external funding from the Public 
Sector Decarbonisation Scheme for the installation of low carbon and renewable 
energy at Faringdon Leisure Centre. This will involve the full refurbishment of the 
heating system on both the wet and dry sides of the centre. A Project Manager has 
been appointed to coordinate the delivery of these improvements and the initial 
stages of the tendering process are already underway. The works are due for 
completion in 2022. 

 
 
 
 
 
TCE1.1 

 
 
Develop a Climate 
Emergency Strategy for 
the Council, setting out 
how we will reach Zero 
Carbon for all Vale 
assets by 2030. Identify 
energy saving 
opportunities in council-
owned buildings and 
fleets 
 

A narrative report of 
activity underway to 
design the plan to 
achieve a zero-carbon 
position for all Vale 
assets by 2030.  

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

A Climate Action Plan for the Vale is being developed. A tool (GlidePath) to 
measure the reduction in carbon emissions has also been implemented. 
 
The consideration of further opportunities to identify energy saving opportunities in 
council-owned buildings will be based on the recommendations arising from the 
Strategic Property Review. 

 
 
 
 
TCE1.2 

 
 
 
Complete the CEAC Year 
One Climate Action Plan 
and plan for future years 
 

Narrative report on 
progress 
 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

A Climate Action Plan is being developed for the Vale. 

P
age 273



 

17 
 

 

Performance Measures  

 
 
Corporate Plan 
ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 

 

Cabinet 
Lead  
 

 

Officer 
Lead 

 

Performance Update 

 
 
 
TCE1.3 

Include in Councils Open 
Space Strategy 
opportunities to increase 
biodiversity, increase tree 
cover, and (other things 
we want to do on 
Council's open spaces) 

 
Narrative report on 
specific opportunities 
which have arisen for the 
council to improve open 
spaces. Also include any 
additional policy 
developments. 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

A policy for the planting of trees on Council land is currently being developed. Sites 
are currently being explored by the Property team (based on the findings of the 
Strategic Property Review). 

 
 
 
 

PROGRAMME 2 

A climate emergency 
programme focussed 
on encouraging the 
wider district 
community to reduce 
its carbon footprint in 
order to meet the 
Climate Emergency 
targets 

A narrative update of the 
work of the comms team 
in promoting 
measures/initiatives 
which will help the 
community to reduce it's 
carbon footprint. 

 
Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

The Vale website has been refreshed to contain advice on how residents can 
reduce their carbon footprint (Action on Climate and Nature). Additional information 
on how to decrease emissions from domestic properties has also been made 
available. 
 
The Council has joined the Greentech network. This helps support businesses in 
lessening their impact upon the environment. 

 
 
TCE2.1 

Complete those tasks in 
Year one Climate Action 
Plan that have to do with 
reducing carbon in the 
wider district 

Narrative report on 
progress 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

A Climate Action Plan for the Vale is being developed. The focus this quarter has, 
nevertheless, been on work to reduce the carbon footprint of the council’s own 
assets – as this is within our direct control – rather than the wider district. 

 
 
 
 
TCE2.2 

Introduce policies for 
zero carbon construction 
requirements 

 
Narrative update on 
progress toward design 
guide implementation, 
transitioning into review 
of relevant 
information/developments 
in this area 
 
 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Adrian 
Duffield 

A Joint Design Guide (JDG) Supplementary Planning Document is currently being 
produced. This will contain guidance on zero carbon in construction. The JDG is 
due for internal consultation in August and external consultation in October. The 
final draft is then scheduled to be ready in December with it being adopted in 
February 2022. 

  

P
age 274

https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/action-on-climate-and-nature/


 

18 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate 
Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 

description 
Measure 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
TCE2.3 

Introduce sustainable growth 
and environmental policies 
to our Local Plan 

 
 
Narrative update on the 
progress towards 
development of new local 
plan, specifically referring 
to details in TCE2.3/4 
 
 
 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Adrian 
Duffield 

Annual Target - No response submitted Q1 2021/22 

 
 
 
TCE2.4 

Ensure our Local Plan 
contains polices to make 
new buildings carbon zero to 
build and to live/work in 

 
Narrative update on the 
progress towards 
development of new local 
plan, specifically referring 
to details in TCE2.3/4 
 
 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Adrian 
Duffield 

Annual Target - No response submitted Q1 2021/22 

 
 
TCE2.5 

Develop a year two plan with 
CEAC for meeting our 
Climate emergency goals 

High level narrative on 
progress towards 
approval of two-year plan 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

The Climate Action Plan for the Vale is being developed this will set out actions 
towards the climate emergency until 2024. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
TCE2.6 

Improve how we measure air 
quality. Explore particulate 
measurement in our 
sensitive areas. Explore 
ways to publish AQ 
measurements in live time, 
so people can make 
decisions on whether it's 
healthy outside for them 
today 

Narrative containing 
updates/changes to AQ 
monitoring techniques, an 
update on work with 
partners to monitor AQ 
and details of published 
AQ measures 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Liz Hayden 

The Vale has £16,500 one-off capital funding available for 2021/22. The 
Environmental Protection team are, therefore, considering where a particulate 
matter (PM) monitor could be installed that could provide base line data. 
 
HM Government may also introduce a requirement to monitor PM as part of the 
measures contained within their Environment Bill. If this occurs, we anticipate that 
Defra may offer some form of grant funding to local authorities for the purchase of 
additional PM monitors and equipment. They would also be expected to provide 
technical guidance relating to monitoring locations, equipment sensitivity etc. 

  

P
age 275



 

19 
 

Performance measures 

 
Corporate Plan 
ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
TCE2.7 

Update the Air Quality 
Action Plans for our Air 
Quality Management 
Areas 

 
Until funding confirmed 
for development of new 
AQAP's, narrative update 
on any significant 
deviation from last 
relevant AQAP. Once 
funding confirmed, this 
can report on the 
development of the new 
AQAP. 
 
 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Liz Hayden 

The Air Quality Annual Status Reports have been submitted to Defra. These were 
due on 30 June 2021. 
 
A By the end of August internal processes will commence to seek funding for the 
development of new Air Quality Action Plans. 

 
 
 
 
TCE2.8 

 
 
 
Explore setting up a 
Habitat Bank to deliver 
biodiversity offsetting 
requirements and 
facilitate tree planting 
 
 
 

Narrative update as to 
progress of potential pilot 
and other relevant 
initiatives 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

South and Vale in partnership with the Berkshire, Buckinghamshire & Oxfordshire 
Wildlife Trust (BBOWT) and Finance Earth are attempting to set up a Habitat 
Banking Pilot Scheme. To further this work, the Councils have supported an 
application to Defra’s Natural Environment Readiness Fund for the establishment of 
two habitat restoration projects (one in each district). We are currently awaiting the 
outcome of this bid. 

 
 
 
 
 

PROGRAMME 3 

 
A programme around 
exercising our 
influence with partners 
on wider policy, 
working with 
neighbouring 
authorities, lobbying 
Government and 
identifying 
environmental policy 
gaps 

 

General Narrative update  
Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

Successful Town and Parish Forums focusing on climate action took place during 
Q1 2021/22. These events were well attended and several key themes relating to 
the both the climate emergency and Climate Action Plan were discussed. 

  

P
age 276



 

20 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate Plan 
ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update 

 
 
TCE3.1 Complete the CEAC Year 

One Action Plan and plan 
for future years 

Narrative report on 
progress 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

A Climate Action Plan for the Vale is being developed. Alongside the continued 
delivery of actions from the CEAC year one work programme. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TCE3.2 

Work with partners to 
define a waste reduction 
scheme: including ways 
to reduce bulky waste 
headed to landfill and 
reduce recycling 
contamination 

Narrative report to outline 
steps to influence 
partners and our actions 
to reduce overall waste 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Liz Hayden 

 
The Vale continues to work with Biffa to consistently send good quality recycling to 
the sorting depot. Contamination rates are approximately 9 per cent which is low 
when compared to other local authorities. 
 
In order to further reduce overall waste, we have launched a new webpage 
“reducing your waste and increasing your reuse” – 
https://www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk/vale-of-white-horse-district-council/recycling-
rubbish-and-waste/reducing-your-waste-increasing-your-reuse/ 
 
This outlines some of the actions that residents can take to reduce consumption 
and increase recycling.  
 
While bulky waste levels are currently less than 5 per cent, the Council continues to 
collaborate with partners to further reduce the amount heading for landfill. 
 
 

 
 
 
TCE3.3 

Develop a tree-planting 
strategy and work with 
partners to plant more 
trees across the district 

Narrative update to 
include development of 
the tree policy and 
subsequent activity 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

A Tree policy is currently being developed. 

  

P
age 277



 

21 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

Officer Lead Performance Update 

 
 
 
TCE3.4 

Develop a Biodiversity 
Net Gain Targeting 
Strategy and contribute 
to a Nature Recovery 
Network for Oxfordshire 

Narrative update on related 
work, including but not 
limited to the work to support 
the Oxfordshire Plan. 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Adrian 
Duffield 

No progress reported Q1 2021/22 

 
 
 
 
TCE3.5 

Work with partners to 
provide electric 
charging points in Vale 
car parks and at our 
buildings, and increase 
charging infrastructure 
across Oxfordshire 

A narrative update to include 
work to promote and develop 
EV infrastructure across the 
district. 
 
Quantitative element - 
breakdown of 
existing/planned EV charging 
points 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Liz Hayden 

The EV ‘Park and Charge’ project is being managed by Technical Services. 
Following the completion of due diligence on phase one, the next stage is to meet 
the electricity supplier – when appointed by Zeta/EZ – to discuss and agree the 
layout and design of bays. The aim is to complete the installation of EV charge 
points by March 2022.  
 
e. 

TCE3.6 

Take an active role in 
the Oxford-Cambridge 
arc to influence the 
inclusion of sustainable 
growth and 
environmental policies 

A narrative update on the 
work of the Oxford-
Cambridge arc and our 
influencing activity 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Adrian 
Duffield 

 
As part of the work being undertaken to develop the Oxfordshire Plan 2050, 
officers are influencing the development of the Arc Spatial Framework. In addition, 
they have also attended several meetings (e.g. the Arc Collaboration Forum early-
stage workshop) that will help to influence and shape the future development of the 
arc.  
 
Officers have also, in collaboration with their colleagues at Oxfordshire County 
Council, succeeded in changing the parameters of England’s Economic 
Heartland’s Oxford-Milton Keynes transport study. It will now cover a new wider 
area which will include Science Vale.   
 
Lead members of the Council are also engaging with the Oxford to Cambridge Arc 
through a variety of channels (e.g., the Arc Leaders Group). Furthermore, in April, 
Vale Cabinet endorsed the Arc Environmental Principles. These set out how the 
Arc partners will seek to: work towards a target of net zero carbon at an Arc level 
by 2040; protect, restore, enhance, and create new nature areas and natural 
capital assets; be an exemplar for environmentally sustainable development; 
ensure that existing and new communities see real benefits from living in the Arc; 
and use natural resources wisely. 
 
 

P
age 278



 

22 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate 
Plan ID Stated Aim/Project description Measure 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update 

 
 
 
TCE3.7 

Take an active role in the Growth 
Deal and the Oxfordshire Plan 
2050 to influence the inclusion of 
sustainable growth and 
environmental policies 

 
Narrative report on work to support the 
Oxfordshire Plan in accordance with 
TEC3.7 
 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Adrian 
Duffield 

Annual Target - No response submitted Q1 2021/22 

 
 
 
 
 
TCE3.8 

Work with local partners and 
Government to encourage 
retrofitting houses with 
sustainable energy schemes; 
help residents take advantage of 
schemes that come along to help 
with costs 

Narrative report on work influencing 
work, comms activity and direct 
engagement with residents. 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

A joint retrofit task and finish group was set up to review the 
retrofit landscape across both districts and to make 
recommendations for a way forward with this work.  The group 
met with key partners to understand their experiences and 
perspective on retrofit.  A report was written, summarising the 
key points raised during the meetings, as well as recommended 
ways forward to address the retrofit needs in the districts.  
Councillors are currently working on a more detailed report that 
will be shared more widely. 

 

P
age 279



 

23 
 

 

 

 

Strategic Lead – Adrianna Partridge – Deputy Chief Executive – Transformation and 

Operations 

 

We will: 

 contribute to making people’s lives healthier by encouraging the switch to more active 
travel, improving air quality where people work and live, and providing active opportunities.  

 

We will do this by: 

 building strong communities and connections with a sense of place and strong community 
identity 

 promoting healthy place shaping and active communities for everyone 

 safeguarding and supporting our vulnerable residents 
 

 

 

Key Activities in Q1:   

In order to deliver our aim to build strong communities and connections with a sense of place, we 

have embedded this approach within our master plan for our new offices at Didcot Gateway. 

Consideration is being given to the ideas of connectivity and public realm. Being situated in a 

major population centre with good bus links, and adjacent to a main line rail station, makes the 

proposed location particularly sustainable in travel terms. 

 

We have undertaken a Strategic Property Review (SPR) on the use of community buildings, land 

and other facilities owned or managed by the council. This is designed to ensure that communities 

THEME 3:  BUILDING HEALTHY COMMUNITIES  
  

P
age 280



 

24 
 

have spaces in which to come together and that we are maximising their usage – and 

consequently income. The Review’s findings will be considered by Vale Cabinet in October and 

will be followed by a study on our future property requirements.  

A meeting has been scheduled between officers and the relevant Cabinet member to initiate the 

development of a Public Arts policy for the district. This will be underpinned by the development 

of a strategy to support its delivery.   

 

To deliver on our commitment of promoting healthy place shaping and active communities for 

everyone, an overview of what the new Active Communities Strategy could include has been 

developed.  The strategy will outline how the council will work with our communities and partners 

to enable everyone to participate in physical activities.  We will consider the Covid-19 System 

Roadmap and other regional and national health and wellbeing priorities when defining its scope. 

To help further this work, the Vale have engaged a consultant to deliver a Sport England Strategic 

Options Planning Guidance report. This is the first step to understanding the current state of our 

council owned/operated facilities.   

 

Through our work with Active Oxfordshire, we are running Get Active projects targeting our most 

deprived communities Sport England, through Active Oxfordshire, fund an Active Reach 

partnership project in Abingdon. Community groups and charities can apply to receive £10,000 

to support interventions that assist socio-economically disadvantaged families and isolated 

individuals within areas suffering from high levels of deprivation. Phase 3 of the project aims to 

tackle the isolation and loneliness of vulnerable older people. It is anticipated that this will help to 

improve their mental and physical wellbeing.  An Active Reach programme is scheduled to run in 

Faringdon during Q2 2021/22. 

 

We are setting up a 'Ride Revolution' pilot in Abingdon to help residents learn how to ride a bike 

and provide them with access to equipment and free cycling tuition where needed. 

 

Our councillors are working with partners to address key strategic health and wellbeing issues 

across Oxfordshire. During Q1, two meetings of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

and one Health Improvement Board meeting were held to consider these matters.    

P
age 281



 

25 
 

A new planning policy on air pollution is being developed through the Oxfordshire Plan 2050. The 

preferred approach is for the Plan to provide a strategic planning framework which will not only 

protect air quality by setting minimum county-wide standards, but also provide a structure for 

improving air quality wherever possible.  

 

In addition, the Vale have submitted the latest Air Quality Annual Status Reports to Defra and 

during Q2 2021/22, a project GW2 form to seek funding for the development of new Air Quality 

Action Plans. We are also continuing to use the planning regime as a tool to improve air quality 

by publishing updated Air Quality Guidance for Developers. This outlines the supporting 

information that they must provide to assess the potential impacts of their proposed activities on 

air quality. It also summarises the best practice design features that are expected for new 

development e.g. EV charging points. 

 

Neighbourhood Plans also provide an opportunity for communities to develop policy related to air 

quality. There are currently 12 adopted (made) Neighbourhood Plans in Vale, with a further 3 

progressing through the formal stages to adoption. 8 more neighbourhood plans are also in 

progress but at earlier stages. 

 

The Council has also launched the third stage of the Turn it Off campaign to target poor air quality 

at school gates by raising awareness of the issue and promoting alternative, sustainable means 

of travel. 

 

To further our commitment to safeguard and support our vulnerable residents, all staff are 

required to undertake safeguarding training and be “professionally curious” when conducting their 

duties. During Q1 2021/22 there were 11 safeguarding referrals. 20 closure orders were made in 

2020/21 to protect the most vulnerable members of the community. Closure orders are intended 

to target those premises that could be considered ‘high risk’ and where there is evidence of 

exploitative or coercive practice or the involvement of children. 

 

Our community hub has been a real success of the Covid-19 pandemic, with council resource 

and community partners working closely together to deliver support for residents (particularly 

11 

SAFEGUARDING 

REFERRALS FOR 

VULNERABLE 

RESIDENTS 

 

P
age 282



 

26 
 

those with vulnerabilities). The councils’ recovery plans will include mapping the future need and 

delivery model going forward. This will complement work being undertaken at the county level to 

develop a Systems Recovery Framework.  

 

We recently adopted the Oxfordshire’s Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy, this 

prioritises homelessness prevention, rapid response, ensuring the right home in the right place 

and a person-centred approach to homelessness. Moreover, the second phase of the South and 

Vale Housing First project is nearly complete. This project aims to take entrenched rough sleepers 

off the streets by offering them intensive, tailored and open-ended support without any 

preconditions. 

 

The South and Vale Community Safety Partnership works to agreed priorities: tackling domestic 

abuse; exploitation of vulnerable people and children (including modern slavery, county lines); 

and reducing knife crime, harm and vulnerability caused by drugs and alcohol.  The Partnership 

supports the co-ordination of a sanctuary scheme to help vulnerable victims of crime stay and 

feel safe in their homes. 60 referrals were received to the scheme during 2020/21. Funding is 

provided to the Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse Service to deliver outreach and support for those 

whose lives have been disrupted by domestic abuse.   The service received 1,757 calls to their 

hotline, during 2020/21, 406 of which were from residents of South and Vale and 232 clients were 

referred for outreach support. 49 clients in the Vale were judged to be high risk victims of domestic 

abuse and were supported by Independent Domestic Violence Advisors.  The council’s 

Community Safety Team have continued to run monthly virtual Joint Task Meetings with partners 

throughout last year. This has enabled the maximisation of resources, knowledge, and data by 

partners to help support vulnerable individuals and those with complex needs.  

 

A revised joint taxi policy has been implemented and officers are providing advice to existing 

drivers of any changes when applying for renewal. We are also currently reviewing the tariff for 

taxi licences in the Vale which will include a consultation with licensed drivers.   

 

 

P
age 283



 

27 
 

Performance Measures   

 
Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  
 

Officer Lead Performance Update 

 
 
 
PROGRAMME 
1 

Building strong 
communities and 
connections, with a sense 
of place and strong 
community identity 

Narrative update  
Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

The location for the new shared office is being master planned to ensure a 
strong sense of place. Consideration is being given to the ideas of 
connectivity and public realm. Being situated in a major population centre 
with good bus links, and adjacent to a main line rail station, makes the 
proposed location particularly sustainable in travel terms. 

 
 
 
 
 
BHC1.1 

 
 
Review the use of 
Community buildings and 
other facilities owned or 
managed by the council to 
maximise usage, income 
for the council and ensure 
communities have spaces 
in which to come together. 
 
 

Narrative update as to the 
progress/outcomes from the 
Strategic Property Review  

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Chris Traill 
The Strategic Property Review (SPR) has been completed. Its findings will 
be considered by Vale Cabinet in October. The next stage is for a study to 
be undertaken of the Council’s future property requirements. 

 
 
 
 
BHC1.2 

Establish a Public Arts 
policy  

Narrative update on the 
progress towards developing a 
public arts policy 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

James 
Carpenter 

 
 
 
A meeting has been scheduled between officers and the Cabinet member 
to consider this matter. This will map out the way forward for public art 
within the Vale. A strategy will be developed to support this. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
BHC1.3 

Maintain and develop the 
council’s Community 
Enablement function to 
respond to changing needs 
because of Covid-19 

Narrative update on relevant 
areas of the Council response 
to Covid 19 as the 
needs/requirements change  

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

James 
Carpenter 

The community hub has continued to support members of the public 
during Q1 2021/22. The Council’s recovery plan from the Covid-19 
pandemic will assess the best delivery model for supporting residents as 
we move forward. This work will include mapping the future need for the 
services provided by the community hub. In the interim, the Vale has, and 
continues to support staff redeployed into this area. 
 
 

  

P
age 284



 

28 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate 

Plan ID 
Stated Aim/Project 

description 
Measure 

 
Cabinet 

Lead  
 

Officer Lead Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
 
BHC1.4 

 
Work with others to 
promote Active Travel and 
support the development 
of Local Cycling and 
Walking Infrastructure 
plans to help shape new 
developments that link 
homes to work, recreation 
and social spaces within 
communities 
 

 
Narrative report on the work 
with partners to promote active 
travel and encouragement of 
cycling and walking 
infrastructure 
 
Quantitative measure of 
amount of new footpaths/cycle 
paths approved since last 
report/YTD etc. 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Chris Traill 

The Council is working with several partners (Active Oxfordshire, Sovereign, 
Abingdon and Witney College, Trax and Larkmead School) to set up a ‘Ride 
Revolution’ pilot in Abingdon. This will help residents to learn how to ride a 
bike and provide them with access to equipment and free cycling tuition. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BHC1.5 

Develop planning policies 
to ensure careful 
consideration of the effect 
of air pollution on the lives 
of people who will live 
there 

Narrative update to include 
information relevant to BHC 
5.1, 
 
Quantitative measure - the 
number of neighbourhood 
plans and the stage they are 
current at 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Adrian 
Duffield 

A new planning policy on air pollution is being developed through the 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050. The preferred approach is for the Plan to provide a 
strategic planning framework which will not only protect air quality by setting 
minimum county-wide standards, but also provide a structure for improving 
air quality wherever possible. The Joint Local Plan between the Vale and 
South Oxfordshire could also be used to provide further details regarding air 
quality where appropriate. 
 
Neighbourhood Plans also provide an opportunity for communities to 
develop policy related to air quality. There are currently 12 adopted (made) 
Neighbourhood Plans in Vale, with a further 3 progressing through the 
formal stages to adoption. 8 more neighbourhood plans are also in progress 
but at earlier stages. 

  

P
age 285



 

29 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate Plan 
ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update 

BHC1.6 

Update the Air Quality 
Management Action Plans for 
the Vale’s air pollution 
hotspots; Work with 
Oxfordshire County Council to 
improve how we measure and 
report air pollution and how we 
will work with schools and 
community groups to raise 
awareness of our clean air 
campaigns  

Narrative update 
on activity related 
to BHC 1.6 

Cllr 
Catherine 
Webber 

Liz Hayden 

 
The Air Quality Annual Status Reports have been submitted to Defra. These were 
due on 30 June 2021.  
In addition, the Vale continues to use the planning regime as a tool to improve air 
quality by publishing updated Air Quality Guidance for Developers. This outlines the 
supporting information that they must provide to assess the potential impacts of 
their proposed activities on air quality. It also summarises the best practice design 
features that are expected for new development e.g. EV charging points. 
 
The Council has also launched the third stage of the Turn it Off campaign. This 
targets poor air quality at school gates by raising awareness of the issue and 
promoting alternative, sustainable means of travel. 
 
In collaboration with the other local authorities in Oxfordshire, the Vale submitted a 
successful bid to Defra’s Air Quality Grant Programme to fund the updating of the 
current Oxfordshire Air Quality Website – https://oxfordshire.air-quality.info/. This 
project is now a priority for the six councils involved. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
PROGRAMME 2 

Promoting healthy place 
shaping and active 
communities, for everyone 

Narrative update   
Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

Council Officers are now attending the county-wide Healthy Place Shaping Steering 
Group (two meetings of which have been held). A shared resource between the 
Oxfordshire councils is in place for Healthy Place shaping, joining the Vale from 
January 2022 to further develop this work in our district.   
 
The Vale is also involved in the county-wide Move Together programme. This 
provides personalised support for both people who are clinically extremely 
vulnerable and residents whose health has been affected by the lockdowns of the 
past year. 

  

P
age 286



 

30 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

Officer Lead Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
 
BHC2.1 

Produce an Active 
Communities strategy; 
setting out how the council 
will work with our 
communities and partners 
and enable everyone to 
participate in physical 
activities 

Narrative update on 
progress against strategy 
development and work with 
partners to encourage 
involvement in physical 
activities 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Chris Traill 

A consultant has been engaged to deliver a Sport England Strategic Options 
Planning Guidance report. This is the first step to understanding the current state of 
the council owned/operated facilities.  
 
A drafted overview of the structure of the Active Communities Strategy has been 
created which will be considered alongside the Covid-19 System Roadmap and 
other regional and national health and wellbeing priorities to define the scope of the 
strategy. 

 
 
 
 
 
BHC2.2 

Work with Active 
Oxfordshire to target get 
active projects in our most 
deprived communities  

Narrative update on 
proposals form Active 
Oxfordshire  

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Chris Traill 

Sport England, through Active Oxfordshire, fund an Active Reach partnership 
project in Abingdon. Community groups and charities can apply to receive £10,000 
to support interventions that assist vulnerable, socio-economically disadvantaged 
families and isolated individuals within areas suffering from high levels of 
deprivation. Phase 3 of the project aims to tackle isolation and loneliness of 
vulnerable older people. It is hoped that this will help to improve their mental and 
physical wellbeing. 
 
An Active Reach programme is scheduled to run in Faringdon during Q2 2021/22. 

 
 
 
BHC2.3 
 
 
 
 

 
Promote use of the 
Council’s public green 
spaces for exercise and 
activity 

 
 
 
Narrative update on the 
work to promote green 
spaces for exercise and 
activity 
 
 
 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

James 
Carpenter 

No progress reported Q1 2021/22 

 
 
 
BHC2.4 
 

 
 
Identify councils owned 
land for community 
gardening and allotments 
projects 

 
Narrative update on the 
work/outcomes from the 
Strategic Property Review 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Chris Traill 

 
Surplus land for the creation of community gardens and allotments has been 
identified as part of the Strategic Property Review. The Council will commence 
working with local community groups in the near future to help deliver these 
projects. 

P
age 287



 

31 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate Plan 
ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
 
BHC2.5 

Active engagement with 
the Oxfordshire Health 
Improvement Board and 
Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to 
ensure the Vale has 
strong representation in 
countywide health 
forums 

Narrative update on 
work with the 
Oxfordshire Health 
Improvement 
Board/Health overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

The Vale is represented on both the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the 
Health Improvement Board. During Q1 2021/22, there were two meetings of the Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and one of the Health Improvement Board. These 
considered several matters including Oxfordshire’s continuing response to the Covid-
19 pandemic and the county’s performance against the measures outlined in the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  
 
Work is now also being undertaken at the county level to develop a Systems Recovery 
Framework. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PROGRAMME 3 
 

Safeguarding and 
supporting our 
vulnerable residents 

Narrative report on 
support provided by 
the VCS and 
potentially the number 
of properties approved 
with special 
adaptations (drawn 
from AMR data, 
available annually) 

 Liz Hayden 

All Vale staff receive safeguarding training as a matter of course. They are required to 
be “professionally curious” when conducting their duties. 
 
During Q1 2021/22 there were 11 safeguarding referrals. 
 
In total, 20 closure orders were made in 2020/21. These aim to protect the most 
vulnerable members of the community. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 288



 

32 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 

description 
Measure 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

Officer 
Lead Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BHC3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Work as part of the 
South and Vale 
Community Safety 
Partnership on the 
agreed priorities: 
tackling Domestic 
abuse; exploitation of 
vulnerable people and 
children (including 
modern slavery, county 
lines); and reducing 
knife crime, harm and 
vulnerability caused by 
drugs and alcohol 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Narrative report on 
work with partners, to 
include relevant 
published statistics as 
quantitative measure 
for information 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Liz Hayden 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Funding is provided to the Oxfordshire Domestic Abuse Service (ODAS) to deliver 
outreach and support for those whose lives have been disrupted by domestic 
abuse. 

 
During 2020/21, the countywide service received 1,757 calls to their hotline, of 
which 406 were from residents of South and Vale. 90 per cent of the calls received 
by the service were from women with the largest proportion of callers being aged 
between 35 and 49. Across Oxfordshire, 232 clients were referred for outreach 
support during the last year (2020/21). Of these 40 were from the Vale. In addition, 
49 clients in the Vale judged to be high risk victims of domestic abuse were 
supported by Independent Domestic Violence Advisors (IDVA). 
 
The South and Vale Community Safety Partnership helps to co-ordinate sanctuary 
scheme works to help vulnerable victims of crime stay and feel safe in their homes. 
60 referrals were received during 2020/21. 

 
The Community Safety Team have continued to run the Joint Task Meetings 
virtually throughout the last year. This has allowed them to maximise partnership 
working and make best use of resources. Furthermore, officers from a variety of 
partner agencies share resources, knowledge and data on a monthly basis to help 
support vulnerable individuals, victims of anti-social behaviour and domestic abuse, 
prolific offenders and individuals with complex needs that do not meet the threshold 
for a safeguarding referral 

 
 
 
 
BHC3.2 

Develop a new 
framework on 
vulnerability, responding 
to changes in needs 
arising from the Covid-
19 pandemic 

Narrative update on 
related work 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

The Vale is currently undertaking a review of its Community Hub arrangements to 
learn lessons from our response to the pandemic. This will also feed into the 
ongoing work implementing the joint South and Vale Recovery Plan. Further, the 
insights gained over the last year will help to shape the development of the Healthy 
Communities Strategy. 
 
At a county level, work is being undertaken to develop a Systems Recovery 
Framework. The Vale is engaged with our partners providing input into this 
process. 

  

P
age 289



 

33 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate Plan ID Stated Aim/Project 

description 
Measure 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
BHC3.3 

Review and Revise the 
Joint Taxi Licensing 
Policy 

Narrative update on 
the JTLP 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Liz Hayden 

The General Licensing Committee of both the Vale and South Oxfordshire have 
approved a revised joint taxi policy. This came into effect on26 June 2021. The 
Licensing Team will advise existing drivers of the changes, and how it will affect 
them, when they apply for a renewal. 
 
Work is also starting to review the current tariff for taxi licences in the Vale – a 
process which will include a consultation with the trade. This will go to Cabinet for a 
decision later this year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BHC3.4 

Take a key role in 
countywide 
homelessness 
prevention and provision 
for young people, those 
with mental health 
conditions and review of 
adult homelessness 
pathway 

Narrative update on 
influencing/partnership 
activity, new 
initiatives. 
 
Quantitative update on 
successful 
homelessness cases 
+ other homelessness 
stats, TA stats 
including average 
length of stay etc. 

Cllr Helen 
Pighills 

Liz Hayden 

The second phase of the South and Vale Housing First project is nearly complete. 
This project aims to take entrenched rough sleepers off the streets by offering them 
intensive, tailored and open-ended support without any preconditions. 
 
The Vale has also recently adopted Oxfordshire’s Homelessness and Rough 
Sleeping Strategy. This strategy was developed in response to a Crisis report on 
homelessness within the county and a review conducted by the Safeguarding 
Adults Board. It has five key priorities: 
 
1. Proactively prevent homelessness 
2. Rapid response to rough sleeping 
3. Focus on the person, not the problem 
4. Timely move on 
5. The right home in the right place 
 
It is believed that the Strategy will complement the Vale’s current approach to 
preventing homelessness and rough sleeping. 

P
age 290



 

34 
 

 

 

 

Strategic Lead – Simon Hewings – Head of Finance 

We will:  

 manage the council’s resources responsibly and make effective use of the council’s assets 

 do our best to build financial resilience to protect the council against future uncertainties 

 work across the public sector to influence and maximise funding for local government, in 
order to continue to invest and provide the services residents and businesses need.  

 

We will do this by:  

 exploring and actively considering all avenues to deliver financial stability, including 
maximising income available to the council 

 making effective use of the council’s assets acting in a manner that ensures the long-term 
financial viability for the benefit of our residents and the environment. 

 

Key Activities in Q1: 

With the aim of managing the council’s resources responsibly and to make effective use of the 

council’s assets, the Vale have conducted a Strategic Property Review during Q1 2021/22. This 

identified several opportunities to enhance, redevelop or transfer assets to maximise income 

and/or benefit the district. Its findings will be presented to the Cabinet in October. 

 

As part of the Review, a full assessment of the council’s current licences and leases was 

undertaken. This work has been completed and any necessary/suggested modifications are now 

being progressed.  

 

THEME 4:  BUILDING STABLE FINANCES   
  

P
age 291



 

35 
 

Late in 2020, the council insourced the grounds maintenance and public convenience contracts 

with the aim of ensuring value for money. The Technical Services Manager is working with team 

leaders to develop policies and review budgets going forwards. 

 

The Vale have also implemented the use of Unit4BW, a like-for-like upgrade on our previous 

finance IT systems. It is designed to improve both functionality and support for in-year budgeting. 

Phase 2 of the programme, which will include consideration of Unit4BW to build budgets for senior 

managers/portfolio holders, is currently being scoped. 

 

Furthermore, a Procurement Policy that reflects the Vale’s corporate goals and aims has been 

developed. It will come before the Cabinet in August 2021. 

 

In order to build financial resilience, the identification of external funding opportunities has been 

recognised as part of Policy & Programmes service planning. Insight & Policy are currently 

exploring the potential for the rollout of bid writing training – this was previously halted by the 

pandemic. We have also strengthened the capacity to support signposting and access to external 

funding opportunities by refocusing existing resources. We have also started to explore the 

possibility of a flexible resource to support external funding bids across the council, as more 

opportunities for funding continue to be brought forward from HM Government and other external 

agencies, we need to consider how to position the Vale to take advantage of financial 

opportunities as they arise. 

 

During Q1 2021/22, the Vale also produced a fees and charges schedule setting out how much 

the council expects to receive for the delivery of certain services etc. A benchmarking exercise 

with other local authorities is currently underway. 

 

As a result of working across the public sector to influence and maximise funding for local 

government, the Vale have successfully secured external funding from the Public Sector 

Decarbonisation Scheme for the installation of low carbon and renewable energy at Faringdon 

Leisure Centre. The Council has also submitted a bid to the Levelling Up Fund for cycling 

infrastructure on the B4044. 

P
age 292



 

36 
 

 

We also submitted a response to HM Government’s consultation on the Future of New Homes 

Bonus to lobby for a fairer distribution of HM Government funding.  

 

  

P
age 293



 

37 
 

Performance Measures   

 
Corporate Plan 
ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 
 

Measure 
 

Cabinet 
Lead  
 

 
Officer 
Lead 
 

Performance Update 

 
 

PROGRAMME 1 

Explore and actively 
consider all avenues to 
deliver financial stability, 
including maximising 
income available to the 
council 

Narrative update on initiatives to 
deliver financial stability and 
maximise income across the 
Council 

Cllr 
Andrew 
Crawford 

Simon 
Hewings 

Progress has been in several areas in relation to the exploration and 
consideration of avenues to deliver financial stability. This has included 
the implementation of new IT systems, the development of a property 
investment strategy and an ongoing funds review to provide options for 
treasury investments. 

 
 
 
 
BSF1.1 

 
Introduce an Investment 
Strategy and associated 
Investment Policy which 
gives the Council greater 
ability to invest in a wider 
range of assets to maximise 
its return on capital and 
therefore improve its income 
 
 

Narrative update on the 
introduction of an introduction of 
the investment strategy and 
subsequent decision-making 
around investing 

Cllr 
Andrew 
Crawford 

Simon 
Hewings 

A Property Investment Strategy has been developed and will come to 
Cabinet for approval in Autumn 2021. In addition, Link Asset Services 
are currently undertaking a funds review which will help to provide 
options for treasury investments. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
BSF1.2 

Commit resources to identify 
more third-party income, 
including government and 
other grants, to help pay for 
our services 

Narrative update as to current 
initiatives to increase external 
funding for Council activities, with 
details of additional resources 
committed to support these 
activities 

Cllr 
Andrew 
Crawford 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

 
The identification of external funding opportunities has been 
recognised as part of Policy & Programmes service planning. Insight & 
Policy are currently exploring the potential for the rollout of bid writing 
training – this was previously halted by the pandemic. 
 
The Vale have successfully secured external funding from the Public 
Sector Decarbonisation Scheme for the installation of low carbon and 
renewable energy at Faringdon Leisure Centre. Reviews have also 
been undertaken to identify the availability of funding for the Gateway 
office project – this has so far proved unsuccessful. 
 
The Council has also submitted a bid to the Levelling Up Fund for 
cycling provision on the B4044. 
 
 

 
 
 
BSF1.3 

 
Identify opportunities to 
generate additional income 
from our services and assets 
and review these annually as 

Narrative describing 
activity/referring to programme 1 
narrative 

Cllr 
Andrew 
Crawford 

Simon 
Hewings 

A fees and charges schedule has been produced. A benchmarking 
exercise comparing our fees with other local authorities is currently 
underway. 

P
age 294



 

38 
 

part of the budget setting 
process 
 
 

P
age 295



 

39 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate Plan 
ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

 

Measure 

 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

 
Officer 
Lead 

 

Performance Update 

 
 
 
BSF1.4 

Review the schedule of 
existing contracts to 
identifying opportunities for 
rationalisation and savings 

 
Narrative update initially detailing 
BAU activity to support this aim, 
until specific project is kicked off 
at which point reporting would be 
based on the project activity 
 
 

Cllr 
Andrew 
Crawford 

Simon 
Hewings 

No progress reported Q1 2021/22 

 
 
BSF1.5 

Upgrade the council’s 
finance IT systems to 
improve functionality and 
support in-year budget 
monitoring 

Narrative report on the 
implementation of new systems, 
and then a yearly light-touch 
review 

Cllr 
Andrew 
Crawford 

Simon 
Hewings 

The Vale implemented the use of Unit4BW. This is a like for like 
upgrade on the Council’s previous finance IT systems and is designed 
to improve both functionality and support for in-year budgeting. Phase 
2 of the programme, which will include consideration of Unit4BW to 
build budgets for senior managers/portfolio holders, is currently being 
scoped. 

 
 
 
BSF1.6 

Lobby for the ability to set 
our Council Tax at a level 
that can sustain council 
services while seeking 
opportunities to reduce 
council tax for those on the 
lowest incomes 

Narrative report covering external 
influencing/lobbying work (and 
work with partners) and 
additionally, relevant information 
pertaining to Council Tax 
decisions within the Council. 

Cllr 
Andrew 
Crawford 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

The Vale did not submit any lobbying letters in respects to the level of 
Council Tax during Q1 2021/22. 

 
 
 
BSF1.7 

Lobby for a fairer distribution 
of government funding and 
more devolution of funding to 
councils to sustain essential 
local services 

Narrative report detailing lobbying 
activity over the period and any 
successes occurring as a result 

Cllr 
Andrew 
Crawford 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

The Vale did not submit any lobbying letters in respects of either the 
fairer distribution of HM Government funding or financial devolution 
during Q1 2021/22. A response was, however, submitted to a 
consultation on the future of New Homes Bonus. 

 
 
 

PROGRAMME 2 

Make effective use of the 
council’s assets acting in a 
manner that ensures the 
long-term financial viability 
for the benefit of our 
residents and the 
environment 

Narrative report on the progress of 
the Strategic Property review and 
other relevant initiatives 

 Chris Traill 

The Strategic Property Review identified several measures to improve 
the performance of the Vale's assets. Its findings will be considered by 
the Cabinet in October.  
 
The corporate landlord will help to ensure that all of the Council's 
assets are run as cost effectively as possible. 

  

P
age 296



 

40 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

 

Measure 

 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  

 

 
Officer Lead 

 

Performance Update 

 
 
BSF2.1 

Develop a comprehensive and 
ethical Procurement Policy that 
reflects our corporate goals and 
aims 

Narrative update reporting on 
completion of activity and an 
annual review of success 

Cllr 
Andrew 
Crawford 

Simon 
Hewings 

A Procurement Policy that reflects the Vale’s corporate goals and aims has 
been developed. It will come before the Cabinet in August 2021. 

 
 
 
BSF2.2 

 
Conduct a Strategic Property 
Review to identify opportunities 
to enhance, redevelop, transfer 
the council’s assets to 
maximise income and/or benefit 
to the district 
 
 

Narrative report on the 
progress of the SPR 

Cllr 
Andrew 
Crawford 

Chris Traill 

 
The Strategic Property Review (SPR) identified several opportunities to 
enhance, redevelop or transfer assets to maximise income and/or benefit 
the district. If the outcomes of the SPR are approved by the Vale Cabinet 
in October, they can then proceed to be actioned. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
BSF2.3 

Complete an asset 
management plan to provide a 
comprehensive policy to inform 
how assets may be most 
efficiently maintained 

Narrative report on progress of 
this within the SPR 

Cllr 
Andrew 
Crawford 

Chris Traill 
The completion of an assets management plan for the Vale is ongoing. 
CIPFA is to be instructed s as part of the corporate landlord 
implementation process. 

 
 
 
BSF2.4 

Undertake a full review of all 
leases and licences to ensure 
council income is collected 
when due and maximised 

Narrative report on progress of 
this within the SPR 

Cllr 
Andrew 
Crawford 

Chris Traill 
A full review of all leases and licences was undertaken as part of the 
Strategic Property Review. This work has now been completed. 

  

P
age 297



 

41 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

 

Measure 

 

 
Cabinet Lead  

 

 
Officer Lead 

 

Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
BSF2.5 

Undertake a detailed review of 
the financial position of the 
Beacon in Wantage and 
determine what changes to its 
operations can be made to 
improve its viability 

Narrative update on the 
review of financial 
position of the Beacon 

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford 

James 
Carpenter 

Initial discussions have been held with the Cabinet Member to understand 
the information that is being sought as a baseline. Due to the pandemic, 
there was no trading data for the last financial year. 
 
During Q1 2021/22, the Beacon has remained closed – it has been serving 
as a Covid-19 testing site. It is scheduled to reopen in September. 

 
 
 
BSF2.6 

Insource our grounds 
maintenance and public 
conveniences contracts to 
save funds and increase 
flexibility over how our public 
spaces are used and managed 

Narrative update on the 
activities of the new 
insourced team and the 
initiatives being 
undertaken 

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford 

Liz Hayden 

The grounds maintenance and public conveniences contracts were 
insourced during 2020/21. The Technical Services Manager is currently 
working with team leaders to develop policies and review budgets. Due to 
the need to invest in equipment and machinery it is unlikely that savings will 
be realised in the short-term. 

P
age 298



 

42 
 

 

 

 

Strategic Lead – Adrianna Partridge and Suzanne Malcolm – Deputy Chief Executives  

 

We will:  

 work in partnership with other councils, authorities and businesses, non-profit 
organisations, community and residents’ groups, to achieve our aims and objectives 
effectively, efficiently and fairly 

 provide support to residents and organisations to effect and drive change in the community 

 provide all the support we can to businesses in the Vale to help them succeed.  
 

We will do this by:  

 working in partnership to influence and shape regional and national agendas to maximise 
opportunities for our communities and businesses  

 working with and supporting our residents, businesses and communities to effect and 
enable change. 

 

Key Activities in Q1:   

 

In order to help deliver on our commitment to work in partnership with other councils, authorities 

and businesses, non-profit organisations, community and residents’ groups, the Vale is actively 

engaged in both county and Arc-wide proposals and policies. These include economic recovery 

plans which aim to understand the impact of the pandemic on the local economy, shape the 

support available to businesses and residents and build back better. 

 

The council, in agreement with the other local authorities in Oxfordshire, has also agreed a joint 

strategic vision for long-term sustainable development across the county. This sets out what 

THEME 5:  WORKING IN PARTNERSHIP  
  

P
age 299



 

43 
 

growth should look like based on the principles of improving social, environmental and economic 

wellbeing for all. 

 

In partnership with Oxfordshire County Council, we have also received sign-off from the 

Department for Transport on the introduction of civil parking enforcement in the Vale of White 

Horse. Officers are currently drafting a cabinet report to confirm the changes required in the 

council’s off-street car park orders, with a planned soft launch/transition for the new regime 

scheduled to begin in November 2021 and be completed by January 2022. 

 

To assist in furthering our partnership work with community and residents’ groups, officers are in 

the process of developing a programme of town and parish council engagement events. This 

work will build upon the on the lessons learned from two recent events (the Assets of Community 

Value webinar and the Climate Change forum).  

 

Over the last quarter, the Vale has also made progress in improving the efficiency and 

effectiveness of our partnership working. We have introduced a corporate recording process for 

consultation responses which is designed to not only provide oversight and co-ordination, but 

also measure impact. Further work is also planned to assess and measure the impact of the 

Vale’s submissions. This will include identifying opportunities to strengthen the council’s voice via 

national representative and lobbying organisations. We are also looking to promote and publish 

the consultations we are responding to on our website.  

 

In addition, the council has been developing this quarter a draft Partnership Protocol to assist in 

the both the creation and management of our relations with external organisations. There is the 

potential for it to piloted when the Vale explores the possibility of entering into any future strategic 

partnerships. 

 

 7 
 

RESPONSES TO 

EXTERNAL 

CONSULTATIONS 

SUBMITTED  

 

3 
 

 NEIGHBOURHOOD 

PLANS ADOPTED  

 

P
age 300



 

44 
 

With the aim of providing support to residents and organisations to effect and drive change in 

their communities, the Vale has made further progress on the development of a community lottery 

during Q1 2021/22. The necessary licences have been applied for and a virtual launch event was 

hosted to raise awareness/encourage sign-up from community groups. The first draw is expected 

to take place later in the year.  

 

The council has also assisted communities in having a greater say in the future of the places 

where they live and work through its continued support for Neighbourhood Plans. During Q1 

2021/22, three such plans (North Hinksey, Cumnor and Shrivenham) were adopted – bringing 

the total number of made Neighbourhood Plans in the district to 12.  

 

Further, an updated CIL Spending Strategy came into force in the Vale on 1 April 2021. This will 

help to allocate funding for the delivery of infrastructure to support development and will, thereby, 

be used to ensure that communities have the requisite amenities and services for the future.  

 

As a means to providing all the support we can to businesses in the Vale to help them succeed, 

the council has focused during Q1 2021/22 on the delivery of Covid-19 discretionary business 

grants. During the Additional Restrictions Grant Round 2, we paid out £1,805,000 to 601 

businesses. In addition, £1,753,419 was given to 588 businesses through the Additional 

Restrictions Remobilisation Grant.  

 

The Vale also provides weekly business intelligence reports to OxLEP. This information feeds 

into both the Oxfordshire and the Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy 

economic recovery plans. Officers also attend meetings of the Oxfordshire Economic Recovery 

Task Group and Oxfordshire Business Support. 

 

In addition, the Vale signed the Reopening High Streets Safely Fund grant funding agreement on 

26 June 2021. 

 

Concurrently to the work directly related to the economic recovery from the pandemic, the 

council’s Economic Development team, in partnership with Start Your Own Business, has created 

£1.8 m 
 

IN ADDITIONAL 

RESTRICTIONS 

GRANTS (ROUND 2)  

 

£1.75 m 
 

IN REMOBILISATION 

GRANTS TO 588 

BUSINESSES  

 

P
age 301



 

45 
 

a free, local guide for businesses based in South and Vale. This has so far been distributed to 34 

companies. 

 

The Vale has also agreed two Community Employment Plans. These aim to ensure that local 

people can better access job opportunities. 
 

P
age 302



 

46 
 

Performance Measures  

 
Corporate Plan 
ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

 
Measure 
 
 
 

 
Cabinet 
Lead  
 
 

 
Officer Lead 
 
 

Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
 
PROGRAMME 1 

Work in partnership to 
influence and shape 
regional and national 
agendas to maximise 
opportunities for our 
communities and 
businesses 

Narrative report on work with 
partners across the 
organisation which will 
maximise opportunities for 
communities and businesses 

 
Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

 
The Vale is actively engaged in both county and Arc-wide proposals and 
policies. These include economic recovery plans which aim to understand 
the impact of the pandemic on the local economy, shape the support 
available to businesses and residents and build back better. 
 
The Council has also agreed a joint strategic vision for long-term 
sustainable development across Oxfordshire. This sets out what growth 
should look like based on the principles of improving social, environmental 
and economic wellbeing for all. 
 
The Vale is also exploring the possibility of a strategic partnership to 
further the corporate priority to tackle the Climate Emergency 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
WIP1.1 

 
Create a partnerships 
protocol. Map our current 
partnerships and assess 
the effectiveness of each. 
clarify which local, regional, 
and national partnerships 
Vale needs to have an 
active presence in and 
focus resource accordingly. 
 
 

Narrative update on the 
position of this work and an 
annual review after its 
completion 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

A draft Partnerships Protocol is being developed and mapping work has 
commenced this quarter. There is the potential for its use to be piloted and 
launched when exploring future strategic partnerships. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
WIP1.2 

Develop an enhanced 
consultations strategy and 
process to ensure we 
respond to consultations 
and proactively lobby 
national government and 
other bodies on matters 
that impact our corporate 
priorities 

Narrative update on 
proactive work to lobby govt 
and key organisations, 
update on key consultations 
responded to within the 
period.  
 
Quantitative -- Number of 
consultations replied to. 

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett 

Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

 
A corporate recording process for consultation responses has been 
developed and implemented. This is designed to not only provide 
oversight and co-ordination, but also measure impact. Consultations are 
ranked according to type (Strategic/General/Technical). 
 
As of Q1 2021/22, seven consultations have been processed to (3 
strategic and 4 general). To date, the issuing agencies have yet to publish 
their responses. 
 
Further work is planned to assess and measure the impact of the Vale’s 

P
age 303



 

47 
 

submissions. This will include identifying opportunities to strengthen the 
council’s voice via national representative and lobbying organisations. 
 
 

  

P
age 304



 

48 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate Plan 
ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
Description 

Measure 
Cabinet 
Lead 

Officer Lead Performance Update  

 
 
 
WIP1.3 

Create a framework that sets 
out how we will engage with 
developers, other councils, 
and members to maximise 
opportunities for our priorities 
to shape development 

Narrative update on the work 
of planning and engagement 
activity 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Eliot Ward 

Following the completion of the Strategic Property Review, officers will 
begin investigating opportunities on identified sites. They will consider 
whether these require a company or can be delivered by the council 
(either individually or in partnership with others). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WIP1.4 

Work with businesses to 
undertake economic 
development review to 
ensure that council is 
providing support to SMEs, 
homebased businesses, 
supporting skills 
development, and ensuring 
that businesses are playing a 
role in place making 

A narrative report of activity 
to undertake an economic 
development review and 
details of how the Council is 
supporting SME's at this 
time.  
 
Quantitative information from 
CRM detailing number of 
businesses engaged with 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

Chris Traill 

The focus in Q1 2021/22 was on the delivery of Covid-19 discretionary 
business grants. During the Additional Restrictions Grant Round 2, we 
paid out £1,805,000 to 601 businesses. In addition, £1,753,419 was given 
to 588 businesses through the Additional Restrictions Remobilisation 
Grant. 
 
In terms of skills, two Community Employment Plans have been agreed. 
These aim to ensure that local people can better access job opportunities. 
In addition, 839 users have accessed the iDEA Programme.  
 
The Vale also received 45 expressions of interest from occupiers in 
relation to our space project. There are only, however, 10 potential units 
available. 

 
 
 
WIP1.5 

Strengthen any existing 
network of local business 
groups to increase 
awareness of the council’s 
ED programmes and 
communication throughout 
the district 

Detail engagement with 
small business newsletter, 
number of recipients, 
clickthrough 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

Chris Traill 

The Council received 800 e-mail enquiries seeking support. 
 
There are 2,456 subscribers to our newsletter and the South and Vale 
Business Support website is visited more than 1,400 times each month. 

 
 
 
 
WIP1.6 

Input into countywide and 
Arc-wide economic recovery 
plans to maximise 
understanding of the local 
impact of Covid-19 and to 
help shape the support 
available to our local 
economy 

Narrative update on activity 
supporting WIP 1.5 

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett 

Chris Traill 

The Council provides weekly business intelligence reports to OxLEP. This 
information feeds into both the Oxfordshire and the Department for 
Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy economic recovery plans. In 
addition, officers attend meetings of the Oxfordshire Economic Recovery 
Task Group and Oxfordshire Business Support. 
 
The Vale has also submitted an application for Levelling Up funding to HM 
Government. 

P
age 305



 

49 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate Plan 
ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
Description 

Measure 
Cabinet 
Lead 

Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WIP1.7 

Work with Oxfordshire 
County Council to 
introduce civil parking 
enforcement for the Vale 

Narrative update on progress in this 
area, if impacts are seen in other 
areas as a result of this activity, 
those impacts should be included 
(PnD parking income for example) 

Cllr Neil 
Fawcett 

Liz Hayden 

The Department for Transport have signed off on the application to 
introduce civil parking enforcement within the Vale. A joint press 
release has been issued to this effect.  
 
Officers are currently drafting a cabinet report to confirm the changes 
required in the Council’s off-street car park orders, while Oxfordshire 
County Council are identifying locations for on-street parking bays to 
charge.  
 
We are planning for a soft launch of civil parking enforcement, so that 
people can learn about the changes and be encouraged to park 
responsibly. It is proposed that the transition will start in November 
2021 with the move to the new system scheduled for January 2022. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
PROGRAMME 2 

Work with and support our 
residents, businesses and 
communities to effect and 
enable change 

 
Narrative update on work with 
Parish Councils, particularly relating 
to the transfer of management of 
assets. Update on other activity that 
directly supports residents and 
business effecting change. 
 
Quantitative elements - number of 
neighbourhood plans adopted, 
number of community initiatives 
undertaken, breakdown of assets 
where management has been 
transferred 
 

 
Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

Officers are in the process of developing a programme of town and 
parish council engagement events. This work will reflect on the lessons 
learned from our first two events (the Assets of Community Value 
webinar and the Climate Change forum). 
 
Council staff are also in the process of producing communications 
plans for each of the Vale’s corporate plan themes. 
 
Three neighbourhood plans were adopted during Q1 2021/22 (North 
Hinksey, Cumnor and Shrivenham). 

 
 
 
 
 
WIP2.1 

 
Support new business 
start-ups and support 
schemes for businesses 
and residents through post 
Covid-19 economic 
recovery initiatives, by 
implementing the “Opening 
Up High Streets Safely 
Fund” and associated 
schemes 

Narrative update on support 
schemes for businesses and 
residents. Updates on any relevant 
schemes should be included 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

Chris Traill 

The Economic Development team, in partnership with Start Your Own 
Business, created a free, local guide for businesses based in South 
and Vale. This has so far been distributed to 34 companies. 
 
The Vale signed the Reopening High Streets Safely Fund grant funding 
agreement on 26 June 2021. 

P
age 306



 

50 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate Plan 
ID Stated Aim/Project Description Measure 

Cabinet 
Lead 

Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
 
WIP2.2 

Find ways to elevate the 
understanding of and promote 
Neighbourhood Plans in planning 
decisions with a review of 
development appraisal and 
communications with all parties prior 
to an application coming to committee 

Narrative update on activity to 
support and promote 
Neighbourhood plan adoption. 
 
Quantitative measure - number 
of Neighbourhood plans adopted 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

Adrian 
Duffield 

 
Internal planning communications confirm new neighbourhood 
plans and the significant weight they carry when determining 
planning applications. All relevant parish councils are informed of 
the Council’s decision to make Neighbourhood Plans and 
webpages are updated accordingly.  
 
The Vale currently has 12 made Neighbourhood Plans, three of 
which were adopted during Q1 2021/22. Once a Neighbourhood 
Plan has been made, the Neighbourhood Planning Group will be 
invited to attend a workshop with planning officers. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
WIP2.3 

Review the planning committee 
process to identify ways to maximise 
public understanding, engagement 
and participation as well as 
supporting member input into the 
committee meetings with 
opportunities for training and 
development 

Narrative update on activities to 
review and promote the activities 
and understanding of the 
planning committee.  
 
Quantitative elements - Online 
engagement figures relating to 
the planning portal/planning 
sections of the website. 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

Adrian 
Duffield 

 
Vale has provided feedback to MCHLG on the use of virtual 
planning committees as part of their review of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  
 
Three meetings of the committee were held during Q1 2021/22. 
They received 114 (21/04), 90 (02/06) and 52 (23/06) views 
respectively.  
 
The Chair of the Planning Committee and the relevant Cabinet 
Member receive monthly monitoring of planning committee 
decisions. 
 
In June, training on planning conditions was provided to members 
of the Committee. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
WIP2.4 
 

Review developer contribution 
collection and spend policy and 
improve ward member and parish 
council involvement with a clear 
timetable that is triggered by officers, 
with improved communication from 
the council 

A narrative update on activities 
relating to the spend of CIL 
 
Quantitative element - 
Breakdown of CIL spend by 
type/amount/area 

Cllr Judy 
Roberts 

Chris Traill 

 
The CIL spending strategy was updated in December 2020. It 
came into force on 1 April 2021.  
 
Quarterly CIL and S106 spend/income reports are provided to 
Cabinet Members. 
 
The CIL charging schedule is currently being reviewed by the 
Planning team. 

P
age 307



 

51 
 

 
 
 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project Description Measure 
Cabinet 
Lead 

Officer 
Lead 

Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
WIP2.5 

Refresh our community grants 
scheme and introduce a 
Community Lottery to raise funds 
for groups to develop in line with 
our corporate objectives 

 
Narrative report on activity 
relating to new community 
grants, information relating to the 
implementation of the 
Community Lottery, and once 
implemented performance 
metrics 
 
 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

James 
Carpenter 

Progress has continued to be made on the development of a 
community lottery. The necessary licences have been applied for 
and a virtual launch event was hosted to raise 
awareness/encourage sign-up from community groups. The first 
draw is expected to take place later in 2021. 
 
The Vale does not currently offer a community grants scheme. 

 

P
age 308



 

52 
 

 

 

 

Strategic Lead – Adrianna Partridge- Deputy Chief Executive – Transformation and 

Operations 

We will:  

 work openly and transparently, promoting a world in which all can participate equally 

 listen to feedback from local residents, communities, businesses, partners and our own 
officers 

 ensure our work particularly aims to include those groups that have historically been 
marginalised or those that have been hard to reach 

 ensure we are accountable and that our decisions are open to appropriate scrutiny, and 
we will admit when we get things wrong.  

 

We will do this by: 

 improving our use of technology to increase understanding and access to what we do, how 
we work and the decisions we make 

 increasing meaningful engagement and communication with everyone 

 strengthening our governance framework and address our policy gaps, improving 
transparency. 

 

Key Activities in Q1:   

Seeking to strengthen our governance framework and address policy gaps, Policy and 

Programmes have identified those policies and strategies which will need to be developed to 

deliver on our commitments in the corporate plan and have been reviewing their service plan in 

order to work with teams across the council in the development of these policies and strategies. 

Linked to this work, an optimisation review of the Corporate Delivery Framework is also currently 

underway, to ensure the right tools are available to officers. 

 

THEME 6:  WORKING IN AN OPEN AND INCLUSIVE WAY 
  

P
age 309



 

53 
 

Improving our use of technology to increase understanding and access to what we do has been 

highlighted as a key aim. A Digital Officer has been appointed and will lead on this area of work. 

 

Central to fulfilling our commitment on the use of technology is the delivery of the new Vale 

website. The new site provides an online portal for both residents and businesses. An 

accessibility audit has been undertaken to make certain that the website is accessible to all and 

work is ongoing to ensure that the site functions well across multiple devices and platforms.  

 

 In addition, the Information Governance team are reviewing what information could usefully be 

published on the council’s website so that information requested is more easily and immediately 

accessible to the public, avoiding the need for Freedom of Information (FOI) or Environmental 

Information Regulations (EIR) requests. 

 

The live streaming and recording of meetings was highlighted as a key part of enhancing our 

accountability and transparency and increasing the scope for communication and engagement 

with residents across the district. As such, in Quarter 1 of 2021/22, all public Council meetings 

were livestreamed and then put up on the Councils’ joint ‘committee meetings’ YouTube Channel, 

where they remain available for the public to view: South and Vale Committee Meetings - 

YouTube  

 

Changes to the legal provisions for holding remote meetings and the return to face-to-face 

meetings presents the Council with various challenges that will have to be met if we are to 

continue to make meetings accessible online, live or recorded. We have now returned to in-

person meetings where this is required of us but continue to allow remote public and officer 

participation. In this mixed approach we are seeking to maintain our high standards for 

transparency and engagement.   

 

To improve the public understanding of what we do the communications team held regular 

strategic communications meetings with the Cabinet Member and the Leader of the Council to 

ensure the active communication of decision making and outcomes.  

 

163 
 

FOI/EIR 

 RECEIVED 
 

27 
 

STAGE 1 COMPLAINTS 

RECEIVED  
 

5 
 

STAGE 2 COMPLAINTS 

RECEIVED  
 

P
age 310

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTj2pCic8vzucpzIaSWE3UQ


 

54 
 

Work is underway on the production of communication plans for each of the Vale’s corporate 

priorities as well as on an overarching Digital Strategy. 

 

Throughout Quarter 1, the communications team have continued to seek to engage residents 

across various media platforms and outlets. A review of our current engagement channels and 

data sets is underway, to determine their effectiveness and what further actions can be taken to 

engage with under-represented groups.  

 

In line with our commitment to increase meaningful engagement with everyone, the Council has 

run Town and Parish Forum events on Assets of Community Value and Climate Change. A 

programme of further engagement events is currently being developed. To meet our commitment 

to refresh Town and Parish Forums so that they are more interactive and useful for communities, 

a review of previous Forums has been started; the findings of which will feed into a learning 

document.  

 

Work is now underway to lay the groundwork for a refreshed residents’ survey. This workstream 

will be instrumental in meeting our commitment to listen to feedback from local residents, 

communities and businesses, and to include those groups that have historically been 

marginalised or those that have in the past, been hard to reach. 

 

Monitoring and addressing complaints is also an important element in listening to residents, 

businesses and communities and holding the Vale to account. During Quarter 1, the council 

received 32 complaints. 27 are stage one and five are at stage 2. 

  

 

The Census 2021 was completed this quarter. The Council worked collaboratively with the Office 

for National Statistics on ensuring strong engagement and uptake amongst our communities. The 

household response rate within the vale exceeded 90%. Quality assurance and review of the data 

is expected to take place in the next quarter. 

 

P
age 311



 

55 
 

The Vale’s templates and report writing guidance have been updated to reflect the central 

importance of the climate emergency and to ensure that a recognition of this is part of the 

decision-making process across our operations.  

 

Over the course of Quarter 1, important steps have been taken in Council policy, governance and 

operations in support of our commitment to tackle the climate emergency. The Cabinet have 

supported both the establishment of a Growth Board Environment Advisory Group and the 

development of an Arc Environment Strategy. They have also adopted policies and key actions 

related to the Oxfordshire Electric Vehicle Infrastructure strategy and endorsed measures that 

would reduce the negative impacts of EV battery production. In addition, the General Licensing 

Committee have adopted a revised taxi licensing policy which includes provisions on vehicle 

emissions.  

P
age 312



 

56 
 

Performance Measures  

 
Corporate Plan 
ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 
Lead  

Officer Lead Performance Update 

 
 
 
PROGRAMME 1 

Improve our use of technology 
to increase understanding and 
access to what we do, how we 
work and the decisions we 
make. 

 
Narrative update on any work relating 
to technological 
implementation/adaptation and 
processes making greater use of 
existing technology to bring about 
efficiency or increase accessibility. 
 
 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

James 
Carpenter 

A Digital Officer has been appointed to lead this workstream 
from a comms and marketing point of view. Work has also 
been progressing on finalising the draft Digital Strategy. This 
is due for discussion by Vale Cabinet later in the year. 

 
 
 
WIOI1.1 

Provide and maintain a new 
Vale website with increased 
accessibility to services and 
information, on multiple 
devices 

Quantitative report on website usage 
Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

James 
Carpenter 

The Vale has delivered a new website which provides an 
online portal for both residents and businesses. This has 
already undergone an accessibility audit to confirm that it is 
fit for purpose and further work is currently being undertaken 
to ensure that we continue to meet all of the necessary 
requirements. 

 
 
WIOI1.2 

Develop our use of social 
media platforms to reach and 
engage with more residents 
and local businesses 

Narrative report on new social media 
initiatives 
 
Quantitative report on social media 
engagement 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

James 
Carpenter 

No progress reported Q1 2021/22 

 
 
 
 
WIOI1.3 

Introduce live streaming and 
recordings of public meetings 
to increase accessibility and 
understanding of the 
democratic process 

Number/Percentage of public meetings 
streamed live 
 
Number/percentage of public meetings 
available to watch online 

Cllr Emily 
Smith 

James 
Carpenter 

During Q1 2021/22, all Council meetings were livestreamed 
before being uploaded to YouTube. As the legal provisions 
for holding remote meetings have altered, maintaining this 
100% performance will be challenging.  
 
Regular strategic communications meetings are held with 
the Cabinet Member and the Leader of the Council to 
ensure the active communication of decision making and 
outcomes. 

 
 
 
WIOI1.4 
 
 
 
 

Review the current use of 
online surveys assessing their 
take up over time, and by 
subject, as well as reviewing 
survey design 

Narrative update on survey 
utilisation/progress towards this 
review/details of any particularly 
successful surveys 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

James 
Carpenter 

The platform for online surveys will be determined once a 
decision on the type of engagement required has been 
made. The best methodology will be dependent on the 
audience. 

P
age 313



 

57 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate Plan 
ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 
Lead  

Officer Lead Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PROGRAMME 
2 

Increase meaningful 
engagement and 
communication with everyone 

Narrative update on successful 
communication initiatives 

 James 
Carpenter 

As part of their business-as-usual activities, the Communications 
team continue to seek to engage across various media platforms 
and outlets. In recent months, the Council has run Town and Parish 
Forum events on Assets of Community Value and Climate Change. 
A programme of further engagement events is currently being 
developed.  
 
Work is also under way on the production of communications plans 
for each of the Vale’s corporate priorities. 
 
The upcoming publication of Census data will help to inform our 
equalities and diversity approach. It will also help us to better 
understand the needs of harder to reach groups and allow us to 
improve our engagement approach accordingly. 

 
 
 
 
WIOI2.1 

 
Ensure the creation of 
community liaison groups form 
part of all early stages of 
development planning, to 
understand local infrastructure 
needs and support community 
cohesion 
 
 

Narrative update on the creation 
and utilisation of community 
liaison groups and the 
development of the policy 
 
Quantitative measure - number 
of community liaison groups 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

James 
Carpenter 

No progress reported Q1 2021/22 

 
 
 
 
WIOI2.2 

 
 
Refresh Town and Parish 
Forums so they are more 
interactive and useful for 
communities and develop the 
Connecting Communities 
Policy 
 
 
 

Narrative update on Town and 
Parish Forums and the 
development of the connected 
communities policy 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

James 
Carpenter 

While no progress has been made on the development of a 
Connecting Communities Policy, a review of previous Town and 
Parish Forums has been started. The findings of this work will feed 
into a learning document. 

 
 
 
WIOI2.3 

Work with communities, 
schools and other local 
organisations on shared 
campaigns and initiatives that 

Narrative update on comms and 
engagement activities which 
interface with communities, 
schools and other local 
organisations 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

James 
Carpenter 

No progress reported Q1 2021/22 

P
age 314



 

58 
 

help further our corporate 
objectives 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate 
Plan ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 
Lead 

Officer Lead Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
 
WIOI2.4 
 
 

 
Reinstating residents’ surveys in 
a refreshed form - deliver 
effective ways for the public to 
have their say, to reach more 
people, mechanisms for 
feedback, more timely dialogue, 
educate and provide subject 
matter information to facilitate 
opinions being more informed 
 
 

Narrative update to be provided 
on the progress of this work 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

James 
Carpenter 

 
The previous residents’ survey and results has been reviewed. The 
data contained within it has reached the end of its currency.  
 
Work is now underway to lay the groundwork for a refreshed 
residents’ survey. This will consider the right format for the collection 
of data; what data can be used to inform an appropriate baseline; 
and what the overall objectives of the survey will be. The preliminary 
findings of this exercise will be used to inform an initial discussion 
with the Cabinet Member. 
 

 
 
 
 
WIOI2.5 
 

Explore initiatives to increase 
voter registration and turnout 
levels at elections, especially 
amongst young people 

Narrative update on individual 
initiatives and opportunities to 
encourage voter registration 

Cllr Emily 
Smith 

James 
Carpenter 

The Communications team provided support to Democratic Services 
in promoting May’s elections. This assistance was general in nature 
and did not specifically target certain groups e.g. young voters. 
 
The Vale’s future comms approach to encouraging voter registration 
and turnout will be mapped out as part of our wider communications 
plans. 

 
 
 
WIOI2.6 

Ensure council’s consultations 
engage specifically with young 
people and other under-
represented groups 

A narrative report with input 
from the engagement/comms 
teams and the equalities officer 
on activity to encourage these 
groups 

Cllr Bethia 
Thomas 

James 
Carpenter 

The Council has started a review of our current engagement 
channels and data sets in order to determine their effectiveness and 
what further actions can be taken to engage with under-represented 
groups. This work will need to be baselined against the findings 
emerging from Census 2021. 

  

P
age 315



 

59 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate Plan 
ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 
Lead 

Officer Lead Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
 
PROGRAMME 3 

Strengthen our governance 
framework and address our 
policy gaps, improving 
transparency 

Narrative update on 
policies/strategies currently in 
development/awaiting 
approval/recently approved. 

  
Harry 
Barrington-
Mountford 

Policy and Programmes have identified 56 policies and strategies 
contained within the Annual Delivery Plan. The Insight & Policy team 
can be used to support their further development. Arrangements are 
currently being made to implement bespoke assistance – this will 
include training for relevant service staff.  
 
An optimisation review of the Corporate Delivery Framework is also 
currently underway. 

 
 
 
 
WIOI3.1 

Work to adopt new CIPFA 
financial management code 
to enhance our financial 
governance 

 
 
 
Narrative update detailing the 
elements of the code which 
have been implemented, which 
are underway, and which are 
yet to be started 
 
 
 

Cllr Andrew 
Crawford 

Simon 
Hewings 

No progress reported Q1 2021/22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WIOI3.2 

Council reporting and 
decision-making templates 
to include impact on the 
climate emergency 

Narrative update on significant 
decisions which have key 
environmental considerations, 
additionally any updates to key 
policies which have a focus on 
the climate emergency 

Cllr Debby 
Hallett 

Margaret 
Reed 

The Vale’s templates and report writing guidance have been 
updated to reflect the climate emergency. 
 
As of Q1 2021/22, the Cabinet have supported both the 
establishment of a Growth Board Environment Advisory Group and 
the development of an Arc Environment Strategy. They have also 
adopted policies and key actions related to the Oxfordshire Electric 
Vehicle Infrastructure strategy and endorsed measures that would 
reduce the negative impacts of EV battery production. 
 
In addition, the General Licensing Committee have adopted a 
revised taxi licensing policy which includes provisions on vehicle 
emissions. 

P
age 316



 

60 
 

Performance Measures 

 
Corporate Plan 
ID 

Stated Aim/Project 
description 

Measure 
Cabinet 
Lead 

Officer Lead Performance Update 

 
 
 
 
 
WIOI3.3 

Review the councils 
constitution and scheme of 
delegation annually 

Narrative update with the 
outcome of the review 

Cllr Debby 
Hallett 

Margaret 
Reed 

During Q1 2021/22, the Vale returned to in-person meetings where 
required. We are, nevertheless, continuing to allow remote public 
and officer participation. In addition, informal virtual meetings are 
continuing where they are best suited to the purpose of the 
items/topics being discussed. 
 
Ongoing constitution updates are scheduled to be agreed by the 
Council in July and October 2021. The annual constitution review is 
planned for Q3 2021/22. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
WIOI3.4 

Increase and improve 
publicly available information 
– e.g.- code of conduct 
complaints (decision noted) 
FOIs (responses), corporate 
complaints (data)Improve 
accessibility of corporate 
information through 
publishing on our website 

Narrative update on relevant 
reviews/newly available 
information/website 
improvements and metrics 
 
Quantitative - FOI/Complaints 
data 

Cllr Debby 
Hallett 

James 
Carpenter 

Freedom of Information (FOI) and Environmental Information 
Regulations (EIR) contact with the Council remains high. In Q1 
2021/22, the Vale received 163 FOI/EIRs. 
 
The Information Governance team are currently reviewing what 
information could usefully be published on the council’s website to 
reduce the numbers of repeat FOIs. Longer-term, work is planned in 
relation to both the Transparency Code and the FOI publication 
scheme. 
 
There were 27 stage one complaints between April-June and 5 
stage two. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 317



 

61 
 

 

 

Covid-19 has been an unprecedented challenge which required the Council to react quickly to changing circumstances, in order to support local 

businesses, the economy, the voluntary and community sector and local residents. We have worked hard to maintain essential services whilst 

redeploying staff to new areas of work to help deal with the crisis. The Council developed a Community Hub team during the pandemic to work 

effectively with voluntary sector partners and volunteers. 

 
This team continue to collaborate with our partners at a County-wide level, including close coordination and good communication between the 

County, City and District Councils, with the NHS and OxLEP, to support vulnerable people and encourage vaccination uptake in the district.  

 

COVID-19 Community Hub Support distributed between 1 April and 30 June 
 

 

COVID-19 RESPONSE AND RECOVERY 
  

£106,231 
TO VOLUNTARY 

SECTOR AND 

HOUSEHOLDS 

             14 

VOUCHER 

REFERRALS 

 

£3.4m 

TO LOCAL 

BUSINESSES 

 

34 

TEST & TRACE 

PAYMENTS 

             13 

FOOD 

PARCELS 

 

P
age 318



 

 1 
 

Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee  

 

 
Report of Head of Finance 

Author: Emma Creed 

Telephone: 01235 422498 

Textphone: 18001 01235 422498 

E-mail: emma.creed@southandvale.gov.uk 

SODC cabinet member responsible for Finance:  Councillor Leigh Rawlins 
Telephone:  01189 722565 
Email:  leigh.rawlins@southoxon.gov.uk 
 
VWHDC cabinet member responsible for Finance:  Councillor Andrew Crawford 
Telephone:  01235 772134 
Email:  andy.crawford@whitehorsedc.gov.uk 
 

To: Joint Audit and Governance Committee, Cabinet and Council 

DATE: 28 September 2021 by Joint Audit and Governance Committee 

            30 September 2021 (S) / 1 October 2021 (V) by Cabinet 

            7 October 2021 (S) / 6 October 2021 (V) by Council 

  

 

Treasury Outturn 2020-21 
  
Recommendations 

That Joint Audit and Governance Committee: 

1.  notes the treasury management outturn report 2020/21,  

2.  is satisfied that the treasury activities are carried out in accordance with the 
treasury management strategy and policy, and 

3.  make any comments and recommendations to Cabinets as necessary.  

That Cabinet: 

Considers any comments from Joint Audit and Governance Committee and 
recommends Council to: 

1. approve the treasury management outturn report for 2020/21; 

2. approve the actual 2020/21 prudential indicators within the report. 

Page 319

Agenda Item 15



 

 2 
 

Purpose of report 

1. This report fulfils the legislative requirements to ensure the adequate monitoring 
and reporting of the treasury management activities and that the councils’ 
prudential indicators are reported to the councils at the end of the year.  The report 
provides details of the treasury activities for the financial year 2020/21. 

2. This complies with the requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance 
and Accountancy (CIPFA’s) Code of Practice on Treasury Management. 

Strategic objectives 

3. Effective treasury management is required to help the councils meet their strategic 
objectives. 

 
Background 

4. The councils’ treasury activities are strictly regulated by legislation.  The CIPFA 
Prudential Code and CIPFA Treasury Management Code of Practice require a 
report to be provided to the councils at the end of the financial year.   

5. This report provides details on the treasury activity and performance for 2020/21 
against prudential indicators and benchmarks set for the year in the 2020/21 
Treasury Management Strategy (TMS), approved by each council in February 
2020.  Each council is required to approve this report. 

6. Link Asset Services are the councils’ retained treasury advisors.   

7. Between 1 August 2016 and 31 March 2020, the operational treasury management 
staff were outsourced to Capita.  The executive decision making function remained 
with the head of finance throughout this time.  On 1 April 2020, the treasury 
management function was brought back inhouse. 

8. There are three types of investment, the performance of which is covered in this 
report 

a. True treasury investments – these investments are primarily for generating 
interest for the councils. Examples of these are loans to banks or other local 
authorities. It also includes investments in property funds. 

b. Non-treasury loans – these are loans to third parties, which earn a return, 
but they do not fall under the strict definition of a treasury investment.   

c. Property investments - both councils have investment properties let on 
commercial basis. The primary purpose of holding these assets is for 
investment purposes and they are not part of regeneration schemes.      

9. The councils continue to invest with regard for security, liquidity and yield, in that 
order. 

Economic conditions and factors effecting investment returns 
during 2020/21 

Page 320



 

 3 
 

10. UK bank base rates were held at 0.10 per cent.  Link Asset Services provide a 
regular forecast of interest rates and the latest forecast is reproduced in appendix 
A.  This forecast shows that base rates are expected to remain at 0.10 per cent for 
the foreseeable future.  

11. The TMS makes clear that investment priority is given to the security of principal in 
the first instance.  As a result, investments have only been made with 
counterparties of high credit quality and low risk. Since the global banking crisis 
and the downgrading of the credit ratings of many banks, it has become 
increasingly difficult to place money at competitive rates, as institutions with high 
credit ratings have been offering lower rates.  

12. Average treasury investment balances were higher for both councils than expected 
in the year.  This arose from a combination of accumulated revenue and capital 
surpluses/slippage and unbudgeted grant receipts. This was also the case in 
2019/20.   

13. Investments that have helped to keep yields up for both councils include longer 
term investments taken out when rates were higher, such as the CCLA property 
fund at both councils, and the unit trusts at South.  

14. Outlook for 2021/22 –interest rates are expected to remain at 0.10 per cent for the 
next eighteen months.  Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) members are hopeful 
we will see a good economic recovery post lockdown, however with unpredictable 
virus factors, forecasting is difficult and will be subject to revision. 

Summary of investment activities during 2020/21 

15. Prudential limits (security).  Both councils are required by the Prudential Code to 
report on the limits set each year in the TMS.  The purpose of these limits is to 
ensure that the activity of the treasury function remains within certain parameters, 
thereby mitigating risk and reducing the impact of an adverse movement in interest 
rates.  However, if these limits are set to be too restrictive, they may impair the 
opportunities to reduce costs/improve performance.  These limits are shown in 
appendix B. 

16. Yield - the performance of the two councils is summarised in the tables below.   

  

South Treasury 
investments 

£000 

Non 
treasury 

loan    
£000 

Sub 
Total 
£000 

Property 
investment 

£000 

Overall 
total 
£000 

1 Average investment balance 160,433  15,000  175,433  7,915  183,347  
2 Budgeted investment income 1,960  623  2,583     
3 Actual investment income 1,850  623  2,474 322 2,795 
4 Surplus/(deficit)  (3) - (2) (110) 0  (110)     

5 Rate of return  (3) ÷ (1) 1.15% 4.15% 1.41% 4.07% 1.52% 

 

 

 

Page 321



 

 4 
 

  

Vale Treasury 
investments 

£000 

Property 
investment      

£000 

Overall total 
£000 

1 Average investment balance 119,755  5,684  125,439  
2 Budgeted investment income 908      
3 Actual investment income 1,072  238 1,310 
4 surplus/(deficit)  (3) - (2) 163      

5 Rate of return  (3) ÷ (1) 0.89% 4.19% 1.04% 
Note: £135,000 of treasury investment income relates to interest earned on Enterprise Zone balances 

17. Vale exceeded treasury budgeted investment income this year in terms of actual 
income against budget and rates of return against benchmark.  South did not reach 
the budgeted investment income.  This is because investments matured early in 
the year and were reinvested at lower rates. More detail on benchmarks is 
included in the appendices that follow this report.  

18. Detailed reports on the treasury activities for each council and performance for 
2020/21 against prudential indicators and benchmarks set for the year are 
contained in appendix C – South Oxfordshire DC and appendix D – Vale of White 
Horse DC.   

19. A detailed list of both councils’ treasury investments as at 31 March 2021 is shown 
at appendix E. 

Debt activity during 2020/21 

20. During 2020/21, there has not been a need for either council to borrow and both 
councils continue to take a prudent approach to their debt strategy.  The prudential 
indicators and limits set out in appendix B provide the scope and flexibility for the 
council to borrow in the short-term, if such a need arose, for cash flow purposes to 
support the council(s) in the achievement of their service objectives.   

Climate and ecological impact implications 

21. There are no climate or ecological implications arising from this report, however 
the Council can make significant impact via future investment opportunities and 
operational changes.  Numerous changes have already been made to ensure that 
climate is a key consideration in key documents and processes (such as the 
procurement strategy), and this will become more evident in future decision 
making.  As opportunities to support the climate ambitions of the Councils arise, 
they will be considered and appropriately weighted to include any climate or 
ecological impacts. 

Financial implications 

22. The treasury investments made in 2020/21 ensured over £2 million of actual 
investment income was achieved for South during the year and over £1 million for 
Vale.  Income earned from investments supports the councils’ medium term 
financial plans and contributes to the councils’ balances or supports the in-year 
expenditure programmes.    

23. Looking forward, income is anticipated to remain stable with any increase due to 
ongoing surplus cash balances and rises in market rates offset by a general 

Page 322



 

 5 
 

reduction in the balances available to invest.  This will be reflected in the councils’ 
future budgets and medium term financial plans. 

Legal implications 

24. There are no significant legal implications.  Compliance with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services and the MHCLG Local 
Government Investment Guidance provides assurance that the councils’ 
investments are, and will continue to be, within their legal powers. 

Conclusion 

25. Despite a difficult operating environment, both councils continued to make 
investments during 2020/21 that maintained security and liquidity whilst providing a 
return that mostly exceeded market benchmarks.     

Background papers 

 Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA) code of practice 
for treasury management in the public sector. 

 DCLG Local Government Investment Guidance 
 CIPFA treasury management in the public services code of practice and cross 

sectoral guidance notes 
 Treasury Management Strategy 2020/21 – Councils in February 2020. 

 
Appendices 

A. Interest rate forecasts 
B. Prudential limits  
C. SODC – Treasury activities 2020-2021 
D. VWHDC – Treasury activities 2020-2021  
E. Treasury investments as at 31 March 2021 
F. Glossary of terms 
          

Page 323



  Appendix A 
Interest rate forecast as at May 2021  
 
The table below shows Link Asset Services’ forecast of the expected movement in 
medium term interest rates: 
 

  Sep 21 Dec 21 Mar 22 Jun 22 Sep 22 Dec 22 Mar 23 
BANK RATE 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 
3 m ave earnings 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 
6 m ave earnings 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.20 
12 m ave earnings 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.30 0.30 
             
5 yr PWLB 1.20 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.40 1.40 1.40 
10 yr PWLB 1.70 1.70 1.80 1.80 1.90 1.90 1.90 
25 yr PWLB 2.20 2.30 2.40 2.40 2.40 2.50 2.50 
50 yr PWLB 2.00 2.10 2.20 2.20 2.20 2.30 2.30 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 324



  Appendix B 
Prudential limits (indicators) as at March 2021 

 
Prudential indicators as at 31 March 2021           
   Vale South 
        

   
Original 

estimate 
Actual 

position 
Original 

estimate 
Actual 

position 
   £m £m £m £m 
Authorised limit for external debt       
Borrowing  30 0 30 0 
Other long term liabilities  5 0 0 0 
   35 0 30 0 
        
Operational boundary for external debt       
Borrowing  25 0 25 0 
Other long term liabilities  5 0 0 0 

   30 0 25 0 
Investments       
Interest rate exposures       
Limits on fixed interest rates %  100% 98% 100% 87% 
Limits on variable interest rates £  50 14 50 9 
Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days      
Upper limit for principal sums invested > 364 days £ 40 15 70 7 
Limit to be placed on investments to maturity       

1 - 2 years  NA NA NA NA 
2 - 5 years  NA NA NA NA 
5 years +  NA NA NA NA 

            

 
 
 
Prudential indicators – explanatory note 
 
Debt 
 
There are two limits on external debt: the ‘Operational Boundary’ and the ‘Authorised 
Limit’.   Both are consistent with the current commitments, existing plans and the 
proposals in the budget report for capital expenditure and financing, and with approved 
treasury management policy statement and practices.  They are both based on 
estimates of most likely, but not worst case, scenario.   

The key difference is that the Authorised Limit cannot be breached without prior 
approval of the Council.  It therefore includes more headroom to take account of 
eventualities such as delays in generating capital receipts, forward borrowing to take 
advantage of attractive interest rates, use of borrowing in place of operational leasing, 
“invest to save” projects, occasional short term borrowing to cover temporary revenue 
cash flow shortfalls as well as an assessment of risks involved in managing cash flows.   

The Operational Boundary is a more realistic indicator of the likely position. 

 
Interest rate exposures 
 
The maximum proportion of interest on borrowing which is subject to fixed/variable rate 
of interest. 
 

Page 325



  Appendix B 
 
Investments 
 
Interest rate exposure 
 
The purpose of these indicators is to set ranges that will limit exposure to interest rate 
movement. The indicator required by the Treasury Management Code considers the net 
position of borrowing and investment and is based on principal sums outstanding. 
 
Principal sums invested 
 
This indicator sets a limit on the level of investments that can be made for more than 
364 days. 

Page 326



Appendix C 

 1 
 

          

SODC treasury activities in 2020/21 

Council treasury investments as at 31 March 2021 
 

1. The council’s treasury investments, analysed by age as at 31 March 2021 were as 
follows:  

Table 1: maturity structure of investments at 31 March 2021: 
        
  £000 % holding   
Call 509  0%   
Money market fund 8,690  5%   

Cash available within 1 week 9,199  6%   
Up to 4 months 56,000  34%     
5-6 months 17,000  10%   
6 months to 1 year 54,500  33%   
Over 1 year 7,000  4%   
Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander 222  0%   

Total cash deposits 143,921  87%   
CCLA Property Fund 6,468  4%   

Equities 12,775  8%   

Total investments 163,164  100%   
 

2. Most of the funds invested are held in the form of fixed interest rate and term cash 
deposits. These provide some certainty over the investment return.  

3. The investment profile is organised to ensure sufficient liquidity for revenue and 
capital activities, security of investments and to manage risks within all treasury 
management activities. 

4. The chart below shows in percentage terms how the portfolio above is spread 
across the investment types: 

 

 
 

Banks - UK Fixed 
Deposits
£26,000

16%

Building societies -
fixed deposits

£75,000
46%

Local Authorities
£18,500

12%

Housing Associations
£15,000

9%

Money Market Funds
£8,690

5%

CCLA
£6,468

4%

Unit Trusts
£12,775

8%

Banks - UK Call 
accounts

£509
0%

Portfolio analysis £000

Page 327



Appendix C 

 2 
 

Treasury investment income  
 

5. The total income earned on investments during 2020/21 was £1.85 million, 
compared to the original budget of £1.96 million, as shown in table 2 below: 

Table 2:  Investment interest earned by investment type 
   
   Annual  Actual Variation 
Investment type  Budget Interest   
    £000 £000 £000 
       
Fixed term and call   1,205 1,253 48 
Equities  456 325 (131) 
CCLA property fund   299 272 (27) 

    1,960 1,850 (110) 

 
6. The actual return achieved was £0.1 million less than the original budget. This 

was due to: 

 Interest earned on cash deposits was £0.5 million higher than forecast 
principally due to balances available to invest being more than predicted in 
the 2020/21 budget setting.  

 Dividend received on equities was £131,000 less than forecast. The value of 
our equities holding tracks the FTSE.  When the coronavirus pandemic 
struck at the beginning of 2020 the FTSE fell sharply, but slowly increased as 
the situation became more stable. 
 

7. The actual average rate of return on treasury investments for the year was 1.15 
per cent (1.64 in 2019/20).  

Performance measurement 

8. A list of treasury investments as at 31 March 2021 is shown in appendix E.  All 
investments were with approved counterparties.  The average level of 
investments held was £170 million. Table 3 below shows in summary the 
performance of the council’s treasury investments against the benchmarks set out 
in the TMS.  These benchmarks are used to assess and monitor the council’s 
treasury investment performance for each type of investment. 

9. The £170 million does not represent the council’s usable, cash backed reserves, 
which at 31 March 2021 totalled £124 million.  The difference represents the 
council’s working capital balance and capital grants received in advance of spend.    

Table 3: Treasury investment returns achieved against benchmark   

    
Benchmark 

Return 
Actual 
Return 

Growth 
(Below)/above 

Benchmark Benchmarks 
        
Bank & Building Society 
deposits - internally managed  0.02% 0.83% 0.81% 3 Month LIBID 
Equities  23.29% 21.81% (1.48%) FTSE All Shares Index 
Property related investments 
(excluding SOHA loan)* 

 

2.46% 5.43% 2.97% IPD balanced property 
unit trust index 

            

Page 328



Appendix C 

 3 
 

Note: the benchmark return for unit trusts and CCLA includes the movement in 
capital value.  All other benchmarks reflect earnings of treasury investment 
income.   
 

10. Returns on Bank and building society deposits (Call accounts, money market 
funds and fixed term deposits) are benchmarked against the three-month LIBID 
rate, which was an average of 0.02 per cent for 2020/21.  The performance for the 
year of 0.83 per cent exceeded the benchmark by 0.81 per cent.   

11. The Bank of England and the Governments introduced new programmes of 
supplying the banking system and the economy with massive amounts of cheap 
credit so banks could help cash starved business survive the lockdown.  The 
Government also supplied huge amounts of finance to local authorities to pass on 
to business.  This meant that for most of the year there was much more liquidity in 
financial markets than there was demand to borrow. With the consequent effect 
that investment earnings plummeted.   

12. Higher than anticipated investment balances as a result of the grants received 
from Government contributed to the increase in fixed term investment income 
during the year. 

13. The CCLA property fund principal investment of £5 million (March 2013) 
increased in value during 2020/21 to £6.5 million.  Dividends received in the year 
totalled £0.3 million. Both the capital appreciation and the interest earned are 
included in the performance of 5.43 per cent achieved above.  The capital gain is 
however not realised and so for comparison purposes, the actual rate of return is 
interest as a factor of market value of holding being 2.46 per cent.  

Equities  

14. The council’s holdings with the Legal & General (L&G) UK 100 Index Trust were 
purchased in 2000/01 at an initial cost of £10 million.  This is an authorised unit 
trust incorporated in the United Kingdom and regulated by the FSA.  The trust’s 
objective is to track the capital performance of the UK equity market as 
represented by the FTSE 100 index which represents 98-99 per cent of the UK 
market capitalisation. 

15. The index shows the performance of all eligible companies listed on the London 
Stock Exchange main market and today covers 641 constituents with a combined 
value of nearly £1.9 trillion.  It is recognised as the main benchmark for unit trusts.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 329



Appendix C 

 4 
 

Table 4: Unit Trusts - Movement in capital     
    £ £ 
Market Value as at 31.3.21    12,774,985 
       
Less:      
Dividends received in year             455,635    
Accrued dividends             130,231    
            (585,866) 
       
Amended market value as at 31.3.21   12,189,119 
       
Market value as at 1.4.20    10,006,338 
       
Increase in Market Value in year     2,182,781 

 
 

16. The increase above is compared to the performance of the stock market as a 
whole using the benchmarking in table 5 below.  The fund’s under performance of 
1.48 per cent compared with the stock market equates to £147,411 in real terms.  

Table 5: Unit Trust performance   
      
Increase in FTSE all share was 23.29% 
     
Increase in Market Value  21.81% 
     
Under-performance  (1.48%) 
      
   £ 
Market value as at 1.4.20        10,006,338  
     
Adjusted for FTSE change            2,330,192  
     
Benchmark Market Value at 31.3.21       12,336,531  
     
Amended market value as at 31.3.21       12,189,119  
     

Under performance                (147,411)  

 

17. The performance of the fund over the past three years is summarised in table 5.1 
below. The justification for holding this investment is regularly reviewed. 

Table 5.1 Unit Trust past performance 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 
      
Performance against FTSE all share % 0.60% (1.57%) (1.47%) 
(Under)/Over     
Performance against FTSE all share £000            70,350           (193,172)       (147,411)  
(Under)/Over     
        

   

18. Dividends received of £0.3 million were reinvested to acquire additional fund 
units.  

Page 330



Appendix C 

 5 
 

19. Officers monitor the performance of the unit trust holding on a regular basis.  
When the market value reaches £14 million, a disposal of £2 million is made. No 
disposal took place during 2020/21. 

  

Non-treasury investment loan 

20. During 2013/14, the council entered into a secured loan agreement with SOHA to 
enable them to finance affordable housing schemes.  The Council lent £15 million 
over 20 years at a fixed rate of 4.15 per cent.  Interest is paid quarterly and during 
2020/21, the council received £0.6 million.  

Land and property 

21. The Council holds a portfolio of investment properties, which includes land, 
depots, garages, and shops that are let on a commercial basis. These assets are 
valued on an annual basis and had average net book value of £7.9 million during 
2020/21 (£7.8 million at 31 March 2020).  Income generated was £0.32 million in 
2020/21 (£0.39 million in 2019/20) giving a gross rate of return of 4.07 per cent.   

22. Due to movement in property values and the exclusion of whole life costs, these 
rates of return should not be taken as a direct comparison with the treasury rates. 

Liquidity and yield 

23. The council uses short-term investments to meet daily cash-flow requirements 
and aims to invest a proportion of the portfolio over longer dated cash deposits 
where possible.   

24. The amount maintained for liquidity was £9 million.  

 
 

Page 331



Appendix D 

 1 
 

VWHDC detailed treasury performance in 2020/21 

Council treasury investments as at 31 March 2021 
 
1. The council’s treasury investments analysed by age as at 31 March 2021 were as 

follows:  
 

Table 1: maturity structure of investments at 31 March 2020: 
        
        

  £000 % holding   
Call 0  0%   
Money market fund 14,220  12%   
Cash available within 1 week 14,220  12%   
Up to 4 months 17,000  15%     
5-6 months 14,000  12%   
6 months to 1 year 52,000  45%   
Over 1 year 15,000  13%   
      
Total cash deposits 112,220  98%   
      

CCLA Property Fund 2,587  2%   
      

Total investments 114,807  100%   
 
 
2. Most of the funds invested are held in the form of fixed interest rate and term cash 

deposits. These provide some certainty over the investment return.   

3. The investment profile is organised to ensure sufficient liquidity for revenue and 
capital activities, security of investments and to manage risks within all treasury 
management activities. 

4. The chart below shows in percentage terms how the portfolio above is spread 
across investment types: 

 

Banks - UK fixed 
deposits £20,000 18%

Building societies -
fixed deposits £45,000

39%
Local authorities

£8,000 7%

Housing Associations
£25,000

22%

Money Market Funds
£14,220 12%

CCLA £2,587 2%

Portfolio Analysis (£000)

Page 332



Appendix D 

 2 
 

 

Treasury investment income 

5. The total interest earned on treasury investments during 2020/21 was £1.1 million 
compared to the original budget estimate of £0.9 million as shown in table 2 below: 

Table 2: Investment interest earned by investment type   
     

   Annual  Actual Variation 

Investment type  Budget Interest   

   £000 £000 £000 

Fixed term and call                 822  956                 134  

CCLA Property Fund                 87  115                     28  

Total Interest   909  1,071  162  
Note: £135,000 of treasury investment income relates to interest earned on Enterprise Zone balances 

 
6. The actual return achieved was £0.2 million higher than the original budget. This 

was primarily due to average balances throughout the year remaining higher than 
forecast.  

7. The total actual average interest rate achieved for the year was 0.89 per cent. 
 

Performance measurement 

8. A list of treasury investments as at 31 March 2021 is shown in appendix E. All 
investments were with approved counterparties. The average level of investments 
held was £112 million.  At 31 March 2021 the council’s usable, cash backed 
reserves totalled around £40 million.  The difference represents working capital 
and capital grants received in advance. Table 3 below shows in summary the 
performance of the council’s treasury investments against the benchmarks set out 
in the TMS. These benchmarks are used to assess and monitor the council’s 
treasury investment performance for each type of investment. 

Table 3: Treasury investment returns achieved against benchmark 
  Benchmark 

return 
Actual 
return 

Growth 
(below)/above 

Benchmark 

Benchmarks 

Internally managed - Bank & 
Building Society deposits 

0.02% 0.82% 0.80% 3 month LIBID 

Property related funds (CCLA)* 2.46% 5.43% 2.97% 

IPD balanced 
property unit trust 

index 

 *Source: CCLA Local Authorities Property Fund Report March 2021 

9. Returns on bank and building society deposits (internally managed cash deposits) 
are benchmarked against the 3-month LIBID rate, which was an average of 0.02 
per cent for 2020/21.  The performance for the year of 0.82 per cent exceeded the 
benchmark by 0.80 per cent.  

10. The Bank of England and the Governments introduced new programmes of 
supplying the banking system and the economy with massive amounts of cheap 

Page 333



Appendix D 

 3 
 

credit so banks could help cash starved business survive the lockdown.  The 
Government also supplied huge amounts of finance to local authorities to pass on 
to business.  This meant that for most of the year there was much more liquidity in 
financial markets than there was demand to borrow. With the consequent effect 
that investment earnings plummeted.  

11. Higher than anticipated investment balances as a result of the grants received from 
Government contributed to the increase in fixed term investment income during the 
year. 

12. The CCLA property fund principal investment of £2 million (April 2013) increased in 
value during 2020/21 to £2.6 million.  Dividends received in the year totalled £0.1 
million. Both the capital appreciation and the interest earned are included in the 
performance of 5.43 per cent achieved above.  The capital gain is however not 
realised and so for comparison purposes, the actual rate of return is interest as a 
factor of market value of holding being 2.46 per cent.  

Land and Property 

13. The council holds a portfolio of investment properties, which includes land, offices 
and shops that are let on a commercial basis.  These assets are valued on an 
annual basis and had an average net book value of £5.7 million during 2020/21 
(£5.9 million as at 31 March 2020).  Income generated was £0.2 million (£0.2 
million in 2019/20).  This is equivalent to a gross return of 4.19 per cent. 

14. Due to movement in property values and the exclusion of whole life costs, these 
rates of return should not be taken as a direct comparison with the treasury rates. 

Liquidity and yield 
 
15. The council uses short-term investments to meet daily cash-flow requirements and 

has also aims to invest a proportion of the portfolio over longer dated cash 
deposits where possible.   
 

16. The amount maintained for liquidity was £14 million. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 334



  Appendix E 

 

South Oxfordshire District Council investments (excluding KSF) as at 31 March 2021

Counterparty Deposit Type Maturity Principal Rate
Date

Coventry CC Fixed Apr-21 5,000,000 0.95%
Wokingham BC Fixed Apr-21 5,000,000 1.90%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Apr-21 2,500,000 1.18%
Close Brothers Fixed Apr-21 2,000,000 1.00%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed Apr-21 3,000,000 1.75%
Close Brothers Fixed Apr-21 2,000,000 1.00%
METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST LTD Fixed Apr-21 3,000,000 1.70%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed Apr-21 3,000,000 1.78%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Apr-21 1,000,000 1.16%
Places for People Fixed May-21 2,000,000 1.70%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Jun-21 2,000,000 0.57%
Places for People Fixed Jun-21 3,000,000 1.70%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Jul-21 4,000,000 0.50%
Principality Building Society Fixed Jul-21 4,000,000 0.38%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Jul-21 2,000,000 0.50%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Jul-21 1,000,000 0.40%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Jul-21 2,500,000 0.42%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Jul-21 2,000,000 0.37%
Bury MBC Fixed Jul-21 5,000,000 1.50%
Lloyds Bank Fixed Jul-21 2,000,000 1.30%
Furness Building Society Fixed Aug-21 2,000,000 0.45%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Aug-21 2,000,000 0.40%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Aug-21 2,000,000 0.40%
Furness Building Society Fixed Sep-21 2,000,000 0.45%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Sep-21 2,000,000 0.30%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Sep-21 2,000,000 0.30%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Sep-21 3,000,000 0.35%
Furness Building Society Fixed Sep-21 2,000,000 0.45%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Oct-21 2,000,000 0.30%
Cambridge BS Fixed Oct-21 3,000,000 0.40%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Oct-21 1,000,000 0.42%
Cambridge BS Fixed Oct-21 2,000,000 0.42%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Oct-21 2,000,000 0.42%
Saffron Building Society Fixed Nov-21 1,000,000 0.40%
Saffron Building Society Fixed Nov-21 1,000,000 0.40%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Nov-21 3,000,000 0.45%
Furness Building Society Fixed Nov-21 3,000,000 0.55%
Close Brothers Fixed Nov-21 3,000,000 1.30%
Saffron Building Society Fixed Dec-21 3,000,000 0.40%
METROPOLITAN HOUSING TRUST LTD Fixed Jan-22 2,000,000 0.30%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Jan-22 2,000,000 0.33%
Thurrock BC Fixed Jan-22 3,500,000 0.20%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Feb-22 5,000,000 0.28%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Feb-22 3,000,000 0.20%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Feb-22 3,000,000 0.20%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Feb-22 2,000,000 0.30%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Mar-22 4,000,000 0.20%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Mar-22 2,000,000 0.20%
Principality Building Society Fixed Mar-22 2,000,000 0.14%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Mar-22 2,000,000 0.39%
Royal Bank of Scotland Fixed Feb-23 2,000,000 2.46%
Places for People Fixed Mar-23 5,000,000 1.00%

Santander Call 409,797 0.08%
Royal Bank of Scotland Call 2,361 0.01%
Royal Bank of Scotland Call 96,489 0.01%
Goldman Sachs MMF 8,000,000 Variable
Blackrock MMF 690,000 Variable
L&G Equities Unit trust 12,774,985 Variable
CCLA - property fund Property fund 5,000,000 2.46%

GRAND TOTAL 161,473,633Page 335



  Appendix E 

 
 
Note – these do not reconcile to table 1 figures seen in appendix c and d as these are 
original investment levels whereas the values in table 1 are the fair values of 
investments held. 

Vale of White Horse District Council investments as at 31 March 2021
Counterparty Deposit Type Maturity Principal Rate

Date
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Apr-21 2,000,000 1.70%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Apr-21 2,000,000 0.20%
Places For People Homes Ltd Fixed Jun-21 2,000,000 1.70%
Furness Building Society Fixed Jun-21 3,000,000 0.65%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Jun-21 1,000,000 0.55%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Jun-21 3,000,000 0.55%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Jun-21 2,000,000 1.70%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Jul-21 1,000,000 0.55%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Jul-21 1,000,000 1.60%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Aug-21 3,000,000 0.41%
Cambridge Building Society Fixed Aug-21 1,000,000 0.43%
National Counties Building Society Fixed Sep-21 1,000,000 0.45%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Sep-21 1,000,000 0.35%
Principality Building Society Fixed Sep-21 3,000,000 0.22%
Skipton Building Society Fixed Sep-21 3,000,000 0.30%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Sep-21 2,000,000 1.30%
Cambridge Building Society Fixed Oct-21 2,000,000 0.40%
Saffron Building society Fixed Oct-21 3,000,000 0.40%
Places for People Homes Ltd Fixed Oct-21 1,000,000 1.70%
Furness Building Society Fixed Oct-21 3,000,000 0.55%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Nov-21 2,000,000 1.30%
Worthing Borough Council Fixed Nov-21 3,000,000 1.30%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Nov-21 1,500,000 0.45%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Nov-21 2,500,000 0.34%
Monmouthshire Building Society Fixed Dec-21 1,500,000 0.45%
Principality Building Society Fixed Dec-21 2,000,000 0.19%
Progressive Building Society Fixed Jan-22 3,000,000 0.30%
Fife Council Fixed Jan-22 5,000,000 0.20%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Jan-22 4,000,000 1.30%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Jan-22 5,000,000 0.18%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Feb-22 1,500,000 0.20%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Feb-22 3,000,000 0.30%
Places For People Homes Ltd Fixed Feb-22 2,000,000 1.80%
Newcastle Building Society Fixed Feb-22 2,000,000 0.20%
Close Brothers Ltd Fixed Mar-22 2,000,000 1.30%
West Bromwich Building Society Fixed Mar-22 3,000,000 0.20%
Places For People Homes Ltd Fixed Jun-22 5,000,000 0.75%
Metropolitan Housing Trust Ltd Fixed Nov-22 3,000,000 1.10%
Goldman Sachs International Bank Fixed Mar-23 2,000,000 0.37%
Southern Housing Group Fixed Mar-23 5,000,000 1.00%

Goldman Sachs MMF 14,000,000 Variable
LGIM MMF 220,000 Variable
CCLA Property fund 2,000,000 2.46%

GRAND TOTAL 114,220,000

Page 336



  Appendix F 
 
GLOSSARY OF TERMS 
 
Basis point (BP) 1/100th of 1%, i.e. 0.01% 

Base rate Minimum lending rate of a bank or financial institution in the UK. 

Benchmark A measure against which the investment policy or performance 
of a fund manager can be compared. 

Bill of Exchange A non-interest-bearing written order used primarily in 
international trade that binds one party to pay a fixed sum of 
money to another party at a predetermined future date.  

Callable Deposit A deposit placed with a bank or building society at a set rate for a 
set amount of time.  However, the borrower has the right to repay 
the funds on pre agreed dates, before maturity.  This decision is 
based on how market rates have moved since the deal was 
agreed.  If rates have fallen the likelihood of the deposit being 
repaid rises, as cheaper money can be found by the borrower. 

[Cash] Fund 
Management 

Fund management is the management of an investment portfolio 
of cash on behalf of a private client or an institution, the receipts 
and distribution of dividends and interest, and all other 
administrative work in connection with the portfolio. 

Certificate of 
Deposit (CD) 

Evidence of a deposit with a specified bank or building society 
repayable on a fixed date.  They are negotiable instruments and 
have a secondary market; therefore the holder of a CD is able to 
sell it to a third party before the maturity of the CD. 

Commercial 
Paper 

Short-term obligations with maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days 
issued by banks, corporations and other borrowers.  Such 
instruments are unsecured and usually discounted, although 
some may be interest bearing. 

Corporate Bond Strictly speaking, corporate bonds are those issued by 
companies.  However, the term is used to cover all bonds other 
than those issued by governments in their own currencies and 
includes issues by companies, supranational organisations and 
government agencies. 

Counterparty Another (or the other) party to an agreement or other market 
contract (e.g. lender/borrower/writer of a swap/etc.) 

Credit Default 
Swap (CDS) 

A swap designed to transfer the credit exposure of fixed income 
products between parties.  The buyer of a credit swap receives 
credit protection, whereas the seller of the swap guarantees the 
credit worthiness of the product.  By doing this, the risk of default 
is transferred from the holder of the fixed income security to the 
seller of the swap. 

Page 337



  Appendix F 
Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 
(CFR) 

The amount the council has to borrow to fund its capital 
commitments. 

CIPFA Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. 

CLG [Department for] Communities and Local Government. 

Derivative A contract whose value is based on the performance of an 
underlying financial asset, index or other investment, e.g. an 
option is a derivative because its value changes in relation to the 
performance of an underlying stock. 

Debt 
Management 
Account Deposit 
Facility (DMADF) 

Deposit Account offered by the Debt Management Office, 
guaranteed by the UK government 

European 
Central Bank 
(ECB) 

European Central Bank – sets the central interest rates in the 
EMU area.  The ECB determines the targets itself for its interest 
rate setting policy; this is the keep inflation within a band of 0 to 
2%.  It does not accept that monetary policy is to be used to 
manage fluctuations in unemployment and growth caused by the 
business cycle. 

European and 
Monetary Union 
(EMU) 

The Economic and Monetary Union (EMU) is an umbrella 
term for the group of policies aimed at converging the economies 
of all member states of the European Union. 

Equity A share in a company with limited liability.  It generally enables 
the holder to share in the profitability of the company through 
dividend payments and capital appreciation.  Equity values can 
decrease as well as increase. 

Forward Deal The act of agreeing today to deposit funds with an institution for 
an agreed time limit, on an agreed future date, at an agreed rate. 

Forward 
Deposits 

Same as forward dealing (above). 

Fiscal Policy The government policy on taxation and welfare payments. 

GDP Gross Domestic Product. 

[UK] Gilt Registered UK government securities giving the investor an 
absolute commitment from the government to honour the debt 
that those securities represent. 

LIBID London inter-bank bid rate (to be phased out in December 2021) 

LIBOR London inter-bank offered rate (to be phased out in December 
2021)  

Page 338



  Appendix F 
Money Market 
Fund 

A well rated, highly diversified pooled investment vehicle whose 
assets mainly comprise of short-term instruments.  It is very 
similar to a unit trust, however in a MMF. 

Monetary Policy 
Committee 
(MPC) 

Government body that sets the bank rate (commonly referred to 
as being base rate).  Their primary target is to keep inflation 
within plus or minus 1% of a central target of 2% in two years 
time from the date of the monthly meeting of the committee.  
Their secondary target is to support the government in 
maintaining high and stable levels of growth and employment. 

Other Bond 
Funds 

Pooled funds investing in a wide range of bonds. 

PWLB Public Works Loan Board. 

QE Quantitative Easing. 

Retail Price 
Index 

Measurement of the monthly change in the average level of 
prices at the retail level weighted by the average expenditure 
pattern of the average person. 

Sovereign Issues 
(excl UK Gilts) 

Bonds issued or guaranteed by nation states, but excluding UK 
government bonds. 

Supranational 
Bonds 

Bonds issued by supranational bodies, e.g. European Investment 
Bank.  The bonds – also known as Multilateral Development 
Bank bonds – are generally AAA rated and behave similarly to 
gilts, but pay a higher yield (“spread”) given their relative 
illiquidity when compared with gilts. 

Treasury Bill Treasury bills are short-term debt instruments issued by the UK 
or other governments.  They provide a return to the investor by 
virtue of being issued at a discount to their final redemption 
value. 

 

Page 339



Document is Restricted

Page 340

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 345

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 352

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 356

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 360

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes 6 August 2021

	7 Community infrastructure levy charging schedule adoption
	Appendix 1 - Examiner's report with recommendations
	Appendix 2 - Vale CIL Charging Schedule (Nov 2021)
	1. 	BACKGROUND
	2	Introduction
	3	Infrastructure
	4	CIL and S106 agreements
	5	Viability and rate setting
		Residential Development
		Non-Residential Rates
		Rate Setting

	6	CIL RATES
	7	NEIGHBOURHOOD FUNDS
	8	Calculating the chargeable amount
	9	Exemptions
	10	SPENDING CIL AND REPORTING
	APPENDICES
	Appendix A - Zone 2 Inset Maps



	Appendix 3 - Vale CIL Instalments Policy (Nov 2021)
	Appendix 4 - Consideration of the Cabinet report by Scrutiny Committee on 26 Jul 2021

	8 Developer contributions supplementary planning document adoption
	Appendix 1 - List of Respondents to the Public Consultation
	Appendix 2 - Schedule of Consultation Responses
	Appendix 3 - Developer Contributions SPD v6
	_The_purpose_of
	_ftnref15
	_Hlk48405879
	_Hlk38024220
	_Hlk51951029
	_Hlk75511783
	_Hlk56627089
		Executive Summary
	1. 	INTRODUCTION
		Purpose of this document
		Developer Contributions
		Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
		Section 106 Planning Obligations
		Section 278 Agreements
		Planning Conditions

	2.	RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN CIL, S106 PLANNING OBLIGATIONS, S278 AGREEMENTS AND PLANNING CONDITIONS
	3.	POLICY FRAMEWORK 
	4.	DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS 
		Affordable Housing
		Education 
		Transport
		Recreation and Leisure
		Outdoor Sports and Recreation
		Open Space
		Play Areas
		Allotments
		Social and Community Facilities

		Essential Services
		Health Care
		Fire & Rescue and Police
		Cemeteries

		Placemaking and Public Realm 
		Employment, skills and training
		Environmental Impacts
		Climate Change Mitigation
		Biodiversity and Green Infrastructure
		Waste & Recycling
		Air Quality
		Flood Protection and Water Management
		Waste Water

		Utilities
		Street Naming

	5.	MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF INFRASTRUCTURE
		Open Space
		Buildings
		Public Art
		Equipped Play Areas
		Pitches

	6.	SELF-BUILD AND CUSTOM-BUILD HOUSING
	7.	NEGOTIATION AND ADMINISTRATION OF PLANNING OBLIGATIONS
		Approach to Negotiating Planning Obligations
		Viability and Deliverability
		Definition of Land Value
		Open Book Approach
		Legal, Administration and Monitoring
		Interest on late payment and enforcement
		Indexation
		Bonds

	APPENDICES
	Appendix 1 - Summary Table of Relevant Local  Plan Policies
	Appendix 2 – Approach to Negotiating Planning Obligations 
	Appendix 3 – Standards for Indoor and Outdoor Sport
	Appendix 4 - Specifications for Children’s Play Provision
	Glossary





	Appendix 4 - Consideration of the Cabinet Report by Scrutiny Committee on 26 Jul 2021

	9 Strategic property review
	Appendix 1 - Vale Strategic Property Review
	Appendix 2 - Vale Disposals Policy

	11 Partnership grant scheme - future options for the scheme
	12 Revision of Science Vale Enterprise Zone accountable body memorandum of understanding
	Appendix

	13 Procurement strategy
	14 Quarter 1 Performance Report 2021
	Quarterly Report

	15 Treasury management outturn 2020/21
	Appendix A - Interest rate forecasts 2020-21
	Appendix B - Prudential limits 2020-21
	Appendix C - South treasury activities 2020-21
	Appendix D - Vale treasury activities 2020-21
	Appendix E - Treasury investment 310321
	Appendix F - Glossary of terms

	17 Office accommodation inter-authority agreement
	Appendix 1 - Didcot GW financial review
	Appendix 2 - Didcot GW - Vale financial analysis
	Appendix 3 - legal and operational issues
	Appendix 4 - Inter-authority agreement draft heads of terms


